Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and
Transportation) Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 1 OCTOBER 2024

Time: 1.45 pm

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 2 - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Graham Packham (Chairman) lan Seaton
Deputy John Edwards (Deputy Hugh Selka
Chairman) Brendan Barns (Finance Committee - Ex-
Deputy Randall Anderson Officio Member)
Mary Durcan John Foley (Port Health & Environmental
Deputy Marianne Fredericks Services Committee - Ex-Officio Member)
Deputy Shravan Joshi MBE Eamonn Mullally (Natural Environment
Deputy Alastair Moss Board - Ex-Officio Member)

Enquiries:  Callum Southern
Callum.Southern@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Accessing the virtual public meeting
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London
Corporation by following the below link:
https://www.youtube.com/@ CityofLondonCorporation/streams

A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of
the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not
constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the
City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the
proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.

Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always possible
due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will be uploaded
following the end of the meeting.

lan Thomas CBE
Town Clerk and Chief Executive


https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams

AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES
To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2024.

For Decision
(Pages 5 - 20)

MATTERS ARISING

BUNHILL, BARBICAN AND GOLDEN LANE HEALTHY NEIGHBOURHOODS
PLAN

Report of the Executive Director of Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 21 - 76)

CITY CYCLEWAYS PROGRAMME

Report of the Executive Director of Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 77 - 152)

1 BROADGATE S278 G5

Report of the Executive Director of Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 153 - 180)

VISION ZERO PROGRAMME

Report of the Executive Director of Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 181 - 202)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

COMBINED SECTION 278 PROJECT INITIATION REPORT

Report of the Executive Director of Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 203 - 226)

TRAFFIC ORDER REVIEW - OUTCOME OF DETAILED REVIEWS AND UPDATE

Report of the Executive Director of Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 227 - 358)

BEECH STREET TRANSFORMATION AND PUBLIC REALM PROJECT

Report of the Executive Director of Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 359 - 374)

QUEENSBRIDGE HOUSE HOTEL SECTION 278 PUBLIC REALM
ENHANCEMENTS AND HIGHWAY WORKS

Report of the Executive Director of Environment.

For Decision
(Pages 375 - 392)

DELEGATED REPORTS: OVERVIEW APRIL TO SEPTEMBER 2024
For Information
(Pages 393 - 396)

OUTSTANDING REFERENCES
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information
(Pages 397 - 398)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC



18.

19.

MOTION — That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act as follows:-

Part 2 - Non-public Agenda

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
SuB COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



Agenda Iltem 3

STREETS AND WALKWAYS SUB (PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION)
COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 9 July 2024

Minutes of the meeting of the Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and
Transportation) Committee held at Committee Room 2 - 2nd Floor West Wing,
Guildhall on Tuesday, 9 July 2024 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:

Graham Packham (Chairman)

Deputy John Edwards (Deputy Chairman)

Deputy Randall Anderson

Deputy Marianne Fredericks

Deputy Shravan Joshi MBE

lan Seaton

Brendan Barns (Finance Committee - Ex-Officio Member)

John Foley (Port Health & Environmental Services Committee - Ex-Officio Member)
Eamonn Mullally (Natural Environment Board - Ex-Officio Member)

Officers:

James Aggio-Brewe - Environment Department
Melanie Charalambous - Environment Department
Maria Herrera - Environment Department
Gillian Howard - Environment Department
lan Hughes - Environment Department
Andrea Larice - Environment Department
Bruce McVean - Environment Department
Andrea Moravicova - Environment Department
Tom Noble - Environment Department
Clarisse Tavin - Environment Department
Samantha Tharme - Environment Department
Zoe Lewis - Town Clerk’s Department
Callum Southern - Town Clerk’s Department

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies for absence were received.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

The Chairman made a declaration of interest in relation to Item 11 - Temple
Avenue and agreed to leave the room during deliberations of that item.

Page 5



The Deputy Chairman made a declaration of interest in relation to Item 9 — Cool
Streets & Greening Ludgate Broadway and St Andrew’s Hill as his property was
in the area and agreed to leave the room during deliberations of that item.
MINUTES

RESOLVED - That, the public minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 May
2024 be approved as an accurate record of proceedings.

Matters Arising

Bus stop by the Monument on London Bridge
The Chairman indicated that he had not yet had an opportunity to meet with
Transport for London (TfL) regarding the bus stop at London Bridge and
requested this be added to the standing items.

Update on use of highway for sporting purposes

The Chairman requested an update on the use of the highway for sporting
purposes. Officers reported that they constituted events in the legal context and
could not be extended past three days without permission from the Secretary of
State. The Department for Transport (DfT) had granted permission for events in
the City recently, but the issue had led to some debate and more thought
around criteria and timescales for future events and this needed to be built into
the Corporation’s approval processes. The Committee suggested making the
process similar to the existing process that used heat maps that showed impact
and benefit. Officers indicated they were exploring how applicants were
measuring success.

Members enquired how many of the applicants for events using the highway for
sporting purposes were Business Improvement Districts (BIDs). Officers
reported that there were a number of applications bundled together by the
Central London Alliance and some of the BIDS were members of the
organisers.

Members considered whether DfT could be approached to find a way to bypass
the process of having to apply for an extension as the public would not
necessarily consider Aldgate Square to be a highway. Officers indicated they
would refrain from trying to change the designation of such areas but did raise
a question for engagement with DfT regarding what they would allow the
Corporation to do.

TRANSPORT STRATEGY REVIEW - REVISED DRAFT AND
CONSULTATION REPORT

The Sub-Committee considered a report that included changes to the Transport

Strategy, the Engagement Plan for the Strategy Review and the responses
received during the consultation period.

Page 6



Members received a presentation reporting changes in detail but not the overall
substance and it was noted by Officers that the response rate from
stakeholders had been positive.

Members highlighted there had been a few changes at the Corporation since
the document was first published and noted that there had been 20 million
annual tourists, not 10 million, with an aspiration to increase to 22 million as
part of Destination City.

Members indicated that the key walking routes noted in the documents ran
along main road routes which ran contrary to the Healthy Streets Initiative
encouraging people to walk on lanes away from busy traffic and felt this should
be reflected in the Strategy.

Members suggesting adding that play areas and exercise facilities were also
being added to the enhancement of the Riverside Walkway mentioned on Page
168 and noted that there had been a Barbican Phase Two approval since the
last document was written which also included exercise facilities and play area.

In reference to Legible London, a Member suggested some wording should be
added mentioning work being carry out on 3D signage taking into account the
example the Beech Street Gardens which did not show on a 2D map.

Members also highlighted Page 199 of a list of locations for priority locations
which are dangerous for traffic and noted that a few particularly bad ones were
missing and were the responsibility of TfL. Members suggested they be added
to the priority list despite this.

It was advised that the Lighting Charter should be referenced next to the
mention of the Lighting SPD in the Strategy document. Members also indicated
that refrigerated cargo bikes should be mentioned in the Cargo Bike Action
Plan.

Members noted their agreement with those amendments.

The Sub-Committee suggested adding words of substantial encouragement
from the Corporation to Proposal 43 with regard to the City Property
Association’s (CPA) expressed support for finding app-based solutions that
would allow disabled passengers to use taxis in instances where traffic
restrictions would otherwise prevent access. Officers indicated that they did
intend to do this but would make it more specific as requested.

Members expressed concerns around the number of respondents to the
consultation. Officers noted that over the period of 18 months, early survey
work canvassing 1000 people, including representative views of whether the
Corporation was taking the correct approach. This was considered to be a good
number surveyed to be representative. Officers also had over 400 people
respond online and responses had also been received in detail from the BIDs
and the CPA who represented a large number of businesses across the city.

Page 7



A Member raised concerns about those with limited mobility getting around the
City and whether a hopper bus may be a useful addition. Officers indicated
there was already a high provision of services crossing the city and were not
sure a hopper bus would be appropriate to fill any gaps in public transport
provision. The Chairman highlighted a tool the Corporation was using to design
public realm projects to cater for mobility impaired travellers and pointed out
that some solutions for some mobility impaired travellers could create problems
for others.

It was indicated by Members that the expectation in some areas of the City was
that vehicles should travel at significantly less than 15mph despite the view that
15 mph aspiration should be replaced with 20mph. Officers responded that
appropriate speeds should be looked at on a case-by-case basis and should be
designed into the characteristics of the street and through engineering
approaches so drivers can visually see they need to drive slower. The
Chairman suggested the further use of pedestrian refuges as a solution to calm
traffic through on narrow busy streets.

The Sub-Committee queried whether performance statistics could be mandated
from consolidation centres to measure their operational effectiveness. Officers
noted that the number of deliveries centres could receive by four-wheeled
vehicles was limited and there was some voluntary monitoring and Officers
were pushing for reporting of progress and achievements through planning
conditions being set. Officers also reported that there was regular monitoring of
all traffic, including cargo bikes, but needed to be careful to ensure cargo bikes
did not go places they should not.

Questions were asked by Members asked as to whether there were practical
examples for use of emerging technologies and how the Corporation was
engaging with providers. Officers indicated they had been forced into emerging
technology development due to e-bikes and e-scooters due to app-based
sharing rides and were engaging with Catapult and DfT on any initiatives that
were coming out in relation to automated vehicles. The Chairman requested it
be noted that the considerate contractor scheme does encourage and
recognise the use of innovative technology.

A Member cautioned at amending too much, in detail, of the wording in the
report due to the danger of tying the hands of Members and Officers in five
years when the Strategy comes up for review.

The Sub-Committee queried whether there were any further procedural steps
for the Strategy once it had been to Planning & Transportation Committee in
July. Officers indicated this was the plan and that it did not need to go to Policy
and Resources Committee or the Court of Common Council. A member
requested a business summary be circulated to consultees highlighting the key
elements of the refresh, as well as feedback on how their responses have been
considered.

Members considered how accurate delivery figures were to consolidation
centres in tall buildings that were being granted planning permission. Officers

Page 8



noted there was some monitoring information that was provided from buildings
that were operating consolidated service and would like to make monitoring
data part of the annual report on Transport Strategy.

The Chairman requested an update paper on deliveries, referring to a visit to 22
Bishopsgate where a significant reduction in deliveries was claimed to have
been accomplished. Officers indicated they would discuss with Planning
colleagues and then provide an update.

The Chairman requested an update on experiments with virtual parking and
loading bays. Officers indicated they would provide a general update on
deliveries and servicing in the Autumn.

RESOLVED - That, Members of the Sub-Committee:

1. Approve the changes to the Transport Strategy; and

2. Request that the suggested amendments be presented to the Planning
and Transportation Committee for consideration alongside the report at
the meeting on 23 July 2024.

SMITHFIELD AREA PUBLIC REALM AND TRANSPORTATION

The Sub-Committee considered a report aiming to coordinate and deliver new
public spaces in the Smithfield area in line with the City Transport Strategy, the
Climate Action Strategy and the anticipated increase in visitors to the opening
of the new Museum of London (MoL) and the future transformation of the Meat
Market.

Members received a presentation highlighting the project area for where
transformation would happen and reported that the project was to be delivered
in line with the City Transport Strategy and the Climate Action Strategy, as well
as the anticipated major increase of visitors in the area. Officers noted that the
project would be delivered in phases to align with the opening of the Museum of
London.

The Sub-Committee sought assurance on re-work not being needed in Phase
Two following Phase One. Officers explained this was why a phased approach
was being taken to ensure announcement were made aligned with Museum of
London (MoL) programme work and to ensure there’s no repetitive works.

It was raised by the Chairman what would occur should visitor numbers be
significantly higher than the predicted 2,000,000 visitors annually. Officers
explained they had been carrying out traffic modelling on this and the MoL
project was looking into work that needed to be done to facilitate the museum
opening; the design being proposed would be able to accommodate the
additional number of people but additional measures may need to be
considered if it was much higher.

A question was considered as to whether coordination had taken place with
another Section 278 project occurring at the hotel at the top of Long Lane.

Page 9



Officers assured they were coordinating with developer and had engaged with
them early on as part of their previous planning application.

Members enquired as to which side visitors to the new Museum of London
would be encouraged to exit from at the Farringdon Elizabeth Line station as
concerns were expressed about the west arm of Long Lane not having wide
walkways. Officers explained that the new MoL would be encouraging people to
arrive from the Farringdon exit, but Officers were looking at improvements to
Long Lane in the first phase of works to improve the arrival to MoL from the
Barbican exit.

The Sub-Committee considered whether discussions were taking place with the
Culture Mile BID as they were conducting their own public realm survey.
Officers confirmed that they were engaging with them on a regular basis, and
they were aware of the strategy behind the project.

Members queried how the potential future buyers of the Annexe buildings
would have input on the public realm. Officers acknowledged the complexity of
the site and were engaging with colleagues from City Surveyors on what will
happen with the Annexe buildings.

A clarification was offered from a Member who noted that it was no longer the
Museum of London, it was now the London Museum.

It was considered by Members whether there would be any road closures, and
whether water fountains or toilets in that area with baby changing facilities
would be installed. Officers answered that a few options for road closures
would be considered — a full closure, a timed closure or no closure at all.
Officers indicated they would be able to update on the preferred approach at
the next meeting. It was also noted that the Museum would be open with
extended hours with access to toilet facilities.

RESOLVED - That, Members of the Sub-Committee:

1. Approve the budget of £335,000 for the Smithfield Area Public Realm
project to cover the next stage of the project, funded from the £12m OSPR
funding, approved in principle for the project, subject to the relevant
approvals;

2.  Note the revised project budget of £1,695,014 (excluding risk), from the
£12m estimated budget which is unchanged,

3.  Approve the £35,000 in Costed Risk Provision;

4. Note the revised programmatic approach to coordinate projects in
Smithfield area, and the changes to the delivery plan; and;

5. Note the updates since the last Committee Report.

MUSEUM OF LONDON S278

The Sub-Committee received a report on a project to ensure the effective and
safe operation of the new MoL development via Section 278 obligations.

Page 10



RESOLVED: That, Members of the Sub-Committee:

1. Approve the additional budget of £335,000 to reach the next Gateway
funded from S278 contributions (subject to receipt of funding);

2.  Note the revised project budget of £435,000 (excluding risk);

3.  Note the total estimated cost of the project at £3m - £7m (excluding risk);

4. Approve a Costed Risk Provision of £50,000 (to be drawn down via
delegation to Chief Officer); and

5. Delegate authority to the Executive Director Environment, in consultation
with the Chamberlain, to make any adjustments between elements of the
approved budget, provided the total approved budget of £435,000 (exc.
CRP) is not exceeded.

FINSBURY CIRCUS ACCESSIBILITY IMPROVEMENTS

The Sub-Committee received a report on a project seeking to implement
accessibility improvements and to rearrange parking to enable improvements
and micromobility parking in line with the Liverpool, Street Area Healthy Streets
Plan.

A Member queried the lack of a progress report given the cost of £860,000.
Officers noted that gateway projects under a value of £1,000,000 are delegated
to the Chief Officer and explained that there was no need for a progress report
as part of the governance process to complete the project. Officers assured
members that if there was a problem with the project, whether with timescale or
money, it would be flagged and an issues report would go to Committee.

Members explored the opportunities of achieving cost reductions and in
sourcing projects such as this one. Officers explained it was being funded
through a workstream related to Crossrail, so any cost reductions would flow
back into a wider project as it is one of several schemes being delivered in that
area. Early engagement with FM Conway was done to price everything and
Officers were confident that when Gateway 6 reports came to the Sub-
Committee, it would demonstrate the projects delivered value for money.
Officers maintained that the contract procured was considerably cheaper than
others at the time.

RESOLVED - That, Members of the Sub-Committee:

1. Agree to the proposal as detailed in Section 6 of the report, and to note
that the making of the necessary traffic orders, subject to no objections, or
the resolution and consideration of any objections arising from the
statutory processes, is delegated to the Director of City Operations under
the Scheme of Delegation;

2.  Approve the budget of £556,000 to reach the next Gateway, to be funded
from the Liverpool Street Crossrail Urban Integration project (Phase 2);

3. Note the total estimated cost of the project at £556,000 (excluding risk).

4. Approve the Costed Risk Provision of £304,000 (to be drawn down via
delegation to Chief Officer); and

Page 11



5. Delegate to the Executive Director Environment authority and in
consultation with the Chamberlain to approve budget adjustments
between budget lines and within the approved total project budget, above
the existing authority within the project procedures.

CREECHURCH LANE AREA IMPROVEMENTS

The Sub-Committee received a report on a project for public realm and highway
improvements to the Creechurch Lane, Mitre Street and Bury Street areas,
specifically on accessibility and walking improvements, public realm
improvements such as parklets and planting and relocation of parking bays.

The Members considered where parking was going to be re-allocated. Officers
noted that the motorcycle bays to Billiter Street, the Lime bikes and e-scooters
would be moved to Bury Street and one parking bay would be moved to the
other side of Creechurch Lane. Two parking bays would be permanently lost
where the existing parklets were already placed.

The Sub-Committee expressed concern that Bury Street was a tight turn,
especially for some large vehicles. Officers acknowledged this would be
reviewed and consider if containing of the bike bay was needed.

RESOLVED - That, Members of the Sub-Committee:

1. Approve recommended Option 1 to reach the next gateway, which
involves widening of pavements on the eastern side of Creechurch Lane,
the reallocation of parking and paving of carriageway and junction in
granite setts;

2. Approve the budget of £60,000 (staff costs and fees) for the project to
reach the next gateway, funded from the Section 106 agreement for the
40 Leadenhall Street development;

3. Note the total estimated cost of the project at £650,000-780,000 for Option
1 (excluding risk);

4.  Authorise officers to finalise a funding letter to receive the external funding
contribution from the EC BID;

5. Agree to delegate to the Chief Officer the approval and drawdown of the
costed risk provision at the next gateway; and

6. Agree to undertake the process to prepare the traffic orders to relocate
payment, motorcycle, e-scooters and cycle hire parking in the area in
advance of Gateway 5 stage.

COOL STREETS & GREENING LUDGATE BROADWAY AND ST
ANDREW'S HILL

Deputy John Edwards left the room as per his declaration.
The Sub-Committee received a report on the Cool Streets and Greening
programme, replacing the current temporary parklet at Ludgate Broadway with

a permanent design with a widened pavement, a raingarden and tree planting,
along with improving accessibility works. The report also sought to introduce a

Page 12



rain garden and tree planting at St Andrew’s Hill with pavement adjustments
and the relocation of the parking bay.

A presentation was given by Officers outlining the removal of the current
temporary parklet at Ludgate Broadway and replace it with a widened
pavement with a rain garden, tree planting and pedestrian walking and
accessibility improvements. At St Andrew’s Hill, a rain garden is being installed
in the place of an existing parking bay which would be moved slightly further up
St Andrew’s Hill.

Members queried whether Lloyds Avenue was part of the programme. Officers
confirmed it was; that was another site that detail was yet to be developed on
and a further report would come back to the Sub-Committee once the design
for it had been developed. Rain gardens, widening pavements and improving
crossing points would be part of it but that was not part of this report.

Concerns were expressed by a Member about the flowerbeds being installed
on St Andrew’s Hill and abandoned dockless cycles. Officers explained that
some extra cycle racks would be included and consultation from the Healthy
Street Programmes suggested that consultees wanted greenery installed.
Dockless bikes did not tend to be left in planted beds.

A Member expressed surprise at the drawings at it seemed to suggest the
flowerbed would be at street level. Officers indicated that there was no curb on
this due to the collection of rainwater from the carriageway to go into the
planter. The whole Cool Streets & Greening Programme was about 30 projects
and Officers were happy to share information on them.

As the pavement was to be widened as part of the proposal, Members asked if
there was going to be a table and chairs pavement license applications coming
from the venue adjacent to the widened pavement. Officers acknowledge this
could happen, but the design of the plan indicated where would be best to
place tables and chairs and there was also a little bit of public seating being
installed. Officers would work closely with the licensing team to ensure all the
space was not taken.

RESOLVED - That, Members of the Sub-Committee:

1. Approve the budget adjustment/increase as per the Table 2 in Appendix 4
of the report in order to fund the staff costs and fees required to reach the
next gateway (£35,000 budget adjustment and £40,000 budget increase);

2. Approve the design of the projects as set out in this report, including
recommended option 1 for Ludgate Broadway;

3. Approve the funding strategy for the Ludgate Broadway project as set out
in Table 4 in Appendix 4 of the report and note the total estimated project
cost (excluding risk) is £440,000 - £475,000 for Option 1;

4. Note that the cost of the improvements at St Andrew’s Hill is £190,000 —
£220,000;

5. Delegate approval and drawdown of the Costed Risk Provision to the
Chief Officer if sought at Gateway 5;

Page 13



10.

11.

6. Approve to undertake and complete the statutory processes and
consultation for the proposed relocation of parking bays, changes to the
waiting and loading restrictions and the raised carriageways, as set out in
the report; and

7. Authorise the Executive Director Environment to consider responses to
the traffic order consultation and if they consider it appropriate, to make
the Order.

Deputy John Edwards rejoined the meeting.
2 ALDERMANBURY S278

The Sub-Committee received a report seeking to deliver changes to the public
highway in the vicinity of the development at 2 Aldermanbury Square through a
Section 278 agreement that was fully funded by the developer.

RESOLVED - That, Members of the Sub-Committee:

1. Approve that officers continue with the design of all three options whilst
necessary surveys are undertaken and analysed, and negotiations with
the developer are concluded;

2.  Approve the budget adjustment related to fees to be actioned as outlined
in Appendix 2 of the report;

3. Authorise officers to invoice the developer any reasonable costs
necessary to progress to the next gateway (Detailed Options Appraisal), in
advance of the full S278 payment to avoid delays to the programme. The
amount would be deducted from the full S278 works implementation
payment; and

4. Note the total estimated cost of the project for Option 1 at £1,204,096
(excluding risk).

TEMPLE AVENUE
The Chairman, Graham Packham, left the room as per his declaration.

The Sub-Committee received a report on public realm, climate resilience,
greening and accessibility improvements to Temple Avenue, including
relocation of cycle racks and parking bays, a permanent design to replace
parklets installed in 2021 and 2022 and accessibility improvements. Cycle
access through the street would be maintained.

RESOLVED: That Members of the Sub-Committee:

1. Approve the initiation of this project;

2. Approve the budget of £80,000 (staff costs and fees) for the project to
reach the next Gateway 3/4, funded from the Cool Streets and Greening
Programme (OSPR) (£50,000) and S106 receipts allocated to the Fleet
Street Area Programme (£30,000); and

3. Note the total estimated cost of the project at £350,000-750,000(excluding
risk).

Page 14



12.

13.

The Chairman, Graham Packham, rejoined the Committee.
21 MOORFIELDS AND FORE STREET AVENUE S278

The Sub-Committee received a report which included enhancements to the
pedestrian environment without compromising security in Moorfields and Fore
Street Avenue, as well as public realm improvements to Moor Lane, including
greening and walking environment.

Members asked whether the developer would be minded to permit the use of
unused funds for the other side of the street which was partly delayed by their
project. Officers noted they had asked on several occasions and the developer
indicated they wanted the money returned as per the terms of their S278
agreement. Members expressed their disappointment at this outcome.

RESOLVED: That, Members of the Sub-Committee:

1. Note the contents of this report;

2. Approve the budget adjustment related to staff costs to be actioned as
outlined in the Appendix 2 of the report;

3. Authorise transfer of £80,500 (including staff costs for a supervision of
works) from the Moor Lane S278 budget, to cover the planned resurfacing
of Moor Lane, to the Moor Lane S106 project budget;

4. Agree to close the 21 Moorfields and Fore Street Avenue Section 278
project;

5. Agree to close the Area A — Section 278 part of the Moor Lane
Environmental Enhancement project; and

6. Authorise return of unused funds to the developer, including any accrued
interest as per the Section 278 agreement once the final accounts for
these projects are completed.

*ADVERTISING BOARD UPDATE

The Sub-Committee received a report informing Members of Officers’ intention
to start an engagement phase between July and December 2024 to
communicate the advertising board ban to businesses. The report noted it
would outline advertising boards were an obstruction and could be a trip
hazard, particularly for those with visual impairments.

Members received a presentation on the report from Officers. Officers
highlighted there was no legal licensing framework for licensing advertising
boards and action could only be taken to enforce against them and noted that
prior to the pandemic there had not been a zero-tolerance approach. Officers
suggested that the report was about respecting a decision previous taken at the
Sub-Committee moving toward a position of advertising boards not being on
City streets and engaging with business to gather information. Officers noted
they were also looking to engage with other Local Authorities and would bring
another report after the engagement process in January or February 2025.

Page 15



14.

Members suggested there was a contrast between the presentation and the
content of the report. Officers referenced the timeline and the plan for
engagement going forward and cautioned on a two-tier approach as locations
would have to be identified on where and where not to enforce.

The Chairman highlighted that some local authorities were operating a two-tier
hybrid approach treating advertising boards differently depending on the safety
implications of their location and suggested this be considered in the
consultation. Officers indicated there had been numerous enforcement policies
over the years and more work with neighbouring authorities would be good to
understand how advertising boards policy were being applied street-by-street.

A Member suggested there was no need for advertising boards to be on the
pavements and drew attention to the example of Hackney that had a zero-
tolerance approach to advertising boards, making use of hanging signs and
neon signs instead. The Member also discussed the difficultly for those with
visual disabilities in trying to navigate around advertising boards.

RECEIVED.

*BANK JUNCTION [IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT: NEXT STEPS
FOLLOWING THE OUTCOME OF THE TRAFFIC AND TIMING REVIEW

The Sub-Committee received a report informing Members of the indicative
timetable for work to be carried out as included in the appendices of the June
2024 Court of Common Council paper.

The Chairman informed the Sub-Committee that he had previously enquired
whether the timetable could be accelerated and was assured by Officers it
could not be — the timetable had been agreed by the Court of Common Council.

Members queried whether there was any outline of the funding required to
implement the project. Officers informed the Committee that there would not be
yet as the success criteria had not yet been identified for monitoring which
meant the costs were not in a position to be calculated yet. Officers indicated
that an additional sum may have to be requested to get through potentially 18
months of monitoring. The Chairman requested this be a standing item on the
agenda for upcoming meetings.

The trial was discussed and whether TfL accepting it would be the most likely
scenario. Officers noted that early engagement with TfL indicated they
appreciated the view of the Court and want to be reassured that bus journey
times are not materially affected as any local authority changes impacting a
strategic road are required to prove these can operate alongside TfL’s
requirements.

A Member considered how the success of the project would be measured and
raised concerns about how disabled pedestrians would travel around the
Junction, as well as the streets connecting onto the Junction and the potential
increase in the number of private hire taxis in the area. Officers advised that

Page 16



15.

they still needed to define the experiment, and this would be reported back to
Sub-Committee once a proposal had been established, along with how it would
be monitored. The Sub-Committee noted that not everything could be
monitored, but immeasurable factors could still have an impact.

A Member suggested that the response to the written question regarding the
fixed penalty notices and those who were abusing the current restrictions be
shared with the Sub-Committee once circulated. Officers confirmed they were
happy to do that.

RECEIVED.

*UPDATE ON ACTIONS FOR IMPROVING DOCKLESS E-BIKE HIRE IN THE
CITY

The Sub-Committee received a report providing an update on actions agreed at
Sub-Committee in January 2024 for improving dockless cycle hire operations in
the Square Mile. It noted that several agreed actions had been undertaken,
including providing operators with clarification of requirements in writing,
updated internal and external resources of reporting inappropriately parked
dockless bikes, ensuring operators would enforce against poor user behaviours
and finalising micromobility-related studies. It was also noted in the report that
other actions were ongoing, including delivering dockless vehicle parking bays
and working with operators to improve their warning, fining and banning
procedures.

Members received a presentation on the report and were informed that 300
spaces for dockless e-bikes had been identified for installation by March 2025,
with an ambition for a further 600 in December 2026. Officers also reported that
the web page had been updated with a more specific framework for reporting
dumped e-bikes directly to the operators and additional data collection was
underway through the Corporation’s Street Enforcement Officers. They also
informed the Sub-Committee that operators had been asked to provide more
information on operational enforcement and monitoring. No-parking zones had
been established with the operators, with them being geo-fenced and Officers
had asked operators to prove what their finding procedures were and their
operational arrangements. Officers indicated that they had considered whether
a Memorandum of Understanding would be appropriate and establish a better
working relationship with operators and were currently lobbying central
government for a change in legislation.

The Sub-Committee expressed surprise at a request for TfL funding as the
operators had committed toward funding some docking bays and queried why
operators were not being approached more. Officers highlighted that TfL had
offered all authorities funding toward this but had agreed that grants would be
accepted from operators, who had committed to funding feasibility work. The
Sub-Committee also strongly suggested that the Corporation should insist that
the operators pay to install dockless bays rather than TfL.

Page 17



A Member expressed disappointment at the number of docking bays that were
to be installed and felt there were a lot more spaces for docking bays for e-
bikes, as well as expressing a problem with the dumping of bikes at St
Andrew’s Hill. Officers responded that space in the City was at a premium and
work had been done to identify available curb side space and would work
through the process to deliver those bays funded by either TfL or through
operators.

The shortfall of dockless bays was discussed, with Officers acknowledging that
there would be a shortfall, but would continue to find more spaces and would
work through operational agreement to ensure operators would move bikes out
of bays there were oversubscribed. Officers indicated that they could not
enforce bikes being moved currently.

A Member indicated that it took around five hours for operators to recover bikes
that had been dumped and highlighted it was particularly problematic near
Tower Hill and Trinity Square. They also suggested this was not occurring
when other operators were in the City when a strict Memorandum of
Understanding was in place.

Another Member of the Sub-Committee indicated they would like to volunteer
themselves for mystery shopping to gather information. The Member also
enquired why data for e-scooters was available to be collected, but not for
bikes. Officers explained that e-scooters were very heavily regulated in
comparison and the purpose of contracts was to align the ability to receive data
from operators on e-scooters and bikes without parliamentary regulation.

The Sub-Committee queried whether operators would prefer to be regulated to
ensure there is a competitive playing field. Officers agreed and informed that
operators agreed informally with that statement.

The Chairman encouraged Officers to go back to operators and insist on the
sharing of data and if the operators were unhelpful the obvious assumptions of
this stance would be made, he suggested that the new Member of Parliament
for the Cities of London and Westminster might support a private members’ bill
to introduce regulation more quickly.

Questions were raised as to whether the Corporation received any revenue for
bikes being abandoned. Officers responded it did not and explained that
primary legislation would be required to change that. Officers were in the
process of reaching out to the new Member of Parliament for the Cities of
London and Westminster to share feedback.

The Committee asked whether data could be shared from operators on how
long it takes to move a bike once it had been recorded as this could be
substantiated by geolocation.

RECEIVED.

Page 18



16.

17.

18.

*DAUNTSEY HOUSE, FREDERICK'S PLACE - PUBLIC REALM
IMPROVEMENTS (S278)

The Sub-Committee received a report on public realm improvements related to
the redevelopment of Dauntsey House, 4A & 4B Frederick’s Place, including
works to Ironmonger Lane, new lighting around the development, works
necessary to accommodation pedestrian movement south of the development,
works to accommodate waiting and loading restrictions and works that the City
of London Corporation considers necessary to make the development
acceptable in planning terms.

A Member suggested that one of the buildings that are serviced from King
Street may need to be serviced slightly differently following the proposed
change of use as they would not be able to service from Cheapside or Poultry
and may need to be serviced from Ironmonger Lane alone.

RECEIVED.
*RED BADGE HOLDER SURVEY

The Sub-Committee received a report on responses to the Red Badge Holder
Survey which received 54 completed surveys at a response rate of 35%. It
reported that general satisfaction was found with the current parking provision
whilst also highlighting specific challenges or opportunities for improvement.

RECEIVED.

*OUTSTANDING REFERENCES

Old Jewry
The Chairman requested an update on the re-opening of Old Jewry. Officers

informed that Old Jewry had reopened and there was formal monitoring in
place as it was an experimental traffic order and to ensure it was functioning
safely. Officers would eventually determine whether it stayed that way or came
out as part of a normal experimental traffic order process.

Bus stop at Monument
The Chairman requested the bus stop at Monument be added to the
Outstanding References.

Sporting events on the highway
The Sub-Committee agreed that an outstanding reference on sporting events
on the highway should be added.

The Chairman clarified that he would like the Bank Junction Improvements
Project to be a standing item at future meetings of the Sub-Committee. Officers
indicated this would be delivered as a verbal update.

Page 19



At this point, the Chairman sought approval from the Sub-Committee to
continue the meeting beyond two hours from the appointed time for the start of
the meeting, in accordance with Standing Order 40, and this was agreed.

19. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE

There were no questions.
20. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

Sunken garden at Cheapside

The Chairman sought clarity on when the sunken garden project on Cheapside
would be completed and why the planting currently looked underwhelming.
Officers confirmed it would be completed in July 2024 and had been delayed
due to lighting equipment that had taken longer than planned to be received.
Officers informed that the plants were currently very small as smaller younger
plants adapted more successfully to solely rain-fed irrigation and assured that
in a year the garden would no longer appear underwhelming.

Traffic Congestion

The Chairman noted that the City of London appeared gridlocked. Officers
noted that London Wall being closed was the trigger for the traffic problems
which had been deliberately timed with summer holidays; traffic would be
lighter now than it usually was. The Chairman requested a chart to outline
major works taking place in the City; Officers agreed to provide that. A Member
of the Sub-Committee noted the downside being a lack of buses through
London Wall now.

Splitting PDF files
The Chairman requested that the Town Clerk explore a way of agenda packs
being provided as one whole file rather than split up. Officers assured they
would look into it.

The meeting ended at 3.53 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Callum Southern
Callum.Southern@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 20



Agenda ltem 5

Committees:

For Information

Streets and Walkways Sub Committee — For Decision | 1 October 2024
Projects and Procurement Sub Committee — 21 October 2024

Dates:

Report Author:

Subject: Gateway 4:

Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy Detailed Options

Neighbourhoods Plan Appraisal
(Regular)

Unique Project Identifier:

PV ID 12240

Report of: For Decision

Executive Director of Environment

Stephen Oliver, Policy and Projects, City Operations

PUBLIC

1. Status update

This Report:

1. The purpose of this report is to:
e Seek approval to consult on the draft Bunhill, Barbican
and Golden Lane Healthy Neighbourhood Plan.

Project description

2. The Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan will identify opportunities to improve air
guality and the experience of walking, cycling and spending
time in the Barbican and Golden Lane area and increase
greening. The plan will develop and test the feasibility of
traffic management changes required in order to deliver
these changes and associated benefits.

The ultimate objective of the plan is to reduce through traffic,
improve air quality and enhance the public realm in the area
for all those who work, live and visit the area.

RAG Status: Green, as at last report to Committee

Page 21



Risk Status: Low, as at last report to committee
Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk): (£283,500)

Change in Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk):
0

Spend to Date: £180,052

Costed Risk Provision Utilised: None
Funding Source: City fund/CIL
Background

3. The Transport Strategy proposes a series of Healthy Streets
Plans to develop an integrated approach to public realm
improvements and traffic management for different areas of
the Square Mile. In October 2021 the Streets and Walkways
Sub-Committee approved the initiation of a Barbican and
Golden Lane Healthy Streets Plan.

4. In November 2022, after negotiations with Islington Council
about options for consultation on the Beech Street zero-
emissions scheme, the Streets and Walkways Sub
Committee approved proceeding to public consultation on a
permanent scheme for Beech Street and running a parallel
public engagement on a wider Healthy Streets Plan in
partnership with Islington Council. The wider area
engagement had a new project title - Bunhill, Barbican and
Golden Lane Healthy Neighbourhood Plan - to reflect both
councils’ transport strategies.

5. In July 2023 the results of the Healthy Neighbourhood Plan
engagement were presented to the Streets and Walkways
Sub-Committee. The engagement asked people to indicate
their level of support for making changes to the streets which
may increase journey times for people in motor vehicles:

e 89% support for public realm improvements such as
on-street trees, planting and places to rest

e 88% support for improving air quality and reducing
noise

e 81% support for increasing space for people walking

e 67% support for increasing space for people cycling

6. 97% of people surveyed travel around the area on foot. The
most commonly commented upon streets in the
engagement were Beech Street, Golden Lane, Moor Lane,
and Old Street.

Page 22




7. In view of the strong level of support for the objectives of the
Healthy Neighbourhood Plan the Sub-Committee approved
that officers of both the City and LBI convene a formalised
and programmed Officers Working Group. The group has
developed detailed option proposals and further engaged
with stakeholder groups to produce a draft plan for wider
consultation.

8. Subject to approval, the draft plan in Appendix’s 3 and 4 will
form the basis of a public consultation starting in the autumn
and running for a six week period.

2. Next steps and
requested
decisions

Next Steps:

9. The responses from the consultation, and any further traffic
and pedestrian modelling that might be considered
necessary, will enable a final plan to be prepared for
Committees in spring 2025. The final Plan will include a
series of proposed projects and a programme for
implementation. Subsequent funding bids and external
funding opportunities will be explored to initiate individual
projects to deliver the Plan. Once initiated the projects will
follow the regular project procedures and processes.

10. The next steps are:

e Public and stakeholder consultation on the draft Plan.

¢ Analysis of feedback to further inform the proposals
and the prioritisation of projects.

e An update report on the principal findings of the
consultation in May 2025

¢ Finalisation of the plan and development of a delivery
plan and funding strategy.

e Seek adoption of the Neighbourhood Plan in Spring
2025

Requested Decisions:

Members of the Streets and Walkways Sub Committee are
asked to:

1. Approve the draft Healthy Neighbourhood Plan in
Appendix 3 and 4 to form the basis of a public
consultation exercise

2. Authorise Officers to proceed to public consultation on
the Neighbourhood Plan

3. Approve a £33.5k increase in the project budget to
£283,500

Members of the Streets and Walkways Sub Committee and the
Projects and Procurement Sub Committee are asked to:

4. Note that the Director of City Operations, in consultation
with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of Streets and

Page 23




Walkways Sub-Committee, will approve the final content
of the public consultation materials.

3. Resource
requirements to
reach next
Gateway

11.The finance tables are set out in Appendix 2.

12.An increase in the project budget of £33.5k is required to
undertake the public consultation and analysis and prepare
the next Gateway report.

13.A £33.55k funding contribution to the traffic studies and
analysis was received in 23/24 from Islington. As a
contribution, this reduced the CIL funding required to
£216.5k. It is now intended that this £33.5k is brought back
into the project and for the budget to be increased to £283.5k.

14.Overview of
project options

Project update:

14.Since the Gateway 3 Report was presented to Committee in
July 2023, the Officers Working Group between the City
Corporation and Islington Council have met on a regular
basis. The Working Group have commissioned traffic studies
that have recorded:
e motor traffic movements and speeds on Golden Lane,
e the numbers and journey times of motor vehicle
movements to and from the Barbican Estate carparks,
e traffic movements through the plan area from and to
Old Street, Aldersgate Street, London Wall,
Ropemaker Street and Moorgate,
e an accessibility audit of all streets.

15. Stakeholder engagement has been conducted with:

e businesses about their servicing and delivery
arrangements and requirements;

e the City of London Primary Academy Islington
(COLPAI), Richard Cloudsley School, Prior Western
Primary School and the City of London Girls Schoaol,

e Culture Mile Business Improvement District (BID);

e Barbican Association, the Barbican Neighbourhood
forum, the Barbican Centre and Heron Tower.

The draft Healthy Neighbourhood Plan
16. The draft Plan sets out an integrated approach to improving
the public realm and managing traffic to support delivery of

the following Transport Strategy outcomes:

e The Square Mile’s streets are great places to walk, wheel
and spend time

Page 24




e Street space is used more efficiently and effectively

e The Square Mile is accessible to all

e People using our streets and public spaces are safe and
feel safe

¢ Improve the experience of riding cycles and scooters in
the City

e The Square Mile’s air and streets are cleaner and
quieter

e Delivery and servicing are more efficient, and impacts
are minimised

e Our street network is resilient to changing
circumstances

e Emerging transport technologies benefit the Square Mile
e The Square Mile benefits from better transport
connections

17.The proposals will support delivery of the City Corporation’s
Corporate Plan (Vibrant and Thriving Destination and
Flourishing Public Spaces) and the Climate Action Strategy
and the Destination City initiative. The proposals also
support the objectives of the Culture Mile BID and the
Barbican Neighbourhood Forum.

18. The draft proposals in the plan have been developed using
feedback we received from the public engagement exercise
undertaken in 2023. As previously reported, the results of the
public engagement are that people were supportive of traffic
changes (that could result in some motor journeys being
longer) if it meant this enabled improvements for people
walking, wheeling and cycling and enhancements to the
public realm. Some of the proposals aim to reduce traffic
which is driving through the area with no origin or destination
and to improve the safety and comfort for people walking,
wheeling and cycling.

19.The traffic data shows ~70% of traffic spends less than 5
minutes in the area. This traffic is estimated to not be
residential or making deliveries to the area but passing
through for other destinations.

20. From the data collection exercise, it is understood how traffic
circulates in the area, where it enters and exits and how long
the traffic is within the monitored area.

21.The primary traffic route is along the Beech Street / Chiswell
Street corridor with around 6,000 vehicles a day where 80%
of traffic drives straight through.

Page 25




22.Some other established route trends involving moderate
volumes of traffic between Golden Lane and Chiswell Street;
and Wood Street to Ropemaker Street.

23. Through traffic moving north-south in the area is minimal. For
example, negligible amounts of traffic enter at Wood Street /
London Wall and exit at Bunhill Row/Old Street or enter at
Golden Lane and emerge at Wood Street.

24.Based on the understanding of the traffic patterns and other
data collected, a number of concept proposals have been
developed. Some of the proposed changes can only happen
if one or more of the other proposals happen first, such as
introducing traffic changes or restrictions so that space from
vehicles can then be allocated to people walking and
wheeling (such as wider pavements), greening and tree
planting or creating places for people to rest.

Proposals involving traffic changes
Beech Street

25. Options to reduce through traffic on Beech Street will seek to
improve air quality and reduce noise, creating a more
pleasant environment for street users. Reducing traffic
volumes sufficiently means that people cycling can cycle
safely with traffic and would not need a separate cycle lane.
This would allow the pavements to be widened instead (as
we have done on King William Street, for example). For this
to happen, traffic would be restricted to buses and cycles,
with local access to the carpark entrances/exits on Beech
Street and the Barbican Centre. Allowing taxis will also be
explored as a sub option.

26. The options for Beech Street are:

e Option 1: A traffic restriction to motor vehicles, except
buses and access, in both directions with pavement
widening on both sides of the street

e Option 2: A westbound only traffic restriction to motor
vehicles, except buses and access with pavement
widening on the southern side of the street only. (all
eastbound traffic would continue to be allowed)

27.Both Beech Street options would include:
e Raising the zebra crossing at the eastern end of
Beech Street with Silk Street to pavement level.
¢ Closing the junctions of Beech Street with Golden
Lane and Bridgewater Street to motor vehicles.

Page 26




28

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Golden Lane

.An option to reduce through traffic on Golden Lane will seek

to reduce traffic speeds, improve safety and create a more
pleasant environment for street users in proximity to local
schools. Golden Lane would be closed to motorised traffic at
the junction with Beech Street.

Traffic entering the area would need to exit the area via
Golden Lane, with the through route removed the only traffic
entering the area would have a purpose in the area such as
making a delivery or accessing a property.

Associated with this measure; to mitigate against traffic
reassigning to Fortune Street and Whitecross Street,
Islington Council would ban the right-hand turn from Fortune
Street into Whitecross Street.

The only motorised vehicles that would be able to access
Beech Street from Golden Lane would be buses as there is
a need for school buses for the Richard Cloudesley School
to access both Golden Lane and Whitecross Street.

Bridgewater Street

Bridgewater Street is a lightly trafficked two-way street.
There is an opportunity to remove traffic by closing the street
to motorised traffic at the junction with Beech Street. There
is an opportunity to remove traffic and create a new public
space and collaborate on opportunities from the
redevelopment of 45 Beech Street.

Moor Lane

Options to reduce through traffic on Moor Lane have been
explored. Changing the way traffic uses Moor Lane gives
greater opportunity to deliver public realm improvements
including pavement widening, new greening and tree
planting opportunities where feasible and subject to
underground constraints.

The options for Moor Lane are:

e Option 1. Making Moor Lane one way southbound (Silk
Street to Fore Street) and retaining two-way cycling. Note
this option would mean removing the “environmental
amenity” gate at the southern end of Moor Lane, and
Moor Lane would be open in one direction at all times.

o Option 2: Creating a physical closure of part of Moor Lane
to motor vehicles and use the space to create a new
public place. Moor Lane would be a No Through Road to
motor vehicles, but access to all properties would be
maintained. People cycling would still be able to go

Page 27




through the closure point. The exact location of the
closure point will be determined if this option is
subsequently progressed but is expected to be either at
the southern end of Moor Lane near to Fore Street, or
somewhere between Silk Street and the Willoughby
House lower car park entrance.

35.There will be some opportunity for public realm
improvements on Moor Lane even if there are no changes to
the current access arrangements

Milton Street

36. Milton Street is a lightly trafficked two-way street. Between
Silk Street and the Milton Court service road there is an
opportunity to remove traffic and create a new public space
and collaborate on opportunities from the redevelopment of
1 Silk Street.

Chiswell Street

37.Implementing either option 1 or 2 for Beech Street would also
significantly reduce traffic on Chiswell Street. Sections of
Chiswell Street could be narrowed with traffic required to give
way, retaining two-way movement for vehicles while allowing
pavements to be widened. Some of this space could then be
used to create an area for rest and greening.

Moorfields

38.Proposals exist through the Moorgate Crossrail programme
of works for improvement works on Moorfields by making the
street one-way southbound (exit via Moor Place), widening
the pavements and more greening. This would link into the
other projects already delivered at the southern end of
Moorfields.

Proposals not requiring traffic changes

39.1n response to the issues and ideas contributed through the
public engagement, a series of proposals to improve the
comfort and safety of people, walking, wheeling and cycling
and enhance the environment of the remaining streets in the
area.

40. All of the measures are detailed in a single plan in Appendix
3.

41.The measures do not require changes to traffic. Pavements
would be widened where possible whilst maintaining existing
traffic movements. This space can then be used for people
walking and wheeling and more street trees and/or other
greenery. The plan proposes to make these improvements
on:

Page 28




e [ore Street

e Ropemaker Street
e Golden Lane

e Silk Street

e Fann Street

EQUALITIES

42.As a Public Authority, the City must have due regard to
equality considerations when exercising its functions (section
149 Equality Act 2010).

43.A Test of Relevance exercise has been undertaken to
determine if there are likely or potential equality
considerations of the measures in the Plan.

44.The results of the test suggest that there may be negative
impacts on some people with protected characteristics
because of longer journey times if traffic restrictions are
introduced. There is also the potential for positive benefits
from traffic reduction and associated walking, wheeling,
cycling and public realm improvements.

45. A full Equalities Impact Assessment will be undertaken prior
to the Healthy Neighbourhood Plan being finalised. This will
be informed by feedback gathered through the consultation.
Equalities Impact Assessment will also be undertaken for
individual projects at the appropriate time as the plan is
delivered.

Public consultation — next steps

46. The consultation will gather feedback on the opportunities for
change summarised from people who live, work, study and
visit the area, as well as businesses and other stakeholders.

47.1t is proposed to use an on-line portal, similar to those used
for other Healthy Street plan consultations, where the public
can comment on as many or as few of the proposals as they
wish and highlight any issues and opportunities.

48. For those people who do not have internet access, or do not
want to respond online, paper versions of the questions and
proposals will be made available.

49.The consultation will be promoted via a letter to all
businesses and residents in the area and on its boundary.
Online/social media and on-street promotion such as posters
publicising the consultation will be used. A series of drop-in
engagement sessions with officers will be held where

Page 29




guestions can be asked and help filling out the consultation
can be given.

50. The feedback from the consultation will help to establish the
likely support and priority of the various proposals and
identify any further changes that people might like to see in
the area not already captured.

After consultation

51.The feedback from the consultation will be considered and
the Plan will be amended accordingly. A final plan will be
presented to Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee for
approval. This report will feedback the full consultation and
engagement findings and identify what has been amended
within the plan to address these points. We will aim to bring
an update report setting out the key findings of the
consultation in January 2025. The final Healthy
Neighbourhood plan will be presented in the Spring of 2025

52.The final Plan will propose a prioritised programme of
projects. Further funding will be sought to initiate these
projects from both external and internal funding streams,
such as any new Section s278 agreements, CIL, and On
Street Parking Reserve. Opportunities for partner funding
opportunities will be explored, for example working in
partnership with the BID and local businesses.

15. Sustainability and
energy
implications

a/ Meets Regulated Requirements

53. There are no regulated requirements for a Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan. The Plan will create a framework of
projects that will give the opportunity to meet the objectives
of making the Square Mile public realm more climate change
resilient by adding more green spaces, urban greening, flood
resistant road surfaces, adaptable planting regimes and
heat-resistant materials. They will also support efforts to
reduce motor traffic in the City and enable more people to
choose to walk, wheel and cycle.

6. Recommendation

54. It is recommended that the details of the draft Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan in Appendix 3 and 4 are taken forward
to public consultation to seek views of local communities.

7. Risk

55. Risks identified are.
e The City Corporation and Islington Council or TfL do not
agree traffic management changes in the project area.
e Stakeholder groups such as local resident’s associations
or schools do not support proposed changes to traffic
management.

Page 30




¢ Insufficient funds for the projects identified in the plan.

56.Further information is available in the Risk Register
(Appendix 2).

8. Procurement

57. For traffic and pedestrian data collection, traffic modelling,
consultation support and design the Transport and Public

strategy Realm Framework will be used. Where not appropriate
standard procurement processes will be used.
Appendices
Appendix 1 Project Coversheet
Appendix 2 Finance Tables
Appendix 3 Draft Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan (maps)
Appendix 4 Draft Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan (text)
Appendix 5 EQIA Scoping (Test of Relevance)
Contact
Report Author Stephen Oliver

Email Address

stephenoliver@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 31



mailto:stephenoliver@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Project Coversheet

[1] Ownership & Status

UPI:

Core Project Name: Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy Streets Plan
Programme Affiliation (if applicable):

Project Manager: Stephen Oliver

Definition of need:

The Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy Streets Plan (HSP) is a key deliverable of
the City’s Transport Strategy and further supports the Climate Action Strategy in
developing spaces that are climate resilient. The HSP aligns with draft City Plan
2040 the Barbican Area Strategy, Destination City and Culture Mile Look and Feel
Strategy which identifies the need for public realm improvements in Beech St and
the surrounding area. The HSP provides a framework for the transformation of
streets and spaces, by way of prioritising people walking and cycling and reducing
motor traffic levels. This transformation will also provide for a high-quality public
realm environment. This framework will set out viable proposals to rebalance the
street hierarchy, implement traffic management measures and create a more
welcoming public realm.

In October 2021 a Gateway 2 Report approved the HSP boundary and funding for
project management and consultancy fees.

In 2020 and 2021 an experimental traffic scheme for a Zero Emission restriction on
Beech Street was trialled under an Experimental Traffic Order. A permanent scheme
was consulted on in January to March 2023. It was identified in the Gateway 2
Report that changes to Beech Street would have impacts on the wider area including
within Islington. 2. After negotiations with LBI about options for consultation for
Beech Street, the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee in November 2022
approved public consultation on a permanent Beech Street Zero Emission Scheme
and a parallel public engagement on a wider area plan with LBl encompassing the
Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy Streets Plan area and the Bunhill ward south of
Old Street in Islington. The engagement renamed the project the Bunhill, Barbican
and Golden Lane Healthy Neighbourhood (HNP) to reflect both councils transport
strategies.

The HSP forms the first phase of delivery and will identify temporary and interim
changes to the functions of the highway network. The proceeding phases will deliver
the required infrastructure changes to achieve the medium and long-term objectives
of the proposals. These proceeding phases will be set-up as individual Healthy
Streets Plan projects, following the completion of the first phase.

V14 July 2019

Page 33



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Key measures of success:
. A tested and recommended phasing schedule for the projects that will
comprise the Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy Street Plan.

. The identification of the number of pedestrian priority streets that can be
delivered (measured by length) in the area.

. An indication of the reduction in traffic volumes that can be achieved in the
area.

Expected timeframe for the project delivery: <Current Range>
Key Milestones: Overall project: October 2021 — July 2023
This is the longest anticipated timescale to develop the HSP.

Key dates: Key dates for the project/development of the plan, up to Gateway 5
include the following:

e Gateway 1/2 — October 2021

e Traffic and pedestrian data collection (light touch, if required) — December
2021 to March 2022

Stakeholder engagement — December 2021 to May 2022

Traffic and pedestrian model — March 2022 to June 2022

Gateway 3/4 — July 2022

Feasibility design of HSP scenarios — December 2022

Stakeholder consultation (presenting HSP scenarios) — January 2022 to
March 2023

Gateway 5 — July 2023Are we on track for completing the project against the
expected timeframe for project delivery? No

COVID19 lock down resulted in the collection of traffic and pedestrian data to be
delayed until movements could be recorded at realistic levels. Stakeholder
engagement was also difficult to satisfactorily achieve. Engagement with Islington
Council concerning Beech Street has caused the project to be delayed and has
required the project scope to be extended to include the Bunhill ward in Islington
and joint working.

Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the
City of London has needed to manage or is managing?

Yes. There has been considerable public, stakeholder and media interest in the
Transport Strategy, Beech Street Zero Emission Scheme. Projects around the
Barbican tend to generate higher levels of media interest.

[2] Finance and Costed Risk

Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes: Update relevant section post
report approval. Add multiple entries to relevant box if issues reports are approved. Note
this section is to tell the 'project story' of how we reached the current position outlined in the
main report.

V14 July 2019

Page 34



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

‘Project Briefing’ G1 report (as approved by Chief Officer October 2021):
e Total Estimated Cost £250,000(excluding risk):
e Costed Risk Against the Project: None
e Estimated Programme Dates: Nov 2021-2022

Scope/Design Change and Impact:
‘Project Proposal’ G2 report (as approved by PSC 20/10/2021)
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £250,000
Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk): £141,000.
Spend to date: £65,869
Costed Risk Against the Project: None requested.
CRP Requested: None
CRP Drawn Down: None
Estimated Programme Dates: Dec 2021-May 2022

Scope/Design Change and Impact:

‘Options Appraisal and Design’ G3-4 report (as approved by PSC xx/yy/zz):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk):

Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk

Spend to date:

Costed Risk Against the Project:

CRP Requested:

CRP Drawn Down:

Estimated Programme Dates:

Scope/Design Change and Impact:

‘Authority to start Work’ G5 report (as approved by PSC xx/yy/zz):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk):

Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk

Spend to date:

Costed Risk Against the Project:

CRP Requested:

CRP Drawn Down:

Estimated Programme Dates:

Scope/Design Change and Impact:

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: Individual projects
would be initiated following the adoption of the HSP and delivery plan.
Programme Affiliation [£]:N/A

V14 July 2019

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Appendix 2 Funding Tables

Table 1: Spend to date -

Description BA::;::?:) Expenditure (£) Balance (£)

P&T Staff Costs 134,700 77,627 57,073

P&T Fees 115,300 102,425 12,875
TOTAL 250,000 180,052 69,948

Table 2: Resources Required to reach the next Gateway

Approved Resources Revised Budget
Description Budget (£) Required (£) (£)
P&T Staff Costs 134,700 13,500 149,700
P&T Fees 115,300 20,000 135,300
TOTAL 250,000 33,500 283,500

e Funded by the £33.5k available from CIL after Islington’s contribution of £33.5k

Page 37




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane
Healthy Neighbourhood

Proposed Improvements

(4 e
ity DHISLINGTON
LONDON = For amore equal future

Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane
I ;
Healthy Neighbourhood

I Borough boundary
Existing traffic restriction to be retained
Proposed pedestrian priority

Proposed public realm enhancements

Boundary road treatment

New Islington Council traffic restriction
(Location to be confirmed)

Cycle route improvements

New one-way traffic restriction

New public space

New or improved crossing facility

Greening by Islington Council

Banned left turn

Banned right turn

oaTH STREET

€5 0.0%
< Old Street

i\
A
S Station

LL STREE!

miTeH

rOW
e MET
MALLOW STREET

FEATHERSTONE STREET

G E
an
= [
oV
€1
\aohswe §
R <
E|
z
e Fl
<onE® [ a
[ 3
%
4 8
g 2
5 &
3 E g
z o
3
<
3
0 BRACKLEY STREE
Z
2
; 3
1S
s 2
v >

%

k 4
-y

T

)

-,

e
px 5= Barbican
g«\\ﬁ Station
I
Al CK;
\«#“e "aroy sty
() REy
W S
\0 b
&
o
< <
o° S
k3
A4, Ce
FINSBURY [

Af1211 LONDON WALL Af211

*The map is for indicative purposes only.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright 2022.
All rights reserved. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. City of London 100023243 2020.

&
&
J
@
I
g
N
&
&
N

LEONARD STREET

CLERE STREET

EPWORTH STREET

BONHILL STREET

WORSHIP STREET

W
tsoy STReg,

FINSBURY SQuARe

N
-S;kssr

&
(OO/\/ N
Cey

e

V2.0

PAUL sTRggr

Improvements to be explored

Options for traffic restrictions and
pavement widening(s)

Public realm improvements and improved crossing

Traffic restriction and small public
space and public realm improvements

Traffic restriction and small public space

Public realm improvements and
improved traffic restriction

Public realm improvements and
additional short stay cycle parking

Traffic restriction and small public
space and dockless cycle parking

O~NOOOOTPLWN =

Public realm improvements

8a Reconfigured crossings and pavement widenings

9 Options for traffic restriction, pavement widenings
and public realm improvements

10 Public realm improvments including new planting,
araised crossing facility and dockless parking

1 1 Public realm improvements

12 Dockless cycle parking

13 Pavement widenings and public improvements
and one directional motor traffic

1 4 Improved cycling facilities and public realm
improvements

1 5 Improved cycling facilities and public realm
improvements

16 Improved cycling facilites, pavement widening(s)
and public realm improvements

16a Reconfigured crossings

Improved cycling facilities, pavement
1 7 widening(s), public realm improvements
and new crossing point

LBl Improvements to be explored

AB
CD

Greening

Boundary road treatment
Banned right turn
New traffic restriction (location to be determined)

New one-way traffic restrictions

IG6 Tm



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane
Healthy Neighbourhood Plan

Introduction

This Healthy Neighbourhood Plan for the Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane area
has been developed by the City of London Corporation and Islington Council.

It sets out potential changes to how motor vehicles use streets in both the City of
London and Islington to access and move around the area. It also outlines potential
improvements for people walking, wheeling, cycling and spending time on streets
within the City.

The proposals will improve the quality of streets and public spaces, and the
attractiveness of the area for living, working or studying in and as a leisure
destination. It will also enhance the world-class cultural identity of the Barbican
Centre and the Guildhall School of Music and Drama by making streets safer and
more pleasant places to spend time.

The Healthy Neighbourhood Plan provides the framework for future investment in the
area. Individual projects within the plan will be subject to further public consultation,
feasibility, detailed design and the City Corporation’s approval processes.

The Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane Area

KEY &

— Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane
Healthy Neighbourhood

s Borough Boundary

Figure 1. The Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy Neighbourhood area.

Page 41



The plan area comprises three neighbourhoods within the Bunhill, Barbican and
Golden Lane area bounded by London Wall to the south, Aldersgate Street / Goswell
Road to the west, Old Street to the north, and City Road / Moorgate to the west.

The neighbourhoods, and streets within them, straddle the border between the LB of
Islington and the City. The City Corporation and Islington Council have worked in
partnership to take an area-wide approach to ensure the proposals are
complimentary and work together.

As well as a concentration of homes and learning and cultural institutions, the area
also has a mix of offices. These range from large corporate headquarters to
buildings suitable for small and medium sized businesses, creative enterprises and
start-ups and some retail.

The opening of the Elizabeth Line, linking to national rail and tube lines, has made
the area one of the most accessible locations by public transport in the country.

Within the plan area there are opportunities to make walking and wheeling easier,
more comfortable and safer, and to create pedestrian priority by redesigning streets
and managing motor-vehicle access. The plan also considers the opportunities
created by making changes to traffic to improve the public realm and create new
restful spaces with trees and greenery. Where possible we will improve walking
routes and permeability as part of new developments.

Street roles within the area

The boundary streets within the City are defined by the City of London Transport
Strategy street hierarchy as “City access” streets. This means they are the preferred
streets for motor vehicles that are travelling around the Square Mile or to
immediately adjacent destinations.

All other streets within the City part of the plan area are classified as “Local access”
streets. These streets are primarily used for the first or final part of a journey,
providing access for motor vehicles to properties.

All streets, regardless of their classification, are used by people walking, wheeling
and cycling and may also be part of the bus network.

Alignment with City Corporation strategies

Supporting delivery of the City of London Transport Strategy

This Healthy Neighbourhood Plan sets out an integrated approach to improving the
public realm and managing traffic to support delivery of the following City of London

Transport Strategy outcome:

e The Square Mile’s streets are great places to walk, wheel and spend time
e Street space is used more efficiently and effectively

Page 42



The Square Mile is accessible to all

People using our streets and public spaces are safe and feel safe
Improved experience of riding cycles and scooters in the City

The Square Mile’s air and streets are cleaner and quieter

Delivery and servicing are more efficient, and impacts are minimised
Our street network is resilient to changing circumstances

Emerging transport technologies benefit the Square Mile

The Square Mile benefits from better transport

Alignment with the emerging City Plan 2040

The area covered by the plan includes part of the Smithfield and Barbican Key Area
of Change as set out in the emerging City Plan 2040. The Key Area of Change
includes the Barbican and Golden Lane Estates which are home to the highest
number of residents in the Square Mile. A Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood
Forum for the Barbican and Golden Lane area were designated by the City
Corporation on 18 July 2023 to represent resident and business groups.

The Healthy Neighbourhood Plan will support the delivery of the Key Area of Change
objectives:

The implementation of public realm enhancement and transport schemes and
greater activation of streets, providing improved amenity, design and
movement, for the benefit of workers, residents and visitors.

The need to improve air quality to protect the health of the public, including
the comparatively large resident population.

The creation of a distinctive look and feel for the area, which allows for the
provision of art installations and activity in the public realm in appropriate
locations.

Page 43



i _._'_-: Key Area of Change Boundary
London Access
City Access
I Principal Shopping Centres
<+ Places of Worship

R | Identified Residential Areas

LONDON BOROUGH
OF ISLINGTON

Green space
Other Public Reaim
Conservation Areas
~~~~~~~~~~ City Flood Risk Area
% Key Landmarks

y | ,
1 *
z Baican, = //
== Farringdon { g, / / =
E= \ W o
Guildhall School ooy
\ of Music and Orama .
LONDON * b ‘
BOROUGH \ City of London /S i
gl \ School for Girls 3 i
oo /a f
\ CRPPLEGATE 4
o 4 -
/ \ / e / Noorqale% 1 5
; ] > Sn { e s, : ¥ S
1 s . / trogs &
[ \_./> 2 roor l.g
i / X e (¥ 3
1 8T aarTHoLOuEV? \ J /’ London Wall remains fi
‘T"""‘x e LEss /8 * 3 ‘ "
16 \ eI -
1 & * ”
) 1 § St Bartholomew's A H
g S | g Hospital IR oo
3 \" T - WIHBUTALDERSGATE
2 ! / y i H
z " Xy i 2
2 e A stserudins s e % 2
; gy TTOUT fevaTe g &
@ g 4 "’; 5
H = : ;
L] City Thameslink G"s, g £
m
e 3 i

Figure 2: Smithfield and Barbican Key Area of Change

Supporting delivery of City Corporation Strategies

The Plan supports delivery of the City Corporation’s Climate Action Strategy and
Destination City initiative by transforming the quality and resilience of its streets and
public spaces and making them more comfortable for people walking, wheeling and
cycling to travel and spend time in. The Plan also supports the City Corporation’s
Corporate Plan outcomes of vibrant thriving destinations and flourishing public
spaces.

Supporting the Culture Mile Business Improvement District (BID)

The plan also supports and facilitates the Culture Mile BID’s aspirations for the
enhancement of the area. The BID has developed their own Public Realm vision and
strategy that identifies a range of projects building upon the area’s culture to make it
a major destination for visitors. The BID will be a key partner as we develop and
deliver the proposals in this plan.

Page 44



48 CULTURE MILE
We  PUBLIC REALM
VISION & STRATEGY

Stage 4: Final report

Culture Mile BID
August 2024

steer ARUrbanism AuthenticFutures CULTURE

Figure 3: Culture Mile BID Public Realm vision

Page 45



The Healthy Streets Approach

The Healthy Streets Approach is a human-centred framework for embedding
public health in transport, public realm, and planning. The Approach is based on
10 evidence-based Healthy Streets Indicators that capture the elements that are
essential for making streets attractive and accessible places to walk, cycle and
spend time, and for supporting social and economic activity.

Everyone
feels
welcome

The Healthy Streets Approach will be applied across the street network with the
aim of making all streets accessible, engaging and safer for people to walk, cycle
and spend time. The approach to achieving this may vary depending on the type
of street and local context.

The Healthy Streets Approach has been adopted and recognised by the City of
London Corporation, London Borough of Islington and Transport for London.

Page 46




Public and stakeholder engagement

In 2023, we sought people’s views on the objectives of the Healthy Neighbourhood
Plan, and the challenges and opportunities they saw for the area. The proposals in
this document are at concept stage and have been developed using feedback
provided from this early public engagement.

Feedback was gathered at drop-in events and via an on-line engagement portal,
which was promoted widely and open for six weeks.

Our online survey asked for people’s level of support for the objectives of a Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan, overall, over 200 people shared their views:

e 81% (115) of respondents supported “Traffic restrictions or changes to street
layouts which may increase journey times for people traveling in motor
vehicles to increase space for people walking.”

e 67% (115) supported “Traffic restrictions or changes to street layouts which
may increase journey times for people traveling in motor vehicles to increase
space for people cycling.”

e 89% (102) supported “Traffic restrictions or changes to street layouts which
may increase journey times for people traveling in motor vehicles to increase
on-street trees, planting and places for people to stop and rest.”.

e 88% (101) supported “Traffic restrictions or changes to street layouts which
may increase journey times for people traveling in motor vehicles to improve
local air quality and noise levels.”

The engagement also received comments highlighting issues with individual streets.
In particular comments were received about:

e Beech Street, including poor air quality, poor safety for people walking and
cycling due to the width of the pavements as well as noise from vehicles,
particularly at night.

e Moor Lane, Fore Street and Silk Street, including concerns that these streets
could become a route for additional traffic between London Wall and Chiswell
Street if Beech Street was restricted.

e Golden Lane, including concerns about traffic speeds, poor air quality outside
schools and opportunities for greening and improving the environment for
people walking and cycling.

Working with local stakeholders

We have been engaging with the Culture Mile BID, the Barbican and Golden Lane
Neighbourhood Forum, the Barbican Association, the Barbican Centre and other
stakeholders and partners to prioritise, develop and deliver these changes.

Page 47



Individual projects within the plan will be subject to further consultation and the City
Corporation’s approval processes, including streets where changes to traffic
movements are proposed.

Glossary and key to the Healthy Neighbourhood proposals plan

Pedestrian priority improvements aim to make crossing and walking and wheeling
along a street safer, and could include:

Traffic restrictions — where a street or junction is closed as a through route for
motor vehicles, is just for local access or is made one-way.

Timed closures — where streets are closed to some vehicles at the busiest
times for people walking and wheeling.

New crossing facilities — either formal, such as traffic signal-controlled
crossings or zebra crossings; or informal where the carriageway is raised to
pavement height, or dropped kerbs are installed, to make crossing the street
easier for people walking.

Streets with existing filters for motor vehicles and timed restrictions - existing
streets where some motor vehicle movements are restricted for all or some of
the day.

Safer Streets Priority Locations — are locations designated in the City of
London Transport Strategy for priority measures to improve the safety of
people walking, cycling and riding motorcycles and mopeds.

Public realm improvements to make walking and wheeling easier and more pleasant
may comprise one or more of the following:

Pavement widening — where the carriageway is narrowed to increase space
for people walking and wheeling and provide space for other improvements
such as trees and street furniture.

Pavement resurfacing — where pavements are repaired or upgraded.

Raised junctions — where the carriageway is raised to the same level as the
pavement to make it easier to cross the street, slow traffic and make people
crossing more visible. Tactile paving is used to mark the crossing.

Raised entrances to side streets, carparks and loading bay entrances — where
the pavement is a continuios height to make it easier for people walking and
wheeling to cross. Tactile paving would be used to mark junctions and road
crossing points.

Tree planting and greening which will usually be directly into the ground, with
planters and pots only used in locations where this is not possible.

Seating — to give peole a place to stop and rest and in suitable locations to
enable people to socialsise.

Sustainable Urban Drainage (SuDS) — a system of using planting as a way to
absorb storm water and release it slowly to help prevent localised flooding.

Page 48



Small public spaces — where carriageway or parking spaces are changed into
areas with seating and planting.

Designated parking for dockless bicycles and e-scooters — spaces where
people using dockless bikes or hired e-scooters are required to park. This
helps to prevent bikes and e-scooters being left in ways that cause an
obstruction.

Cycle improvements to make streets safer and attractive for people to cycle, may
comprise one or more of the following:

Segregated space — cycles lanes

Maximising traffic signal timings — changing traffic lights at junction to give
people cycling priority over motor vehicles.

Contraflow cycle lanes — where cycle lanes allow people to ride in the
opposite direction to motor vehicle traffic.

As well as the proposals in the plan, the City will continue to refresh or repair
paving, install tactile paving and remove redundant street furniture, where
appropriate.

Page 49



Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane
Healthy Neighbourhood

Proposed Improvements

EY SisLncTON

LONDON = Foramore equal future

Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane
B {ealthy Neighbourhood

I Borough boundary

|:| Existing traffic restriction to be retained
|:| Proposed pedestrian priority
l:l Proposed public realm enhancements.
l:l Boundary road treatment

New Islington Council traffic restriction
(Location to be confirmed)

0S abed

- Cycle route improvements

New one-way traffic restriction

New public space

Mew or improved crossing facility
Greening by Islington Council
Banned left turn

Banned right tum

Figure 4: Proposals Plan

10

—

]
r
e

oo

a

PEATIERETOHESIREET

*The map Is for indicative purposes only.

Lecon AP EEREET

AL
4 d
-
E
.

This map is reproduced from Ordnanca Survey material with the permission of Ordnanca Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Majesty's Stxlmnsvy fona @ Crown copyright 2022

Allights resened. Unauthorisad reproduction infringes Crowin copyright and may lead to

or civil

City of London

Mg,
Ny,
=
LBI
&
S
ColL S
e,
N
V2o

Ogmﬂmﬂlhb)h)-l

=i
(<]

=2 = =&
B WN

933

=T m

Improvements to be explored

Options for traffic restrictions and
pavement widening(s)

Public realm i and i

Traffic rutri:ﬁ_un and ll_'nall public

Traffic restriction and small public space

Public realm improvements and
improved traffic restriction

Public realm improvements and
additional short stay cycle parking
Traffic restriction and small public
space and dockless cycle parking

Public realm improvements

Reconfigured crossings and pavement widenings

Options for traffic restriction, pavement widenings
and public realm improvements

Public realm improvments including new planting,
a raised crossing facility and dockless parking

=h
=

Public realm improvements

Dockless cycle parking

and one directional motor traffic
Improved cycling facilities and public realm
improvements

Improved cycling facilities and public realm
improvements

Improved cycling facilites, pavement widening(s)
and public realm improvements

Reconfigured crossings

17 nproy mﬂh:::ﬂllh—u

and new cressing point

LBl Improvements to be explored

AB ...,
CD

Boundary road treatment
Banned right turn
New traffic restriction (location to be determined)

New one-way traffic restrictions



Proposals

The proposals within this plan comprise both traffic management changes and public
realm improvements. The extent and ambition of public realm changes is partly
dependent on reducing and reallocating carriageway space.

Where streets are closed or through traffic is restricted, we will ensure that access

for emergency vehicles is maintained and, if required, that streets can be reopened
to through traffic if streets elsewhere are temporarily closed.

Beech Street and Chiswell Street

Beech Street and Chiswell Street are the main east and west traffic route within the
plan area and are used by the only bus route (route 153).

Data collected in 2024 indicates that there are over 6,000 motor vehicle movements
a day on Beech Street (both directions combined). Of these, two thirds travelled
through the area without stopping. We have also nearly 4,000 cycle movements a
day and nearly 12,000 people walking.

Beech Street is currently a poor environment for people walking and wheeling.

Pavements that are very narrow, particularly the southern side and can get crowded
at busy times.

Beech Street Movements Per Day
14000
12000
10000
8000
6000
4000

2000

Motor Vehicles People Cycling People Walking

Figure 5: Beech Street Movements

11
Page 51



Historically Beech Street has suffered from poor air quality. From March 2020 to
September 2021, a zero-emission traffic experiment was trialled that restricted traffic
to:

e zero emission vehicles,

e Dbuses,

e people cycling and,

e vehicles accessing Barbican estate carparks directly from Beech Street

Whilst the results of the experiment were significantly impacted by the pandemic,
levels of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) in Beech Street decreased by more than
comparable streets, and we learned many lessons regarding how people
understood the restriction and its benefits and disbenefits. A public consultation
following the conclusion showed that opinions on whether to retain the zero-
emission street permanently were evenly split. Air quality has improved on Beech
Street compared to 2019 due to wider improvements in London air quality and
vehicles becoming cleaner.

Chiswell Street is a shared boundary street with Islington Council. It has substantial
numbers of people walking along it with crowded pavements at peak times. The
zebra crossing on Chiswell Street near the junction with Moor Lane and Bunhill Row
is particularly busy.

Reducing motor traffic on Beech Street and Chiswell Street will create opportunities
to improve the comfort and safety for people walking, wheeling and cycling in this
area. Air quality and potentially bus journeys will also benefit. For people travelling
by motor vehicles some journeys may be longer.

Proposals that will be explored:

Beech Street -Proposal 1a: (Figure 6)

Introduce a restriction to through traffic on Beech Street in both directions between
the junction with Aldersgate Street and the junction with Silk Street, except for buses,
people cycling and access to the carpark (and forecourts) entrances and exits on
Beech Street and the Barbican Centre loading bays.

e This measure will significantly reduce the amount of traffic on Beech Street.

o Traffic levels will be low enough for people to feel safe cycling without the
need for cycle lanes.

e Pavements could be widened on both sides of the street, using the space
created by removing the cycle lanes.

e The junctions of Bridgewater Street and Golden Lane would be closed to
motorised traffic, with associated public realm improvements. Traffic access to
the area north of Beech Street would be via Old Street and Golden Lane.

e The removal of the central reservation on Beech Street will be investigated so
that more space could be created to further widen the pavements.

e Exemptions for taxis will be considered prior to any change being
implemented.

12
Page 52



e Enforcement of the restriction will be by Automatic Numberplate Recognition
Cameras (ANPR). If necessary, enforcement can be suspended temporarily,
for example if London Wall needs to be closed for street works.

OR

Beech Street - Proposal 1b (Figure 7)

Make Beech Street one way eastbound between the junction with Aldersgate Street
and the junction with Silk Street, except for buses, local access and cyclists and
access to the carpark (and forecourts) entrances and exits on Beech Street and the
Barbican Centre loading bays

e This measure will significantly reduce the amount of traffic on the Beech
Street westbound lane so that people cycling can safely travel with traffic
without the need for cycle lanes, and the narrow pavement on the south side
of the street could be widened.

e Overall, traffic volumes in Beech Street would be roughly halved.

e The junctions of Bridgewater Street and Golden Lane would be closed to
motorised traffic, with associated public realm improvements. Traffic access to
the area north of Beech Street would be via Old Street and Golden Lane.

e Exemptions for taxis will be considered prior to any change being
implemented.

e Enforcement of the restriction will be by Automatic Numberplate Recognition
Cameras (ANPR).

For both options, some people travelling by motor vehicles may experience longer
journeys and will have to use boundary streets.

13
Page 53



G abed

Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane
Healthy Neighbourhood

CITY
Proposal 9a LONDON
Beech Street will be closed to through motor traffic in

both directions

» Buses and cyclists will not be restricted

» Local access to the carparks and forecourts accessed N;;g’: ;ﬁh B
from Beech Street will be maintained. This will include Beech Street E
parking, deliveries / servicing and taxi pick up / drop off except for ﬁ

» Through access for taxis to be explored b::ﬁsa,:cy;lis %

- Eastbound access from Shakespeare and Defoe House a:g gmfm =1
will be allowed &

» Bridgewater Street and Golden Lane will be closed to
through motor traffic
at junction with Beech Street.

E
wowe £ CEIIEED GEE GEED GEECCITEED SR

- Widening the pavements on both sides of Beech Street
will be explored to increase space for people walking

and wheeling.

» The Beech Street restriction will be enforced by
Automatic Numberplate Recognition

Cameras (ANPR).
KEY
No through
Existing central reservation B;:ﬁ;ﬁ:et
bﬁmeptfnl;
: P ses, cycles
Pavement widening S
to carparks
Permitted traffic movement and forecourts

Traffic restriction to through N
traffic

End of road closed to motor
vehicles (open to cyclists)

Figure 6: Beech Street Option 1a

14



GG abed

Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane
Healthy Neighbourhood
Proposal 9b

Beech Street will be closed to west bound through motor
traffic

- All traffic will be allowed to drive eastbound (from Aldersgate
Street) on Beech Street.

- Buses and cyclists will not be restricted.

- Local access to the carparks and forecourts accessed from Beech
Street will be maintained. This will include parking, deliveries /
servicing and taxi pick up / drop off.

‘GOLDEN LANE

- Through access for westbound taxis to be explored.

—
w
w
o
=
7]
4
=
<
=
g
3
@

- Eastbound access from Shakespeare and Defoe House will be
allowed.

WHITECROSS
STREET

- Bridgewater Street and Golden Lane will be closed to through
motor traffic at junction with Beech Street.

- Widening the pavements on the south side of Beech Street will
be explored to increase space for people walking and wheeling.

BEECH STREET

LONG LANE

- The Beech Street restriction will be enforced by Automatic
Numberplate Recognition
Cameras (ANPR).

ALDERSGATE STREET

SERVICE
ENTRANCE & EXIT

EY

Existing central reservation No through
trafficon
Beech Street
except for
buses, cycles
and access
to carparks
and forecourts

(]
>
Traffic restriction to thro
- traffic
- N
]

Pavement widening

Permitted traffic movement

End of road closed to motor
vehicles (open to cyclists)

Permitted traffic movement

(all vehicles and cycle lane retained)

Figure 7: Beech Street Option 1b

15



Chiswell Street (Proposal 2)

Chiswell Street is a shared street between the City and Islington Council.
Proposals that will be explored:

e Improvements to the zebra crossing to improve the comfort and safety of
people walking, wheeling and cycling. Opportunities to be explored include
reducing the crossing distance by widening the pavement and narrowing the
carriageway. If traffic were to be reduced on the Beech Street / Chiswell
Street corridor, we’'d explore a directional give-way point, similar to the
measure on Basinghall Avenue.

e Public realm improvements including, sections of pavement widening, seating,
planting and trees (where feasible).

e Formalising loading and servicing for local businesses.

e The introduction of bus shelters at the bus stops (if pavements are widened).

The Golden Lane Neighbourhood

Golden Lane (Proposal 3)

Golden Lane is a street shared between the City and Islington Council. It is a direct
link between Old Street and Beech Street. It is the route for vehicles travelling into
the area north of Beech Street, but also for through traffic travelling east and south of
Beech Street. Motor vehicle movements are over 2000 a day. It is also a popular
route for people cycling, with over 1,200 movements a day.

This is mainly a residential street. There are entrances to three schools, the City of
London Primary Academy Islington (COLPAI), Richard Cloudsley and Prior Western
Primary School, and Fortune Street Park. It also has car parking, dockless and TfL
cycle parking.

Traffic speeds on Golden Lane exceed the 20mph speed limit. The average speed
for the majority (85%) of vehicles is 22.5mph (a standard measure used to determine
a street’s ‘design speed’). Opportunities will be explored to introduce appropriate
measures to reduce traffic speeds to within the limit.

Proposals that will be explored:

e Creating a safer, more pleasant environment for people walking, wheeling,
cycling and spending time on Golden Lane by reducing traffic volumes
through a closure to motor traffic at the junction with Beech Street.

e Public realm improvements at the junction of Golden Lane and Beech Street
utilising the surplus road space from the junction closure.

e Public realm improvements on the west side of Golden Lane including,
sections of pavement widening, seating, planting and trees and the relocation
of parking.

16
Page 56



In order to close Golden Lane to motor traffic the proposed right turn ban at the
eastern end of Fortune Street is required to stop through traffic travelling to Chiswell
Street through the Bunhill area.

If Golden Lane is not closed to motor traffic at the junction with Beech Street
measures such as traffic calming may be required to reduce traffic speeds. Public
realm improvements will still be explored but the scope of these may be reduced.

Bridgewater Street improvements and Brackley Street (Proposal 4)

Bridgewater Street provides a minor access street from Beech Street to the
residential areas of Viscount Street and Fann Street. If it closed, access to these
streets will be from the junction of Old Street and Golden Lane. Brackley Street is
currently two-way and has a narrow carriageway width.

Proposals that will be explored:

e The closure of Bridgewater Street to motor traffic at the junction with Beech
Street.

e Public realm improvements at the junction with Beech Street to create a small
public space that could be coordinated with the redevelopment of 45 Beech
Street.

e Raising the carriageway to pavement height.

e Making Brackley Street one-way to motor traffic.

Fann Street (Proposal 5)

Fann Street is an east to west link between Goswell Road and Golden Lane and is a
well-used route for people walking, wheeling and cycling. It has an existing motor-
traffic restriction near the junction with Viscount Street.

Proposals that will be explored:

e Public realm improvements including sustainable drainage systems, planting
and trees.

e The reconfiguration of the junction with Goswell Road and the introduction of
a raised, continuous pavement across Fann Street with tactile paving.

e Reconfiguration of the existing traffic restriction at the junction with Viscount
Street to improve the comfort and safety of people walking and wheeling
whilst maintaining access for people cycling.

On other streets in this area, we will explore opportunities to introduce planting
and trees, raising the carriageway to pavement level and tactile paving where
appropriate and the removal of redundant street clutter.

17
Page 57



Barbican Neighbourhood, (Streets South of Beech Street)

Silk Street (Proposal 6)

Silk Street is a low-traffic street with a good number of trees. It features the main
entrances to the Barbican Centre and the Guildhall School of Music and Drama as
well as entrances and exits to some carparks of the Barbican Estate. It is the main
access route for vehicles servicing the Barbican Centre. The loading bay opposite 1
Silk Street is used for off-site broadcasting. It has a significant number of short-stay
cycle stands that are well used during the day and evenings. At the junction with
Beech Street the right-hand turn is currently banned.

Proposals that will be explored:

e Raising the existing zebra crossing at the junction with Chiswell Street to
pavement height.

e Raising the junction with Milton Street to pavement level to make the street
easier to cross.

e Introduce places for people to sit.

e Additional short-stay cycle parking.

New development opportunities in the area including the enhancements to the
Barbican Centre; and 1 Silk Street and Milton Gate on Chiswell Street may provide
opportunities for wider improvements.

Milton Street (Proposal 7)

Milton Street is a short, two-way street used by vehicles delivering and servicing
local businesses, including the Heron and the Music and Drama School. There are
parking bays, kerbside bays for loading, and parking for dockless bike and e-scooter
hire.

Proposals that will be explored:

e The closure of Milton Street to motor traffic between Silk Street and The
Heron access road.

e Public realm improvements in the closed part of the street to create a small
public space that could be coordinated with the redevelopment of 1 Silk
Street.

e Additional dockless cycle and e-scooter parking.

Ropemaker Street (Proposal 8)

Ropemaker Street is a shared boundary street with Islington Council. It is one of the
main eastern routes into the project area for motor traffic and people cycling. It also
has substantial numbers of people walking and wheeling between Moorgate,
Liverpool Street, Bunhill Row and the Barbican.

18
Page 58



Proposals that will be explored:

e Public realm improvements including the installation of a continuous
pavement and tactile paving at the junction with Moorfields and a raised
junction treatment at the junction with Moor Lane to make the street easier to
Cross.

e The installation of short stay and dockless cycle and e-scooter parking and
places for people to sit.

The junction of Moorgate with Ropemaker Street and South Place (Proposal 8a)

The City Corporation has developed a new design for the junction to improve
conditions for people crossing the street. The left-hand turn from Moorgate into
Ropemaker Street would be banned and those vehicles instead turn left into Chiswell
Street. This change allows crossing distances for people walking and wheeling to be
shortened and a new diagonal crossing to be introduced. Pavements would also be
widened. This scheme is expected to be implemented in 2025.

Figure 8: Ropemaker Street, Moorgate, Finsbury Pavement and South Place
Junction crossing improvements (The red bus is on Finsbury Pavement)

19
Page 59



20

Moor Lane

Moor Lane north of the junction with Ropemaker Street is one-way north bound
for motor traffic. The section is a shared boundary street with Islington Council
and a popular route for people walking, wheeling and cycling through the area.

South of the junction with Ropemaker Street, Moor Lane is two-way. Local
access is required to entrances and exits to the Barbican Estate carparks on the
west side and servicing and delivery facilities on the opposite side. At the junction
with Fore Street there is a traffic restriction (in the form of a gate) to vehicles that
operates between 11pm and 7am Monday to Friday and on weekends and bank
holidays.

Some improvements have been made to Moor Lane in recent years such as the
temporary Moor Lane community garden and new trees and planters on the
eastern side as part of the works for 21 Moorfields.

Underneath Moor Lane between New Union Street and the access ramp to
Willoughby House and Brandon Mews are London Underground structures,
which means it is not possible to plant trees in the ground on this part of the
street. Some pavement widening on the western side of Moor Lane is possible
with the existing traffic arrangements. However, a one-way traffic restriction or a
closure at either the junction with Silk Street or Fore Street would enable greater
public realm enhancements.

(Planters would have to be moveable if they are located above the London
Underground structures and therefore their size will be restricted).

The following options have different impacts on motor vehicle journey times. All
the options (including retaining the timed gate closure and making no further
traffic changes) enable widening pavements and public realm improvements but
the opportunity for the extent of the improvements varies depending on the traffic
management changes.

For all the options, the below changes will be explored. The exact extent of these
changes will be determined as designs are developed.

e Widening of the western pavement between New Union Street and Fore
Street and the possible introduction of planters (subject to underground
constraints) and places for people to sit.

e The introduction of planting on the western side of the timed gate at the
junction with Fore Street.

e A pavement build out on the western side of Fore Street at the junction with
Moor Lane.

e The removal or relocation of some or all the of eastern side car parking
outside of Citipoint. Their removal or relocation may allow additional
pavement space and one or more trees and planting or a loading space.

Option proposals that will be explored:

Page 60



21

Moor Lane Option 9a (Figure 9)

Moor Lane south of the junction with Silk Street could be made one-way
southbound to motor vehicles (but two-way for people cycling) and the existing
timed gate removed.

Motor vehicle journey impact:

e This option would enable traffic to travel between Moor Lane and Fore Street
at all times in a southbound direction only. Journeys from Wood Street and
Fore Street will be longer, and vehicles will have to enter the area from the
junction of Moorgate with Chiswell Street.

Public realm changes that would be explored:

e This option maximises the potential for widening of the pavement on the
western side of Moor Lane compared to all the other options as less
carriageway is required for motor traffic.

Or:

Moor Lane Option 9b (Figure 10)

Moor Lane could be closed to through motor traffic at the junction with Fore
Street with a permanent physical closure. The street would remain open to
people cycling.

Motor vehicle journey impact:

e This option would reduce through motor traffic on Moor Lane but allow two-way
local access to car parks and commercial buildings from and to Ropemakers
Street, Chiswell Street and Silk Street. Journeys from Wood Street and Fore Street
will be longer, and vehicles will have to enter the area from the junction of
Moorgate with Chiswell Street.

Public realm changes that would be explored:
e Pavement widening on the western side of Moor Lane could be achieved but
this would be less than under Option 9a.

e At the junction with Fore Street carriageway could be used to create a public
space.

Page 61



Moor Lane Option 9c (Figure 11)

Moor Lane could be closed to through motor traffic at the junction with Silk Street
with a permanent physical closure. The street would remain open to people
cycling.

Motor vehicle journey impact:

e This option would reduce through motor traffic on Moor Lane but allow local

access to car parks and commercial buildings from Fore Street. Journeys from
Silk Street, Chiswell Street and Ropemakers Street will be longer, and vehicles
will have to enter the area from the junction of London Wall and Wood Street.

Public realm changes that would be explored:
e Pavement widening on the western side of Moor Lane could be achieved but
this would be less than under Option 9a.

e This option would enable the introduction of a public space and pavement
widenings at the Silk Lane junction and these would be more extensive than
the Fore Street public space in Option 9b.

Maintain the existing traffic restriction at the junction with Fore Street Option 9d

(Figure 12)

22

If none of the above options were to be implemented, improvements could still be
made and the time restriction hours at the existing gate could be changed.

Page 62



SILK STREET

1 I

WILLOUGHBY HOUSE AND BRANDON MEWS

With this option the largest pavement

With this option a small pavement widening
would be possible near to the junction with
Silk Street

One or more carparking bays could be

removed and become additional paving,
planting or a loading bay

B

CAR PARK RAMP

widening would be possible. No planting
trees or plants in the ground between

New Union Street and the Willoughby
House/Brandon Mews carpark ramp will
be possible because of TFL tunnel
underneath. Introducing planters could be
explored

New planters and a tree
could be introduced on the

western side
Existing gate removed _\

At the junction of Moor Lane

and Fore Street the pavement

could be widened ———— !
—at

PR 4

23

AA
FORE STREET

Figure 9: Moor Lane Option 9a

S

-~

MOOR LANE

NEW UNION STREET

o

a

21 MOORFIELDS

/

KEY

- Estimated pavement widening

otential additional pavement widening

Motor vehicle one-way southbound onl
y y

== Cyclist would be able to travel in both directions

% Existing tree

Proposed tree

MOOR LANE OPTION 9a

Moor Lane south of the junction with Silk Street
one way southbound to motor vehicles but two-way

for people cycling

Page 63



One or more carparking bays could be
= removed and become additional paving,
planting or a loading bay
»
E NEW UNION STREET
=
2 t
o
a
g o
& L
2 3
; 5
w
3 : g
o o«
I o4 21 MOORFIELDS
> o
- g
o«
2 3
3
2 - a
With this option the pavement could be -
widen but not as Option 9a. N u
No planting trees or plants in the ground =]
between New Union Street and the Willoughby
House/Brandon Mews carpark ramp will
be possible because of TFL tunnel underneath. =T ik |
Introducing planters could be ’\\_
explored | fpmTommm oo =
KEY
- Estimated pavement widening
New planters and a tree i Potential additional pavement widening
coultd be I.l:’troduced onthe 4= Motor vehicles two-way between Silk Street
western side —
and Fore Street
Existing gate removed S
) ) . ) Q--- Cyclists will be able to ride in both directions
If Moor Lane is restricted at the junction =s= and through the traffic restriction
with Fore Street to through motor vehicles;
approximately 160 m2 of additional space A ¢ Existing tree
for people walking and wheelipg ccwld be H >
created i ‘, ;
At the junction of Moor Lane s =
i
and Fore Street the pavement | ;:! MOOR LANE OPTION 9b

I i d ! i F o
could be widene Moor Lane closed to through traffic at the junction

with Fore Street. Remaninder of street two-way

Figure 10: Moor Lane Option 9b

Page 64



f— I

If Moor Lane is restricted at the junction

with Silk Street to through motor vehicles,
approximately 196 m2 of additional space
for peopl lking and wheeling could be

created

One or more carparking bays could be
removed and become additional paving,
planting or a loading bay

®
2 NEW UNION STREET
=
z 1l
[e}
o
3 o
& g
g 5
i 8
u a
z < 21 MOORFIELDS
o«
u £
o «
3 S
=
H - O
With this option the pavement could be p
widen but not as Option 9a.
No planting trees or plants in the ground -8
between New Union Street and the Willoughby
House/Brandon Mews carpark ramp will
be possible because of TFL tunnel underneath. =W a
Introducing planters could be e N
explored o
ted p — g
New planters and a tree vy ial additional p: widening
could be introduced on the
western side \ ‘_ Motor vehicles two-way on Moor Lane
Existing gate removed \\ -
== Cyclists will be able to ride in both directions
i =sed and through the traffic restriction

oY ﬁ Existing tree
i, 4 Py

At the junction of Moor Lane

and Fore Street the pavement MOOR LANE OPTION 9C

Id be widened ! 7 F : ¥
couldbewidene T Moor Lane closed to through traffic at the junction with
= Ad Silk Street

FORE STREET

Figure 11: Moor Lane Option 9¢

Page 65



26

SILK STREET T

=

WILLOUGHBY HOUSE AND BRANDON MEWS

With this option the pavement could be

0ann

One or more carparking bays could be
= Y d and become additional paving,
planting or a loading bay

widen but not as Option 9a.

No planting trees or plants in the ground
between New Union Street and the Willoug
House/Brandon Mews carpark ramp will

be possible because of TFL tunnel underne
Introducing planters could be

explored

New planters and a tree
could be introduced on the

NEW UNION STREET
[s}
w
z
=]
g \
=
z g
< 21 MOORFIELDS
=
S (
-4
=
o
5]
u]
by
bth. ol o —

KEY

- Estimated pavement widening

western side \

The existing gate will be retained but the

4= Motor vehicles and cyclists will be able to travel
=) as they can now

hours that it is closed could be reviewed |

At the junction of Moor Lane
and Fore Street the pavement

il d T

could be T !

@ Existing tree

Proposed tree

MOOR LANE OPTION 9d
Maintaining the existing traffic restriction at the
A4 junction with Fore Street
FORE STREET

Figure 12: Moor Lane Option 9d

Page 66



27

Fore Street (Proposal number 10)

Fore Street along with Wood Street and Fore Street Avenue is the southern
access into the plan area from London Wall. It has a wide carriageway for the
amount of traffic using it. There is potential for the street to be narrowed and the
pavements widened. Local access is required to entrances and exits to Barbican
Estate carparks, City of London Girls School, St Giles Cripplegate Church and St
Giles Terrace. Local access is also required to servicing and delivery facilities for
developments on London Wall.

Fore Street has pay-and-display parking on the north side and coach parking and
a TfL cycle-hire station on the south side.

Proposals that will be explored:

e Public realm improvements including narrowing the carriageway to enable
planting and trees, pavement widening and places for people to rest.

e Relocate parking spaces.

e Araised crossing to improve pedestrian priority and the comfort, accessibility
and safety for people crossing Fore Street between London Wall Place and
Moor Lane.

e The installation of cycle parking and dockless cycle and e-scooter parking.

Wood Street (Proposal number 11)

Wood Street is the main gateway into the area for traffic arriving from the south
and south-east. It is a wide carriageway that has potential to be narrowed in
places.

Proposals that will be explored:

e Public realm improvements including pavement widening to allow planting
and trees and places for people to sit.

Fore Street Avenue (Proposal number 12)

Fore Street Avenue intersects with London Wall and traffic can enter and exit the
plan area at this location. The streets’ main function is to provide vehicle access
to loading and servicing bays for surrounding large developments. Consultation
feedback indicated that east bound traffic used it was used as a short cut to avoid
traffic queues on London Wall. More recent traffic data indicates that this is no
longer a regular problem, however, the City will continue to monitor the issue.

Proposals that will be explored:

e The installation of dockless cycle and e-scooter parking.

Page 67



Moorfields (Proposal number 13)

Moorfields features Underground and Elizabeth line station entrances/exits and
retail and commercial premises. It also accommodates a large TfL cycle hire
station. The nearby Citipoint development has its service bay on New Union
Street which intersects with Moorfields. Delivery vehicles exit the plan area from
Moorfields via Moore Place on to Moorgate.

Proposals that will be explored:

e Public realm improvements including a raised carriageway, new paving,
greening and tree planting, seating and short-stay cycle parking.

e Traffic management changes to make Moorfield one-way southbound to
motor traffic.

Area Boundary Streets

On the streets that form the boundary of the project area, we will investigate
improving the experience of people walking, wheeling, cycling and the public realm.
These streets typically carry larger volumes of traffic and opportunities for
improvements may be limited due to the space available and the need to continue to
accommodate traffic.

Eastern Boundary

Moorgate (Proposal number 14)

Moorgate connects London Wall with Old Street and is the eastern boundary of the plan
area. Large numbers of people cycling use Moorgate south of Ropemaker Street. Itis
also the busiest street for people walking and wheeling in the plan area.

Moorgate is identified in the Transport Strategy for proposed Phase 2 cycle network
improvements (by 2035) and a proposed priority location for safer streets
improvements.

Proposals that will be explored:

e The potential to improve the cycling experience and reduce road danger by
introducing protected space for people cycling. This would include banning
the left-turns into Ropemakers Street for motor vehicles.

e Improved signal priorities for cyclists at the junctions with Moorgate and
London Wall.

e Public realm improvements including a widened pavement on the western
side.

28
Page 68



Southern Boundary
London Wall (Proposal number 15)

London Wall is the southern boundary of the plan area. It is an important east west
route for traffic in the City, including bus services and large numbers of people
cycling, walking and wheeling.

Proposals that will be explored:

e The potential to improve the cycling experience and safety by introducing
protected space for people cycling.

e Introduce places for people to sit and bus shelters at the bus stops.

e Explore opportunities at the Moorgate and London Wall junction to improve
conditions for people walking, wheeling and cycling and provide for
appropriate vehicle turning movements.

Western Boundary
Aldersgate Street (Proposal number 16)

Aldersgate Street forms the western boundary of the plan area and the Barbican
Estate. It is a wide street with two traffic lanes north bound and a central reservation
including street lighting and a Police check point. The south-bound carriageway has
an advisory cycle lane, and the street is well used by people cycling. The Barbican
Estate has substantial trees on the eastern side which contribute to the amenity of
the street.

Proposals that will be explored:

e The potential to improve the cycling experience and safety by introducing
protected space for people cycling.

e Removing the central reservation and improving the lighting provision for the
pavements.

e Widened pavements to provide more space and comfort for people walking
and wheeling and places for people to sit.

e Public realm improvements, greening and tree planting and places for people
to sit.

The junction of Aldersgate with Beech Street and Long Lane (Proposal number 16a)

Barbican Underground station is located at the junction with Long Lane, Beech
Street and Goswell Road. Footfall is particularly high, and the junction is busy and
complex with poor legibility for people walking to the Barbican Centre. In the
Transport Strategy this junction is proposed as a priority Safer Street site.

Proposals that will be explored:

e Reconfiguring crossings for people walking and wheeling to increase priority
and improve comfort and safety.

e Improving signal priorities for people cycling at the junction.

29
Page 69



Goswell Road (Proposal number 17)

Goswell Road forms the western boundary of the Golden Lane Estate and is a
shared street between the City and Islington. On the eastern side, the Golden Lane
Estate has a parade of shops with an overhang of residential flats above. It also has
pay-and-display parking and, to the south, there is a TfL cycle-hire station.

A continuation of Aldersgate Street, Goswell Road at its widest comprises two traffic
lanes in both directions and a central reservation containing the street lighting. Given
the activities on either side of the street, it has insufficient crossing facilities for
people walking and wheeling.

Proposals that will be explored:

30

The potential to improve the cycling experience and safety by introducing
protected space for people cycling.

Removing the central reservation and improving the lighting provision for the
pavements.

Widened pavements to provide more space and comfort for people walking
and wheeling.

Public realm improvements including greening and tree planting and places
for people to sit.

A new controlled crossing facility to improve the safety of people walking to
and from Fann Street.

Page 70



ads

Naer @ 5 {

o
R

CITY
LONDON

TEST OF RELEVANCE: EQUALITY ANALYSIS (EA)

The screening process of using the Test of Relevance template aims to assist in determining whether a full Equality Analysis (EA) is required.
The EA template and guidance plus information on the Equality Act and the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) can be found on City of London

Intranet at: Equality and Inclusion

Introduction
The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) is set out in the Equality Act 2010 (s.149).  The characteristics protected by the Equality Act 2010 are:
is requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, to have e Age
@atutory ‘due regard’ to the need to: e Disability
|:| e Gender reassignment
e Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation e Marriage and civil partnership
e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected e Pregnancy and maternity
characteristic and those who do not, and e Race
e Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic e Religion or belief
and those who do not. e Sexual orientation

It is also Corporation policy to give voluntary (non-statutory) ‘due regard’ to the impact upon Social Mobility

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 15 January 2021
Author: William Coomber Date of next review: 1 February 2022


https://corpoflondon.sharepoint.com/sites/Intranet/SitePages/equality-and-inclusion.aspx
http://colnet/Departments/Pages/News/Equality-and-Diversity.aspx

What is due regard?

e Statutorily, it involves considering the aims of
the duty in a way that is proportionate to the
issue at hand.

e Ensuring that real consideration is given to the
aims and the impact of policies with rigour and
with an open mind in such a way that it
influences the final decision.

e Due regard should be given before and during
policy formation -and when a decision is taken
including cross cutting ones as the impact can
be cumulative.

The general equality duty does not specify how public
authorities should analyse the effect of their business
activities on different groups of people. However, case
4@/\/ has established that equality analysis is an
@nportant way public authorities can demonstrate that
ey are meeting the requirements.
\I
en in cases where it is considered that there are no
implications of proposed policy and decision making on
the PSED it is good practice to record the reasons why
and to include these in reports to committees where
decisions are being taken.

It is also good practice to consider the duty in relation
to current policies, services and procedures, even if
there is no plan to change them.

The Corporation has also adopted a voluntary (non-
statutory) due regard of the impact upon social
mobility issues. This should be considered generally
and, more specifically, against the aims/objectives in
the Social Mobility Strategy, 2018-28.

Version Control Version:1.1
Author: William Coomber

How to demonstrate compliance

Case law has established the following principles apply to the PSED:

Knowledge — the need to be aware of the requirements of the Equality Duty with a conscious approach
and state of mind.

Sufficient Information — must be made available to the decision maker.

Timeliness — the Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a particular policy is under
consideration or decision is taken not after it has been taken.

Real consideration — consideration must form an integral part of the decision making process. It is not a
matter of box-ticking; it must be exercised in substance, with rigour and with an open mind in such a
way that it influences the final decision.

Sufficient Information - The decision maker must consider what information he or she has and what
further information may be needed in order to give proper consideration to the Equality Duty

No delegation - public bodies are responsible for ensuring that any third parties which exercise
functions on their behalf are capable of complying with the

Equality Duty, are required to comply with it, and that they do so in practice. It is a duty that cannot be
delegated.

Review — the duty is continuing applying when a policy is developed and decided upon, but also when it
is implemented and reviewed.

However, there is no requirement to:

Produce equality analysis or an equality impact assessment

Indiscriminately collect diversity date where equalities issues are not significant

Publish lengthy documents to show compliance

Treat everyone the same. Rather, it requires public bodies to think about people’s different needs and
how these can be met

Make services homogeneous or to try to remove or ignore differences between people.

The key points about demonstrating compliance with the duty are to:

Collate sufficient evidence to determine whether changes being considered will have a potential impact
on different groups

Ensure decision makers are aware of the analysis that has been undertaken and what conclusions have
been reached on the possible implications

Keep adequate records of the full decision making process

Last updated: 15 January 2021
Date of next review: 1 February 2022



Test of Relevance screening
The Test of relevance screening is a short exercise that involves looking at the overall proposal and deciding if it is relevant to the PSED.

Note: If the proposal is of a significant nature and it is apparent from the outset that a full equality analysis will be required, then it is not necessary to complete
the Test of Relevance screening template and the full equality analysis must be completed.

The questions in the Test of Relevance Screening Template to help decide if the proposal is equality relevant and whether a detailed equality analysis is required. The
key question is whether the proposal is likely to be relevant to any of the protected characteristics.

Quite often, the answer may not be so obvious and service-user or provider information will need to be considered to make a preliminary judgment. For example, in
considering licensing arrangements, the location of the premises in question and the demographics of the area could affect whether section 149 considerations come
into play.

There is no one size fits all approach but the screening process is designed to help fully consider the circumstances.

What to do
Teeneral, the following questions all feed into whether an equality analysis is On completion of the Test of Relevance screening, officers should:
%quired:
@ e How many people is the proposal likely to affect? e Ensure they have fully completed and the Director has signed off the Test
a e How significant is its impact? of Relevance Screening Template.
e Does it relate to an area where there are known inequalities? e Store the screening template safely so that it can be retrieved if for
example, Members request to see it, or there is a freedom of information
At this initial screening stage, the point is to try to assess obvious negative or request or there is a legal challenge.
positive impact. o If the outcome of the Test of Relevance Screening identifies no or minimal
impact refer to it in the Implications section of the report and include
If a negative/adverse impact has been identified (actual or potential) during references to it in the Background Papers when reporting to the

completion of the screening tool, a full equality analysis must be undertaken. Committee or other decision making process.

If no negative / adverse impacts arising from the proposal it is not necessary to
undertake a full equality analysis.

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 15 January 2021
Author: William Coomber Date of next review: 1 February 2022



1. Proposal / Project Title: Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy Neighbourhood Plan
The Healthy Neighbourhood Plan provides the framework for future investment in the area. The proposals will improve the quality of streets and public spaces,
improve the attractiveness of the area for living, working or studying in and as a leisure destination.

2. Brief summary (include main aims, proposed outcomes, recommendations / decisions sought):
The implementation of public realm enhancement and transport schemes and greater activation of streets, providing improved amenity, design and movement,
for the benefit of workers, residents and visitors.

3. Considering the equality aims (eliminate unlawful discrimination; advance equality of opportunity; foster good relations), indicate for each protected group
whether there may be a positive impact, negative (adverse) impact or no impact arising from the proposal:

Protected Characteristic (Equality Group) | Positive | Negative No Briefly explain your answer. Consider evidence, data and any consultation.
Impact Impact Impact
O A person’s ability to use the transport network can be shaped by age and age-related
health conditions.
Positive and negative impacts are considered possible as a result of age and age-related
health conditions:
° There are likely to be positive impacts for people with age related conditions
such as providing places to rest, improving crossings, widening pavements and safer
cycling
. There are likely to be negative impacts resulting from schemes which involve
traffic changes which could result in longer journeys in cars and taxis
Disability O A person’s use of the transport network can be shaped by certain disabilities.
Positive and negative impacts are considered possible as a result of certain disabilities:
° There are likely to be positive impacts for people with certain disabilities such as
providing places to rest, improving crossings, widening pavements and safer cycling
. There are likely to be negative impacts for people with certain disabilities
resulting from schemes which involve traffic changes which could result in longer
journeys in cars and taxis

(0]
0]

) abed»

Gender Reassignment O O People undergoing gender reassignment are unlikely to be disproportionately impacted
by the scheme.
Marriage and Civil Partnership O O People who are married or in a civil partnership are unlikely to be disproportionately

impacted by the scheme.

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 15 January 2021
Author: William Coomber Date of next review: 1 February 2022



Pregnancy and Maternity Ul

Race ]
Religion or Belief ]
Sex (i.e. gender) O
%xual Orientation O O
Q
Q
D
a 4. Are there any potential social mobility or wider Yes No
issues? Please check appropriate box Ul

A person’s use of the transport network can be shaped by pregnancy and parental care.
Positive and negative impacts are considered possible as a result of pregnancy or
parental care:

° There are likely to be positive impacts for people in this group such as providing
places to rest, safer routes to schools and healthcare, improving crossings, widening
pavements and safer cycling

. There are likely to be negative impacts for some people in this group resulting
from schemes which involve traffic changes which could result in longer journeys in cars
and taxis

A person’s use of the transport network and/or occupation may differ depending on
ethnic group. Positive and negative impacts are considered possible as a result of race.
A person’s use of the transport network by those practising different religions may vary
across different days (e.g., Sunday worship, when public transport services are reduced).
Positive and negative impacts are considered possible as a result of religion or belief.

A person’s use of the transport network and/or occupation may differ depending on sex.
Positive and negative impacts are considered possible as a result of a person’s sex.
People of a particular sexual orientation are unlikely to be disproportionately impacted
by the scheme.

Briefly explain your answer:

There are potential positive impacts by improving the public realm and safer access to
facilities such as schools, cultural venues and places of employment. At this stage it is not
considered the plan contains elements that would negatively impact on social mobility.

5. There are no negative / adverse impact(s) Please briefly explain and provide evidence to support this decision:

N/A

6. Are there positive impacts of the proposal on any equality groups or Social Mobility? Please briefly explain how these are in line with the equality aims or

social mobility strategy:

It is estimated there will be a number of improvements that impact positively on people with equality protected characteristics such as improving road safety,
improving conditions for walking and cycling, the benefits to health of better air quality and noise levels.

7. As aresult of this screening, is a full EA necessary? Yes No

Briefly explain your answer:



Please check appropriate box ] As outlined above, potential positive and negative impacts on protected characteristics
have been identified. Consultation on the draft Plan will help identify specific impacts
that may need mitigating and inform the EqlA that will be carried out to inform and
assess the final version of the Plan. Where necessary EqlAs will also be undertaken for as
proposals are developed and delivered.

8. Name of Lead Officer: Kristian Turner Job title: Portfolio Manager Date of completion: 01/09/2024
Signed off by Department Director: Name: Date:

-

jab)

«Q

D

\I

o
Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 15 January 2021

Author: William Coomber Date of next review: 1 February 2022



Agenda Iltem 6

Committees: Dates:

Streets & Walkways Sub-committee - For Decision 01 October 2024

Projects & Procurement Sub-committee - For Information 21 October 2024

Subject: Gateway 3/4:

City Cycleways Programme Options
Appraisal

Unique Project Identifier: (Regular)

Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway 12079

Report of: For Decision

Executive Director of Environment

Report Author:
Albert Cheung, Street Space Planning, City Operations

PUBLIC

1. Status update Project Description:

1.1 The Transport Strategy identifies a core network of
cycling routes in the City. To be delivered in phases, it's
aim is to make the Square Mile a safe, attractive, and
accessible place for people to cycle by applying a
minimum standard for cycling provision.

1.2 In July 2019, the Streets & Walkways Sub-committee
and Projects Sub-committee approved a Gateway 2
report for the Cycleways Programme. The programme
consisted of three separate cycle route projects detailed
in the Transport Strategy:

e Quietway 11 Upgrade (Upper Thames Street to
Chiswell Street) — Completed

e Monument to Sun Street (formally known as Phase 2)

e Aldgate to Blackfriars (formally known as Phase 3)

Monument to Sun Street (Cycleway 1)

1.3 Alongside TfL’s improvements to London Bridge and
Monument junction this route connects the city with both
Cycleway 1 and Cycleway 4.

Page 77
v.April 2019



1.4 Two options were originally considered for the
Monument to Sun Street route:

e Option 1: King William Street — Princess Street —
Moorgate — South Place — Wilson Street.

e Option 2: King William Street — Threadneedle
Street — OIld Broad Street — London Wall —
Blomfield Street — Eldon Street — Wilson Street.

1.5 Option 1 is now being progressed as this offers the most
direct connection and makes effective use of other
planned projects.

1.6 The delivery of this route is almost exclusively through
current and planned projects including All Change at
Bank, Moorgate (north of London Wall) and the
Pedestrian Priority Programme at King William Street.
Moorgate between London Wall and Lothbury is the only
remaining section that requires improvement and is not
covered by existing projects. The measures on this
section are minor interventions such as cycle lanes
(where possible) and are expected to be implemented
under existing delegations in 2025/26, following
completion of building works.

Aldgate to Blackfriars
1.7 The remainder of this report relates to the Aldgate to
Blackfriars cycleway.

1.8 The Aldgate to Blackfriars route aims to provide a high-
guality east-west cycle route which links with Cycleway 2
at Whitechapel High Street, Cycleway 6 at New Bridge
Street and Cycleway 3 on Victoria Embankment.

1.9 The route includes St Botolph Street, Aldgate Square,
Leadenhall Street, Cornhill, Bank Junction and Queen
Victoria Street. This will connect key destinations such
as the City Cluster with the London wide cycle network.

1.10 The whole route has been assessed and designs
developed to meet current design standards, which aim
to ensure that no one feels excluded from cycling due to
safety concerns.

1.11 To date, the evaluation and design development
has been funded by TfL through grants made available
to the City. TfL confirm and release funding for cycleways
in stages. For this financial year they are providing
funding for public engagement and consultation. Future
funding for detailed design and modelling will be
confirmed once the outcome of the consultation is known

v.April 2019

Page 78




and there is confirmation that the project will progress to
Gateway 5.

1.12 While TfL have indicated that they will continue to
fund the project through to delivery it is expected that the
City Corporation will need to provide match funding
towards the delivery of the project. A capital funding bid
for OSPR and/or CIL will be submitted once the split
between TfL and City funding is known. In the event that
sufficient funding is not available, then this project can be
placed in abeyance and progressed at a later date once
funding has been identified.

RAG Status: Green (Green at last report to Committee)
Risk Status: Medium (Medium at last report to committee)
Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk):
Aldgate to Blackfriars: £4.0M - £4.5M

Change in Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk):
No cost change since last report to Committee

Spend to Date: £207,815 (fully funded by TfL)

Costed Risk Provision Utilised: £0

Slippage: The pace of the Aldgate to Blackfriars cycleway
project has been determined by the availability of TfL’s funding
grant and their oversight requirements. The project was
substantially delayed due to the financial impact on TflL's
finances caused by Covid-19. The original programme for
completion was by 2025, however, the latest completion date is
now estimated to be in 2028.

2. Next steps and
requested
decisions

Next Gateway: Gateway 5: Authority to Start Work
Requested Decisions:

Members of the Streets and Walkways Sub-committee are
asked to:

1. Agree the recommended design option (Option 1) for
the Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway Project as detailed
in Section 5

2. Agree for officers to commence the public consultation.
The outcomes of the public consultation will be reported
back to the Streets and Walkways Sub-committee for a
decision and Projects and Procurement Sub-committee
for information.

3. Approve a budget increase of up to £375,000 (excluding
costed risk) subject to the receipt of funds from TfL for

v.April 2019

Page 79




the Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway project to reach
Gateway 5.

That a Costed Risk Provision of up to £150,000 subject
to the receipt of funds from TfL is approved (to be drawn
down via delegation to the Director of City Operations).
Authorise the Executive Director of Environment, in
consultation with the Chamberlain, to approve budget
adjustments between budget lines and within the
approved total project budget, above the existing
authority within the project procedures.

Members of the Streets and Walkways Sub-committee and
Projects & Procurement Sub-committee are to note:

The current approved project budget is £233,701, a
budget increase of £375,000 is requested for approval
and therefore a total proposed budget of £608,701
(excluding risk) is required for the project to reach
Gateway 5,

The estimated total project cost of £4.0M-£4.5M
(excluding risk). The project is not yet fully funded due to
TfL funding arrangements and the need to submit a
capital bid for Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) or
On-street Parking Reserve (OSPR) at the appropriate
time.

£120,000 of this funding is confirmed with the remainder
expected to be provided by TfL following consultation.
Note that detailed traffic modelling and design would be
progressed subject to the public consultation outcomes
report being agreed by the Streets and Walkways Sub-
committee.

Next Steps:

Stakeholder engagement including with Ward Members
and public consultation preparation: Sept — Nov 2024
Public consultation: Dec 2024 — Jan 2025

Progress report: consultation outcomes reported to
committee: May 2025

Detailed traffic modelling and submission to TfL for
approval: May - Oct 2025

Detailed design: Apr 2025 — Dec 2025

Confirmation of additional TfL funding for delivery and
submission of capital funding bid: 2025

Report G5: Spring 2026

Works commence: Summer 2026

v.April 2019

Page 80




Resource

requirements to For recommended option 1 Aldgate to Blackfriars :

reach next

Gateway Item Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
Source of
Funding

Resource required to reach next report

Staff time Project TfL £35,000
. management /
Transportation stakeholder
liaison /
design
Fees Consultation TfL £85,000

Consultants

Manage / host
consultation

Consultation
materials

Design
assessments

Remaining resource required reach Gateway 5

Staff time Project TfL £30,000

Transportation management

Staff time Detailed TfL £75,000

Highway Design

Fees Traffic TfL £150,000
modelling
consultant,
design
surveys, TfL
auditing

Structural
bridge and
tunnel
assessments

Total £375,000

Staff costs represent approximately 600 hours of Transportation
staff time and 750 hours of highway staff time to complete the
consultation, project management and detailed design to reach
the next gateway.

Page 81
v.April 2019




Costed Risk Provision requested for this Gateway: No
costed risk is required to complete the consultation and reach
the next report. £150,000, subject to the receipt of funds from
TfL, is required reach the next Gateway (as detailed in the Risk
Register — Appendix 3). To allow for any cost increases in
external fees and unforeseen staff time for detailed design and
project management.

4. Overview of
project options

4.1 The Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway is designed to
create a high quality and safer route for people cycling
between Cycleway 2 (Whitechapel High Street),
Cycleway 6 (New Bridge Street) and Cycleway 3
(Victoria Embankment). It will connect key destinations
such as the City Cluster with London’s wider cycle
network. The scheme will also improve conditions for
people walking and wheeling in some locations by
providing improved crossing facilities, pavement
widening, new seating and trees. An overview of the
Aldgate to Blackfriars cycleway route is shown in
Appendix 4.

4.2 To meet current design standards (and qualify for TfL
funding), people cycling must be separated or protected
from motor vehicles on streets where traffic exceeds
500 vehicles per hour (two-way flow) during peak times.
Queen Victoria Street (between New Bridge Street and
Queen Street) and those around Aldgate are above this
threshold and require protected cycle lanes in order to
provide a safer and more attractive route for people
cycling. Bank junction, Cornhill, Leadenhall Street and
Queen Victoria Street (between Bank and Queen
Street) have traffic flows that are below the threshold for
protected space for cycling.

4.3 Protected cycle lanes have some notable implications
including:

¢ Due to the lane separators, direct access from a motor
vehicle to the kerbside would not be available.

¢ Requiring more time/resources for road
cleaning/sweeping and winter maintenance.

e Require the reallocation of carriageway space, making it
challenging to retain or provide parking or loading
provisions.

e Less convenient for people crossing particularly at bus
stops.

v.April 2019

Page 82




Options for Aldgate section

4.4 The cycle route diverts around Aldgate High Street via St

Botolph Street and Aldgate Square to connect with
Leadenhall Street as it is not feasible to introduce
protected cycle lanes on Aldgate High Street. This is due
to the road width constraints, busy bus operations, bus
stop locations, kerbside loading activity, closely spaced
side road junctions and road network capacity.

4.5 The Botolph Street section is short and has good,

existing cycle lanes protected with traffic wands in both
directions. The traffic wands were introduced as part of
the Bevis Mark cycle improvement corridor in May 2022
which formalised the reallocation of road space for pedal
cycles originally introduced as part of the pandemic’s
transport recovery measures.

4.6 The cycleway now plans to further improve the provisions

for people walking, wheeling and cycling where possible.
There is only one viable option due to the road width
constraints, road alignment, bus stop locations and the
need to connect with TfL’s existing cycling provisions on
Mansell Street. Appendix 5 shows the improvements for
the Aldgate section and the measures include:

Introduce raised table crossings over Duke’s Place and
Houndsditch to help people walking, wheeling and
cycling cross informally over the road.

Replacement of the traffic wands with traffic island
separators along the eastbound cycle lane.

Introduce an eastbound bus stop by-pass for people
cycling where the road widens at the bus stop.

4.7 The traffic wands on St Botolph Street along the

westbound cycle lane have been retained due to road
width constraints making it not feasible to introduce traffic
island separators and the road width at the westbound
bus stop is too narrow to accommodate a bus stop by-
pass for cycling. As a result, the existing westbound
cycling provisions are retained and the only practicable
design is to upgrade the eastbound cycle lane.

Options for Queen Victoria Street between New Bridge Street

and Queen Street

4.8 On Queen Victoria Street (between New Bridge Street

and Queen Street), there are three options. All of these
include measures which physically separate people
cycling from motor vehicles. At the main signal junctions
improved cycling provisions include:

v.April 2019

Page 83




e Dedicated traffic signal stage, people cycling
proceed through the junction at a different time to
general traffic.

e Cycle gate, this facility ensures people cycling are
always in front of traffic at the stop line. By using
traffic signals so that people cycling can by-pass
gueuing traffic but only when it is safe to do so.

e Cycle early release, people cycling are given a
green traffic signal a few seconds before general
traffic to give a head start to travel through the
junction.

Option 1 — Bi-directional protected cycle lanes on the northern

side and protected cycle lanes elsewhere (recommended)

4.9 This option provides a two-way cycle lane along the

northern kerbside between Puddle Dock and Friday
Street, separated from traffic using a central island. This
side has been selected because it has the least number
of side streets and vehicle accesses and therefore is
considered most optimal for safety and quality. Parking
for disabled and coach users are retained but the bays
on the northern kerbside are displaced to the southern
side of Queen Victoria Street (2x disabled bays / 2x
coach bays) and to Friday Street (2x coach bays).
Motor vehicles accessing the northern kerbside would
need to be removed. The design layout for this option is
shown in Appendix 5 and is summarised below:

e Between New Bridge Street and Puddle Dock, a
Protected eastbound cycle lane would be
provided. People cycling westbound would
travel in a dedicated pedal cycle stage (free of
motorised vehicles) at the junction with Puddle
Dock to allow them to safely position themselves
accordingly on the approach to New Bridge
Street. But there is no physical protection

e At the Puddle Dock junction, the bi-directional
cycle lane ends/starts. People cycling
westbound transit from the northern to the
southern kerbside.

o Between Puddle Dock and Friday Street - fully
protected bi-directional cycle lanes are provided
on the northern kerb.

e At Friday Street the bi-directional cycle lane
starts/ends. People cycling westbound transition
from the southern to the northern kerbside to
access the cycle lane.

e Between Friday Street and Cannon Street fully
protected cycle lanes on each side of the
carriageway are provided.

v.April 2019

Page 84




e Between Cannon Street and Queen Street,
protected westbound cycle lane and people
cycling eastbound would travel in front of traffic
(controlled by a traffic signal gate) and also
receive a few seconds head start over traffic at
the Cannon Street traffic signals which will allow
people cycling to clear the junction safely and
stay in front of traffic on the approach to Queen
Street due to the short distance to travel and
narrowed road space.

e Between Queen Street and Bank Junction, no
measures are proposed as traffic volumes are
below the design threshold and conditions for
cycling are good.

e Two eastbound bus stop by-passes for cycling
on Queen Victoria Street at Puddle Dock and
Godliman Street are proposed. The bus stops
will be designed in line with guidance and best
practice, including the lessons that have been
learnt during the design process for St Paul’'s
gyratory. We will engage directly with disabled
people as part the design process.

Option 2 — Bi-directional cycle lanes on the southern side and

protected cycle lanes elsewhere

4.10 This option is similar to Option 1, but with the

protected two-way cycle lanes provided along the
southern kerbside between Puddle Dock and Friday
Street. With this option, there are more vehicle
accesses (including to the Baynard House car park)
and side roads required breaking the protection for
people cycling. This makes this option less beneficial
than Option 1. The design layout for Option 2 is shown
in Appendix 6.

Option 3 - Protected cycle lanes on both sides

411 This option provides conventional cycle lanes

with physical protection (mostly through traffic islands)
on both sides of the carriageway. Kerbside activity
would be limited / removed on both sides of the street,
leading to the removal of all coach, disabled and taxi
parking / ranking on Queen Vicotria Street. As with
Option 2, this option provides fewer benefits due to the
vehicle accesses and side roads which would impact
the quality and safety of the cycle lane on the southern
side. In addition, between Lambeth Hill and St Peter’'s
Hill, it would not be possible to provide cycle lanes
protected or separated from motor vehicles, because
there is insufficient space whilst retaining the police
check point. However, unlike the two-way cycle lane
options, there is no need to transition people cycling to
the opposite kerbside and back again, which removes

v.April 2019

Page 85




the need to make complex traffic signal modifications.
The design layout for Option 3 is shown in Appendix 7.
This option would create a lot of displaced activity from
both the north and south kerbside whilst not achieving
the greatest level of protection for people cycling and is
not recommended.

5. Recommended
option

5.1 It is recommended that Option 1 is approved to proceed
to consultation. This option has two-way protected cycle
lanes on the northern kerbside for both eastbound and
westbound travel with the remainder of the route having
protected with-flow cycle lanes. This design provides a
high-quality cycle route whilst minimising conflicts with
motorised vehicles at side streets and the vehicular
access.

5.2 Preliminary traffic modelling undertaken for the
recommended option shows that the design would
operate within the junction capacities as all vehicles
gueuing at a red traffic signal would clear through the
junctions in one green traffic signal cycle. Although,
some minor delay is expected for general traffic and
buses to accommodate dedicated traffic signal
provisions for pedal cycles. A more detailed traffic impact
assessment will need to be undertaken during the
detailed design and approved by TfL.

Healthy Streets Design Check (refer to Appendix 8)

5.3 The current condition of the streets was assessed using
the Healthy Streets Design Check, to understand and
provide a baseline condition of the street and to assess
the recommended option. The cycle route has been split
into four sections to provide a manageable and accurate
Healthy Street Design Check.

5.4 The summary tables below show the Healthy Street
scores. The proposed layout provides a good score
increase for each section and no ‘zero’ scores. This is
due to enhanced cycling facilities, raised table crossings,
potential tree planting, cycle parking, and seating
provisions.

5.5 The Healthy Streets assessment will be updated as the
preferred design is progressed.

Table 5.1: Queen Victoria Street — Blackfriars Pub to College of Arms

v.April 2019

Healthy Street Indicators Existing Proposed

Pedestrians from all walks of life 44 58

Easy to cross 63 67

Shade and shelter 33 50

Places to stop and rest 47 53

Not too noisy 33 40
Page 86




People choose to walk, cycle 44 58
and use public transport

People feel safe 47 70
Things to see and do 33 42
People feel relaxed 44 59
Clean air 33 42
Overall Healthy Streets check 45 59
Score

Number of ‘zero’ scores 3 0

Table 5.2: Queen Victoria Street — College of Arms to

Bread Street

Healthy Street Indicators Existing Proposed
Pedestrians from all walks of life 53 63
Easy to cross 67 70
Shade and shelter 50 50
Places to stop and rest 67 67
Not too noisy 47 47
People choose to walk, cycle 53 63
and use public transport

People feel safe 61 79
Things to see and do 50 50
People feel relaxed 53 64
Clean air 50 50
Overall Healthy Streets check 55 65
Score

Number of ‘zero’ scores 2 0

Table 5.3: Queen Victoria Street —

Bread Street to Bucklersbury

Healthy Street Indicators Existing Proposed
Pedestrians from all walks of life 54 65
Easy to cross 63 63
Shade and shelter 50 50
Places to stop and rest 60 60
Not too noisy 53 53
People choose to walk, cycle 54 65
and use public transport

People feel safe 53 68
Things to see and do 50 50
People feel relaxed 54 66
Clean air 58 58
Overall Healthy Streets check 55 64
Score

Number of ‘zero’ scores 3 0

Table 5.4: Aldgate — Mitre Street to

Middlesex Street (via Aldgate Square)

Healthy Street Indicators Existing Proposed
Pedestrians from all walks of life 57 63
Easy to cross 63 67
Shade and shelter 67 67
Places to stop and rest 73 73
Not too noisy 47 47
People choose to walk, cycle 57 63
and use public transport

People feel safe 60 70
Things to see and do 58 58
People feel relaxed 58 64
Clean air 50 50
Overall Healthy Streets check 58 64
Score

Number of ‘zero’ scores 3 0

v.April 2019

Page 87




City of London Street Accessibility Tool (CoLSAT) (refer to
Appendix 9)

5.6 The recommended design has undergone the CoLSAT
assessment to ensure that it optimises street design for
walking and wheeling accessibility, including crossings,
tactile paving, pavements, and facilities for taxis,
disabled parking, and bus stops.

5.7 The cycle route has been split into four sections for the
assessment and the summary tables below show
remaining ‘0’ and ‘1’ scores have reduced between the
existing and proposed layouts which validates the
cycleway scheme will significantly improve accessibility

for people.
Table 5.5: Queen Victoria Street — Blackfriars Pub to College of Arms
Total O scores* severe Total 1 scores**
accessibility issue significant accessibility
issue

Existing Proposed Existing Proposed

Electric wheelchair 0 0 1 1

user

Manual wheelchair 0 0 1 0

user

Mobility scooter 0 0 0 0

Walking aid user 0 0 3 0

Person with a 1 0 3 3

walking impairment

Long cane user 4 0 0 0

Guide dog user 1 0 3 1

Residual sight user 0 0 2 0

Hearing 0 0 1 0

impairment

Acquired 0 0 4 0

neurological

impairment

Autism / sensory 0 0 0 0

processing

diversity

Developmental 1 0 5 0

impairment

TOTAL 7 0 23 5

Table 5.6: Queen Victoria Street — College of Arms to Bread Street

Total O scores* severe Total 1 scores**
accessibility issue significant accessibility
ISsue
Existing Proposed Existing Proposed
Electric wheelchair 0 0 1 0
user
Manual wheelchair 0 0 0 0
user
Mobility scooter 0 0 0 0
Walking aid user 0 0 1 0
Person with a 0 0 9 4
walking impairment

v.April 2019

Page 88




Long cane user 2 0 0 0
Guide dog user 1 0 2 1
Residual sight user 0 0 1 0
Hearing 0 0 1 1
impairment

Acquired 0 0 2 0
neurological

impairment

Autism / sensory 0 0 1 0
processing

diversity

Developmental 0 0 4 0
impairment

TOTAL 3 0 23 6

Table 5.7: Queen Victoria Street — Bread Street

to Bucklersbury

Total O scores* severe
accessibility issue

Total 1 scores**
significant accessibility

issue

Existing | Proposed Existing | Proposed
Electric wheelchair 0 0 0 0
user
Manual wheelchair 0 0 0 0
user
Mobility scooter 0 0 0 0
Walking aid user 0 0 1 0
Person with a 0 0 6 6
walking impairment
Long cane user 1 0 0 0
Guide dog user 0 0 2 1
Residual sight user 0 0 0 0
Hearing 0 0 2 1
impairment
Acquired 0 0 1 0
neurological
impairment
Autism / sensory 0 0 3 0
processing
diversity
Developmental 0 0 1 0
impairment
TOTAL 1 0 16 8

Table 5.8: Aldgate — Mitre Street to Middlesex St (via Aldgate Square)

Total O scores* severe
accessibility issue

Total 1 scores**
significant accessibility

v.April 2019

issue
Existing | Proposed Existing | Proposed
Electric wheelchair 0 0 0 0
user
Manual wheelchair 0 0 0 0
user
Mobility scooter 0 0 0 0
Walking aid user 0 0 0 0
Person with a 0 0 0 2
walking impairment
Long cane user 3 0 0 0
Guide dog user 1 0 3 1
Residual sight user 0 0 2 0
Hearing 0 0 0 0
impairment
Page 89




Acquired 0 0 0 0
neurological
impairment
Autism / sensory 0 0 0 0
processing
diversity
Developmental 1 0 4 1
impairment
TOTAL 5 0 9 4

* This score means most people in this segment would be
excluded by the street characteristic in the selected
configuration.

** This score means some people in this segment may be able
to negotiate the street characteristic in the selected
configuration, but it would significantly deplete their levels of
confidence and energy, and they would be likely to give up on
the journey if they had to negotiate it more than once or twice.

5.8 The scheme has resolved all severe accessibility issues
however, it will be unable to resolve several significant
accessibility issues. These relate to including tactile
paving at crossing points, taxi drop-off locations being
over ten metres away and level crossovers, which may
have potential implications for people with walking
impairment and / or guide dog users.

Early engagement
5.9 The recommended design has been developed in
collaboration with TfL.

5.10 The City of London Police has also been consulted
on the proposed changes to the Queen Victoria Street
police check point and the designs amended to
incorporate their requirements.

5.11 Initial engagement with local occupiers, whose
servicing needs may be affected by the proposals has
been carried out in advance of this report. There will be
further engagement through the consultation period and
the design process.

5.12 Local ward members have been made of aware of
the proposals with further engagement to follow.

6. Risk

Overall project risk: Medium
6.1 The following key risks have been identified for the
Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway as it progresses
towards Gateway 5:

Cost

v.April 2019

Page 90




6.2 The detailed design cost may change due to the scope
of the traffic modelling expected by TfL and their cost to
carry out audit is still to be confirmed, indicative costs for
structural assessments for tunnels and bridges has been
allowed for but costs may change, the cost of any
unforeseen surveys to complete the detailed design and
the impact of these risks may have on staff time to
complete detailed design.

6.3 At this early stage, the construction cost is indicative and
subject to change. Once detailed design is completed,
more accurate cost estimates will be available,
particularly for underground utility diversions, traffic
signals, and drainage.

Design

6.4 The proposed measures may be affected by engineering
difficulties related to structures beneath the highway
such as London Underground/Network Rail tunnels,
bridges, and pipe subways. These impacts will be
assessed during the detailed design stage and where
necessary, design changes will be made. Alternatively,
some measures may no longer be considered feasible to
deliver due to physical constraints or the cost
implications. Any significant departure will be report back
to Members.

Funding
6.5 Officers have had positive discussions with TfL who are

fully supportive of the design proposals and have funded
City Cycleways programme so far. TfL has expressed
willingness to continue funding the project. However, the
funding will be allocated in stages (consultation, detailed
design, construction) for each financial year, which
allows TfL to better manage its cycling portfolio across
Greater London. Currently, funding is confirmed only for
the 2024/25 financial year, meaning there is a risk,
although low, of future funding being unavailable, despite
TfL’s support for the project.

6.6 As part of the funding discussions, TfL has also advised
that they expect the City to also contribute funding
towards the delivery of the project. To address this, a
capital bid for Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) or
On-street Parking Reserve (OSPR) funding will be
submitted in 2025.

Public Consultation Support
6.7 The cycleway may receive mixed support from the public
consultation. While the proposed measures offer
substantial benefits for people walking, wheeling and
cycling, they also involve significant changes to the

v.April 2019

Page 91




highway, particularly on Queen Victoria Street. These
changes include restricted kerbside access,
modifications to traffic signal junctions, reallocation of
road space to prioritise walking, wheeling and cycling,
and changes to parking, taxi ranks, and bus stops. These
changes may lead to varying levels of public support and
potential concerns.

Programme Delay

6.8 The detailed design phase for the project will require

coordination with external parties, such as utility
companies and TfL. Their involvement is essential for
tasks like utility diversions, reviewing traffic models, and
designing traffic signal equipment at junctions. Despite
allowing adequate time in the project schedule, previous
experiences indicate a risk of delays from external
parties in completing these tasks. To mitigate this risk,
regular progress meetings will be scheduled to ensure
timely collaboration and keep the project on track

6.9 To maintain the project timeline, public consultation

preparation must begin immediately after this report's
approval. This will ensure an adequate consultation
period and provide a sufficient time gap between the
consultation's completion and the City's election on 20
March 2025. Therefore, capital project budgets need to
be made available within two weeks of this report's
approval. This timeline is crucial for procuring
consultants and materials in time for the consultation.
Any delay in budget availability could adversely impact
the consultation programme and the overall project
timeline.

6.10 Further information available in the Risk Register

(Appendix 3) and Options Appraisal.

7. Procurement
approach

7.1 The project will be managed by the Street Space

Planning team in City Operations, in collaboration with
key stakeholders such as TfL, colleagues in Highways
and City Gardens, City Police, and the City’s highway
term contractor. This will ensure that all aspects of the
project are coordinated and integrated

7.2 An external consultant will be commissioned to facilitate

the public consultation, including hosting an online
plattorm, analysing feedback, and producing a
comprehensive outcomes report. In addition, various
external suppliers will be used to develop and provide
necessary materials and services for the public
consultation.

v.April 2019

Page 92




7.3 The detailed design of the highway works will be

completed by officers. For traffic modelling, external
consultants will be commissioned to carry out the
assessments. TfL will audit the traffic models and will be
responsible for designing traffic signal equipment, as part
of their traffic signal authority duty for London.

7.4 The highway works would be carried out by the City’s

highway term contractor, working in collaboration with
City Gardens for any tree planting. Works to traffic
signals and utility equipment will be undertaken by TfL’s
traffic  signal contractor and utility companies
respectively.

7.5 Appointment of external consultants will be carried out in

line with the City’s procurement guidelines for capital

projects.

Appendices
Appendix 1 Project Coversheet
Appendix 2 Finance Tables
Appendix 3 Risk Register (for recommended option)
Appendix 4 Cycleway Route Overview Plan
Appendix 5 Option 1 Layout Plan
Appendix 6 Option 2 Layout Plan
Appendix 7 Option 3 Layout Plan
Appendix 8 Healthy Street Assessment Summary
Appendix 9 CoLSAT Assessment Summary
Appendix 10 Equalities Impact Assessment (DRAFT)
Contact

Report Author

Albert Cheung

Email Address

albert.cheung@cityoflondon.gov.uk

v.April 2019

Page 93




76 obed

Options Appraisal Matrix

Option Summary

Option 1

Option 2

Option 3

1. Brief description
of option

Bi-directional cycle lanes along the
northern kerbside

People cycling would be fully
protected along Queen Victoria
Street between New Bridge Street
and Queen Street. People cycling
would either be physically
segregated from general traffic or
people cycling would be separated
by time, controlled by traffic signals.

The cycle lanes between this section
has no side roads and therefore
avoids conflict with other vehicles
need to cross the cycle lanes.

No net loss of coach parking, four
coach parking bays along the
northern kerbside of Queen Victoria
Street would be displaced. Two bays
relocated to the southern kerbside
and two bays moved to Friday Street

Bi-directional cycle lanes along the
southern kerbside

People cycling would be protected
for most sections along Queen
Victoria Street between New Bridge
Street and Queen Street. People
cycling would either be physically
segregated from general traffic or
people cycling would be separated
by time, controlled by traffic signals.

The cycle lanes between this section
has junctions with two side roads
and a public car park entrance / exit.
Consequently, there would be some
conflict with other vehicles needing
to cross the cycle lanes for access.

No net loss of coach parking, four
coach parking bays along the
southern kerbside of Queen Victoria
Street would be displaced. Two bays
relocated to the northern kerbside
and two bays moved to Friday Street

Conventional with flow cycle lanes

People cycling would be mostly
protected along Queen Victoria Street
between New Bridge Street and Queen
Street. The people cycling would either
be physically segregated from general
traffic or people cycling would be
separated by time, controlled by traffic
signals.

The cycle lanes between this section
has junctions with two side roads and a
public car park entrance / exit.
Consequently, there would be some
conflict with other vehicles needing to
cross the cycle lanes for access.

A net loss of up to 6 coach parking
bays. Two bays would be relocated to
Friday Street

v.April 2019




G6 abed

Option Summary

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

2. Scope and
exclusions

Scope

The same measures are proposed for all design options on Queen Victoria Street between New Bridge Street
and Puddle Dock.

The design options are only different on Queen Victoria Street between Puddle Dock and Friday Street, as
described in (1.).

The same measures are proposed on Queen Victoria Street between Friday Street and Queen Street

The same measures are proposed for all design options at Aldgate (via Aldgate Square and St Botolph Street)

Exclusions

No changes are proposed at the junction of Queen Victoria Street / New Bridge Street / Blackfriars Bridge as
the junction cannot accommodate additional dedicated cycle facilities

No changes are proposed at Bank Junction, Cornhill, or Leadenhall Street. The traffic volumes on these streets
are within the threshold and therefore measures to separate people cycling from traffic are not required.

No changes are proposed at Aldgate High Street, the cycle route by-passes this section via Aldgate Square
and St Botolph Street

Project Planning

3. Programme and
key dates

Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway - expected completion date: Spring 2028
Key dates

Key stakeholder engagement including with Ward Members and public consultation preparation: Sept — Nov
2024

Public consultation: December 2024 — January 2025

Internal bid funding submission: 2025

Consultation feedback analysis report: Feb — Mar 2025

Progress report: consultation outcomes reported to committee: Apr 2025

Detailed traffic modelling: Spring 2025 — December 2025

v.April 2019




96 abed

Option Summary

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

Detailed design: Spring 2025 — December 2025
G5 Authority to start work: Spring 2026

Highway work commences: Summer/Autumn 2026
Highway works completed: Spring 2028

4. Risk implications

Overall project option risk: Medium

Cost

The detailed design cost may change due to the scope of the traffic modelling expected by TfL and their cost to carry
out audit is still to be confirmed, indicative costs for structural assessments for tunnels and bridges has been allowed
for but costs may change, the cost of any additional surveys to complete the detailed design and the impact these
risks may have on staff time.

All three options require significant highway changes and therefore the actual total cost of the works including
diversion of underground utilities, drainage and traffic signals equipment may vary significantly to the current estimated
cost. Accurate cost estimates would be calculated as part of the detailed design process.

Design

The proposed measures may be affected by engineering difficulties related to structures beneath the highway such as
London Underground / Network Rail tunnels, bridges, and pipe subways. These impacts will be assessed during the
detailed design stage and where necessary, design changes will be made. Alternatively, some measures may no
longer be considered feasible to deliver due to physical constraints or the cost implications.

Funding
Funding has not been secured to deliver the project to completion. TfL has advised that funding allocations will be

confirmed and made available in stages as the project progresses. TfL also expects the City Corporation to match fund
TfL’s sponsorship to deliver the works. The City’s funding strategy is to utilise CIL and/or OSPR funding, a future bid
application will be made at the appropriate time.

v.April 2019




/6 abed

Option Summary

Option 1

Option 2

Option 3

Public consultation support

The significant highway changes are required to accommodate protected cycle lanes in each option and therefore may
receive mixed support from the public consultation.

Programme delay

The detailed traffic modelling and detailed design of the highway changes requires significant assistance from external
parties such as utility companies, TfL traffic model auditing team and TfL traffic signal design and therefore the
programme to an extent is reliant on external parties to complete their tasks without delay.

Further information available within the Risk Register (Appendix 3).

5. Stakeholders and
consultees

Key people who will need to be consulted during the evolution of the project:

Ward Members, Chair/Deputy Chair of S&W Sub
Various internal teams including Highways, City Gardens, Engineers

Various TfL stakeholders
Statutory consultees
BIDs and interested groups

Local residents, building occupiers, churches, etc.

6. Benefits of
option

No net loss of coach parking
e The protected two-way cycle
lanes do not have any
junctions with side roads
which severe the cycle lane.
Side road junctions along
cycle lanes are a collision
risk when motorised vehicles

e No net loss of coach parking

e Opportunity to provide
footway widening along
certain sections

e Safer crossings have been
provided by tightening the
junction geometry to shorten
crossing distances for people

e Conventional cycle lanes
running with flow

¢ No cycle lane transition between
opposing kerbsides required

e Opportunity to provide footway
widening along certain sections

e Safer crossings have been
provided by tightening the

v.April 2019




g6 abed

e Opportunity to provide
footway widening along
certain sections

e Safer crossings have been
provided by tightening the
junction geometry to shorten
crossing distances for people
walking and slow vehicle
turning speeds. Also, where
possible crossings will be
raised to encourage low
vehicle speed and improve
accessibility for people
walking and wheeling

possible crossings will be
raised to encourage low
vehicle speed and improve
accessibility for people
walking and wheeling

Option Summary Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
cross over the cycle lane for walking and slow vehicle junction geometry to shorten
access turning speeds. Also, where crossing distances for people

walking and slow vehicle turning
speeds. Also, where possible
crossings will be raised to
encourage low vehicle speed
and improve accessibility for
people walking and wheeling

7. Disbenefits of
option

e Bi-directional cycle lanes
require complex junction
changes at the start / end of
the section to transition
people cycling safely from
one kerbside to the other.

e Due to the lane separators,
direct access from a motor
vehicle to the kerbside would
not be available. This would
impact servicing on the
northern kerbside.

¢ Bi-directional cycle lanes
require complex junction
changes at the start / end of
the section to transition
people cycling safely from
one kerbside to the other.

e Due to the lane separators,
direct access from a motor
vehicle to the kerbside would
not be available. This would
impact servicing on the
southern kerbside.

¢ Due to the lane separators,
direct access from a motor
vehicle to the kerbside would
not be available. This would
impact servicing on the northern
and southern kerbside.

e Loss of coach parking and
disabled parking bays

e Westbound cycle lanes would
have potential conflict with other
vehicles at junctions with White
Lion Hill and Lambeth Hill.

v.April 2019




66 abed

Option Summary

Option 1

Option 2

Option 3

Requires more time /
resources for road
cleaning/sweeping and
winter maintenance than the
current road layout
Requires the reallocation of
carriageway space, making it
challenging to retain or
provide parking or loading
provisions.

Less convenient for people
crossing informally and
particularly at bus stops by-
passes.

Cycle lanes would have
potential conflict with other
vehicles at junctions with
White Lion Hill and Lambeth
Hill. There would be an
increase likelihood of a
collision involving a person
cycling than Option 1.
Requires more time /
resources for road
cleaning/sweeping and winter
maintenance than the current
road layout.

Requires the reallocation of
carriageway space, making it
challenging to retain or
provide parking or loading
provisions.

Less convenient for people
crossing informally and
particularly at bus stops by-
passes.

There would be an increase
likelihood of a collision involving
a person cycling than Option 1.

¢ Requires more time / resources
for road cleaning/sweeping and
winter maintenance than the
current road layout and Options
1land 2.

¢ Requires the reallocation of
carriageway space, making it
challenging to retain or provide
parking or loading provisions
than Options 1 and 2.

e Less convenient for people
crossing informally and
particularly at bus stops by-
passes.

Resource
Implications

8. Total estimated
cost

Total Estimated Cost: £4.0M - £4.5M

£150,000 costed risk provision at this stage.

v.April 2019




00T abed

Option Summary

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

9. Funding strategy

Sources of funding for the whole Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway project are:
e Spend to date: £208K fully funded by TfL
e TfL secured funding 2024/25: £120K
e TIfL future funding is not secured but allocations are expected to be made available in stages as the project
progresses (estimated amount: £1.9M - £2.1M)
e CIL funding to match fund TfL’s sponsorship. CIL funding bid will be submitted for approval at the appropriate
time. (estimated amount: £1.7M - £2.0M)

10. Investment
appraisal

Not applicable

11. Estimated capital
value/return

Not applicable. The project delivers intangible benefits such has encouraging more people to cycle and improving
accessibility for people walking and wheeling.

12. Ongoing revenue
implications

There are no ongoing revenue implications. Maintenance of the scheme would be covered by business-as-usual
activities

13. Affordability

The funding strategy is the same for all three options. Funding is not secured to deliver the project to completion.
However, TfL funding allocations would be made available in stages as the project progresses. City Corporation’s CIL
and/or OSPR funding is expected to supplement TfL sponsorship and would be applied for at the appropriate time.

At this early design stage, the estimated cost to deliver Option 1, 2 or 3 is expected to be in the region of £4.0 - £4.5M.

14. Legal
implications

The City is under a duty to “secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic
(including pedestrians)” so far as practicable (S.122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984).

Statutory legal processes will be followed to undertake the Traffic Management Order changes for changes to parking
and waiting and loading restrictions, and for the public notices for the raised carriageways.

v.April 2019




TOT abed

Option Summary

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

15. Corporate

Not applicable

property
implications
16. Traffic e At traffic signal-controlled junctions minor delays to general traffic and buses are expected to accommodate
' implications high quality cycling provisions.

¢ The measures would make the road safer for all road users including people walking by minimising conflict
between road users and providing safer crossings

o Bus stop by-passes require bus passengers to cross the cycle lane when boarding and alighting at the bus
stop. However, TfL monitoring evidence has shown that overall, there is no road safety issue with the design
and operation of bus stop by-passes.

o Direct access from a motor vehicle to the kerbside would not be available due to the protected cycle lanes.
Alternative kerbside locations may need to be used for kerbside servicing or boarding and alighting vehicles.

e Parking bays, bus stops, taxi rank and waiting and loading restrictions changes would be introduced impacting
road users.

¢ Road and lane closures would be required to deliver the highway changes. However, the traffic impacts and
duration of the works would be minimised by works carrying on at weekends when possible.

17. Sustainability
and energy
implications

Material specification would be in accordance with the City Public Realm Toolkit and standards form the City’'s term
contractor. Works on site will be managed to minimise disruption and make efficient use of materials to reduce waste.

18. IS implications

Not applicable

19. Equality Impact
Assessment

An equality impact assessment has been carried. The cycleway aims to have positive impact to people of all ages,
including pregnant people, parents with young children, and disabled people and people with limited mobility by
providing safer and accessible travel facilities and encouraging cycling. The proposal will create more space for
walking and wheeling, especially for those with accessibility needs such as wheelchairs users.

v.April 2019




20T abed

Option Summary

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

There is no evidence that the scheme would negatively impact race, religion, sex, sex orientation/gender reassignment
and marriage/civil partnership.

The assessment, however, recognises there may be some negative impacts resulting from the scheme proposals, in
particular for older people and disabled people with mobility impairments due to limited access to the kerbside and the
inclusion of bus stop by-passes resulting from the protected cycle lane. Therefore, alternative and direct kerbside
access may need to be used. To help mitigate against the potential conflict with people crossing the cycle lane at bus
stop by-passes, mini-zebra crossings are proposed across the cycle lane to provide people walking priority to cross
the cycle lane and highlighting to people cycling that they need to give way at this point. The cycle lane would be
raised at these crossings to create a level surface, improving accessibility. Tactile paving would also be provided on
either side of the mini-zebra crossing to enable anyone with a visual impairment to find this point for crossing the cycle
lane.

However, it is not anticipated that this will result in any unlawful discrimination against these groups with protected
characteristics.

The draft assessment is shown in Appendix 10 and will be reviewed and updated, if required, following consultation of
the scheme.

20. Data Protection
Impact
Assessment

Not applicable

21. Recommendation

Recommended Not recommended Not recommended

v.April 2019




This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Project Coversheet

[1] Ownership & Status

UPI:

Core Project Name: City Cycleways Programme

Programme Affiliation: Cycling Network Programme

Project Manager: Albert Cheung — Street Space Planning, Environment
Department

Definition of need:
e Cycling is an important mode of transport with huge health and social
benefits. Despite this, only a third of all vehicles in the City are pedal cycles.

e A City survey also found that only 4% of people currently consider the
experience of cycling in the City pleasant and most feel that it is not safe.
Data also shows that the number of people cycling involved in collisions are
disproportionately high

e Providing a dense network of cycle friendly streets will mean that anyone
who wishes to cycle is not prevented from doing so because of safety
concerns.

e The transport strategy has set out a range of cycling proposals including the
delivery of a cycle network to enable more people to cycle.

Key measures of success:

e People are safe and feel safe

e People have equal opportunities to enrich their lives and reach their full
potential.

e We have clean air, land and water and a thriving and sustainable natural
environment

e Our spaces are secure, resilient and well maintained.

Expected timeframe for the project delivery:
e By 2025 (originally set out G2)
e March 2028 (G3/4)
Key Milestones:
e Concept design approval.
e Public consultation.
e Detailed traffic modelling and detailed highway design.

Are we on track for completing the project against the expected timeframe for
project delivery?

The pace of the Aldgate to Blackfriars cycleway project has been determined by the
availability of TfL’s funding grant and their oversight requirements. The project was
substantially delayed due to the financial impact on TfL'’s finances caused by Covid-19. The

V14 July 2019

Page 103



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

original programme for completion was by 2025, however, the latest completion date is now
estimated to be in 2028

Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the
City of London has needed to manage or is managing?
No

[2] Finance and Costed Risk
Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes:

‘Project Briefing’ G1-2 report (as approved by Streets & Walkways Sub-
committee, July 2019):

City Cycleways Programme (Q11 Upgrade, Monument to Sun Street
Cycleway and Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway)

e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £3.5M - £4.5M

e Costed Risk Against the Project: None at this stage

e Estimated Programme Dates: see below

Q11 Upgrade
e Preliminary design, stakeholder engagement, traffic modelling and detailed
design — Nov 2019
e G3/4/5 Dec 2019
e Delivery timeframe Feb - Apr 2020

Monument to Sun Street
e Preliminary design, modelling, consultation — Dec 2019
G3/4 — Jan 2020
Detailed design & modelling — April 2020
Gateway 5 — May 2020
Delivery timeframe 2021 — 2022

Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway

e Preliminary design, modelling — Feb 2020
Consultation — May 2020
G3/4 — Summer 2020
Detailed design & modelling — Winter 2020
Gateway 5 — Early 2021
Delivery timeframe 2022 — 2023

Scope/Design Change and Impact:
‘Options Appraisal and Design’ G3/4 report (Submitted, for approval
October 2024):

Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk):
e Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk):

V14 July 2019

Page 104



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

e Spend to date:
e Costed Risk Against the Project:
e Estimated Programme Dates:

Scope/Design Change and Impact:

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: None.

V14 July 2019

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Finance Tables

Appendix 2

Table 1: Expenditure to Date: Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway - 16800418
Approved Expenditure
Balance (£
Description Budget (£) (£) ®)
P&T Staff Costs 75,321 71,435 3,886
P&T Fees 158,380 136,380 22,000
TOTAL 233,701 207,815 25,886
Table 2: Resources Required to reach the next Gateway
Describtion Approved Resources Revised
P Budget (£) Required (£) Budget (£)
Env Servs Staff Costs ) 75,000 75.000
P&T Staff Costs 75,321 60,000 135,321
P&T Fees 158,380 240,000 398,380
Costed Risk Provision ) 150,000 150,000
Lo 233,701 525,000 758,701
Table 3: Revised Funding Allocation
Current Funding Revised
Funding Source Funding Adjustments Funding
Allocation (£) (£) Allocation (£)
Transport for London 233,701 525,000 758,701
Total Funding Drawdown 233,701 525,000 758,701

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



City of London: Projects Procedure Corporate Risks Register

Project name: Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway

Unique project identifier: 12079

Total est cost (exc risk) £4500000

Corporate Risk Matrix score table

PM's overall risk rating Medium
Avg risk pre-mitigation 8.0 4 8
Avg risk post-mitigation 5.2 3 6 12
Red risks (open) 0 2 4 8
Amber risks (open) 5 1 2 4 8
Green risks (open) 0
Costed risks identified (All) £1,265,000.00 28% |Costed risk as % of total estimated cost of project
Costed risk pre-mitigation (open) £1,265,000.00 28% | "
Costed risk post-mitigation (open) £640,000.00 14% | "
Costed Risk Provision requested £150,000.00 3% |CRP as % of total estimated cost of project
(1) Compliance/Regulatory 1 8.0 £15,000.00 0 1 0
(2) Financial 4 6.0 £1,140,000.00 0 3 0
(3) Reputation 1 0.0 £10,000.00 0 0 0
(4) Contractual/Partnership 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(5) H&S/Wellbeing 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(6) Safeguarding 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(7) Innovation 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(8) Technology 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(9) Environmental 0 0.0 £0.00 0 0 0
(10) Physical 1 8.0 £100,000.00 0 1 0
Issues (open) 0 Open Issues 0 0 0 0
All Issues 0 All Issues 0 0 0 0
Cost to resolve all issues £0.00 Total CRP d to dat £0.00
(on completion) ’ ota used to date ‘

Page 109




Cil

Project Name:

Unique project identifier:

General risk classification
Risk Gateway Category
D

of London: Projects Procedure Corporate Risks Register

Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway

12079

Descripfion of the Risk

Risk Impact Description

0od
Clas

npre-
mitigation

icatio Classi

Impact

npre-
mitigation

PM's overall
risk rating;

Medium

CRP requested
this gateway

Total estimated cost

(exc risk): £

Risk

Costed impact pre- Costed Risk Pro:

atio score mitigation (£) requested

4,500,000

ion Confidence in the

Total CRP used to

date|
Mitigation actions
Mitigating actions

£ 1

Average
unmitigated risk|

50,000 Open Risks

5 Project Name:

Mitigation
cost (£)

Average mitigated Closed Risks

risk score|

Unique project
identifier:
General risk classification
Gateway

Ownership & Action
Date raised Named Risk owner
Departmental (Named Closed
Risk Manager/ Officeror  OR/
Coordinator  External Party) Realised &
moved to
Issues

Costed
ati impact post-
mitigation (£)

CRP used Use of CRP

Likelihood Impact
if Mitigat o date

Classificati Clas:
onpost-  on post-
mitigation mitigation

Date

(Carry out detailed design fo
obtain accurate work costs.
some aspects of the works o wor
) ; Regular discussion with TiL
[Work costs estimates are fikely [may need to be redisigned, o o oo
R1 3 (2) Financial 1o change following delayed or cancelled unless  |Likely serious 8 £1,000,000.00 N C - Uncomfortable P i 9 £10,000.00|Possible serious £500,000.00 6 £0.00| 22/08/2024  |B McVean A Cheung 5
J / ) ihat o request for exira
completion of detailed design [addifional funding can be <
foond funding is made as early as
possible, should it be
)
~ Detailed design cosfs [Additonal funds will need to
Q increase. Provisional estimates |be secured if external fees are [CRP has been requested to
o have been used for extemnal  [greater than estaimated. This | . ) ¥ - for costed impact ) mitigate the impact of . )
R2 3 m (2) Financial fees to undertake the detailed|could delay the project Likely Major £120,000.00 post-mitigation B - Fairly Confident external fee and staff fime. £2,000.00(Likely Serious £110,000.00 £0.00| N/A[22/08/2024 B McVean |A Cheung
design which may change  [programme and require increases
L \ from the actual cost addtioan! staff time
T The design proposals are
[N fully appriosed o ensure
ihey are robust and
O ite for all street
users.
1) Complance/keg |Corstation objection/s  [Delivery programmeis engogement with objectors
ks |3 P S is/are received for the delayed o resolve the Likely Serious 8 £15,000.00) N B Fairly Confident 999 ” £5,00000Possible  [Serious £500000] 6 £0.00| 22/08/2024 |8 McVean A Cheung 3
Ulatory ¢ > 1o resolve where possible
Cycleway project proposal  |objection g
land include design changes
if possible. If required
resolution of objections fo
be approved by the Streets
& Walkways Sub
[Committee.
Engagement with Tl hos
[been positive and whilst
future funding s not
secured, they are supportive
of the scehme an
expressed they would
Re |3 (2) Financial Funding fo complete fhe Tnere is no sufficent funds o,y oy, Maijor 8 £0.00| N A - Very Confident support fhe delivery of the £0.00[Rare serious £0.00| £0.00| 22/08/2024  |B McVean A Cheung &
[project is not secured complete the project [project and funding will be
released in stages.
ClL funding to suppiment TiL
external funding would be
requested at the
ite fime
Project programme delay  [Programme slippage wil Hold regular meefings with
Rs |3 (2) Financial caused by realiance on fengthen the duration of the |, .\, Serious 8 £20,000.00| N B - Fairly Confident extemnal parties fo ensure £5,000.00|Possible serious £10,000.00] 6 £0.00) 22/08/2024  |B McVean |A Cheung 5
external party servicesto  [project which willincrease ihe programme stays on
lcomplete tasks on time: costs track
underground ufftes / The design may need fo [Engagement with uilfies
et moy o physically change o sub- land highway structures fo
R6 3 (10) Physical - . - o loptimal materials may need  |Likely Serious 8 £100,000.00 N C - Uncomfortable identify possible engineering £10,000.00|Possible Serious £10,000.00 6 £0.00| 22/08/2024 B McVean |A Cheung 3
engineering difficulty to build .
o be used o resolve difficulties at an early stage
the scheme ' !
engeineering difficulties 1o design out risks
ublic consultation may resuit oy engagement with
R7 |3 (3) Reputation in negative publicity from Poor public relations Possible serious £10,000.00| N 8 - Fairly Confident Sen!‘ﬁvegusgv oups £2,000.00[Possible serious £5,000.00 22/08/2024  |B Mcvean A Cheung &
certain user groups




Appendix 4
Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway - Overview Plan

Am\\cf‘i LJ l A5 ROW - gashion Stre
Wh ¢

{ Finsbury Y A g
l(_ll(ll\(nl’d("‘: - b Co%(ry Um ﬂily ﬂ?
R L SSSe ‘London Camus -

/)\/

Sl Homlph \'u!lmul S
Bishopsgate Ghurch

o~

Greyfdars

/ /

D
—

/
f/

Warwick Lane>
1009

I

’7/‘

L
: ob"l}su& ~—$
0

&
8L
\%\

o
SO\
Paul' q
T o ‘ St P.ml"»I
City Thameslin SCHI_ ettt

’/L // (p

'
]
q,
>
A
W

»"?‘\ o

33ues0”

9 Streer—,

/

b -
~Bre,
l\S »Y))

]

rJohn ass Faculty of ArtArchnecture §
Deslgn/London Melro politan Unlversny !

A - Play
\‘}g } space R
& v,
./ ) e ¥, 2000 street
e ol | ’Closswa" King ('u e’

! & . : T a(’ Field
erteeCa LJ I ==L 4 r/ﬂ acned®e ;
SomersetGarden — S ; ! C o T
R R / 3 - pry.,succ\ Fenchurc

cet.)

Aul'S’Chaup
; (:-)/l‘\, Lan L_J Ch )/ d

:‘la,,im /

Seething
LaneGarden  gmem—e— ~
=

\ pwpnﬂi\\

Tower Gardens

é‘.,{,‘\s

BlackfnarsiRoad

)
~
=

- Cycleway improvement measures proposed
- Delivered Bank Junction improvements
Current layout retained

- Leadenhall Street corridor improvements to be delivered by separate ColL project

Aldgate corridor improvements to be delivered by separate CoL road safety project




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



EXISTING METHOD OF CONTROL: J0O/122 NEW BRIDGE STREET — EXISTING JUNCTION PTION 1 - NORTH SIDE BI-DIRECTIONAL CYCLE LANE
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET — A3211 VICTORIA EMBANKMENT — TREATMENT OPTIO o S cTo cyc S
BLACKFRIARS BRIDGE = s .

Z ST ANDREW'S HILL w
S LOCATION FOR CYCLE PARKING AND/OR RAISED TABLE i
STASE.L STASEZ . STASE 3 . STAGE 4 Lo E-SCOOTER AND E-BIKE PARKING JUNCTION TREATMENT - ! SIGNALISED Z
—|§‘ 1, - = —agg - L ’ - Ly |'_'
AR T el T | B ‘7’ 7m
1w e w4 . )
i T T T J 28
1.7m
—
£ - ~1 i ol
® 5, RIGHT-TURN POCKET —]
5} = PROVIDED FOR Z
= ST EXISTING METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/007 QUEEN VICTO ; JUNCTION CAPACITY r_'
& 'STREET/ PUDDLE DOCK 5
=) O . STAGE 1 STAGE 2 STAGE 3 STAGE 4 13)
'z
3 - A A A ”v
k - | o -
R Yy ! V- Lo
& g i 7 = 2 "r .—1—’¥---¥ = POTENTIAL FOR NEW TREES
T T (SUBJECT TO SITE
reoous poox ruoous poox ruoous poo s oo . [ ~—— CONSTRAINTS)
(=
EXISTING LAYOUT ON HALF INSET TAXI PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/007 QUEEN VICTORIA LOCATION FOR CYCLE
WESTBOUND APPROACH TO AND LOADING BAYS STREET/ PUDDLE DOCK PARKING AND/OR E-SCOOTER
BLACKFRIARS JUNCTION STAGE 1, |STAGE 2, |[STAGE 3, |STAGE 4 5 AND E-BIKE PARKING
P | eeos f o qoo;eo q,?‘q ",\H;
- » Lobd .
NEW BRIDGE ST/ QUEEN VICTORIA STREET !w* - !! - !! - !! <T W . /
PUDRLE DOCK / QUEEN VICTORIA STREET AL l AT ST Am| | VIEW 1 OF 14
—X
Il
\
= | s
/> 1
w ©
@
‘ ]
w =
= Z 1.
3 Z EXISTING JUNCTION EXISTING
= | & TREATMENT TREATMH
(&) H

CUTLINE

FOOTWAY WIDENING AND

w
=
-l
RAISED TABLE JUNCTION =
TREATMENT (DEVELOPMENT 2
HIGHWAY WORKS TBC) 1X COACH BAY o
RELOCATION
WHITE LION HILL /
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright 2024_All rights reserved, Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings,City of London 100023243,



AutoCAD SHX Text
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
STAGE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
EXISTING METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/122 NEW BRIDGE STREET - QUEEN VICTORIA STREET - A3211 VICTORIA EMBANKMENT - BLACKFRIARS BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
STAGE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
STAGE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
BLACKFRIARS BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
NEW BRIDGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
BLACKFRIARS BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
NEW BRIDGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
STAGE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
EXISTING METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/007 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET/ PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
STAGE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
STAGE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/007 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET/ PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
STAGE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
STAGE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
STAGE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
PUDDLE DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET


/

) OPTION 1 - NORTH SIDE BI-DIRECTIONAL CYCLE LANES
TING JUNCTION EXISTING JUNCTION EASTBOUND RIGHT-TURN / [
FTMENT TREATMENT TO LAMBETH HILL

w » BANNED FOR MOTOR w
= - VEHICLES =z
= el SIGNAL =

=1 =] CONTROLLER -

'5 Bl BOXES TO BE | ! =

o 2 RELOCATED PROPOSED (&S]

= : ¥ ~ POLICE BAY
o b——rd

[—— L e e—e—m — o o s

CUTLINE

1X COACH BAY i LAMBETH HILL EXISTING
[~ RELOCATION | Tjﬁ [\ JUNCTION TREATMENT
ST PETER'S HILL /
QUE@ VICTORIA STREET VIEW 3 OF 14
f"‘\ (site of)
€ O]
@ BUS STAND RETAINED
= WITH 0.75M ISLAND
=
D
EXISTING JUNCTION
TREATMENT
CROSSING REALIGNED AND

WIDENED BY 1.2M

FOOTWAY
WIDENING

EXISTING METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/125 QUEEN VICTORIA
STREET/ FRIDAY STREET/ BREAD STREET

STAGE 1 STAGE 2 STAGE 3
o vt o wf Lot

EXISTING JUNCTION

TREATMENT L ).
<«
i 2 i Y i AN
i — 8 vomEy S
- § CROSS OVER POINT FOR PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/125 QUEEN VICTORIA
— \ g?g%:fgﬁggﬁcgfgf;%iw STREET/ FRIDAY STREET/ BREAD STREET
TO RUN IN CYCLE ONLY STAGE STAGE L. STAGE .2 STAGE 3+ STAGE &
L j’ L L
FRIDAY STREET / . i:\\ i:\‘»"" i,\"
- cay <5
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET VIEW 4 OF 14
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright 2024. Al rights reserved. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.City of London 100023243.



AutoCAD SHX Text_56
h=0.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
POLICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
POLICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
13.518

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
13.490

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
13.502

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
13.466

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
13.451

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
13.393

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
13.385

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
13.317

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
13.289

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
13.228

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
13.177

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
13.215

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
Plaque

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
STAGE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
EXISTING METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/125 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET/ FRIDAY STREET/ BREAD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
STAGE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
FRIDAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/125 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET/ FRIDAY STREET/ BREAD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
FRIDAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
FRIDAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
STAGE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
STAGE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
FRIDAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
FRIDAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
FRIDAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
STAGE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
FRIDAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET


o

/7 REDUNDANT BUS
CYCLE GATE

STOP REMOVED

CA@N STREET / QUEEN VICTORIA STREET
(@]

2.3M FOOTWAY
WIDENING

-
OPTION 1 - NORTH SIDE BI-DIRECTIONAL CYCLE LANESE

,HE/XIS'HNG/ PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/016 QUEEN
/MCTORIA STREET — QANNON STREET — MANSION HOUSE TUBE

ISTING/ PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL:
CTORIA STREET EXIT CROSSING

STAGE 1 STAGE 2
GRS vor s

J00/127 QUEEN

PN

VIEW 5 OF 14

6 D
=
=
ol
EXISTING JUNCTION i

TREATMENT /

_——

CYCLE EARLY REI:EASE
PROVIDED

QUEEN STREET /QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

ALL CHANGE AT BANK PROJECT.

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS
COMPLETED IN SUMMER 2024

EXISTING METHOD OF CONTROL: J0O/013 QUEEN VICTORIA
STREET/ QUEEN STREET

STAGE 1. STAGE 2. STAGE .3 STAGE 4 STAGE 5
L L L J\’ L
er B s A ﬁ’
v i"‘# u e EA g L ] '3 ,}—
K K 3 3
* CYCLE EARLY RELEASE

PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/013 QUEEN VICTORIA
STREET/ QUEEN STREET

STAGE 1 STAGE 2 STAGE 3 STAGE 4 STAGE
EL [REZ  PAEL REL AR
1
A
!ﬂﬁ, =
2

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright 2024. All rights reserved. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.City of London 100023243



AutoCAD SHX Text_110
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
Heritage

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
plaque

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
13.494

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
13.474

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
W=0.10/0.15 conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
F=1.40 iron

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
W=0.70/0.25 granite

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
13.518

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
13.490

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
13.502

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
13.466

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
13.451

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
13.393

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
13.385

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
13.317

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
13.289

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
13.228

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
13.177

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
13.215

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
13.880

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
13.866

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
13.781

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
13.771

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
13.525

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
13.524

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
13.538

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
13.577

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
13.562

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
13.562

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
13.561

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
13.530

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
13.537

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
13.523

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
13.527

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
13.451

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
13.481

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
13.506

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Plaque

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
13.958

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
13.939

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
13.929

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
13.924

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
13.922

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
LOADING ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
QVLB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
1x150 steel

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
W=0.70/0.25 granite

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
W=0.60/0.26 conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
W=0.60/0.26 conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
13.525

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
13.524

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
13.530

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
13.451

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
13.481

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
13.506

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
LOADING ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
QVLB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
BUS STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
LOOK BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
STAGE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
EXISTING METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/013 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET/ QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
STAGE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
STAGE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
STAGE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
STAGE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/013 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET/ QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
STAGE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
STAGE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
STAGE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
 * CYCLE EARLY RELEASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
*

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
 * CYCLE EARLY RELEASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
*

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
 * CYCLE EARLY RELEASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
*

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
EXISTING/ PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/127 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET EXIT CROSSING

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
STAGE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
EXISTING/ PROPOSED METHOD OF CONTROL: J00/016 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET - CANNON STREET - MANSION HOUSE TUBE

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
STAGE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
STAGE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
STAGE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
CANNON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
CANNON STREET


/

—

A

OP/TION 1 - NORTH SIDE

BI-B.IRECTIONAL CYCLE LANES[]]

4 4
/. 7
£/

/)
74

ALL CHANGE AT BANK PROJECT.
HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS
COMPLETED IN SUMMER 2024

=

VIEW 7 OF 14

C

3

CORNHILL
vz v gy oy [ [ L/

ALL CHANGE AT BANK PROJECT.
HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS
COMPLETED IN SUMMER 2024

)
l
|

L
2
-
-
2
(&)
1
"/-—;g\
w
z
-l
[
2
o

VIEW 8 OF 14

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance



AutoCAD SHX Text_311
CDC

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
CDC

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
CDC

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
22.080

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
22.079

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
22.078

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
22.070

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
15.676

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
15.672

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
15.720

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
Bank Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
h=1.05m

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
h=0.80m

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
LOADING ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
LOADING ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
LOOK BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
LOOK BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
LOOK BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
LOOK BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
CDC

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
CDC

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
19.252

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
19.254

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
19.396

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
20.505

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
19.146

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
20.575

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
20.588

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
19.429

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
19.429

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
19.275

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
19.282

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
18.708

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
18.735


[ L=

— s

CUTLINE
1

CUTLINE

\

CORNHILL / LEADENHALL ST/
GRACECHURCH ST/ BISHOPSGATE
JUNCTION IMPROVEMENT TO BE
DELIVERED BY TFL AS PART OF A
SEPARATE PROJECT

LEADENHALL STREET CORRIDOR
IMPROVEMENT DELIVERED BY A
SEPARATE COL PROJECT

CUTLINE

VIEW 9 OF 14

CORNHILL / GRACECHURCH STREET
Q

LEADENHALL STREET CORRIDOR
IMPROVEMENT DELIVERED AS PART

N
OF A SEPARATE COL PROJECT

«;o{»

JTT b

ISYS Vo S ISR, g | _
' /,W Y 77 =
AT e vv/__/ﬂ;ﬂ,~/-7~~’#'~-~ s ' —

INE

|

BILLITER STREET

VIEW 10 OF 14

ST MARY AXE/
LEADENHALL STREET

roduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright 2024. Al rights reserved. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and



AutoCAD SHX Text_371
20.841

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
20.854

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
20.843

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
21.893

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
21.897

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
21.897

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
21.896

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
AHEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
AHEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
ITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
NAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
Mail box

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Mail box

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
NAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
20


OPTION 1 - NORTH SIDE BI-DIRECTIONAL CYCLE LANES

LEADENHALL STREET CORRIDOR
IMPROVEMENT DELIVERED BY A

SEPARATE COL PROJECT

= |
i

CREECHURCH LANE / )
LEAPENHALL STREET
o
0 T\
\\ \\\\ \‘\\\ °
= / 3 = -
7y /)
7 /
@% )
RN
<
/) — o
o z o
> \ R
2 ’ o
0 %\ |
i \
_ - e o,
D ' )
HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS a \
| TO BE INVESTIGATED AND l
[ DELIVERED SEPARATELY VIA COL's N \
= VISION ZERO PROGRAMME 0 -0
. g - o
3] ° 0 =
ALDGATE / - 2 DD e
LEADENHALL STREET [VIEW 12 OF 14|
| This map is. from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Ma'eslx's Stationery Office © Crown copyright 2024. All n‘gh_'s reserved. L reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to tion or civil City of London 100023243.



AutoCAD SHX Text_458
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
h=1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
16.287

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
16.259

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
TREE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
TREE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
ITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
h=1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
AHSLB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
LOOK RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
LOADING ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
MLB1


OPTION 1 - NORTH SIDE BI-DIRECTIONAL CYCLE LANES

O

A\
O
2
@
v\ o\
HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS ’7 l
[ a

TO BE INVESTIGATED AND
DELIVERED VIA COL's VISION ZERO ’

SRz \,»I; '
W 4

P
{

U]

Z2\

s
/P@é\)

°
Z
This map is rej

LEADENHALL STREET / ALDGATE



AutoCAD SHX Text_534
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
PLANT ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
CHRISTMAS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
h=0.95m

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
h=0.95m

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
h=0.95m

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
h=0.95m

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
h=0.95m

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
h=0.95m

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
POLICE CALL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
BUS FLAG

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
ASHTRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
16.287

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
16.259

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
TREE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
TREE PIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
h=1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
h=1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
h=1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
LOOK BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
LOOK BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
AHSLB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
AHSLB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
KEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
KEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
LOOK RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
LOADING ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
MLB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
STOP


\ |0PTION 1 - NORTH SIDE BI-DIRECTIONAL CYCLE LANES

BUS SHELTER RELOCATED
ONTO BUS STOP ISLAND

PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
ON RAISED TABLE

JUNCTION LAYOUT AS PER
TFL's MANSELL STREET
CYCLEWAY SCHEME

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

O
2
2
%
O
=
TO BE INVESTIGATED AND

DELIVERED VIA COL's VISION ZERO

S

A ~ X AA
BOTOLPH STREET / MIDDLESEX STREET
NN WP P2 A5 2 B il |V B e B | 2
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Maije:

VIEW 14 OF 14



AutoCAD SHX Text_727
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
IR

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
h=0.98m

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
h=1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
h=1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
LC/CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
TS/LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
TS/LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
Telephone

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
ep

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
BIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
LOOK RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
LOOK LEFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
LOOK LEFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
LOOK RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
LOOK LEFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
LOOK RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
LOOK RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
LOOK LEFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
LOOK RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
LOOK LEFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
CS2

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
LOOK BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
LOOK BOTH WAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
AHSLB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
KEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
KEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
LOOK RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
LOOK LEFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
LOOK RIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
LOOK LEFT

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
RING

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
RING

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
STOP


[OPTION 2 - SOUTH SIDE BI-DIRECTIONAL CYCLE LANES |

‘ PROTECTED EASTBOUND

CYCLE LANE
‘b\ 5 ;__rt—_—ﬁ_‘ . i‘h (=] uﬂ
:ri'.@ — (=T o =1 o -
a
1[o
S o) e o
""""" \ S o
st = Y . =
,,,,, . = &b
-
[w)
CYCLE GATE — E
EXISTING LAYOUT ON
WESTBOUND APPROACH g o
TO BLACKFRIARS JUNCTION
- =
o

L

w

4

== Z

(=

==V
o
o

[11]
=z
PROTECTED 2
BI-DIRECTIONAL =)
CYCLE LANES o
VIEW 1 OF 4

COACH PARKING

—_—
— == =

—
o T ————
0,0 |:|D

S
]
PROTECTED

BI-DIRECTIONAL
CYCLE LANES

l / SIDE ROAD CONFLICT
AT WHITE LION HILL

CUTLINE

POTENTIAL CONFLICT
AT BAYNARD HOUSE CAR
PARK ENTRANCE

PROTECTED
BI-DIRECTIONAL
CYCLE LANES

VIEW 2 OF 4



AutoCAD SHX Text_887
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
h=0.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
STOP


PROTECTEE— X

% | OPTION 2 - SO,UTH ‘SIDE BI-DIRECTIONAL CYCLE LANES |
PROTECTED E
WITH FLOW o

CYCLE LANE

POLICE STOPPING COACH
PARKING BAY PARKING BAY

SIDE ROAD CONFLICT
AT LAMBETH HILL

——— 1 — =\

L ra—

e—— - o o - .
uuuuuuu = % —_— .
= \Eﬂuiﬂiﬂﬂmggwm s, B\ = =— S 0 P

o —‘ ; =\ { PROTECTED WITH FLOW
— ) CYCLE LANE

— — =

VIEW 3 OF 4

CYCLE EARLY RELEASE PROVIDED

CYCLE GATE TO ENSURE CYCLISTS
ARE AHEAD OF MOTOR VEHICLES CYCLE GATE AND
ON APPROACH TO QUEEN STREET 2-STAGE RIGHT-TURN
FOR CYCLISTS

PROTECTED

WITH FLOW CYCLE LANE

PROTECTED WITHFLOW
CYCLE LANE

/ \/"’
SIDE ROAD CONFLICT AT
GREAT TRINITY LANE

|VIEw 4 OF 4



AutoCAD SHX Text_903
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Heritage

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
plaque

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
13.494

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
13.474

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
W=0.10/0.15 conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
F=1.40 iron

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
W=0.70/0.25 granite

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
W=0.60/0.26 conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
13.518

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
13.490

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
13.502

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
13.466

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
13.451

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
13.393

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
13.385

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
13.317

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
13.289

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
13.228

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
13.177

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
13.215

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
13.880

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
13.866

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
13.781

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
13.771

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
13.525

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
13.524

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
13.538

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
13.577

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
13.562

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
13.562

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
13.561

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
13.530

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
13.537

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
13.523

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
13.527

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
13.451

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
13.481

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
13.506

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
Plaque

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
13.958

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
13.939

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
13.929

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
13.924

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
13.922

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
LOADING ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
QVLB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
TAXIS


/]

OPTION 3 - WITH-FLOW CYCLE LANES

L
POTENTIAL CONFLICT WITH MOTOR

VEHICLES AT BAYNARD HOUSE
CAR PARK ENTRANCE

T L 4

. ——77\
= | =PRSS
0o _o 3 L Ty

PROTECTED
WESTBOUND
CYCLE LANE

~ £ ASTBC';S\?DT E%ELE PROTECTED EASTBOUND
LANE CYCLE LANE
1n]
[ F e Z
M ] - . . |
X . J]( = _ J:| . = . - -
Dn- = ¢ [n} o = O D -
B= o = 4- 3
|DUEI
1.7m
a .
o s = [ =
o
o 5 I D. /-@EI _—| :
— e / : Ly © ‘vm =
"""""""" =k .- @ PROTECTED WESTBOUND o
,,,,,,,,,,, . =y -~ = CYCLE LANE
'''''' & - - L ! POTE
| D .. - V
=
EXISTING LAYOUT ON CYCLE GATE s
WESTBOUND APPROACH —
TO BLACKFRIARS JUNCTION gl
O [ = i}
- =
QQ, ﬁ : K VIEW 1 OF 4
Q
/N (O]
H
N N
W
PROTECTED
EASTBOUND CYCLE
LANE w
Z
|
=
>
o

SIDE ROAD
CONFLICT AT
WHITE LION HILL

VIEW 2 OF 4



AutoCAD SHX Text_977
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
DP

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
h=0.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
STOP


|
) OP - WITH-FLOW CYCLE LANES]

PROTECTED “ ; o : ) - »
EASTBOUND CYCLE £ \__a L
LANE ) :
PROTECTED
EASTBOUND CYCLE MODIFIED POLICE

LANE CHECK POINT)

.
,, % CUTLINE

uuuuuuuu
Dooo
uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

g’fgg&ﬂl“é’ SIDE ROAD PROTECTED
v SR oaaT WESTEOUND VIEW 3 OF 4
Q LAMBETH HILL
H
N 1o
D
CYCLE GATE AND
CYCLE GATE TO ENSURE CYCLISTS
\RE AHEAD OF MOTOR VEHICLES 2 STAGFEOR;{IGCI-\I('I(': L%?g CYCLE EARLY RELEASE PROVIDED
ON APPROACH TO QUEEN STREET N\

FOOTWAY WIDENING

SIDE ROAD CONFLICT AT
GREAT TRINITY LANE

Y / ”ﬂr/l g
—— FOOTWAY WIDENING
- ) /

D RN

UNPROTECTED
WESTBOUND CYCLE LANE



AutoCAD SHX Text_989
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
Heritage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
plaque

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
13.494

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
13.474

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
W=0.10/0.15 conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
F=1.40 iron

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
W=0.70/0.25 granite

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
W=0.60/0.26 conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
13.518

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
13.490

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
13.502

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
13.466

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
13.451

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
13.393

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
13.385

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
13.317

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
13.289

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
13.228

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
13.177

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
13.215

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
13.880

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
13.866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
13.781

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
13.771

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
13.525

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
13.524

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
13.538

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
13.577

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
13.562

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
13.562

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
13.561

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
13.530

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
13.537

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
13.523

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
13.527

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
13.451

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
13.481

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
13.506

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
Plaque

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
13.958

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
13.939

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
13.929

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
13.924

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
13.922

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
STAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
LOADING ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
QVLB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
TAXIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
TAXIS


Appendix 8
Healthy Street Assessments, Design Check — Option 1

Queen Victoria Street 1: Between Blackfriars Court and College of Arms

Healthy Streets Indicators' scores (%)

(Results will only display once all metrics have been scored)

pedestrians from r;r:op::ed
all walks of life
Pedestrians from all walks of life 58
Easy to cross 67
Shade and shelter 50
Places to stop and rest 53
Not too noisy 40
People choose to walk, cycle and use public transport 58
People feel safe 70
Things to see and do 42
People feel relaxed 59
Clean Air 42
Overall Healthy Streets Check score 45 59
Number of ‘zero' scores 3 0
(Proposed layout score from applicable metrics) 30.23%

Queen Victoria Street 2: Between College of Arms and Bread Street

Healthy Streets Indicators' scores (%)

(Results will only display once all metrics have been scored)

Proposed
pedestrians from layout
al walks of life
Pedestrians from all walks of life 63
Easy to cross 70
Shade and shelter 50
67
47
People choose to walk, cycle and use public transport 63
People feel safe 79
Things to see and do 50
People feel relaxed 64
Clean Air 50
Overall Healthy Streets Check score 55 65
Number of 'zero' scores 2 0
(Proposed layout score from applicable metrics) 28.57%

Page 125



Appendix 8

Queen Victoria Street 3: Between Bread Street and Bucklersbury

pedestrians fropy,
all walks of (ife

Healthy Streets Indicators' scores (%)

(Results will only display once all metrics have been scored)

Proposed
layout

Pedestrians from all walks of life

Easy to cross

Shade and shelter

65
63
50

Places to stop and rest

Not too noisy

People choose to walk, cycle and use public transport
People feel safe

Things to see and do

People feel relaxed

Clean Air

Overall Healthy Streets Check score 55 64
Number of 'zero' scores 3 0
(Proposed layout score from applicable metrics) 23.26%

Aldgate: Between Mitre Street to Middlesex Street (via Aldgate Square)

pedestrians from
all walks of [ife

Healthy Streets Indicators' scores (%)

(Results will only display once all metrics have been scored)

Proposed

layout
Pedestrians from all walks of life 62
Easy to cross 63
Shade and shelter 67
Places to stop and rest 73
Not t0o noisy 47
People choose to walk, cycle and use public transport 62
People feel safe 68
Things to see and do 58
People feel relaxed 63
Clean Air
Overall Healthy Streets Check score 58 63
Number of ‘zero' scores 3 1
(Proposed layout score from applicable metrics) 12.50%

Page 126



Appendix 9

City of London Street Accessibility Tool
Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway

The City of London Street Accessibility Tool (COLSAT) enables street designers to easily identify how street features
impact on the different needs of disabled people

The needs of different groups of disabled people can be contradictory; that improving accessibility for one group may
decrease accessibility for another. CoLSAT identifies the trade-offs that may be needed to ensure no one is excluded
from using the City's streets and provides the basis for engagement and discussion to maximise the benefits for all.

Current street conditions and Option 1 measures proposed on Queen Victoria Street and St Botolph Street have been
assessed using CoLSAT. Queen Victoria Street has been split into three sections:

e Blackfriars Ct to College of Arms
e College of Arms to Bread Street
e Bread Street to Bucklersbury

The summary table below shows the red scoring results of each of the sections has significantly reduced between the
current layout and the recommended Option 1.

Current layout Proposed Option 1 Reduction in
Number of red categories Number of red categories red categories
Scoring: 1 Scoring: 0 Scoring: 1 Scoring: 0 Scoring: 1 Scoring: 0
Qvs1 23 7 5 0 18 7
QVs2 23 3 6 0 17 3
QVS3 16 1 8 0 7 1
St Botolph St 9 5 4 0 6 5

The CoLSAT results of each of the sections for the existing and proposed layouts are shown below.

Page 127



Queen Victoria Street — Section 1: Existing Layout

C S Sl Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
o L A Set each of the drop downs below to best deseribe the strest Review the results for each needs segment b Hover the cursor over the box next to each score to read guotes explaining how participants
Gity of Lession Stort desossiity Tt CIAMACIEMStiCS for the section being analysed in the segment are affected by the feature
WA Wi LC GD RS HI ANI AT 1] Comments
Crossing Point
Crossing Type Uncontrolled crossing > 8m road width 3 = 3 1 2 g 2 2 3 1 = 1
Crosses Ovar Carriageway (motor vehicles and cycles togsthar) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 -
Edge Marking No tactile edge marking 3 3 2 3 [E a 1 1 3 s 2
Island Type MNo island 2 3 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 2 2 3
Kerb Drop Slope Kerb drop > 1/8, 9.5 deg, 17% incline 1 1 2 1 3 3 2 3 1 3 2
Kerb Drop Tactile Kerb drop without tactile paving 3 4 3 2 3 2 2 3 3 e 3 1
Surface Material
Surface Type Smooth York Stone 3 3 3 3 DaE DE E 3 ER ] 3 3
Pattemn Uniform paving colour 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 e 3
Contrast with Road Lower tonal contrast between paving and road 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 3 3 3
Lines yellowirediwhite fines at road sdge 3 R 3 3 3 3 = 3 E e s
Kerb
Kerb Type (crossing over) Crossing upstand 0 mm to 3 mm (undelineated) 3 3 3 1 2 2 ]
Ker Type (moving alongside) Deliniating upstand 0 mm to 3 mm (undefineated) 3 3 2 2 1 3 3 2 2 1
-Uootway Width
idth Foofway width 2 m fo 5 m | O O 3 3 3 3 3
(anobs‘tructed Width Min unobstructed width = 1.5 m 3 3 3 3 3 s 3 3 E 3 3 3
(Dstreet Furniture
Fosition Street furniture = 0.5 m from kerb 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 2 3 3
=Rt Tables Cafe tables without ‘protection’ 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 2 3 3
porary ltems No temporary obstructions [E s e N e N S e -
sst Furniture Height Street furniture = 0. m height 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
trast High tonal confrast with paving 3 3 E 3 3 3 E E 3 3 3 3
ench Spacing Bench > 400 m away 3 3 3 1 A 3 3 2 2 1 2 3
Bench Design Benches with backrests without arms 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Seat Height Benches multiple seat heights > 50 cm and < 45 cm 3 3 3 E E 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Sensory Experience Mo sensory experience 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Slopes
Gradient (in direction of ravel) Gradient 1/20 1o 1/50 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Camber (across footway) Camber 1/20 to 1/50 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Vehicle Access
ehicle Crossover Crossover dropped 3 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 3 2 3 3
Blue Badge Parking Blue badge parking Within 100 m [ 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Taxi Drop Off Lecation Taxi drop off 10 m to 100 m away 3 3 2 3 3 3 1 3 s 3 3 3
Taxi Drop OFf Kerb Tawi drop off kerb 100 mm to 150 mm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
Dedicated Tauxi Drop Off Dedicated taxi drop off point / tax rank 3 3 e 3 3 3 E e
Bus Stop Location Within 100 m 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Kerb Height 125 mm to 140 mm 3 3 | ] 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Type Flag only 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 1 3 2 2
Toilets
Accessible Toilets Further than 500 m away 2 Z 2 1 2 3 3 3 1 3 Z
‘Changing Places Toilets More than 500 m away 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1
The City of London Street Accessibility Tool (CoLSAT) was developed Aaes
Published September 2022 by Ross Atkin Associates and Urban Movement for the City of London B At kI n
Corporation. Associates ciTY
LONDON




Queen Victoria Street — Section 2: Existing Layout

Cc s T Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
0 L A Set each of the drop downs below to best describe the strest Review the results for each needs segment b Hover the cursor over the box next to each score to read quotes explaining how participants
City of London Straet accmseiity oot Ch@racteristics for the section being analysed in the segment are affected by the feature
EWC MWC  MS WA wi Lc GD RS HI ANI AT o] Comments
Crossing Point
Crossing Type Controlled crossing {any road width) 3
Crosses Over Carmageway (motor vehicles and cycles togsther) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 : [
Edge Marking 800 mm desp tactile paving sdge marking (full width of flush area) 3 3 - 3 1 3 3 3 3
Tactie Paving Back Edge Straight back edge 7 3 3 3 1 A 3 3 = 2 s
Tactie Paving Colour Tacfile colour not as per guidance 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Tonal Contrast  Tactile has significant contrast with surmounding paving 3 3 - 3 [E 3 E 3 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Stem Length  Tactile stem within 0.5 m of building line 3 3 3 3 1 E 3 3 3 3 e 3
Tactile Paving Stem Width  Tactile stem 800 mm width 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 E s 3 3
Kerb Drop Slope Kerb drop = 118, 9.5 deg, 17% incline 1 1 2 1 3 3 2 3 1 3 2
Kerb Drop Tactile Kerb drop with tactile paving 3 2 3 1 3 3 3 3 3 3
Signal (red/green man) Far side signal 3 - 2 3 3
Audible {besping) Audible 3 3 e 3 E
Count Down No count down 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 2
Tactile Rotating Cone Rotating cone right side only 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3
Surface Material
Surface Type Smooth York Stone 3 3 3 3 Dd DaE A 3 3 3 3
Pattern Uniform paving colour 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 E 3
‘Contrast with Road Lower tonal contrast between paving and road 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 3 3 3
Linss yellowirediwhite lines at road edge 3 3 e 3 3 3 3 e 3 E s s
Kerb
Kerb Type (crossing over) Crossing upstand 0 mm to 3 mm (undelineated) 3 3 3 1 2 2 1
Kerb Type (moving alongside) Deliniating upstand 0 mm to 3 mm (undelineated) 3 3 2 2 1 3 3 2 2 1
ootway Width
idth Footway width 2 m o 5 m [ ) 3 3 3 3 3 I
(Onobetructea width Min uncbstrueted width > 1.5m 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 - 3 3 3
(ereet Furniture
sition Street furniture > 0.5 m from Kerb 3 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 2 2 3 3
Cafe Tables Cafe tables without ‘protection’ 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 2 3 3
porary ltems Na temporary obstructions [ e e e T N N e e e -
et Furniture Height Street furniture > 0.9 m height 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
trast High tonal contrast with paving 3 3 - 3 3 3 E = 3 3 3 3
Bench Spacing Bench within 150 m 3 3 3 E s 3 3 3 3 E E 3
Bench Design Benches without backrests or arms 3 3 2 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 3 3
Bench Seat Height Benches ssat height = 50 cm 3 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Sensory Experience Bad sensory experience (adjacent busy road, cold surface) 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 2 3 1 3
Slopes
Gradient (in direction of travel) Gradient 1/20 1 1/50 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Camber (across footway) Camber 1/20 to 1/50 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Vehicle Access
Vehicle Crossover Crossover dropped 3 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 3 2 3 3
Blue Badge Parking Blue badge parking 100 m to 500 m away 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 2 1
Taxi Drop Off Location Taxi drop off 10 m to 100 m away 3 3 2 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 3
Tai Drop Off Kerb Taxi drop off kerb 100 mm to 150 mm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
Dedicated Taxi Drop Off Somewhere a taxi can stop safely 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Location Within 100 m 3 ) 3 e 3 e 3 3 3
Bus Stop Kerb Height 125 mm to 140 mm 3 3 4 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Type Flag only 3 3 2 3 1 3 3 3 1 3 2 2
Toilets
Accessible Toilets Further than 500 m away 2 2 2 1 2 3 2 3 3 1 3 2
Changing Places Toilets More than 500 m away 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1
The City of London Sireet Accessibility Tool {CoLSAT) was developed o
Published September 2022 by Ross Atkin Associates and Urban Movement for the City of London ra i
Corporation. Associates




Queen Victoria Street — Section 3: Existing Layout

C s T Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
(o] L A Set each of the drop downs below to best describe the strest Review the results for each needs segment b Hover the cursor over the box next to each score to read quotes explaining how participants
City of London Straet dczesstiity oot Ch@racteristics for the section being analysed in the segment are affected by the feature
il =
EWC MWC  MS WA Wi LC GD RS HI ANI AT DI Comments
Crossing Point
Crossing Type Controlled crossing (any road width) 3
Crosses Over Carriageway (motor vehicles and cycles together) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 E
Edge Marking 800 mm deep tactile paving edge marking (full width of flush area) 3 3 E 3 1 3 3 e 3 3 3
Tactie Paving Back Edge Straight back edge 2 3 3 3 1 e 3 3 2 2 =
Tactie Paving Colour Tactile colour not as per guidance 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Tonal Contrast Tacile without significant contrast with surounding paving 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Stem Length  Tactile stem within 0.5 m of building line 3 3 3 3 1 E 3 3 3 3 E 3
Tactile Paving Stem Width  Tactile stem 800 mm width 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 s s 3 3
Kerb Drop Slope Kerb drop < 1/12, 4. 7deg, 8% incline 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 E
Signal {redigreen man) Far side signal 3 - 2 3 3
Audible (besping) Audible 3 3 E - 3 - - - - - - )
Count Down No count down . 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 2
Tactile Rotating Cone Rotating cone right side only 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3
Surface Material
Surface Type York Stone with gaps/bumps 2 2 2 2 1 2 2 2 1 2 3 3
Patten Uniform paving colour 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 e 3
Contrast with Road Lower tonal contrast between paving and road 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 3 3 3
Lines yellowlrediwhite lines at road edge 3 3 e 3 3 3 3 s 3 E s s
Kerb
Kerb Type (crossing over) Crossing upstand 0 mm to 3 mm + 600 tactile paving | R 2 3 3 3 3 3
Type (moving alongside) Deliniating upstand 0 mm to 3 mm (undelineated) 3 E 3 2 2 [ 1 3 3 2 2 1
Q Jootway Width
(alidth Footway width 2 m o 5 m | O e e 3 3 R 3 R I
nobstructed Width Min uncbstructed width = 1.5 m 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 s 3 3 3
Street Furniture
sition Strest furniture = 0.5 m from kerb 3 3 = 3 3 2 3 3 2 2 3 3
o&f: Tables Cafe tables without ‘protection’ 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 2 3 3
porary ltems No temporary obstructions | N s e - I s e e e e .-
eat Furniture Height Street furniture = 0.9 m height 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
ontrast High tonal contrast with paving 3 3 e 3 3 3 E s 3 3 3 3
Bench Spacing Bench between 150 m and 400 m away 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Design Benches without backrests or ams. 3 3 2 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 3 3
Bench Seat Height Benches seat height 45 to 50 cm 3 3 3 e 3 3 3 3 A 3 3 3
Bench Sensory Experience Bad sensory experience (adjacent busy road, cold surface) 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 2 3 1 3
Slopes
Gradient (in direction of ravel) Gradient 1720 to 1/50 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Camber (cross footway) Camber 1/20 to 1/50 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Vehicle Access
Vehicle Crossover Mo crossover 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Blue Badge Parking Blue badge parking 100 m to 500 m away 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 2 1
Taxi Drop Off Location Tavi drop off 10 m to 100 m away 3 3 2 3 3 3 1 3 s 3 3 3
Tawi Drop Off Kerb Taui drop off kerb > 150 mm [« I 4 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3
Dedicated Taxi Drop Off Diedicated taxi drop off point / tax rank 3 - ] 3 3 - 3 =
Bue Stop Location Within 100 m 3 - 3 s 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Kerb Height 125 mm to 140 mm 3 3 4 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Type Flag only 3 3 2 3 1 3 3 3 1 3 2 2
Toilets
Accessibls Tolets Further than 500 m away X 2 2 T 3 3 3 3 3 T 3 2
‘Changing Places Toilets More than 500 m away 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1
The City of London Strest Accessibility Tool (CoLSAT) was developed Hoss %
Published September 2022 by Ross Atkin Associates and Urban Movement for the City of Londan m Atkin 3
Corporation. Associates
LONDON




Aldgate — via Aldgate Square and St Botolph Street: Existing Layout

NS
oL A

v12

Crossing Point

Step 1

Set each of the drop downs below to best describe the street
characteristics for the section being analysed

Step 2

Step 3

Review the results for each needs segment b Hover the cursor over the box next to each score to read quotes explaining how participants

MWC Ms

in the segment are affected by the feature

DERREBRREEN

ANI

Comments

Crossing Type Uncontrolled crossing = 6 m road width 3 3 A 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
Crosses Over Carriageway (motor vehicles and cycles together) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Edge Marking Mo tactile edge marking 3 3 2 3 E a 1 1 3 E 2 -
Kerb Drop Slope Kerb drop 1/6, 9.5 deg, 17% to 1/12, 4.7deq, 8% incline 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 2 3 3
Kerb Drop Tactile Kerb drop without tactile paving 3 s 3 2 3 2 2 3 3 A 3 1
Surface Material
Surface Type Smooth York Stone 3 3 3 3 E e E 3 EllL ] 3 3
Pattern Uniform paving colour 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 E 3
Contrast with Read Lower tonal contrast between paving and road 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 3 3 3
Lines yellowirediwhite lines at road edge 3 3 e 3 3 3 3 s 3 E E s
Kerb
Kerb Type (crossing over) Crossing upstand 0 mm to 3 mm (undelineated) 3 - 3 3 -—-—- 1 2 A 2 1
Type {(moving alongside) Deliniating upstand 0 mm to 3 mm (undelineated) 3 3 2 2 1 3 3 2 2 1
ootway Width
idth Footway width 2 m to 5 m 3 3 3 A 3
obstructed Width Min uncbstructed width = 1.5m 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Qmeet Furniture
[Rsition Street furniturs = 0.5 m from kerb 3 3 3 2 3
fe Tables Mo cafe tables 3 3 3
(05 i Notamporary abstucions N - | —
jeet Furniture Height Street furniture = 0.9 m height 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Contrast Low tonal contrast with paving 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 =
Bench Spating Bench within 150 m 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Design Benches with arms + Backrests 3 3 e . - 3 3 E
Bench Seat Height Benches seat height 45 to 50 em 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Sensory Experience Good sensory experience (textures, planting, sound, colour) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Slopes
Gradient (in direction of travel) Gradient 1/20 to 1/50 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Camber (across footway) Camber 1/20 to 1/50 3 = 3 3 3 3 3 3
Vehicle Access
Wehicle Crossover Crossover level 3 2 3 2 A 2 1 2
Blue Badge Parking Blue badge parking 100 m to 500 m away 3 3 3 3 3 3
Taxi Drop Off Location Taxi drop off within 10 m [ . 3 I D D
Taxi Drop Off Kerb Tavi drop off kerb 100 mm to 150 mm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Dedicated Taxi Drop Off Somewhers a taxi can stop safely 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Location Within 100 m 3 - e 3 s 3 E
Bus Stop Kerb Height 125 mm to 140 mm 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Type Shelter + perch seat 3 3 2 3 3
Toilets
Accessible Toilets Within 100 m 3 3 3
Changing Places Toilets Within 500 m 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
The City of London Strest Accessibility Tool (CoLSAT) was developed Hoss
Published September 2022 by Ress Atkin Associates and Urban Mevement for the City of Londen Atkin
Corporation. Associates aTy

LONDON




Queen Victoria Street — Section 1: Proposed Layout

C s T Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
o L A Set each of the drop downs below to best describe the strest Review the results for each needs segment b Hover the cursor over the box next to each score to read quotes explaining how participants
Clty of Londan Streat Accessibility Tool characteristics for the section being analysed in the segment are affected by the feature
v iz I w
= N
EWC MWC MS WA Wi LC GD RS HI ANI AT DI Comments
Crossing Point
Crossing Type Controlled crossing (any read width) 3
Crosses Over Carriageway (motor vehicles and cycles together) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Edge Marking 800 mm deep tactile paving edge marking (full width of flush area) 3 3 E 3 1 3 3 E 3 3 E 3
Tactie Paving Back Edge Back edge offset from kerb edge 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3
Tactie Paving Colour Tactile colour not as per guidance 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Tonal Contrast  Tacile without significant contrast with surounding paving 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Stem Length  Tactile stem > 0.5 m from building line 3 3 3 3 A 2 3 3 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Stem Width ~ Tactile stem 800 mm width 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 E A 3 3
Kerb Drop Slope Kerb drop 1/6, 9.5 deg, 17% to 1/12, 4.7deg, 8% incline 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 2 3 3
Kerb Drop Tactile Kerb drop with tactile paving 3 2 3 1 3 3 3 3 3 3
Signal (red/green man) Far side signal 3 2 3 3
Audible (beeping) Audible 3 3 e 3 -
Count Down Count down | 4 3 3 .4 3 3 3
Tactile Rotating Cone Rotating cone right side only 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3
Surface Material
Surface Type Smaoth York Stone 3 3 3 3 E E E 3 3 3 3
Pattern Uniform paving colour 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 3
Contrast with Road Higher tonal contrast between paving and road 3 3 3 e 3 3 3 - 3 - 3 -
Lines Yellow/red/white lines at road edge 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 oy
Kerb
Kerb Type (crossing over) Crossing Upstand 0 mm to 3 mm + 800 tactile paving [y 3 dE E 2 ER | 3 R 3 3
Kerb Type (moving alongside) Deliniating kerb 50 mm to 100 mm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 E 3
otway Width
idth Footway width2 m to 5 m 3 3 3 E 3 3 E E
hobstructed Width Min unobstructed width > 1.5 m 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Qtreet Furniture
tion Street fumniture < 0 5 m from kerb 3 3 3 d hd 3 2 3 3 3
fe Tables No cafe tables 3 3 3 3 3
porary ltems No temporary obstructions - - - | - | | -
Furniture Height Street fumiture > 0.9 m height 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
ntrast Low tonal contrast with paving 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 2 3 2 2
Bench Spacing Bench within 150 m 3 3 3 3 3 3 g 3
Bench Design Benches with arms + Backrests 3 3 . . 3 3 - 3 3
Bench Seat Height Benches multiple seat heights > 50 cm and < 45 cm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Sensory Experience No sensory experience 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Slopes
Gradient (in direction of travel) Gradient 1712 to 120 3 2z 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 F 3 3
Camber (across footway) Camber 1/20 to 1/50 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Vehicle Access
Vehicle Crossover Crossover dropped 3 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 3 2 3 3
Blue Badge Parking Blue badge parking Within 100 m _— 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Taxi Drop Off Location Taxi drop off 10 m to 100 m away 3 3 2 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 3
Taxi Drop Off Kerb Taxi drop off kerb < 100 mm 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 2
Dedicated Taxi Drop Off Dedicated taxi drop off point / taxi rank 3 3 - 4 3 3 - 3 E s
Bus Stop Location Within 100 m 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Kerb Haight 125 mm to 140 mm 3 3 4 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Type Shelter + perch seat 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3
Toilets
Accessible Toilets 100 m to 500 m away 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3
Changing Places Toilets Within 500 m 3 e 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 e
The City of London Street Accessibility Tool (CoLSAT) was developed Ross
Published September 2022 by Ross Atkin Associates and Urban Movement for the City of London m AtkSH L=
Corporation. Associates ciry
LONDON




Queen Victoria Street — Section 2: Proposed Layout

C s T Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
o L A Set each of the drop downs below to best describe the strest Review the results for each needs segment b Hover the cursor over the box next to each score to read quotes explaining how participants
City of Londen Straet Accmseity oot ChEMACHEristics for the section being analysed in the segment are affected by the feature
Of  §7: ool
wi Lc GD RS HI ANI AT Dl Comments
Crossing Point
Crossing Type Controlled crossing (any road width) 3
Crosses Over Carriageway (motor vehicles and cycles together) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 [
Edge Marking 800 mm deep tactile paving edge marking (full width of flush area) 3 3 s 3 1 3 3 s 3 3 = 3
Tactie Paving Back Edge Back edge offset from kerb edge 3 3 3 3 3 = 2 3 3 3 3 3
Tactie Paving Colour Tactile colour not as per guidance 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Tonal Contrast Tacile without significant contrast with surcunding paving 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 H 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Stem Length  Tactile stem within 0.5 m of building line 3 3 3 3 i s 3 3 3 3 A 3
Tactile Paving Stem Width  Tactile stem 800 mm width 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 IE = 3 3
Kerb Drop Slope Kerb drop 1/, 9.5 deg, 17% to 1/12, 4.7deq, 8% incline 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 2 3 3
Kerb Drop Tactile Kerb drop with tactile paving 3 2 3 1 3 3 3 3 3 3
Signal (redigreen man) Far side signal 3 [a 2 3 - - - 3
Audible (besping) Audible 3 3 3 -
Count Down Count down | a 3 3 s 3 3 3
Tactile Rotating Cone Rotating cone right side only 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3
Surface Material
Surface Type Smooth York Stone 3 3 3 3 Dd DR aE 3 3 s 3 3
Patten Uniferm paving colour 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 s 3
Contrast with Road Higher tonal contrast between paving and road 3 3 3 3 3 3 - 3 - 3 -
Linss ‘ellowlrediwhite lines at road edge 3 3 [E 3 3 3 3 3 L4
Kerb
Kerb Type (crossing over) Crossing Upstand O mm to 3 mm + 800 tactle paving = 3 E ha 2 ER ] 3 3 A 3 3
Type (moving alongside] Deliniating kerb 50 mm to 100 mm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
otway Width
idth Footway width 2 m o 5 m | N e e 3 3 3 3 3 I
obstructed Width Min uncbstructed width = 1.5 m 3 3 3 3 3 A 3 3 E 3 3 3
(gtmet Furniture
[Esifion Street furniture < 0.5 m from kerb 3 3 3 E  a 3 2 3 D E 3 3
Cgle Tables Cafe tables without *protection’ 3 2 2 2 7 2 3 3 2 3 3
porary liems No temporary obsructions [ s e e s N e e e e
cmet Furniture Height Street furniture > 0.9 m height 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
trast Low tonal contrast with paving 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 2 3 3 5 2
Bench Spating Bench between 150 m and 400 m away 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Design Benches without backrests or amms 3 3 2 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 3 3
Bench Seat Height Benches multiple seat heights = 50 cm and < 45 cm 3 3 3 E s 3 3 3 e 3 3 3
Bench Sensory Experience Mo sensory experience 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Slopes
Gradient (in direction of travel) Gradient < 1150 T DE hE A 3 3 3 d 3 A 3 3
Camber (across footway) Camber 120 to 1/50 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Vehicle Access
Vehicle Crossover Crossover dropped 3 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 3 2 3 3
Blue Badge Parking Blue badge parking Within 100 m (. 3 3 3 3 3 K 3 3 3 3 3
Taud Drop Off Location Taui drop off 10 m to 100 m away 3 3 2 3 3 3 1 3 s 3 3 3
Taud Drop Off Kerb Taui drop off kerb 100 mm to 150 mm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
Dedicated Tz Drop Off Somewhere a taxi can stop safely 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Location Within 100 m 3 e 3 E 3 e 3 3 3
Bus Stop Kerb Height 125 mm to 140 mm 3 3 4 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Type Shelter + perch seat 3 3 3 3 2 3 s 3 A 3 3 3
Toilets
Accessible Tollets Within 100 m 3 3 3 3 3
Changing Places Toilets Within 500 m 3 3 3 3 3 3 s s
The City of London Street Accessibility Tool (CoLSAT) was developed o o
Published September 2022 by Ross Atkin Associates and Urban Movement for the City of London Atkin 3
Corporation. Associates cITY
LONDON




Queen Victoria Street — Section 3: Proposed Layout

s T
oL A

ity o Loadon Street dczsssility Tool

c

Step 1

Set each of the drop downs below to best describe the strest
charactenstics for the section being analysad

Step 2 Step 3

Review the results for each needs segment b Hover the cursor over the box next to each score to read quotes explaining how participants
in the segment are affected by the feature

2 JOR ? Jv:Joofl O
EWC MWC  MS WA wi Lc (= RS HI AN AT Dl Comments
Crossing Point
Crossing Typs Controlled crossing (any road width) 3
Crosses Over Carriageway (motor vehicles and cycles togather) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 [E
Edge Marking B00 mm deep tactile paving edge marking (full width of flush area) E 3 3 1 3 Y 3 3 E 3
Tactie Paving Back Edge Back edge offset from kerb edge 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3
Tactie Paving Colour Taciile colour not as per guidance 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Tonal Contrast  Tacile without significant contrast with surounding paving 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Stem Length  Taciile stem within 0.5 m of building line 3 3 3 3 1 e 3 3 3 3 e 3
Tactile Paving Stem Width  Tactile stem 800 mm width 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 E .. 3 3
Kerb Drop Slope Kerb drop 1/6, 8.5 deg, 17% to 112, 4 7deg, 8% incline 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 2 3 3
Kerb Drop Tactile Kerb drop with tactile paving 3 2 3 1 3 3 3 3 3 3
Signal (red/green man) Far side signal 3 - 2 3 - - - . 3
Audible (beeping) Audible 3 B 3 -
Count Down Count down | 4 3 3 = 3 3 3
Tactile Rotating Cone Rotating cone right side cnly 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3
Surface Material
Surface Type Smooth York Stone 3 3 3 3 DE DE E 3 3 d E 3
Pattern Uniform paving colour 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 3
Contrast with Road Higher tonal contrast between paving and road 3 3 3 E 3 3 3 - 3 - 3 -
Lines ‘ellowirediwhite lines at road edge 3 3 e 3 3 3 3 3 I
Kerb
Kerb Type (crossing over) Crossing Upstand O mm to 3 mm + 800 tactile paving 2 3 d bha 2 3 A 3 ] 3 3
Kerb Type (moving alongside) Deliniating kerb 50 mm to 100 mm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 E 3
g)otwmr Width
it Footuray widh Zm o m | e s s 3 3 ER 3 3 e
(QYrobstructed Width Min uncbstructed width = 1.5 m 3 3 3 3 3 = 3 3 E 3 3 3
(D_btreet Furniture
Pgsition Street furniture < 0.5 m from kerb 3 3 ) 3 2 3 D E 3 3
fe Tables Cafe tables without ‘protection’ 3 3 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3
porary liems No temporary obstructions | s e s I N N e e
e=t Furniturs Height Strest furniturs = 0.3 m height 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
trast Low tonal contrast with paving 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 2 3 3 2 2
Bench Spacing Bench between 150 m and 400 m away 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Design Benches without backrests or arms 3 3 2 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 3 3
Bench Seat Height Benches multiple seat heights = 50 cm and <45 cm 3 3 3 E e 3 3 3 a 3 3 3
Bench Sensory Expenence No sensory expenence 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Slopes
Gradient (in direction of travel] Gradient < 1/50 T Dd DE E 3 3 3 d 3 3 3
Camber {across footway) Camber 1720 to 1/50 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Vehicle Access
ehicle Crossover Crossover dropped 3 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 3 2 3 3
Blue Badge Parking Blue badge parking Within 100 m ) 3 3 3 E 3 E 3 3 El 3 3
Taud Drop Off Location Tavi drop off 10 m to 100 m away 3 3 2 3 3 3 1 3 A 3 3 3
Taud Drop OFf Kerb Taui drop off kerb 100 mm to 150 mm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
Dedicated Taxi Drop Off Somewhere a taxi can stop safely 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Location Within 100 m 3 - E R R 3 - 3 3
Bus Stop Kerb Height 125 mm to 140 mm 3 3 | 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Type Flag only 3 3 2 1 3 3 3 1 3 2 2
Toilets
Eccessible Tollets Within 100 m 3 3 3 3 3
Changing Places Toilets Within 500 m 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 E e
The City of London Strest Accessibility Tool (CoLSAT) was developed .
Published September 2022 by Ross Atkin Associates and Urban Movement for the City of London Atkin
Corporation. Associates cITY

LONDON




Aldgate — via Aldgate Square and St Botolph Street: Proposed Layout

EEES Sy
oL A

Gity of London Strmet Acesseiiity Tost

Step 1

Set each of the drop downs below to best describe the street
characteristics for the section being analysed

Step 2 Step 3

Review the results for each needs segment b Hover the cursor over the box next to each score to read quotes explaining how participants
in the segment are affected by the feature

v iz I W
A\lA N\,
EWC  MWC MS WA wi Lc GD RS Hi ANI AT DI Comments
Crossing Point
Crossing Type Uncontrolled crossing < 6 m road width 3 3 A 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
Crosses Over Carmiageway (motor vehicles and cycles together) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 e
Edge Marking 800 mm deep tactile paving edge marking (full wicth of flush area) 3 3 e 3 1 3 3 = 3 3 - 3
Tactie Paving Back Edge Straight back edge 2 3 3 3 1 [E 3 3 7 2 . a
Tactie Paving Colour Tactile colour not as per guidance 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3
Tactile Paving Tonal Contrast Tactile has significant contrast with surrounding paving 3 3 e 3 s [ ] 3 3 3 3
Kerb Drop Slope Kerb drop < 112, 4.7deg, 8% incline 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 E
Surface Material
Surface Type Smooth York Stone 3 3 3 3 E DE s 3 3 A 3
Pattern Uniform paving colour 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Contrast with Road Lower tonal contrast betwsen paving and road 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 z 3 3
Lines yellowirediwhite lines at road edge 3 3 e 3 3 3 3 = 3 s ]
Kerb
Kerb Type (crossing over) Crossing upstand 0 mm to 3 mm + 500 tactile paving [ ER ) 2 3 3 3 3 3
Kerb Type {moving alongside) Deliniating upstand 0 mm to 3 mm + 800 tactile paving 3 E 3 3 2 3 2 3 3 2 3 3
TBhotway Width
g.!udm Footway width 2 m to 5 m 3 3 ER] 3 e R
nobstructed Width Min unobstructed width = 1.5m 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
treet Furniture
“Position Street furniture = 0.5 m from kerl 3 3 E s 3 2 3 3 3
fe Tables No cafe tables 3 3 3 3 3
Temporary ltems No temporary obstructions - - - [ - o s [ -
est Fumniture Height Street furniture > 0.9 m height 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
trast Low tonal contrast with paving 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 2 2 2
ch Spacing Bench within 150 m 3 3 3 - 3 3 3 E 3
Bench Design Benches with arms + Backrests 3 3 e . 3 3 - 3 3
Bench Seat Height Benches ssat height 45 to 50 cm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bench Sensory Experience  Good sensery experience (textures, planting, sound, colour) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 3
Slopes
Gradient (in direction of travel) Gradient 120 1o 1/50 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Camber (across footway) Camber 1/20 to 1/50 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Vehicle Access
"ehicle Crossaver Crossover level 3 2 3 2 2 1 2 3 2
Blue Badge Parking Blue badge parking 100 m to 500 m away 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 3 2 1
Tavi Drop Off Location Taui drop off within 10 m [ 3 I D E e .. I .
Tai Drop Off Kerb Tani drop off kerb 100 mm to 150 mm 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2
Dedicated Taxi Drop Off Somewhers a taxi can stop safety 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Location Within 100 m 3 - 4 3 3 s 3 3
Bus Stop Kerb Height 125 mm to 140 mm 3 3 4 3 3 3 3 3
Bus Stop Type Shelter = perch seat 3 3 3 2 E ] 3 3 3
Toilets
Accessible Toilets ‘Within 100 m 3 3 3 3
Changing Places Toilets Within 500 m 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 E e
9 £
The City of London Street Accessibiity Tool (CoLSAT) was developed o m
Published September 2022 by Ross Atkin Associates and Urban Movement for the City of London Atkin 3
Corporation. Associates Ty

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



EQUALITY ANALYSIS (EA) — Aldgate to

Blackfriars Cycleway

Decision Click or tap here to enter text. Date

What is the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED)?

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) is set out in the Equality Act 2010 (s.149).
This requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, to have ‘due
regard’ to the need to:

o
Q
«Q
(9]
=
w
~

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation

Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not, and

Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not

The characteristics protected by the Equality Act 2010 are:

Age

Disability

Gender reassignment
Marriage and civil partnership
Pregnancy and maternity
Race

Religion or belief

Sex (gender)

Sexual orientation

What is due regard?

It involves considering the aims of the duty in a way that is proportionate
to the issue at hand

Version Control Version:1.1
Author: Chris Attwood

Click or tap here to enter text.

The general equality duty does not specify how public authorities should analyse
the effect of their business activities on different groups of people. However, case
law has established that equality analysis is an important way public authorities can
demonstrate that they are meeting the requirements.

Case law has established the following principles apply to the PSED:

e Knowledge — the need to be aware of the requirements of the Equality
Duty with a conscious approach and state of mind.

o Sufficient Information — must be made available to the decision maker.

e Timeliness — the Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a
particular policy is under consideration or decision is taken not after it has
been taken.

e Real consideration — consideration must form an integral part of the
decision-making process. It is not a matter of box-ticking; it must be
exercised in substance, with rigour and with an open mind in such a way
that it influences the final decision.

e Sufficient information — the decision maker must consider what
information he or she has and what further information may be needed in
order to give proper consideration to the Equality Duty.

e No delegation — public bodies are responsible for ensuring that any third
parties which exercise functions on their behalf are capable of complying
with the Equality Duty, are required to comply with it, and that they do so
in practice. It is a duty that cannot be delegated.

Last updated: 29 June 2022
Date of next review: TBC



e Ensuring real consideration is given to the aims and the impact of policies
with rigour and with an open mind in such a way that is influences the final
decision

e Due regard should be given before and during policy formation and when a
decision is taken including cross cutting ones as the impact can be
cumulative.

What is an Equality Analysis (EA)?

An equality analysis is a risk assessment tool that examines whether different
groups of people are, or could be, disadvantaged by service provision and decisions
made. It involves using quality information, and the results of any engagement or
consultation with particular reference to the protected characteristics to
understand the actual effect or the potential impact of policy and decision making
decisions taken.

T

e equality analysis should be conducted at the outset of a project and should
anform policy formulation/proposals. It cannot be left until the end of the

H¥ocess.

w
co

The purpose of the equality analysis process is to:
e Identify unintended consequences and mitigate against them as far as
possible, and
e Actively consider ways to advance equality and foster good relations.

The objectives of the equality analysis are to:

e Identify opportunities for action to be taken to advance quality of
opportunity in the widest sense;

e Try and anticipate the requirements of all service users potentially
impacted;

e Find out whether or not proposals can or do have any negative impact on
any particular group or community and to find ways to avoid or minimise
them;

Version Control Version:1.1
Author: Chris Attwood

Review — the duty is not only applied when a policy is developed and
decided upon, but also when it is implemented and reviewed.

However, there is no requirement to:

Produce an equality analysis or an equality impact assessment
Indiscriminately collect diversity data where equalities issues are not
significant

Publish lengthy documents to show compliance

Treat everyone the same. Rather, it requires public bodies to think about
people’s different needs and how these can be met

Make service homogenous or to try to remove or ignore differences
between people.

An equality analysis should indicate improvements in the way policy and services
are formulated. Even modest changed that lea to service improvements are
important. In it is not possible to mitigate against any identified negative impact,
then clear justification should be provided for this.

By undertaking and equality analysis officers will be able to:

Explore the potential impact of proposals before implementation and
improve them by eliminating any adverse effects and increasing the
positive effects for equality groups

Contribute to community cohesion by identifying opportunities to foster
good relations between different groups

Target resource more effectively

Identify direct or indirect discrimination in current policies and services and
improve them by removing or reducing barriers to equality

Last updated: 29 June 2022
Date of next review: TBC



e Integrate equality diversity and inclusion considerations into the everyday
business and enhance service planning;

e Improve the reputation of the City Corporation as an organisation that
listens to all of its communities;

e Encourage greater openness and public involvement.

How to demonstrate compliance

The Key point about demonstrating compliance with the duty are to:
e Collate sufficient evidence to determine whether changes being considered will have a potential impact on different groups.
e Ensure decision makers are aware of the analysis that has been undertaken and what conclusions have been reached on the possible implications.
e Keep adequate records of the full decision making process.

In addition to the protected groups, it may be relevant to consider the impact of a policy, decision or service on other disadvantaged groups that do not readily fall within
the protected characteristics, such as children in care, people who are affected by socio-economic disadvantage or who experience significant exclusion or isolation
because of poverty or income, education, locality, social class or poor health, ex-offenders, asylum seekers, people who are unemployed, homeless or on a low income.

o
ggomplying with the Equality Duty may involve treating some people better than others, as far as this is allowed by discrimination law. For example, it may involve making
@se of an exception or the positive action provisions in order to provide a service in a way which is appropriate for people who share a protected characteristic — such as

@oviding computer training to older people to help them access information and services.

©

Taking account of disabled people’s disabilities

The Equality Duty also explicitly recognises that disabled people’s needs may be different from those of non-disabled people. Public bodies should therefore take account
of disabled people’s impairments when making decisions about policies or services. This might mean making reasonable adjustments or treating disabled people better
than non-disabled people in order to meet their needs.

Deciding what needs to be assessed

The following questions can help determine relevance to equality:
e Does the policy affect service users, employees or the wider community, including City businesses?
e How many people are affected and how significant is the impact on them?
o Isit likely to affect people with particular protected characteristics differently?
e s it a major policy, significantly affecting how functions are delivered?
e Will the policy have a significant impact on how other organisations operate in terms of equality?
e Does the policy relate to functions that engagement has identified as being important to people with particular protected characteristics?

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 29 June 2022
Author: Chris Attwood Date of next review: TBC



e Does the policy relate to an area with known inequalities?
e Does the policy relate to any equality objectives that have been set?

Consider:

e How the aims of the policy relate to equality.
e Which aspects of the policy are most relevant to equality?
e Aims of the general equality duty and which protected characteristics the policy is most relevant to.

If it is not clear if a policy or decision needs to be assessed through an equality analysis, a Test of Relevance screening tool has been designed to assist officers in
determining whether or not a policy or decision will benefit from a full equality analysis.

Completing the Test of Relevance screening also provides a formal record of decision making and reasoning. It should be noted that the PSED continues up to and after
the final decision is taken and so any Test of Relevance and/or full Equality Analysis should be reviewed and evidenced again if there is a change in strategy or decision.

Role of the assessor

assessor’s role is to make sure that an appropriate analysis is undertaken. This Depending on the subject it may be helpful and easier to involve others. Input from

(&@an be achieved by making sure that the analysis is documented by focussing on another service area or from a related area might bring a fresh perspective and
entifying the real impact of the decision and set out any mitigation or challenge aspects differently.
Joprovements that can be delivered where necessary.
© In addition, those working in the customer facing roles will have a particularly
Who else is involved? helpful perspective. Some proposals will be cross-departmental and need a joint
Chief Officers are responsible for overseeing the equality analysis proves within approach to the equality analysis.

departments to ensure that equality analysis exercises are conducted according to
the agreed format and to a consistent standard. Departmental equality
representatives are key people to consult when undertaking an equality analysis.

How to carry out an Equality Analysis (EA)

There are five stages to completing an Equality Analysis, which are outlined in 2.3 — Developing an action plan — set out the action you will take to improve the
detail in the Equality Analysis toolkit and flowchart: positive impact and / or the mitigation action needed to eliminate or reduce any
adverse impact that you have identified;

2.1 Completing the information gathering and research stage — gather as much
relevant equality-related information, data or research as possible in relation to the | 2.4 Director approval and sign off of the equality analysis — include the findings
policy or proposal, including any engagement or consultation with those affected; from the EA in your report or add as an appendix including the action plan;

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 29 June 2022
Author: Chris Attwood Date of next review: TBC



2.2 Analyse the evidence — make and assessment of the impact or effect on 2.5 Monitor and review — monitor the delivery of the action plan and ensure that
different equality groups; changes arising from the assessment are implemented.

T T obed

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 29 June 2022
Author: Chris Attwood Date of next review: TBC



The Proposal

Assessor Name: Click or tap here to enter text. Contact Details: Click or tap here to enter text.

1. What is the Proposal

Aldgate to Blackfriars Cycleway is part of the City’s Transport Strategy core cycling network. The key objective is to encourage more people to cycle by creating safer cycle
facilities. This will be achieved by delivering infrastructure that will separate people cycling from general traffic or where this is not feasible, cyclists will mix with traffic
where motorised vehicle volumes are less than 150 vehicles / per hour each way during the busiest time.

The preliminary scheme outline has been designed for a cycleway route between Aldgate and Blackfriars in which a EA has been considered, however there are several
interdependencies with other projects/ developments along the route that have not been assessed. The two projects tied into the cycleway route are All Change at Bank
Project and the Leadenhall Street Pedestrian Priority/City Cluster Project. It has been assumed these are proceeding in a form that reduces traffic flows to a level that
does not require segregation for cyclists and that these are outside of the scope of this EA and will thus require a separate Test of Relevance/ EA.

What are the recommendations?
e key recommendations of the scheme include:

o
j8b)
«Q
D
ﬁ.
N
e A Puddle Dock link providing a cycle connection with the existing Cycleway 3 and 6.
e A bi-directional segregated cycle lane along Queen Victoria Street (between New Bridge Street and Queen Street) where cycle volumes exceed acceptable levels
to mix cyclists with traffic
e Changes to bus stop locations along on Queen Victoria Street, including the introduction of two bus stop bypasses
e Cyclists to mix with traffic along Queen Victoria Street (between Queen Street and Bank junction) and Cornbhill, where traffic is expected to be low due to the
Bank Junction traffic restrictions
e Cyclists to mix with traffic on Leadenhall Street, where traffic volumes are expected to be reduced by the modal filter delivered by the Leadenhall Street
Pedestrian Priority Project.
e Aldgate / Aldgate High Street is not feasible to reduce the traffic volumes or provide protected cycle lanes along this link due to network and physical constraints.
As a result, the cycle route to be diverted onto Aldgate Square and St Botolph Street
e Segregated cycle lanes on St Botolph Street where traffic volumes exceed acceptable levels to mix cyclists. A bus stop bypass is also proposed on St Botolph
Street to provide continuous cycling and help protect bus journey times

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 29 June 2022
Author: Chris Attwood Date of next review: TBC



3. Who is affected by the Proposal?

The proposals aim to positively impact all age groups and people with disability, however, due to the reduction in kerb side accessibility, some elderly people and/or

people with reduced mobility may be negatively impacted.

Age

Check this box if NOT applicable D

Age - Additional Equalities Data (Service Level or Corporate) include data analysis of the impact of the proposals

No additional equalities data on this protected characteristic is available at this time.

What is the proposal’s impact on the equalities aim?

The proposals aim to provide a positive impact on all age groups by creating safer
cycling facilities to encourage people to cycle as an alternative mode of travel.

Older people also have the most to gain from the health benefits of active travel, as
Tow activity levels affect their risk to a wide range of diseases, long term health and
&ell-being. Creating safer road conditions by reducing motor vehicle traffic will
Meate an environment where they can be more confident to walk and cycle.

H

gme elderly people may be negatively impacted by the reduction in kerb side
accessibility and therefore reduced opportunities for pick-up or drop-off along the
northern side of Queen Victoria Street.

Key borough statistics:

The City has proportionately more people aged between 25 and 69 living in the
Square Mile than Greater London. Conversely there are fewer young people.
Approximately 955 children and young people under the age of 18 years live in the
City. This is 11.8% of the total population in the area. Summaries of the City of
London age profiles from the 2011 Census can be found on our website.

Version Control Version:1.1
Author: Chris Attwood

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative
impact or to better advance equality and foster good relations?

There are sufficient parking/loading opportunities available on the southern side of
Queen Victoria Street and nearby side streets that help to mitigate against the
reduction in kerbside accessibility. Additionally, the proposed loading bay facility
on the northern side of Queen Victoria Street (between the junction of Friday
Street and Cannon Street) could be used for pick-up/ drop-off needs.

Consultation of the scheme will be undertaken, which will ensure that this
equalities group in appropriately engaged and their views are recorded and fed in
to the design process.

A number of demographics and projections for Demographics can be found on the
Greater London Authority website in the London Data Store. The site details
statistics for the City of London and other London authorities at a ward level:

e Population projections

NB: These statistics provide general data for these protected characteristics. You
need to ensure you have sufficient data about those affected by the proposal.

Last updated: 29 June 2022
Date of next review: TBC



Disability

Check this box if NOT applicable |:|

Disability - Additional Equalities Data (Service Level or Corporate) include data analysis of the impact of the proposals

No additional equalities data on this protected characteristic is available at this time.

What is the proposal’s impact on the equalities aim?

The proposals aim to provide a positive impact on people with disability by
upgrading existing cycle facilities to make them safer and more legible to those
who use adapted bicycles.

Pedestrian facilities are kept broadly the same as existing with some areas of new
footway for additional pedestrian space.

At the junction of Queen Victoria Street/ Puddle Dock the pedestrian crossing on
the eastern arm is proposed to be removed but this is not expected to cause a
qpnificant detriment to disabled users due to crossing on the remaining two arms
(gf the junction.
D

Eo facilitate the new segregated cycleway, some sections along the route require
Bt back of the existing footway. However sufficient width is maintained for
wheelchair users and other accessibility needs.

Some people with disability may be negatively impacted by the reduction in kerb
side accessibility and therefore reduced opportunities for pick-up or drop-off along
the northern side of Queen Victoria Street.

Some disabled people may also be negatively impacted by the introduction of bus
stop bypasses which would require crossing the cycle lane in order to access the
bus. This could potentially be confusing or create a safety risk for some people,
particularly people with disability, when waiting for, boarding or alighting from a
bus.

Key borough statistics:

Version Control Version:1.1
Author: Chris Attwood

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative
impact or to better advance equality and foster good relations?

There are sufficient parking/loading opportunities available on the southern side of
Queen Victoria Street and nearby side streets that help to mitigate against the
reduction in kerbside accessibility. Additionally, the proposed loading bay facility on
the northern side of Queen Victoria Street (between the junction of Friday Street
and Cannon Street) could be used for pick-up/ drop-off needs.

To help mitigate against the potential conflict with crossing the cycle lane at bus
stop bypasses, a mini-zebra crossing is proposed across the cycle lane to emphasise
pedestrian priority to cross the cycle lane and highlighting to cyclists that they need
to give way at this point. Additionally, tactile paving is proposed on either side of
the mini-zebra crossing to enable anyone with a visual impairment to find this point
for crossing the cycle lane.

The use of corduroy tactile paving along the length of the floating bus stop will be
reviewed during the detailed design process.

Consultation of the scheme will be undertaken, which will ensure that those with
disabilities are appropriately engaged and their views are recorded and fed in to the
design process.

The 2011 Census identified that for the City of London’s population:
o 4.4% (328) had a disability that limited their day-to-day activities a lot

Last updated: 29 June 2022
Date of next review: TBC



Day-to-day activities can be limited by disability or long term illness — In the City of
London as a whole, 89% of the residents feel they have no limitations in their
activities — this is higher than both in England and Wales (82%) and Greater

e 7.1% (520) had a disability that limited their day-to-day activities a little

Source: 2011 Census: Long-term health problem or disability, local authorities in
England and Wales

London (86%). In the areas outside the main housing estates, around 95% of the
residents responded that their activities were not limited. Additional information
on Disability and Mobility data, London, can be found on the London Datastore.

Check this box if NOT applicable

Pregnancy and Maternity

Pregnancy and Maternity - Additional Equalities Data (Service Level or Corporate) include data analysis of the impact of the proposals
No additional equalities data on this protected characteristic is available at this time.

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative
impact or to better advance equality and foster good relations?

Consultation of the scheme will be undertaken, which will ensure that this
equalities group in appropriately engaged and their views are recorded and fed in
to the design process.

What is the proposal’s impact on the equalities aim?
The scheme aims to provide a positive impact on pregnant women and parents
with young children that use trolleys or bike trailers due to anticipated improved
d-?fe cycling facilities.
«Q

NB: These statistics provide general data for these protected characteristics. You

D
&y borough statistics:
need to ensure you have sufficient data about those affected by the proposal.

$nder the theme of population, the ONS website has a large number of data
collections grouped under:

e Contraception and Fertility Rates

e Live Births

Ra ce Check this box if NOT applicable

Race - Additional Equalities Data (Service Level or Corporate) include data analysis of the impact of the proposals
No additional equalities data on this protected characteristic is available at this time.

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative
impact or to better advance equality and foster good relations?

Consultation of the scheme will be undertaken, which will ensure that all races are
appropriately engaged and their views are recorded and fed in to the design
process.

What is the proposal’s impact on the equalities aim?

The Equality Analysis has identified positive impacts on of the scheme on race. The
proposed scheme will create safer cycling facilities to encourage people to cycle.

Last updated: 29 June 2022
Date of next review: TBC

Version Control Version:1.1
Author: Chris Attwood



Based on recent data published by TfL in October 2021, for the first time Black,
Asian and minority ethnic Londoners were almost as likely have cycled in
2020/2021 as white Londoners. One in five people who do not cycle are now
actively considering cycling, which could increase participation levels to more than
40 per cent of Londoners. The research also found that half of Black and Asian non-
cyclists (49 per cent and 46 per cent respectively) are open to starting to cycling.
Personal safety was a bigger concern to Asian and mixed ethnicity Londoners. The
research found that that protected cycle routes on busy streets, less traffic on
minor streets, and more secure cycle parking could help address barriers to cycling
faced by people from diverse backgrounds.

Also, despite low participation levels, a recent study found that 55% of people from
ethnic minority groups who do not currently cycle would like to start. The report
noted that tackling safety, through protected cycle lanes and low-traffic
neighbourhoods, is critical.

There is no evidence to demonstrate any negative impact on race.
Key borough statistics:

ur resident population is predominantly white. The largest minority ethnic groups

children and young people in the area are Asian/Bangladeshi and Mixed — Asian

and White. The City has a relatively small Black population, less than London and
Jogland and Wales. Children and young people from minority ethnic groups
@2count for 41.71% of all children living in the area, compared with 21.11%
nationally. White British residents comprise 57.5% of the total population, followed
by White-Other at 19%.

Religion or Belief

The second largest ethnic group in the resident population is Asian, which totals
12.7% - this group is fairly evenly divided between Asian/Indian at 2.9%;
Asian/Bangladeshi at 3.1%; Asian/Chinese at 3.6% and Asian/Other at 2.9%. The
City of London has the highest percentage of Chinese people of any local authority
in London and the second highest in England and Wales. The City of London has a
relatively small Black population comprising 2.6% of residents. This is considerably
lower than the Greater London wide percentage of 13.3% and also smaller than the
percentage for England and Wales of 3.3%.

See ONS Census information or Greater London Authority projections.

NB: These statistics provide general data for these protected characteristics. You
need to ensure you have sufficient data about those affected by the proposal.

Check this box if NOT applicable

Religion or Belief - Additional Equalities Data (Service Level or Corporate) include data analysis of the impact of the proposals

No additional equalities data on this protected characteristic is available at this time.

What is the proposal’s impact on the equalities aim?

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative
impact or to better advance equality and foster good relations?

Last updated: 29 June 2022
Date of next review: TBC

Version Control Version:1.1
Author: Chris Attwood



There is no evidence to demonstrate any positive or negative impact on this
equalities group.

Key borough statistics — sources include:

The ONS website has a number of data collections on religion and belief, grouped
under the theme of religion and identity.

Religion in England and Wales provides a summary of the Census 2011 by ward
level

Sex

Consultation of the scheme will be undertaken, which will ensure that all religions

are appropriately engaged and their views are recorded and fed in to the design
process.

NB: These statistics provide general data for these protected characteristics. You
need to ensure you have sufficient data about those affected by the proposal.

Check this box if NOT applicable

Sex - Additional Equalities Data (Service Level or Corporate) include data analysis of the impact of the proposals

No additional equalities data on this protected characteristic is available at this time.

What is the proposal’s impact on the equalities aim?
e Equality Analysis has identified positive impacts on of the scheme on women.
ﬁsed on recent data published by TfL in October 2021, personal safety during
‘%/cling is a bigger concern for women, with 73 per cent of women citing is as a
concern for cycling. Therefore, creating safer cycling facilities will increase the
Jpropensity of women who are concerned about personal safety to cycle.

\l
There is no evidence to demonstrate any negative impact on sex.
Key borough statistics:

At the time of the 2011 Census the usual resident population of the City of London
could be broken up into:

e 4,091 males (55.5%)
e 3,284 females (44.5%)

Sexual Orientation and Gender Reassignment

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative

impact or to better advance equality and foster good relations?

Consultation of the scheme will be undertaken, which will ensure all people are

appropriately engaged and their views are recorded and fed in to the design
process.

A number of demographics and projections for demographics can be found on the
Greater London Authority website in the London Data Store. The site details
statistics for the City of London and other London authorities at a ward level:

e Population projections

NB: These statistics provide general data for these protected characteristics. You
need to ensure you have sufficient data about those affected by the proposal.

Check this box if NOT applicable

Sexual Orientation and Gender Reassignment - Additional Equalities Data (Service Level or Corporate) include data analysis of the impact

of the proposals

No additional equalities data on this protected characteristic is available at this time.

Version Control Version:1.1
Author: Chris Attwood

Last updated: 29 June 2022
Date of next review: TBC



What is the proposal’s impact on the equalities aim?

There is no evidence to demonstrate any positive or negative impact on this
equalities group.

Key borough statistics:

e Sexual Identity in the UK— ONS 2014
e Measuring Sexual Identity - ONS

Marriage and Civil Partnership

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative
impact or to better advance equality and foster good relations?

Consultation of the scheme will be undertaken, which will ensure that all people
are appropriately engaged and their views are recorded and fed in to the design
process.

NB: These statistics provide general data for these protected characteristics. You
need to ensure you have sufficient data about those affected by the proposal.

Check this box if NOT applicable

Marriage and Civil Partnership - Additional Equalities Data (Service Level or Corporate) include data analysis of the impact of the proposals

No additional equalities data on this protected characteristic is available at this time.

What is the proposal’s impact on the equalities aim?
ere is no evidence to demonstrate any positive or negative impact on this

‘%qualities group.
H

AN

co
Key borough statistics — sources include:

e The 2011 Census contain data broken up by local authority on marital and

civil partnership status

Version Control Version:1.1
Author: Chris Attwood

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative
impact or to better advance equality and foster good relations?

Consultation of the scheme will be undertaken, which will ensure that all people
are appropriately engaged and their views are recorded and fed in to the design
process.

NB: These statistics provide general data for these protected characteristics. You
need to ensure you have sufficient data about those affected by the proposal.

Last updated: 29 June 2022
Date of next review: TBC



Additional Impacts on Advancing Equality and Fostering Good Relations  check this box if NOT applicable X

Additional Equalities Data (Service Level or Corporate)
No additional equalities data is available at this time.

Are there any additional benefits or risks of the proposals on advancing equality and fostering good relations not considered
above?

There are no additional benefits or risks of the proposals other than those mentioned above.

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative impact on advancing equality or fostering good relations not
considered above? Provide details of how effective the mitigation will be and how it will be monitored.
There are no further actions or mitigations to be considered other than those mentioned above.

This section seeks to identify what additional steps can be taken to promote these aims or to mitigate any adverse impact. Analysis should be based on the data you have
collected above for the protected characteristics covered by these aims.

In addition to the sources of the information highlighted above — you may also want to consider using:

e Equality monitoring data in relation to take-up and satisfaction of the service
e Equality related employment data where relevant

g e Generic or targeted consultation results or research that is available locally, London-wide or nationally

LC% e Complaints and feedback from different groups.

H

SN

©

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 29 June 2022

Author: Chris Attwood Date of next review: TBC



Additional Impacts on Social Mobility Check this box if NOT applicable X

Additional Social Mobility Data (Service level or Corporate)
No additional equalities data is available at this time.

Are there any additional benefits or risks of the proposals on advancing Social Mobility?
There are no additional benefits or risks of the proposals other than those mentioned above.

What actions can be taken to avoid or mitigate any negative impact on advancing Social Mobility not considered above? provide
details of how effective the mitigation will be and how it will be monitored.
There are no further actions or mitigations to be considered other than those mentioned above.
This section seeks to identify what additional steps can be taken to promote the aims or to mitigate any adverse impact on social mobility. This is a voluntary
requirement (agreed as policy by the Corporation) and does not have the statutory obligation relating to protected characteristics contained in the Equalities Act 2010.
Analysis should be based on the data you have available on social mobility and the access of all groups to employment and other opportunities. In addition to the sources
of information highlighted above — you may also want to consider using:

e Social Mobility employment data

e Generic or targeted social mobility consultation results or research that is available locally, London-wide or nationally

e Information arising from the Social Mobility Strategy/Action Plan and the Corporation’s annual submissions to the Social Mobility Ind

0GT abed

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 29 June 2022
Author: Chris Attwood Date of next review: TBC



Conclusion and Reporting Guidance

Set out your conclusions below using the EA of the protected characteristics and Review your EA and action plan as necessary through the development and at the

submit to your Director for approval. end of your proposal/project and beyond.

If you have identified any negative impacts, please attach your action plan to the Retain your EA as it may be requested by Members or as an FOI request. As a

EA which addresses any negative impacts identified when submitting for approval. | minimum, refer to any completed EA in background papers on reports, but also
include any appropriate references to the EA in the body of the report or as an

If you have identified any positive impacts for any equality groups, please explain appendix.

how these are in line with the equality aims.

This analysis has concluded that ...

The proposals aim to have positive impacts on all age groups and people with disability or reduced mobility by creating safer facilities for travel, encouraging people to
cycle and providing more space for pedestrians and people with reduced mobility or those on wheelchairs.

Some elderly people and/or people with reduce mobility maybe negatively impacted by the reduction in kerb side accessibility and limited opportunity for pick-up and
“Wop off along the northern side of Queen Victoria Street. Sufficient parking/loading opportunities are available on the southern side of Queen Victoria Street and nearby
(gde streets, including a new proposed loading bay facility between the junction of Friday Street and Cannon Street to help mitigate against this impact.
D
@me disabled people may also be negatively impacted by the introduction of bus stop bypasses which would require crossing the cycle lane in order to access the bus.
is could potentially be confusing or result in a safety risk for some people, particularly people with disability when waiting for, boarding or alighting from a bus. To help
mitigate against this potential impact, a mini-zebra crossing is proposed across the cycle lane (including tactile paving on either side); emphasising pedestrian priority to
cross the cycle lane and highlighting to cyclists that they need to give way at this point.

This Equality Analysis recognises there may be some negative impacts resulting from the scheme proposals, in particular for, elderly people and disabled people with
mobility impairments. It is not anticipated that this will result in any unlawful discrimination against these groups with protected characteristics.

This document will be reviewed and updated, if required, following consultation of the scheme.

Outcome of analysis — check the one that applies

Outcome 1

No change required where the assessment has not identified any potential for discrimination or adverse impact and all opportunities to advance equality have been
taken.

Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 29 June 2022
Author: Chris Attwood Date of next review: TBC



[] Outcome 2
Adjustments to remove barriers identified by the assessment or to better advance equality. Are you satisfied that the proposed adjustment will remove the barriers
identified.

] Outcome 3

Continue despite having identified some potential adverse impacts or missed opportunities to advance equality. In this case, the justification should be included in the
assessment and should be in line with the duty to have ‘due regard’. For the most important relevant policies, compelling reasons will be needed. You should consider
whether there are sufficient plans to reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact.

[] Outcome 4

Stop and rethink when an assessment shows actual or potential unlawful discrimination.

Signed off by Director: Click or tap here to enter text. Name: Click or tap here to enter text. Date Click or tap to enter a date.
o
job)
«Q
D
H
a1
N
Version Control Version:1.1 Last updated: 29 June 2022

Author: Chris Attwood Date of next review: TBC



Agenda ltem 7

Committees: Date:
Streets & Walkways Sub Committee - For Decision 1/10/2024
Projects and Procurement Sub Committee - For Information 21/10/2024
Subject: 1 Broadgate S278 G5 Gateway 5:
Authority to
Unique Project Identifier: 12235 Start Work
(Medium)
Report of: For decision
Executive Director of Environment
Report Author:
George Wright, Project Manager, Policy and Projects, City
Operations
1. Status update Project Description: Undertake the required Section 278
highway works in the vicinity of the development at 1-2
Broadgate. The proposed works are fully funded by the
developer, British Land, and will involve a land exchange using
Section 256 of the Highways Act.
RAG Status: Green (Green at last report to Committee)
Risk Status: Low (Low at last report to committee)
Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk): £892,569 (fully
funded by the developer)
Change in Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk): £0
Spend to Date: £47,686
Costed Risk Provision Utilised: N/A
Slippage: None
2. Requested Next Gateway: Gateway 6: Outcome Report
decisions Next Steps:
1. Complete land exchange (October-November 24)
2. Prepare detailed construction design package (October
24-March 25)
3. Undertake construction (July 25-April 26).
Requested Decisions:
Members of Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee are asked
to:
1. Approve the General Arrangement design shown in
Appendix 2.

Page 153



. Approve an additional budget of £842,569 to fund the

detailed design and implementation of the works.

. Agree that any unspent funds from the existing

approved budget of £50,000 are carried forward to this
Gateway.

. Approve a costed risk provision of £5,000 with approval

for drawdown delegated to the Director of City
Operations.

. Subject to the outcome of an officer review of the best

use of the kerb side along the whole length of Eldon
Street, modifications to the design relating to the S278
area are approved by the Director of City Operations
(paragraphs 4.6)

. Authorise undertaking the statutory consultation on the

Traffic Orders/Notices connected to the works and,
subject to no or minor objections, for the Director of City
Operations to make the Orders.

3. Budget

ltem Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
Source
of
Funding
Highways Detailed design, | S278 96,627
staff costs site supervision
Transport Project S278 38,231
staff costs management
Works Highways S278 589,772
construction
Works Utilities S278 55,000
Fees Traffic Orders, S278 60,500
surveys, C4 fees
Sub-Total 840,130
Commuted Maintenance of S278 2,439
sum bollards
Total 842,569

Transport and Public Realm staff allocation — £38,231
Approximately 345 hours of Transportation officer costs

including liaison with key stakeholders, project management
and all reporting.

Highways staff allocation — £96,627

Page 154




Approximately 980 hours of Highways officer costs associated
with liaison with utility companies, site supervision, completion
of Health & Safety file and snagging.

Costed Risk Provision requested for this Gateway: £5,000

4. Design summary

4.1 The Section 278 works area initially focused on parts of
Eldon Street and Finsbury Avenue. Both streets comprised a
mix of private land owned by British Land (BL) and public
highway and the City and BL agreed that a land exchange
would be mutually beneficial.

4.2 In June 2022, the Planning & Transportation Committee
authorised officers to proceed with the statutory process and
legal agreements required to progress the highway boundary
adjustments pursuant to Section 256 of the Highways Act
1980. No objections were received to the statutory
consultation.

4.3 As a result of the proposed land exchange the part of
Finsbury Avenue that is currently public highway will be
transferred to British Land and the section of land on Eldon
Street previously owned by BL will be dedicated as public
highway (see Appendix 3).

4.4 The Section 278 works recommended for approval in this
report comprise measures required to facilitate the new
development and improve the environment for people who walk,
wheel and cycle. These include:

e A wider pavement on the north side of Eldon Street.

e Avraisedtable on Eldon Street at its junction with Finsbury
Avenue to provide an improved crossing facility.

e Acycle lane on Eldon Street.

e Cycle parking on Eldon Street.

e The re-surfacing of the carriageway on Eldon Street
between Finsbury Avenue and Blomfield Street.

4.5 Two existing disabled parking bays on Eldon Street (albeit
unavailable for the past four years) will either be re-provided in
their current location or in another location in the area.

4.6 In addition to the Section 278 work, a piece of work to review
the length of street Eldon Street is being undertaken to
determine the best use of the kerbside. This will look at whether
it would be better to provide an eastbound or westbound cycle
facility, and potential for cycle parking (including dockless),
disabled parking bays, and/or taxi rank facilities. The outcome
of this wider piece of work will determine the requirements for
the final signs, lines and Traffic Orders relating to the area
covered by the Section 278 project. It is proposed that any
modification to the General Arrangement in Appendix 2 in
relation to this review is agreed with Director of City Operations.

Page 155




This is not expected to impact the kerb lines or pavement
enhancement.

4.7 BL will introduce public realm improvements on Finsbury
Avenue including the section that will be transferred to them.

4.8 A Healthy Streets Assessment Design Check has been
undertaken and the overall Healthy Streets score has increased
from 30 to 39 as a result of measures being introduced as part
of the Section 278 works. The assessment was carried out
from the Wilson Street junction on Eldon Street to the London
Wall junction on Blomfield Street. A sub-optimal street
environment at the Wilson Street, Finsbury Circus and London
Wall junctions impacted on the overall scoring and falls outside
the scope of this particular Section 278. Subject to funding,
further improvements to these streets will be delivered in the
future as part of the wider delivery of the Liverpool Street Area
Healthy Streets Plan. The full Healthy Streets Assessment can
be viewed by contacting the report author. The summary table
can be found in Appendix 6.

5. Delivery team

1. Transport — project management

2. Highways — detailed design and supervision

3. FM Conway — construction

4. Developer — members of the 1 Broadgate development team.

6. Programme and
key dates

October-November 24:  Complete the land exchange legal
documentation.

October 24-March 25: Prepare detailed construction package;
undertake statutory consultation for traffic order notices.

July 25-April 26: Construction phase
Summer 26: Gateway 6 report

7. Risks

Risk: Delays to the highway construction works due to late
release of highway by contractors working at the site.
Mitigation: On-going and regular dialogue between all parties.

Risk: Overall project delays due to unforeseen events lead on
an extended programme and additional staff costs.

Mitigation: A costed risk provision of £5,000 has been included.
Further information is contained in Risk Register (Appendix 4).

8. Success criteria

e Improvements for people who walk and wheel.

e Animproved public realm making the City a more
attractive place.

¢ Meeting the needs of developer and ensuring the S278
works are delivered to meet the practical completion date.

9. Progress reporting

Updates on Project Vision with any issues requiring a decision
being dealt with in an Issue Report.

10. Legal and equality
implications

10.1 In exercising functions as traffic authority, the City
Corporation are required to comply with the duty in Section 122

Page 156




of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 which requires the
traffic authority in exercising its functions, to secure the
expeditious, convenient, and safe movement of vehicular and
other traffic (including pedestrians), so far as practicable
having regard to:

(a) the desirability of securing and maintaining
reasonable access to premises

(b) the effect of amenities of any locality
(c) national air quality strategy
(d) public service vehicles

(e) any other relevant matters

10.2 The City Corporation also have a network management
duty as the local traffic authority to secure the expeditious
movement of traffic and in preforming that duty may take any
action which the City Corporation consider will contribute to
securing the more efficient use of the road network or the
avoidance, elimination or reduction of road congestion or other
disruption to the movement of traffic (S.16 Traffic Management
Act 2004).

Regard has also to be had to the relevant statutory guidance.

10.3 Under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 the public
sector equality duty requires public authorities to have due
regard to the need to:

10.4

Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and
victimisation
Advance equality of opportunity and

Foster good relations between those who share a
protected characteristic (i.e. race, sex, disability, age,
sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy or
maternity, marriage or civil partnership and gender
reassignment) and those who do not.

An Equality Analysis Test of Relevance (Appendix 7)

template has been completed and this has determined that a
full Equality Analysis is not required for this project.

10.5

The 1 Broadgate Section 278 design has been evaluated

using the City of London Street Accessibility Tool (CoLSAT) and
is expected to deliver positive benefits for various groups of
disabled people.

Page 157




10.6 Key features of the design include improved footway
conditions and more accessible crossing facilities. These design
modifications are expected to facilitate easier and safer
navigation through the area, thereby promoting greater
independence and participation in public life for disabled people.

10.7 CoLSAT has identified some negative impacts (scores of
1 or 0) with the proposed design. These include: the introduction
of the cycle lane on Eldon Street, which removes line markings
at the road edge; a bus stop without a shelter/seating due to a
lack of pavement space (although this is an alighting stop only);
and bollards restricting pavement width on part of Eldon Street.

The assessment has generated one score of 0. This relates to a
short section of pavement without any tactile paving that is flush
with the raised table in the road. This is on the vehicle crossover
at the junction with Finsbury Avenue where it is not appropriate
to install tactile paving.

10.8 Overall, the 1 Broadgate Section 278 design represents
a positive step towards creating a more inclusive and accessible
urban environment, reflecting the City of London’s policy and
statutory commitment to improving accessibility and quality of
life for all residents and visitors.

CoLSAT Summary Results Table
Total 0 scores™ — Total 1 scores**-
severe accessibility significant accessibility
issue issues
Before After Before After

Electric Wheelchair user 1
Manual Wheelchair user 1
Mobility Scooter user
Walking Aid user
Person with a walking impairment 5 3
Long cane user 2 1 1 2
Guide Dog user 4 4
Residual Sight user 1
Deaf or Hearing impairment 2 1
Acquired neurological impairment
Autism/Sensory-processing
diversity
Developmental Impairment 1 4 2

Total 3 1 19 12

* This score means most people in this segment would be excluded by the street
characteristic in the selected configuration.

** This score means some people in this segment may be able to negotiate the street
characteristic in the selected configuration, but it would significantly deplete their
levels of confidence and energy, and they would be likely to give up on the journey if
they had to negotiate it more than once or twice.

Page 158




The full COLSAT assessment can be viewed by contacting the
report author.

Appendices
Appendix 1 Project coversheet
Appendix 2 General arrangement drawing
Appendix 3 Land exchange plan
Appendix 4 Risk register
Appendix 5 Project finances
Appendix 6 Healthy Streets summary assessment
Appendix 7 Equality Analysis Test of Relevance

Background papers

CoLSAT Assessment

Healthy Streets Assessment Design Check

Contact
Report Author George Wright
Email Address George.Wright@cityoflondon.gov.uk
Telephone Number 07802 378812

Page 159



mailto:George.Wright@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



Project Coversheet

[1] Ownership & Status

UPI: 12235
Core Project Name: | Broadgate Section 278

Programme Affiliation (if applicable):
Project Manager: George Wright

Definition of need: Highway works to enable to construction of the new
development at 1 Broadgate

Key measures of success:

1) Improved pedestrian environment which allows for enhanced connectivity and
accessibility throughout the wider area.

2) Improved public realm.

3) Meeting the needs of the developer.

Expected timeframe for the project delivery: July 2022 — Spring 2026.Agree
Section 278 scope. September 2024 — Agree s256 land exchange. Construction

Key Milestones: July 2022: Agree scope of s278; September 2024: Agree s256 land
exchange. July 2025-April 2026: Construction.

Are we on track for completing the project against the expected timeframe for
project delivery? Yes

Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the
City of London has needed to manage or is managing? No.

[2] Finance and Costed Risk

Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes:

‘Project Proposal’ G2 report (as approved by SWC and PSC 10/20):

Total Estimated Cost: £750,000-£900,000
Spend to date: £0

Resources to reach next Gateway: £50,000
Costed Risk Against the Project: n/a
Estimated Programme Dates: As above

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: Routine highway
maintenance is expected.
Programme Affiliation [E]: n/a

Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes:

| ‘Project Proposal’ G2 issue report (as approved by P&T 9/22):

V14 July 2019
Page 161



Total Estimated Cost: £750,000-£900,000
Spend to date: £26,893

Resources to reach next Gateway: £50,000
Costed Risk Against the Project: n/a
Estimated Programme Dates: As above

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: Routine highway
maintenance is expected.

Programme Affiliation [£]: n/a

Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes:

‘Authority to start work’ G5 report

Total Estimated Cost: £892,569

Spend to date: £47,686

Resources to reach next Gateway: £842,569
Costed Risk Against the Project: £5,000
Estimated Programme Dates: As above

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]: Routine highway
maintenance is expected.

Programme Affiliation [£]: n/a

V14 July 2019

Page 162



NOTES
1.

CARRIAGEWAY SURFACING WORKS TO TIE INTO
TABLES TO EAST (CROSSRAIL LIVERPOOL STREET

SCHEME) AND WEST (EXISTING).

WORKS TO TIE INTO PROPOSED CONTRAFLOW CYCLE
LANE ON ELDON STREET. LANE WIDTH 2.0M. DESIGN

Church

€97 abed

Trust House

| Carriageway surfacing works and line
| markings to tie into existing raised table

[
I
I

Prin:

AND LAYOUT TO BE CONFIRMED.

3. EASTBOUND CARRIAGWAY LANE
ON ELDON STREET.

TANGENT POINT ON CORNER AT
WORKS.

OUT BY OTHERS.
KEY

ADJACENT KERB

KERB

EXTENT TO BE AGREED

LAID RANDOMLY, FLAMED TO

PROPOSED NEW BOLLARDS

=y
@

o=

m
PG covER

BUILDOUT AT JUNCTION WITH FINSBURY AVENUE,

WIDTH LIMITED BY NEED TO MAINTAIN 2.0M
WESTBOUND CONTRAFLOW CYCLE LANE AND 3.5M

EASTBOUND GENERAL TRAFFIC LANE. KERB
TRANSITIONS BACK TO ORIGINAL ALIGNMENT AT

WORKS ON FINSBURY AVE LIMITED TO PUBLIC
HIGHWAY WITH WORKS ON PRIVATE LAND CARRIED

NEW 63MM DEEP YORKSTONE PAVING, 600MM WIDE,
VARYING LENGTHS TO BE LAID PERPENDICULAR TO

NEW 63MM DEEP YORKSTONE PAVING, 300MM X
200MM TO BE LAID PERPENDICULAR TO ADJACENT

REMEDIAL WORKS TO KERBS AND FOOTWAY. ANY
DAMAGED MATERIAL TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW.

TAKE UP AND RELAY 2 COLOUR MIX GRANITE SETTS
AND CHANNEL (70% SILVER GREY, 30% MID GREY)

CARRIAGEWAY TO BE RESURFACED IN HRA

1+ NEwW 400x400X63MM YORKSTONE TACTILE PAVING

mmmms NEW 150 X 300MM FLAMED TEXTURED SILVER
GREY PORTUGUESE GRANITE KERB

mmses NEW 300 X 200MM FLAMED TEXTURED SILVER GREY
PORTUGUESE GRANITE KERB

EXISTING GULLY FRAME TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW
450xX450MM CYCLE FRIENDLY FRAME AND COVER

PROPOSED NEW 900X450MM GULLY FRAME AND

DS DROPSHAFT COVER TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW
— — — CURRENT EXTENT OF PUBLIC HIGHWAY

— — —PROPOSED NEW HIGHWAY BOUNDARY

TO BE MINIMUM 3.5M

EASTERN EXTENT OF

P

—
il |
i —
—
|
oS
&l =
- [==RN==] —
[ T
1

1./ N /
Contractor

FINSBURY AVENUE

2 |
\ | |
|
{

/7777 7)Section 278 - To be delivered by CoL
Private Land -To be delivered by Private Contractor
Area of public land adopted as public highway /

New Public Highway boundary

MGuIIys to be reconstructed to suit new kerbline

— o

New 300x200x63mmé‘coutqulc‘i‘r‘Yorkstone Paving f aRaLI NP

1
O,

B \

9 | — /109 “
; — P I | \‘ - I o
L | — ﬂ ‘ | | I
7DW ] | r — *47'\— = —‘TL_#J O e _L_——Lﬁj—i —‘#I-‘ — ,‘ ‘\
| ﬂ# | “‘ / =]
&7 - T T LT T S
: “GAS wo "GAS Wi / I‘. BT c:|> RevNo. Date Description By
— - - - - —— — ' EE— yP Q) Revision
— — —— — o = == e T —— [ ] 0 PROJECT:
Wl:l WD ———————— - ~ - : m
| LEVEL3  VODA = | = RS PG
| = 2 — T e S278 WORKS
! ; L/ ; ©
; = o ‘ N ELDON STREET/ FINSBURY AVE
- ELDON STREET L o —- m o —— 3
el i TVENT £ u | 2 T
U i % COLT S . i -
ERIZON Wo = . ok b N — ] GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
— > } // } L] | AN } L
I - R .. = ' BN ¢ds SHEET 1 OF 2
— o -_— - R e e s Bl ‘ T e— m— U)
[ BT BT Jooa 1 M M1 H — BT o B L L T L T . = L A H A W T
{ e e e s e o o o e L T e e e s O e e A gas BT — | R
| S o A A [ o o 0 o A o o R e e e e e e S Sy B I o Y e e B o M e M e B R I B Eoc==e= Rl &
N ———— ! ! ! ! ! ! ! | L 1 - — = — — — — S N S N L] l T 1 ] ] ] 1 I — I 2 44 43
‘J‘ \4 - - e 1 - e [ 1 B S IR A A N A R I B A A N IR N AN S N R R A e | | j%gég HIGHWAY DES]GN
| ) | ‘T T . T 1 — S ) o [T T T l A
4 — -] D — — | y — ] | 1 — 1 AND CONSTRUCTION ¥
:? — j \__/ V - ] e | [ ’
: DIRIGE,
J e . . . . DEPARTMENT OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT
I Infill cover required for tactile paving PO BOX 270 CiTy
LONDON OF
| Remedial works to footway t LONDON
eme Ia Wor S O OO Way O ’ TEL: 020 7606 3030
accommodate re-laid / new Shest
SHEET 1 of 2 e e
kerbs. Extent to be agreed 0c Ol g1 OoANoR SurEY o BesALE OF Toe
August 2024 T T v
ATIONERY | ROWN PYRIGH
8 Z Ol 9 Z Designed by: 2018. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
KE UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES
CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO
Checked by: PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
BM CITY OF LONDON 100023243 2018.
Scale & Drawing Size: Revision: Drawing No:
1:200@A3 - 100-16800438-GA-001



AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
MERC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
MWB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
PL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
PL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
PL6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
PL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
PL17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
PL18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
PL19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
B5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
PL20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
PL5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
PL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
PL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
PL6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
PL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
PL17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
PL18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
PL19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
B5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
PL20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
PL5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
ITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
CCTV/ITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
TCSU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
MFSC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
TCSU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
MFSC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
MERC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
VERI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
VODAFONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
VODAFONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
C&W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
EDF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
MERC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
MWB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
MERC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
Map

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
CELL. ENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
planter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
planter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
LVL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
LE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
VODAFONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
Cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
Cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
Cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
BMC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
B4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
PL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
PL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
PL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
PL6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
PL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
PL17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
PL18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
PL19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
B5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
PL20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
PL5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
B4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
PL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
PL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
PL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
PL6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
PL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
PL17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
PL18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
PL19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
B5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
PL20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
PL5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
DS


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 164



NOTES
1. CARRIAGEWAY SURFACING WORKS TO TIE INTO

TABLES TO EAST (CROSSRAIL LIVERPOOL STREET
SCHEME) AND WEST (EXISTING).

2. WORKS TO TIE INTO PROPOSED CONTRAFLOW CYCLE

LANE ON ELDON STREET. LANE WIDTH 2.0M. DESIGN
AND LAYOUT TO BE CONFIRMED.

3. EASTBOUND CARRIAGWAY LANE TO BE MINIMUM 3.5M
ON ELDON STREET.

4. BUILDOUT AT JUNCTION WITH FINSBURY AVENUE,
WIDTH LIMITED BY NEED TO MAINTAIN 2.0M
WESTBOUND CONTRAFLOW CYCLE LANE AND 3.5M
EASTBOUND GENERAL TRAFFIC LANE. KERB
TRANSITIONS BACK TO ORIGINAL ALIGNMENT AT

TANGENT POINT ON CORNER AT EASTERN EXTENT OF
WORKS.

5. WORKS ON FINSBURY AVE LIMITED TO PUBLIC

HIGHWAY WITH WORKS ON PRIVATE LAND CARRIED
OUT BY OTHERS.

NEwW 63MM DEEP YORKSTONE PAVING, 600MM WIDE,

VARYING LENGTHS TO BE LAID PERPENDICULAR TO
ADJACENT KERB

NEW 63MM DEEP YORKSTONE PAVING, 300MM X

200MM TO BE LAID PERPENDICULAR TO ADJACENT
KERB

—"|REMEDIAL WORKS TO KERBS AND FOOTWAY. ANY
" | | DAMAGED MATERIAL TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW.
| | |EXTENT TO BE AGREED

TAKE UP AND RELAY 2 COLOUR MIX GRANITE SETTS

AND CHANNEL (70% SILVER GREY, 30% MID GREY)
“““ LAID RANDOMLY, FLAMED TOP

CARRIAGEWAY TO BE RESURFACED IN HRA

HNEW 400Xx400X63MM YORKSTONE TACTILE PAVING

mmmsms NEW 150 X 300MM FLAMED TEXTURED SILVER
GREY PORTUGUESE GRANITE KERB

mmmes NEW 300 X 200MM FLAMED TEXTURED SILVER GREY
PORTUGUESE GRANITE KERB

—
@

PROPOSED NEW BOLLARDS

o=

EXISTING GULLY FRAME TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW
450X450MM CYCLE FRIENDLY FRAME AND COVER

M PROPOSED NEW 900X450MM GULLY FRAME AND
P covER

Works to tie into 100
Liverpool Street scheme

DS

DROPSHAFT COVER TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW

- Proposed 8 no.new cycle stands i
| \ ) -~ Propo
\\T L%\\;J /////, \\

ed 10 no.

- ] I | | — — — CURRENT EXTENT OF PUBLIC HIGHWAY
bollards- s |
\\m‘ H \\ I

— — —PROPOSED NEW HIGHWAY BOUNDARY

Possible relocation of 2no. existing |
- disabled bays. Location to be confirmed

{
R A
—_—

|
|
|
|
T
|/
|
|

— — ————
— |
—

[
| \\ ‘\ | S/ |
| | | h [ -
| —H
| |
| | | [
|

[ 1 |
1
|
A
[ 1
{
|

|
|
|
|
|
|
-
Il
||
||
||
| 1
|
|1
||
|
—T
|
|
|
|
|
|
_Xﬁ
—

—u |72 2section 278 - To be delivered by CoL Contractor
/ﬂPrivate Land -To be delivered by Private Contractor

——————— Area of public land adopted as public highway /
New Public Highway boundary

Rev No.| Date Description

By

o © © © © 5] ; ’ Revision
N N N N N N N N N ; N ; SRR INIIN PROJECT:
G PG § 2 — W w S ‘ . ~ 1-2 BROADGATE
N LEVELS bw |

S278 WORKS
CoLT o DELT DISABLED DE

ELDON STREET/ FINSBURY AVE
ELDON STREET

—
TITLE:

=

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

SHEET 2 OF 2
e
u | — o RN F ot N e
S 1 %Lklkf‘ B A\ — ' ‘,4{,
- i — - -+ — o — 2 A0
=Sl | 7‘,?7‘7 ImE et @ N HIGHWAY DESIGN Sl |
I —— 1 LJ{E—M% —— L‘lj ﬁ:i — — ‘f‘ %; | AND CONSTRUCT]ON
] “% ‘ —L |
| ] DPIRIGE,
“ DEPARTMENT OPFOT;EO)E:IEI;‘BENVIRONMENT C ITY
‘ GUILDHALL
| Gl Remedial works to footway to / S L oF
\ . :
¢ | accommodate re-laid / new / Tez:020 7608 3080 ONDON
| kerbs EXtent tO be ag reed Sheet:SHEET 2 of 2 THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE
‘ |
\
\ \

SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF

ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE
CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S

AUQUSt 2024 STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT

2018. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

KE UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES

CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO

Date:

Designed by:

Checked by: PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
BM CITY OF LONDON 100023243 2018.
| Scale & Drawing Size: Revision: Drawing No:
| | 1:200@A3 - [100-16800438-GA-002
I



AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
TCSU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
MFSC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
TCSU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
MERC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
Map

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
LE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
Cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
Cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
Cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
PL19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
PL19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
DISABLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
DISABLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
DEL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
DEL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
ITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
TS/PB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
CCTV/ITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
TCSU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
MFSC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
TCSU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
MFSC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
MERC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
VERI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
VODAFONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
VODAFONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
C&W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
EDF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
EL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
MERC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
MWB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
MERC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
Map

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
CELL. ENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
planter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
planter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
LVL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
LE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
COLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
VODAFONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
Cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
barrier

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
Cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
Cycle stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
BMC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
B4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
PL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
PL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
PL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
PL6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
PL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
PL17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
PL18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
PL19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
B5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
PL20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
PL5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
B4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
PL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
PL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
PL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
PL6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
PL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
PL17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
PL18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
PL19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
B5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
B8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
PL20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
B7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
PL5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
DS


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 166



I_
: [ﬁﬁw
1L I
-] ] ]
] ]
S
q ]
<
4
<
4
q ]
2
1
] B |
|
d
1
[:] ] B |
|
[ _JS
" p —1%
< 7 = ML
e 3 4
=3
|
I |
° H Ha =J|
4 |
|
[} B _ 1
_U
Q
|_ D

West Office
Entrance

East Offic
Entrance

Al
k. L ek

Bridge link to connect
to 100 LS walkway

///////////////%
%,

ra
L Title Boundary Line

7 Area of private land on Eldon Street adopted as public
highway (190sqm)

y Public highway rights on Finsbury Avenue extinguished
/) and transferred to British Land (245sgqm)

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

SKETCH

NOTE
When this drawing is issued in uncontrolled CAD format it will be accompanied by a PDF
version and is issued to enable the recipient to prepare their own documents / models /
drawings for which they are solely responsible. The recipient should report all drawing errors,
omissions and discrepancies to the architect. Al dimensions should be checked on site by the
contractor and such dimensions shall be the contractor's responsibilty.

Allford Hall Monaghan Morris Limited accepts no responsibility or liability for:-
- any use of this drawing by parties other than the party for whom it was prepared or for
purposes other than those for which it was prepared

- any alterations or additions to or discrepancies arising out of changes to the background
information on which the drawings are based that was current at the time of issue, and which
occur to that information after it has been issued by AHMM

- any loss or degradation of the information held in this drawing resulting from the translation
from the original file format to any other file format or from the recipients reading of it in any
other programme or any version of the programme other than that which was used to prepare it
- the accuracy of survey information provided by others or for any costs, claims, proceedings
and expenses arising out of reliance on such information

- any scaling from this drawing other than by the local planning authority solely for the purposes
of the planning application to which it relates

ALLFORD HALL MONAGHAN MORRIS

ARCHITECTS Ltd., MORELANDS, 5-23 OLD STREET LONDON EC1V 9HL
TEL 020 7251 5261 FAX 020 7251 5123 WEB WWW.AHMM.CO.UK

job title

1 BROADGATE

drawing title / location

GROUND FLOOR - LAND SWAP

project number drawn checked scale suitability code
15156 JOBL 1:250@A1 ;1: 500@A3
drawing no. revision

15156 (SK) 1687




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 168



City of London: Projects Procedure Corporate Risks Register

Unique project identifier:

Project Name:

General risk classification
Risk Gateway Category

ID

(4) Contractual/Part

1 Broadgate Section 278 works

12235

Description of the Risk

Third party delays,
productivity or resource issues

Risk Impact Description

If there was to be any delay in
the arrival of any required
consents, such as permits,
discharge of conditions,

Likelihood

Impact

Risk

PM's overall
risk rating:

Low

Total estimated cost

(exec risk):

892,569

Classificatio Classificatio score mitigation (£)

h pre-
mitigation

h pre-
mitigation

project estimates,

budget

R1 5 . . . . release of highway, it is likely |Possible Minor
nership impacts negatively on project .
. the project may suffer from
delivery
some form of unplanned
delay and addiitonal staff
costs.
. . Inaccurate or incomplete An increase in the project . .
R2 2 (2) Financial Possible Minor

69T abed

£7.,500.00

requested
Y/N

Y - for costed impact
post-mitigation

Costed impact pre- Costed Risk Provision Confidence in the

estimation

B — Fairly Confident

CRP requested
this gateway

Total CRP used to

£

5,000

date

Mitigation actions
Mitigating actions

* Arrange early constfruction
planning meetings with FM
Conway to ensure that
adequate resources are
made available for
construction phase.

* Regular and on-going
licison between building
confractor and highway
confractor to ensure works
areas are released as per
programme

Mitigation
cost (£)

£2,500.00

Likelihood Impact
Classificati Classificati impact post-
mitigation (£) tion

on post-

Unlikely

on post-
mitigation mitigation

Minor

Average
unmitigated risk

Average mitigated
risk score

Costed

Post-
Mitiga to date

risk
score

£5,000.00 £0.00

CRP used Use of CRP

Open Risks

Closed Risks

Ownership & Action

Date
raised

09/08/2024

Named Risk owner Date
Departmental (Named Closed
Risk Manager/ Officer or OR/
Coordinator  External Party) Realised &
moved to
Issues

Commenti(s)

Gill Howard George Wright

£0.00

B — Fairly Confident

Licison with developer and
confractor to establish
value engineering
opportunities. The Section
278 highway works will be
subject to a final measure.
The developer is therefore
legally obligated by the
s278 agreement to provide
any additional funding if
unforeseen additional costs
arise and the budget
estimate is exceeded.

£0.00

Possible

Minor

£0.00

n/a

09/08/2024

Gill Howard George Wright




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 170



Table 1: Expenditure to Date: 1-2 Broadgte Highways Works S278 - 16800438

Approved Budget

Description (£) Expenditure (£) Balance (£)
Env Servs Staff Costs 15,000 13,074 1,926
P&T Staff Costs 25,500 25,583 (83)
Legal Staff Costs 2,500 2,500 -
P&T Fees 7,000 6,529 471

TOTAL 50,000 47,686 2,314
Table 2: Resources Required to reach the next Gateway
Description Approved Budget Resv:')urces Revised Budget

(£) Required (£) (£)

Env Servs Staff Costs 15,000 96,627 111,627
P&T Staff Costs 25,500 38,231 63,731
Legal Staff Costs 2,500 - 2,500
P&T Fees 7,000 60,500 67,500
Env Servs Works - 589,772 589,772
Utilities - 55,000 55,000
Maintenance - 2,439 2,439
Costed Risk Provision - 5,000 5,000

TOTAL 50,000 847,569 897,569
Table 3: Revised Funding Allocation

Current Funding Funding Revised Funding

Funding Source

Allocation (£) Adjustments (£) Allocation (£)
S$278 50,000 847,569 897,569
Total Funding Drawdown 50,000 847,569 897,569

Page 171




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 172



Neme f et at end nton

Blomfield

ExistingLayout | Proposed Loyt
Store Store

Healthy Streets Seare “
Everyonefels welcome “
Easy o oross i “
Shade ndshele [ n
‘;";% Pces o topand et i
A oy 5
ik
U People choose o walkand eyl i “
Paople el sfe % “
Things o 2¢ anddo / n
Paople el reaned i
Cleen i il “

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 174



NI S
N RS

o
R

CITY
LONDON

TEST OF RELEVANCE: EQUALITY ANALYSIS (EA)

The screening process of using the Test of Relevance template aims to assist in determining whether a full Equality Analysis (EA) is required.
The EA template and guidance plus information on the Equality Act and the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) can be found on City of London

Intranet at: Equality and Inclusion

Introduction
The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) is set out in the Equality Act 2010 (s.149).  The characteristics protected by the Equality Act 2010 are:
is requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, to have e Age
@atutory ‘due regard’ to the need to: e Disability
':] e Gender reassignment
U1 e Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation e Marriage and civil partnership
e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected e Pregnancy and maternity
characteristic and those who do not, and e Race
e Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic e Religion or belief
and those who do not. e Sexual orientation

It is also Corporation policy to give voluntary (non-statutory) ‘due regard’ to the impact upon Social Mobility


https://corpoflondon.sharepoint.com/sites/Intranet/SitePages/equality-and-inclusion.aspx
http://colnet/Departments/Pages/News/Equality-and-Diversity.aspx

What is due regard?

e Statutorily, it involves considering the aims of
the duty in a way that is proportionate to the
issue at hand.

e Ensuring that real consideration is given to the
aims and the impact of policies with rigour and
with an open mind in such a way that it
influences the final decision.

e Due regard should be given before and during
policy formation and when a decision is taken
including cross cutting ones as the impact can
be cumulative.

The general equality duty does not specify how public
authorities should analyse the effect of their business
activities on different groups of people. However, case
'I'@N has established that equality analysis is an
@nportant way public authorities can demonstrate that
ey are meeting the requirements.
H
‘BJen in cases where it is considered that there are no
implications of proposed policy and decision making on
the PSED it is good practice to record the reasons why
and to include these in reports to committees where
decisions are being taken.

It is also good practice to consider the duty in relation
to current policies, services and procedures, even if
there is no plan to change them.

The Corporation has also adopted a voluntary (non-
statutory) due regard of the impact upon social
mobility issues. This should be considered generally
and, more specifically, against the aims/objectives in
the Social Mobility Strategy, 2018-28.

How to demonstrate compliance

Case law has established the following principles apply to the PSED:

Knowledge — the need to be aware of the requirements of the Equality Duty with a conscious approach
and state of mind.

Sufficient Information — must be made available to the decision maker.

Timeliness — the Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a particular policy is under
consideration or decision is taken not after it has been taken.

Real consideration — consideration must form an integral part of the decision making process. It is not a
matter of box-ticking; it must be exercised in substance, with rigour and with an open mind in such a
way that it influences the final decision.

Sufficient Information - The decision maker must consider what information he or she has and what
further information may be needed in order to give proper consideration to the Equality Duty

No delegation - public bodies are responsible for ensuring that any third parties which exercise
functions on their behalf are capable of complying with the

Equality Duty, are required to comply with it, and that they do so in practice. It is a duty that cannot be
delegated.

Review — the duty is continuing applying when a policy is developed and decided upon, but also when it
is implemented and reviewed.

However, there is no requirement to:

Produce equality analysis or an equality impact assessment

Indiscriminately collect diversity date where equalities issues are not significant

Publish lengthy documents to show compliance

Treat everyone the same. Rather, it requires public bodies to think about people’s different needs and
how these can be met

Make services homogeneous or to try to remove or ignore differences between people.

The key points about demonstrating compliance with the duty are to:

Collate sufficient evidence to determine whether changes being considered will have a potential impact
on different groups

Ensure decision makers are aware of the analysis that has been undertaken and what conclusions have
been reached on the possible implications

Keep adequate records of the full decision making process



Test of Relevance screening
The Test of relevance screening is a short exercise that involves looking at the overall proposal and deciding if it is relevant to the PSED.

Note: If the proposal is of a significant nature and it is apparent from the outset that a full equality analysis will be required, then it is not necessary to complete
the Test of Relevance screening template and the full equality analysis must be completed.

The questions in the Test of Relevance Screening Template to help decide if the proposal is equality relevant and whether a detailed equality analysis is required. The
key question is whether the proposal is likely to be relevant to any of the protected characteristics.

Quite often, the answer may not be so obvious and service-user or provider information will need to be considered to make a preliminary judgment. For example, in
considering licensing arrangements, the location of the premises in question and the demographics of the area could affect whether section 149 considerations come
into play.

There is no one size fits all approach but the screening process is designed to help fully consider the circumstances.

What to do
Tggeneral, the following questions all feed into whether an equality analysis is On completion of the Test of Relevance screening, officers should:
&quired:
(M@ e How many people is the proposal likely to affect? e Ensure they have fully completed and the Director has signed off the Test
: e How significant is its impact? of Relevance Screening Template.
~J ¢ Doesitrelate to an area where there are known inequalities? e Store the screening template safely so that it can be retrieved if for
example, Members request to see it, or there is a freedom of information
At this initial screening stage, the point is to try to assess obvious negative or request or there is a legal challenge.
positive impact. o If the outcome of the Test of Relevance Screening identifies no or minimal
impact refer to it in the Implications section of the report and include
If a negative/adverse impact has been identified (actual or potential) during references to it in the Background Papers when reporting to the

completion of the screening tool, a full equality analysis must be undertaken. Committee or other decision making process.

If no negative / adverse impacts arising from the proposal it is not necessary to
undertake a full equality analysis.



1. Proposal / Project Title: 1 Broadgate s278 works

2. Brief summary (include main aims, proposed outcomes, recommendations / decisions sought):

1. Improvements for people walking, wheeling and cycling.

2. Animproved public realm making the City a more attractive place

3. Meeting the needs of the developer and ensuring the s278 works are delivered in a timely manner

3. Considering the equality aims (eliminate unlawful discrimination; advance equality of opportunity; foster good relations), indicate for each protected group
whether there may be a positive impact, negative (adverse) impact or no impact arising from the proposal:

Protected Characteristic (Equality Group)

Age

8/ T abed

Disability

Gender Reassignment
Marriage and Civil Partnership
Pregnancy and Maternity

Positive
Impact

X OO

Negative
Impact
U

0o oo

No
Impact
U

0O X KX

Briefly explain your answer. Consider evidence, data and any consultation.

Older people are more likely to suffer from slight mobility impairments related to their
age which do not fall within the disabled protected characteristic. These impairments are
likely to include slower movement and slower reactions as well and in some cases the
use of mobility aids such as sticks.

The scheme is likely to improve conditions for all pedestrians using the northern side of
Eldon Street through the introduction of a wider pavement and raised table at the
junction with Finsbury Avenue. This is likely to provide more, safe space for pedestrians
and increase comfort when moving through the area. This benefit will disproportionately
benefit older people when using the streets as pedestrians.

Those who identify as having a disability are more likely to find difficulty in using City
streets and may feel excluded at different points. There are a large range of ways in
which this could happen, with examples including poor tactile facilities for people with
visual impairments or a lack of dropped kerbs for people with mobility impairments.

The scheme will improve conditions by providing greater comfort through the
introduction of the raised table and wider pavement space.

Those who are pregnant or with children may experience slower movement, impaired
movement and/or the requirement for additional safe and comfortable street space.



The scheme will improve conditions by providing more, comfortable space for
movement during the busiest times of day.

Race ] ] Click or tap here to enter text.
Religion or Belief | O Click or tap here to enter text.
Sex (i.e. gender) O O Click or tap here to enter text.
Sexual Orientation O O Click or tap here to enter text.
4. Are there any potential social mobility or wider Yes No Briefly explain your answer:
issues? Please check appropriate box ] Positive impacts have been captured in section 3.

5. There are no negative / adverse impact(s) Please briefly explain and provide evidence to support this decision:
The scheme does not have any negative impacts on any group.

U 6. Arethere positive impacts of the proposal on any equality groups or Social Mobility? Please briefly explain how these are in line with the equality aims or
g social mobility strategy:
@ Positive impacts have been captured in section 3.
H
\l
ie 7. As aresult of this screening, is a full EA necessary? Yes No Briefly explain your answer:
Please check appropriate box U Given the limited scope of the project and lack of negative impacts a full EA is not
considered necessary
8. Name of Lead Officer: George Wright Job title: Project Manager Date of completion: 09/08/2024
Signed off by Department Director: Name: lan Hughes Date: 16/09/2024

Vg;’_;



Page 180



Agenda Iltem 8

Committees: Dates:

Streets & Walkways Sub Committee - For Decision 01/10/2024

Projects & Procurement Sub Committee - For Information 21/10/2024

Subject: Gateway 2:

Vision Zero Programme Project Proposal
Regular

Unique Project Identifier:

12466

Report of: For Decision

Executive Director of Environment

Report Author:
Sam Lee, Head of Street Space Planning

PUBLIC

Recommendations

1. Next steps and Project Description: A programme to investigate and deliver
requested safer streets proposals at priority locations as identified in the
decisions Vision Zero Plan 2023 - 2028. Subsequent reports for individual

projects within the programme will follow as appropriate.
Next Gateway: Gateway 3/4 - Options Appraisal (Regular)
Next Steps:

e Review and refine designs and prepare detailed cost
estimates.

e Commission consultants to undertake technical
assessments including traffic modelling, where required.

e Engage key stakeholders including TfL on the scope of
any traffic modelling and requirements for Traffic
Management Act approvals (TMAN).

e Prepare G3/4 reports for individual projects and or
programme update reports as necessary.

Funding Source:

o £2.4M of confirmed OSPR funding. This will deliver five
projects to various gateway stages, including three to
completion.

e To complete the remaining two projects in the
programme, additional OSPR (or other) funding will be

Page 181



required. This will be subject to a further capital bid to be
considered by Members. If funding is not available, these
projects can remain in abeyance until funding has been
identified.

Additionally, external funding opportunities such as from
s106/s278 or from TfL will be explored.

Requested Decisions:

1.

That a budget of £175,000 is approved to reach the next
Gateway, as well as to deliver the minor measures (to
be delivered through existing delegations and outside of
this programme) at Mincing Lane.

Note the total estimated cost of the programme is
between £2.8M to £6.4M (excluding risk).

Note that £2.4 million has been secured to date from the
OSPR for this programme

Note that, to complete the programme, additional bid for
capital funding will be submitted. If funding is not
available, remaining projects can remain in abeyance
and progressed when funding has been identified.

That the initiation of this programme includes the
initiation of the forthcoming projects under its umbrella.
That a Costed Risk Provision of £100,000 is approved
(to be drawn down via delegation to Chief Officer).

Resource

requirements to

reach next
Gateway

Iltem

Funds/
Source of
Funding

Reason Cost (£)

Staff cost
(Policy &
Projects)

Project OSPR 50,000

Management

Staff costs

Design & OSPR 50,000

works estimate

Fees

Traffic
modelling,
Surveys &,
Technical
advice

OSPR 60,000

Works at
Mincing Lane

Works OSPR 15,000

Total

175,000

Staff costs represent approximately 500 hours of Policy &
Project staff time for project management and 500 hours of

Page 182




highway staff time to carry designs and preparing cost
estimates.

The above funding requirement will be met from the already
agree £2.4M of OSPR.

Costed Risk Provision requested for this Gateway: £100,000
(as detailed in the Risk Register — Appendix 2)

3. Governance
arrangements

e Service committee: Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee

e Senior Responsible Officer: Bruce McVean, Assistant
Director, Policy & Projects.

e Project Board: This is not considered necessary. The
projects within the programme are not complex or
impact other departments and the risks are routine for
highway projects. However, regular project meetings or
engagement with colleagues representing relevant
service areas across the City (e.g. Comptroller,
Chamberlain, Town Clerks, etc) and TfL will be
undertaken to ensure smooth project delivery.

Project Summary

4. Context

4.1 The Transport Strategy has committed the City to Vision
Zero with the ambition to eliminate transport related
deaths and serious injuries from the City streets by
2040. The approved Vision Zero Plan 2023 — 2028 sets
out a programme to investigate and deliver safer streets
improvements at priority locations. These locations
have been ranked, as detailed below, for intervention
and are based on the highest number of collisions
which resulted in serious and fatal injuries.

1. London Wall / Moorgate

2. Holborn Circus

3. Aldgate High Street

4. Newgate Street / Warwick Lane
5. Aldersgate Street/ Long Lane

6. Fleet Street / Bouverie Street

7. London Wall/ Old Broad Street
8. Fenchurch Street / Lime Street
9. Fetter Lane / New Fetter Lane
10.Fenchurch Street / Mincing Lane

4.2 The Vision Zero Plan included a need to regularly
review the collisions across the City, to ensure the
priority locations remain up to date. As a result of a
recent review, high levels of collisions have been

Page 183




recorded at Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey. This location has
therefore been added to the programme for priority
intervention.

4.3 Road traffic collisions resulting in injuries to people
remains high. Excluding the two Covid-19 years (2020
and 2021), the number of serious and fatal injuries over
the past 7 years have fluctuated, with a high of 81 in
2018 and a low of 42 in 2023. This represents a
significant reduction and an overall declining trend.

4.4 Road safety is a RED risk on the risk register for the
Environment Department.

5. Brief description
of project

5.1 This programme is to investigate and deliver highway
measures to reduce collisions, particularly those that
resulted in serious and fatal injuries, and improve the
perceptions of safety at the identified priority locations
detailed in section 4, above. It will also deliver wider
Healthy Streets improvements such as increased
pedestrian priority, accessibility improvements and
improvements to the public realm.

5.2 Taking account the above priority locations, the
programme has been strategically reprioritised based
on the following three key factors:

1. Projects which are anticipated to produce the
greatest collision reduction benefits which are
anticipated to be deliverable, affordable and
not within the scope of other projects or
initiatives are prioritised first.

2. Projects that involve more complicated
locations where improvement measures are
likely to be challenging or are unknown and
are not within scope of other projects or
initiatives are prioritised for further
investigation only.

3. Projects which could be progressed which are
within the scope of existing or upcoming
projects and initiatives are prioritised to be
progressed within those projects and
initiatives.

5.3 The programme therefore consists of individual projects
at the following five locations and are shown in
Appendix 3:

1. Aldgate High Street (between Mansell Street and
Fenchurch Street)
2. Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey

Page 184




3. Newgate Street (between Snow Hill and Warwick
Lane)

4. Aldersgate Street/ Long Lane

5. Holborn Circus

5.4 If approved, the projects will commence from November
2024 and is expected to be completed in 2028/29.

5.5 The proposals are likely to include some of the
following: alterations to junction priority and traffic
signals, new or improved crossings, wider
pavements/narrower carriageways, some restricted or
banned movements, cycle lanes and other public ream
improvements.

5.6 Locations 4 and 5 are much more complicated junctions
and will initially involve engaging a consultant to
undertake a detailed investigation and then to develop
proposals which will inform future funding bids.

5.7 An additional Vision Zero scheme at Mincing Lane at its
junction with Fenchurch Street is being progressed
outside of this programme through existing delegations.
This scheme is very minor and involves narrowing a
short section of the carriageway to reduce turning
speeds and to improve pedestrian crossing conditions.
The estimated to cost of this scheme is £15,000 and will
be progressed as a revenue scheme, which will enable
the safety benefits to be realised sooner.

5.8 The remaining five Vision Zero priority sites (Fleet
Street/Bouverie Street, Fenchurch Street/Lime Street,
Fetter Lane/New Fetter Lane, London Wall/Moorgate
and London Wall/Old Broad Street) are or will be
progressed outside of this programme and alongside
other initiatives such as the delivery of the Healthy
Streets Plan, separate studies, through s278
agreements or other projects.

6. Consequences if
project not
approved

6.1. The ambition of Vision Zero will not be met. Without on-
street improvements the remaining Vision Zero
approaches (Safer Speeds, Safer Vehicles and Safer
Behaviours) are unlikely to provide adequate mitigation.

6.2. Injury collisions at the prioritised locations will remain
high.

7. SMART project
objectives

7.1.Collision rates at each location are reduced compared
against baseline figures.

7.2.The number of people killed or seriously injured are
significantly reduced compared against baseline

Page 185




figures, with the aim of no serious or fatal collisions at
these locations.

7.3. Healthy Streets and accessibility outcomes are
improved against baseline scores. These will be
assessed using the Healthy Streets Design Check and
the City of London Street Accessibility Tool to measure
existing conditions, assess proposals and measure
conditions following completion of the project.

7.4.1t should be noted that validated collision records will
not be known until at least 12 — 18 months post
completion due to a lag in the publication of injury
collision records. It may be possible to access
unvalidated data earlier.

8. Key benefits

¢ Road danger is reduced.

e People using the streets are safer and feel safer.

e Contributes to the delivery of several Corporate Plan
outcomes, in particular the Vibrant Thriving Destination
(which includes a performance measure - Increase road
safety, decrease motor traffic, and encourage
environmentally sustainable forms of transport).

9. Project category

1. Health and safety

10. Project priority B. Advisable
11. Notable None
exclusions

Options Appraisal

12. Overview of
options

Several options are available.
Option 1: Do nothing.

e This will not address the high injury collisions occurring at
the identified locations and we will not achieve Vision
Zero ambitions.

e There will be no associated Healthy Streets or
accessibility improvements for people walking, wheeling
or cycling.

Option 2: Minor highway alterations.

e Measures likely to include alterations to traffic lanes and
road markings, banning parking and loading at key
locations, minor kerbline changes, cycle lanes, etc.

e Will not achieve Vision Zero ambitions but may achieve
some limited safety and minor Healthy Streets benefits.

Page 186




¢ Minimal impact on traffic flow, capacity and access.

Option 3: Targeted highway improvements.

e Measures likely to include significant changes to junction
layouts, carriageway levels, traffic control, protected
cycle lanes where possible, pavement widening, traffic
lane reduction, public realm measures such as tree
planting or greening.

e Will improve safety at the identified locations, contribute
to the Vision Zero ambitions and delivers Healthy Streets
improvements, particularly for people walking, wheeling
and cycling.

e Some impacts to traffic flow, capacity and access - likely
to be successful with stakeholder support. High
probability of securing necessary external statutory
approvals.

Option 3 is therefore the only viable option that delivers the
objectives of the programme.

Project Planning

13. Delivery period
and key dates

Overall project:

The overall programme for the project, excluding the minor
measures at Mincing Lane, is anticipated as follows.

Programme start: Nov 2024
Programme completion: March 2029

Commission consultant(s) to undertake traffic
modelling/investigate measures: Jan 2025

Gateway 3/4 (for each project): From summer 2025
Other works dates to coordinate: None

The indicative programme for the next three years is
summarised below and in appendix 4:

Year 1 (2024/25) will involve:

e Review/refine designs & detailed modelling of the
following projects (with consultancy support as required):
o Aldgate High Street (between Mansell Street and
Fenchurch Street)
o Newgate Street (between Snow Hill and Warwick
Lane)
o Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey
e Commissioning consultants to investigate the following
projects:
o Aldersgate Street/ Long Lane

Page 187




o Holborn Circus

Year 2 (2025/26) will involve:

e Completing detailed design, modelling, approvals,
engagement and implementation of the following
projects.

o Aldgate High Street (between Mansell Street and
Fenchurch Street)
o Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey

¢ Reviewing & complete detailed design, complete
outstanding modelling, engagement & obtain approvals
(including any necessary external approvals).

o Newgate Street (between Snow Hill and Warwick
Lane)

o Aldersgate Street/ Long Lane

o Holborn Circus

Year 3 (2026/27) will involve:
¢ Implementing:
o Newgate Street (between Snow Hill and Warwick
Lane)
o Aldersgate Street / Long Lane (subject to funding)
e Subject to funding, continue to progress the other
projects (Holborn Circus and Aldersgate Street/Long
Lane).

14. Risk implications

Overall project risk: Medium
The main risks are:

¢ Insufficient capital funding to complete the programme.

e Objections to traffic orders or challenges to the proposals

e Project costs may increase due to unknown underground
conditions irrespective of radar surveys.

e Additional technical work or data may be required to
justify the project(s) or for other unforeseen issues.

e Project costs and deliverability implications may arise due
to the need to resolve London Underground and Network
Rail tunnels below ground level.

e There may be a requirement to assess the impact of
proposals on highway structures.

A CRP of £100,000 is included to allow for budget variation
which may be required to mitigate against some of the above
risks. Further information available within the Risk Register
(Appendix 2).

15. Stakeholders and
consultees

Internal stakeholders and consultee:

e Colleagues in Finance, Highways, Planning, Parking,
Engineering, Gardens and Cleansing

Page 188




Ward Members

External stakeholders and consultee:

Transport for London/London Underground
Network Rail

Emergency Services

Local businesses and occupiers

Business Improvement Districts

Resource Implications

16. Total estimated
cost

Likely cost range (excluding risk): £2.8M - £6.4M
Likely cost range (including risk): £3.5M - £7.5M

17. Funding strategy

Choose 1: Choose 1:
Partial funding confirmed Mixture - some internal and
some external funding
Funds/Sources of Funding Cost (£)
OSPR (confirmed) 2.4M
Capital funding bid (CIL or OSPR) 0.4M-5.1M
Total | £2-8 - £7.5M

17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

The confirmed £2.4M of OSPR funding is proposed to be
used to progress projects to various Gateway stages:
1. Aldgate High Street (between Mansell Street and
Fenchurch Street) — Gateway 6
2. Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey — Gateway 6
3. Newgate Street (between Snow Hill and Warwick
Lane) — Gateway 6
4. Aldersgate Street / Long Lane — Gateway 4
5. Holborn Circus — Gateway 4

Additional funding will be required for projects 4 and 5
(Aldersgate Street / Long Lane and Holborn Circus) to
reach Gateway 5 and then subsequently to deliver the
improvements. A further capital bid for consideration by
Members will be submitted once feasibility work has
been completed and the scale and cost of improvements
required is known. If funding is not available, these
projects can remain in abeyance and progressed once
funding has been identified.

This £2.4m funding also includes £15,000 for the
scheme at Mincing Lane, which will be progress as a
revenue scheme outside of this programme through
existing delegation.

Page 189




17.4. In summary, the £2.4M of confirmed OSPR funding is
expected to deliver three large projects (and one minor
improvement scheme outside of this programme) to
completion and produce designs/complete evaluations
for two projects, both are at a complex junction.

17.5. Although the above funding strategy relates to internal
funding, external funding opportunities such as from
s106/s278 and TfL will be explored. If this is successful,
the amount of internal funding required will be reduced
accordingly.

18. Investment
appraisal

Not applicable

19. Procurement
strategy/route to
market

19.1 Some projects will be progressed and designed by the
Highways team in City Operations.

19.2 Consultants will be engaged as required to carry out traffic
modelling work and detailed investigation and the development
of proposals. It is expected that the transport and public realm
framework will be used for this.

19.3 Works will be undertaken by the City’s Term Contractor
but traffic signal and works on utility infrastructure will be
undertaken by Transport for London and by Statutory
Undertakers respectively (as they are the asset owners).

20. Legal
implications

20.1. In exercising its traffic authority functions, the City must,
as far as practicable, give due regard to secure the
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of traffic
(including pedestrians) and the provision of suitable and
adequate parking facilities (S.122 Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984), and to secure the efficient use of
the road network, avoiding congestion and disruption
(S.16 Traffic Management Act 2004).

20.2. New or amendments to existing traffic orders to
regulate the use of the highway including parking,
loading, banned or prescribed movements, etc, require
a Traffic Management Order to be made (Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984). This will require statutory
consultation and any objection or representation
received must be considered, including consideration to
hold a public inquiry under certain circumstances,
before implementing such change (The Local
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and
Wales) Regulations 1996).

Page 190




20.3.

These implications will be fully considered as part of the
progression of each project.

21. Corporate

There are no corporate property implications.

property
implications
- 22.1. Some projects are likely to restrict vehicle access or
22. Traffic : . ) .

. C require alternative routes, or reduce traffic capacity. An

implications i
assessment of these will be undertaken and any
significant impacts will be included in the next Gateway
report.

22.2. Where appropriate, Transport for London will be

engaged on traffic signal design and timings, and
TMAN approvals will be sought on schemes where
there is significant impact on the Transport for London
Road Network (red routes) or the Strategic Road
Network.

23. Sustainability
and energy
implications

There are no relevant sustainability and energy impacts
associated with this project.

24. 1S implications

There are no IS implications

25. Equality Impact
Assessment

An equality impact assessment/screening will be
undertaken for each project including engagement with
relevant user groups (where necessary).

26. Data Protection

The risk to personal data is less than high or non-

Impact applicable and a data protection impact assessment will
Assessment not be undertaken.
Appendices
Appendix 1 Project Briefing
Appendix 2 Risk Register
Appendix 3 Location of individual projects
Appendix 4 Indicative delivery programme (first 3 years only)
Contact

Report Author

Sam Lee

Email Address

Sam.lee@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Telephone Number

020 7332 1921

Page 191



mailto:Sam.lee@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 192



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed into
hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches that of
the one on-line.

ProjectBriefing

Project identifier

[1a] Unique Project TBC [1b] Departmental N/A
Identifier Reference Number
[2] Core Project Name Vision Zero Programme

[3] Programme Affiliation
(if applicable)

Ownership
[4] Chief Officer has signed lan Hughes, Director, City Operations
off on this document

[5] Senior Responsible Bruce McVean, Assistant Director, Policy & Projects, City Operations
Officer
[6] Project Manager TBC

Description and purpose

[7] Project Description

The Transport Strategy has committed the City to Vision Zero with the ambition to eliminate transport
related deaths and serious injuries from the City streets by 2040.

The approved Vision Zero Plan 2023 — 2028 has set out a programme to investigate and deliver safer
streets proposals at priority locations. This will involve undertaking a detailed analysis of collisions,
develop and then deliver improvements to reduce these collisions.

The Vision Zero Plan identified the following ranked locations for intervention.

1. London Wall / Moorgate

2. Holborn Circus

3. Aldgate High Street

4. Newgate Street / Warwick Lane
5. Aldersgate Street/ Long Lane

6. Fleet Street / Bouverie Street

7. London Wall / Old Broad Street
8. Fenchurch Street / Lime Street
9. Fetter Lane / New Fetter Lane
10. Fenchurch Street / Mincing Lane

The Vision Zero Plan included a need to regularly review the collisions across the City, to ensure the
priority locations remain up to date. As a result of a recent review, high levels of collisions have been
recorded at Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey. This location has therefore been added to the programme for
priority intervention.

This project is therefore a programme to investigate and deliver highway measures to reduce
collisions, particularly those that resulted in serious and fatal injuries, and improve the perceptions of
safety at the above identified priority. The project will also deliver wider Healthy Streets improvements
such as increased pedestrian priority, accessibility improvements and improvements to the public
realm. The projects within the programme have been prioritised as follows:

v.10 April 2019 Page 193



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed into
hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches that of
the one on-line.

1. Projects which are anticipated to produce the greatest collision reduction benefits which
are deliverable and affordable and not within scope of other projects or initiatives are
prioritised first.

2. Projects that involve more complicated locations where improvement measures are likely
to be challenging or unknown and are not within scope of other projects or initiatives are
prioritised for further investigation only.

3. Projects which could be progressed which are within the scope of existing or upcoming
projects and initiatives are prioritised to be progressed within those projects and initiatives.

The programme therefore consists of individual projects at the following five locations:

Aldgate High Street (between Mansell Street and Fenchurch Street)
Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey

Newgate Street (between Snow Hill and Warwick Lane)

Aldersgate Street / Long Lane

Holborn Circus

agrwONE

The Vision Zero scheme at Mincing Lane at its junction with Fenchurch Street is being progressed
outside of this programme through existing delegations as this scheme is very minor and involves
narrowing a short section of the carriageway to reduce turning speeds and to improve pedestrian
crossing conditions. The estimated cost of this scheme is £15,000 and will be progressed as a revenue
scheme, which will enable the safety benefits to be realised sooner.

The remaining five priority sites identified in the Vision Zero Plan (Fleet Street/Bouverie Street,
Fenchurch Street/Lime Street, Fetter Lane/New Fetter Lane, London Wall/Moorgate and London
Wall/Old Broad Street) are or will be progressed alongside other initiatives such as the delivery of the
Healthy Streets Plan, separate studies, through s106/s278 agreements or as part of other projects.

[8] Definition of Need: What is the problem we are trying to solve or opportunity we are trying to
realise (i.e. the reasons why we should make a change)?
¢ Road traffic collisions resulting in injuries to people is unacceptable and remain high.
e The Transport Strategy has committeed the City to Vision Zero with the ambition to eliminate
transport related deaths and serious injuries from the City streets by 2040.
e Road safety has been assessed as a RED risk in the Risk Register for the Environment
Department.

[9] What is the link to the City of London Corporate plan outcomes?
The project contributes to the following Corporate Plan 2024 — 2029 outcomes:

e Vibrant thriving destination. A key performance measure includes - Increase road safety,
decrease motor traffic, and encourage environmentally sustainable forms of transport.
Diverse engaged communities
Flourishing public spaces
Leading sustainable environment
Proving excellent services

[10] What is the link to the departmental business plan objectives?
This project supports the delivery of the Transport Strategy and the Vision Zero Plan, and to mitigate
against the Department’s RED risk for road safety.

[11] Note all which apply:

Officer: Y Member: N Corporate: N

Project developed from Project developed from Project developed as a

Officer initiation Member initiation large scale Corporate
initiative

v.10 April 2019 Page 194



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed into
hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches that of
the one on-line.

Mandatory: N Sustainability: N Improvement: Y
Compliance with Essential for business New opportunity/ idea
legislation, policy and continuity that leads to

audit improvement

Project Benchmarking:

[12] What are the top 3 measures of success which will indicate that the project has achieved
its aims?

<These should be impacts of the activity to complete the aim/objective, rather than finishes on time
and on budget’>>

1) Streets are safer/number of fatal or serious injuries reduced

2) Supports priority for people walking and cycling

3) Improved Healthy Streets and accessibility outcomes as identified through the Healthy Streets
Design and CoL Accessibility Tool check

[13] Will this project have any measurable legacy benefits/outcome that we will need to track
after the end of the ‘delivery’ phase? If so, what are they and how will you track them? (E.g.
cost savings, quality etc.)

Yes — this project will contribute to safer streets which is measurable through collision records. Road
traffic injury collisions are recorded by the police which are uploaded to a national database which will
be used to measure and compare collision levels at the project locations.

[14] What is the expected delivery cost of this project (range values)[£]?

Lower Range estimate (excluding risk): £2.8M

Upper Range estimate (excluding risk): £6.4M

[15] Total anticipated on-going revenue commitment post-delivery (lifecycle costs)[£]:

No additional ongoing revenue implication is anticipated. However, any increased maintenance liability
will be detailed in the appropriate Gateway report.

[16] What are the expected sources of funding for this project?

£2.4M from the OSPR was approved by P&R in July 2024. This will be used to progress (to various
Gateway stages) .

Aldgate High Street (between Mansell Street and Fenchurch Street) — Gateway 6
Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey — Gateway 6

Newgate Street (between Snow Hill and Warwick Lane) — Gateway 6

Aldersgate Street / Long Lane — Gateway 4

Holborn Circus — Gateway 4

This £2.4m of approved OSPR also includes £15,000 for the scheme at Mincing Lane, which will be
progressed as a revenue scheme, outside of this programme.

To complete the remaining two projects (Aldersgate Street/Long Lane and Holborn Circus) further
capital funding would be required. This is likely to involve a further capital funding bid for OSPR or CIL.

If funding is not available, the remaining two projects could remain in abeyance and progressed once
funding has been identified or where further consideration by Members is required.

Although the above funding strategy relates to internal funding, external funding opportunities such as
from s106/s278 and from TfL will be explored. If this is successful, the amount of internal funding
required will be reduced accordingly.

v.10 April 2019 Page 195



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed into
hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches that of
the one on-line.

[17] What is the expected delivery timeframe for this project (range values)?
Are there any deadlines which must be met (e.g. statutory obligations)?
Lower Range estimate: November 2024 — March 2029

Upper Range estimate: December 2024 — March 2030

<Critical deadline(s):> N/A

Project Impact:

[18] Will this project generate public or media impact and response which the City of London
will need to manage? Will this be a high-profile activity with public and media momentum?
This is unlikely.

[19] Who has been actively consulted to develop this project to this stage?
<(Add additional internal or external stakeholders where required) >
Chamberlains: Officer Name: Olu Obisesan

Finance

Chamberlains: Officer Name:
Procurement

IT Officer Name:
HR Officer Name:

Communications

Officer Name:

Corporate Property

Officer Name:

External Transport for London
[20] Is this project being delivered internally on behalf of another department? If not ignore this
question. If so:
Please note the Client supplier departments.
Who will be the Officer responsible for the designing of the project?
If the supplier department will take over the day-to-day responsibility for the project,
when will this occur in its design and delivery?

Client Department:
Supplier Department:
Supplier Department:
Project Design Manager Department:

Design/Delivery handover
to Supplier

Gateway stage:
<Before Project Proposal>, <Post Project Proposal>, <Post Options
Appraisal>, <Post Detailed design>, <Post Authority to start work>

v.10 April 2019 Page 196



City of London: Projects Procedure Corporate Risks Register

PM's overall

risk rating:

Total estimated cost
(exc risk):

Average Open Risks
unmitigated risk
Average mitigated

risk score

CRP requested £
this gateway
Total CRP used to £
date

Mitigation actions
Mitigating actions

Project Name: |Vision Zero Programme Medium 100,000 13.7

Closed Risks

Unique project identifier:|TBC £ 6,400,000

General risk classification
Risk Gateway Category Description of the Risk Risk Impact Description  Likelihood
ID Classificatio

Ownership & Action
Date Named Risk owner
raised Departmental (Named

Date
Closed

Risk Post- CRPused Use of CRP

Mitiga to date

Impact Costed impact pre- Costed Risk Provision Confidence in the Comment(s)

requested estimation

Mitigation
cost (£)

Likelihood Impact Costed
Classificati Classificat impact post-

Classificatio score mitigation (£)

n pre-

n pre-

Y/N

on post-

ion post- mitigation (£) tion

Risk

Officer or

OR/

6T abed

mitigation  mitigation mitigation mitigation [(H3 Manager/ External Party) Realised &
score Coordinator moved to
Issues
If objections or challenges to . .
the project is received, these Bsure best practices is -
. . will need to be considered by adheréd fo. Enga.ge with
(1) Compliance/Reg Objections fo Traffic the City. This could delay the |, . N . - those likley to be \mpgcted " .
R1 Orders/challenges to the . . D Likely Major £5,000.00 N B — Fairly Confident at a early stage. Consider £0.00(Possible Serious £5,000.00 6 £0.00 25/07/2024 Sam Lee
ulatory project, require modifications " . "
proposals N A other options which may still
orin extreme cases it could . .
- y y achieve the intended
result in the project being outcomes
cancelled by Members.
There may be delays to the Ensure regular engagement
(1) Compliance/Reg|Delay to TMAN approval TMAN opprovol z?r oddiﬂonf:\ . N . N with Tﬂ.‘ (including relevant " .
R2 f justification required by TfLif  |Likely Serious £5,000.00 N B - Fairly Confident TfL business areas) and £0.00(Unlikely Serious £0.00 4 £0.00 25/07/2024 Sam Lee
ulatory (where required) P . N .
there are significant impacts submit for approval in good
fo the main road network fime
Engage with colleagues in
Finance, Planning and TfL to
idenitify funding
opportunities and submit
Captial funding not fully in There is insufficient funding to funding bids.
R3 (2) Financial place to complete the complete the whole Likely Extreme £0.00 N A-Very Confident £0.00|Possible Serious £0.00 6 £0.00 25/07/2024 Sam Lee
programme programme If there is sfill a funding gap.
defer affected project(s)
until such fimes when
funding becomes
available.
Project costs may increase This may result in additional Undertake underground
R4 (2) Financial due to unknown underground |cost, time or design change  |Likely Serious 8 £100,000.00] N B - Fairly Confident radar surveys and utility £0.00(Possible Serious £100,000.00 6 £0.00 25/07/2024 Sam Lee
conditions to resolve the issue queries
Ensure best practice is
More technical work odhe;ed fo. Zegulor projec;
Additional technical work including fraffic modelling xiie:'(‘f':gé:gnogeeng:rii?oerﬂ
RS (2) Financial and dcjo is required to justify |and gddiﬂona\ [.10.10 is Likely Serious 8 £20,000.00| Y - for mitigation costs |B - Fairly Confident io undér?oke any additiona £20,000.00(Possible Serious £0.00 6 £0.00 25/07/2024 Sam Lee
the projects required than originally 3 .
allowed for. technical works cnq.obicm
any necessary additional
data.
Project costs and
iﬂ‘;z:zz"!zg?s‘;ﬁg?g:d to This may result in additional Liaise with engineering
Ré (2) Financial cost, time or design change  |Possible Major 12 £40,000.00| Y - for mitigation costs |B - Fairly Confident colleagues and consult LU £40,000.00(Possible Serious £0.00 6 £0.00 28/08/2024 Sam Lee
resolve London Underground B N
and Network Rail tunnels to resolve the issue & NR as early as possible
below ground level.
. . . Licise with engineering
N N To assess impact of proposals This mgy result mpddmonal N N P . N colleagues to indentity " .
R7 (2) Financial " cost, time or design change  |Possible Major 12 £40,000.00| Y - for mitigation costs B - Fairly Confident £40,000.00|Possible Serious £0.00 6 £0.00 28/08/2024 Sam Lee
on highway structures . what assessments would be
fo resolve the issue i i
required as soon as possible
RS £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R9 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R10 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R11 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R12 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R13 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R14 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R15 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R16 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R17 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R18 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R19 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R20 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R21 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R22 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R23 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R24 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R25 £0.00] £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R26 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R27 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R28 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R29 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R30 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R31 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R32 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R33 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R34 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R35 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R34 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R37 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R38 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R39 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R40 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R41 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R42 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R43 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R44 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R45 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R46 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R47 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R48 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R49 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R50 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00




RS51 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
RS2 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
RS53 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R54 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
RS55 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R56 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
RS57 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R58 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
RS9 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R60 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Ré1 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Ré2 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Ré3 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Ré4 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Ré65 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Ré6 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Ré7 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Ré8 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Ré9 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R70 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R71 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R72 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R73 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R74 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R75 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R76 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R77 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R78 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R79 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R80 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R81 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R82 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R83 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R84 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R85 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R86 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R87 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R88 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R89 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R90 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R91 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R92 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R93 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R94 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R9S £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R96 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R97 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R98 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R99 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
R100 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00

86T abe




Appendix 3: Project locations
G,

nal

Inter!

2 %, e 1 4 v v
2 O”d\ % ; - @ Wo’shlb St
% “ ¢ 7 FapS ! ' Montcalm-Royal / w
& 5 @ The Charterhouse \ - LondeniHouse
7, el 8 & R Dennis Severs|House @
=) * Nuffield Health - @ 5 13 Indg, &
\ Y ' % Barbican Fitness &... " 1he Brewery €3 Bine 4 S ) be p’/rmos S
= 5 est
- ‘ 3
¥
z i | 4. Aldersgate Street/Long Lane "
2 Farringdon =€ Cowcross s pe arpicar = Ung, E iR arket 9
R T L - SPI = VIarke:’
4l % Smithfield Market ond Barbican Estat 9 ,‘:5 Liverpool Street Station @ o a
a bican Estat S Z 3
e St = 3
grev! 3 3
Third Space Moorgate 9 o
St. Etheldred: StGiles Crinplegate / Si
o L E MJ‘ % St:Giles Cripplegate v Liverpool Street S B
L , Moorgate =&
a = F
> ; : Park;House 9 White's RoW
> g SN
i) /'“'rhe\”* Virgin Active 9 Fozs B .
f s Finsbury 3 grune S
1 AR e Museum of @ f Y \
5. Holborn Circus il-'bg:;f)ftvaJl T g -ondon-Wall:-Place Circus Garden Y, m”(
y b IR ¢ Liverpool Street @€ ¢, 2 ‘T/& 5
‘ Cocktn M N s 4
) 449 % s Glavs.The.City 9 9%/ Devonshire Square 9 @ MY
S T i s ‘.‘ Kings Arms c®
ldmanQJchs = M| perfect Pub Grub &
- f ¢ g
Guildhall 9
7 Oral and Maxillofacial .

ol 20uS o

m Surgery - Mr Alastair F...

D Centra
@ § 3 O.r_al an?» S
@ ® Fleet Place s i 2 Manxillofacial Surge.
(@] . Agp—« . 5 &
. S f 3 COYA Cit
‘ >, St. Paul's © 2 § = . 11 osd City y
v 2 e Gy & : Othbury Horizon 22
\ 4 | 15 3
2 S 7| Bank of England
5 ( b
City Thameslink = 5 % | ‘G ‘l::ir;;’_\ézﬂnuseum S
o 1 <
. Paul's Cathedral 3
& St & &g The GoldenFleece Leadenhall 5§
@ @ ] Looking For’ e cornhill 2
S . . an Epic Pub < [::
s 2. Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey 7 , 2
3 / - Leadenhall-Market ®
@ —LOMNAonStFauls v o
' Tudor St Knightnicers A f Little Waitrose 1 . Aldgate ngh Street tt
Mansion-House €~ | [ & partners ~ jile Garde - = -
- / - Find Your ~ s (7 ’ o
Local Wait
G i ¥ Fenchurch Street == b American portsokt
Square

!
Qv Rardan €0

-

S SRUEL City of London School
Aorgan - Victorig @ Rlackfriars & ~



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 200



Appendix 4 - Indicative programme (first 3 years only)

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
Project

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Newgate Street
Ludgate Hill/Old Bailey #

Aldersgate Street / Long Lane

Aldgate High Street

1
i

i

Holborn Circus

it

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 202



Agenda Item 9

Committees: Dates:

Streets & Walkways Sub Committee - For Decision 1 October 2024
Projects & Procurement Sub Committee - For Information 21 October 2024
Subject: Gateway 2:
Combined Section 278 Project Initiation Report Project Proposal

e Friary Court

61-65 Holborn Viaduct
Middlesex Street Estate
10 King William Street
122 Minories

Unique Project Identifiers:
To be confirmed

Report of: For Decision
Executive Director of Environment

Report Author:
Tom Noble

PUBLIC

Recommendations

1. Next steps and Project Description: A number of planning applications have
requested been approved by the Planning & Transportation Committee in
decisions recent months. All of these approvals are conditioned to require

the developer to enter into a Section 278 agreement (or
equivalent agreement in the case of Middlesex Street Estate)
with the City of London Corporation. The scope of each Section
278 agreement is broadly established through the associated
Section 106 agreements.

As is standard for the City Corporation, all of the Section 278
agreements will include clauses that obligate the relevant
developer to meet the full cost of the works.

Next Gateway: Various (refer to individual Project Briefings at
Appendix 1)

Next Steps: Specific next steps are set out in individual Project
Briefings at Appendix 1, however some apply across all projects:

e Set up project budgets
e Commence design work

Page 203



¢ Negotiate and enter into Section 278 agreements or, in
the case of Middlesex Street Estate, a ‘Scheme of

Highway Works’ agreement.

Requested Decisions:

1. That budgets are approved for each project, subject to

receipt of funds, as set out in the tables in Section 2;

2. Note the total estimated costs of the projects (excluding

risk) as set out in the Project Briefings;

3. That authority is given to negotiate and enter into the

individual Section 278 (or equivalent) agreements;
4. That authority is given to advertise Traffic Regulation

Orders where required, noting that any objections will be

dealt with in the usual way.

Resource
requirements to
reach next
Gateway

Table 2.1: Friary Court

Item Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
Source of
Funding
Staff costs Project Section £27,000
(Project management, | 278
Manager) stakeholder
liaison, report
writing
Staff costs Design work, Section £13,000
(Engineer) commissioning | 278
surveys
Fees To cover (but | Section £10,000
not limited to) | 278
Technical
assessments,
including any
surveys and
utility enquiries
Total £50,000
Table 2.2: 61-65 Holborn Viaduct
Item Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
Source of
Funding

Page 204




Staff costs Project Section £10,000
(Project management, | 278
Manager) stakeholder
liaison, report
writing
Staff costs Design work, Section £10,000
(Engineer) commissioning | 278
surveys
Fees To cover (but | Section £5,000
not limited to) | 278
Technical
assessments,
including any
surveys and
utility enquiries
Total £25,000
Table 2.3: Middlesex Street Estate
Item Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
Source of
Funding
Staff costs Project Section £30,000
(Project management, | 278
Manager) stakeholder
liaison, report
writing
Staff costs Design work, Section £20,000
(Engineer) commissioning | 278
surveys
Fees To cover (but | Section £25,000
not limited to) | 278
Technical
assessments,
including any
surveys and
utility enquiries
Total £75,000

Table 2.4: 10 King William Street

Page 205




Item Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
Source of
Funding
Staff costs Project Section £26,000
(Project management, | 278
Manager) stakeholder
liaison, report
writing
Staff costs Design work, Section £26,000
(Engineer) commissioning | 278
surveys
Fees To cover (but | Section £40,000
not limited to) | 278
Technical
assessments,
including any
surveys and
utility enquiries
Total £92,000
Table 2.5: 122 Minories
Item Reason Funds/ Cost (£)
Source of
Funding
Staff costs Project Section £5,000
(Project management, | 278
Manager) stakeholder
liaison, report
writing
Staff costs Design work, Section £5,000
(Engineer) commissioning | 278
surveys
Fees To cover (but | Section £5,000
not limited to) | 278
Technical
assessments,
including any
surveys and
utility enquiries
Total £15,000

Page 206




Costed Risk Provision requested for this Gateway: Not
requested at this stage.

Funds have already been received, or are expected to be
received, from the relevant developers for the evaluation and
design stage of the projects. Provision is also made in the
related Section 106 agreements for any excess payments
during the evaluation and design stage to be recouped from
the developers.

Unless otherwise requested by the developer, any remaining
monies at the end of the evaluation and design stage will be
put towards the implementation stage. The allocation of
resources is subject to advance receipt of all funds.

3. Governance
arrangements

e Service Committee: Streets & Walkways Sub

e Senior Responsible Officer: Bruce McVean (Assistant
Director, Policy & Projects)

e Under the existing governance procedures Project
boards are not expected to be required for any of the
projects. Working groups involving key stakeholders will
be established where appropriate. Subject to the revised
Corporate Project Governance procedures being
agreed, these projects will follow the revised appropriate
governance arrangements.

e All of these projects form part of a legal requirement
between the City and the individual developers to enter
a S278 (or equivalent) following a planning permission.
At the initiation stage of these types of projects, the
information available is very similar across all the
projects and so a consolidated report has been used for
this first stage. This approach has been used previously
and works well.

e 122 Minories is anticipated to be under the value of the
formal gateway process and will be undertaken through
existing delegated procedures and governance
procedures. It is included in this consolidated report to
seek the authority to enter a s278 agreement with the
developer in due course.

Project Summary

4. Context

4.1 A number of planning applications have been approved by
either the Planning & Transportation Committee, the
Planning Applications Sub Committee or by Delegated
Authority in recent months. All of these agreements require
the applicant to enter into a Section 278 agreement with

Page 207




the City of London, to deliver changes to the highway in
the vicinity of the site. An Evaluation & Design (E&D)
payment, to progress initial design options, is required
through the Section 106 agreement; the value of the E&D
is determined by the scale and complexity of the relevant
application.

4.2 For the Middlesex Street Estate application, as the City
Corporation is also acting as the developer and so cannot
enter into a Section 106 agreement with itself, a Unilateral
Undertaking has been entered into. This commits the City
Corporation as developer to cover the costs of required
changes to the highway as a result of the development;
this will be captured through a ‘Scheme of Highway
Works’, which broadly serves the same function as a
Section 278 agreement.

4.3 The projects proposed for initiation in this report relate to
the following planning permissions:

e 22/00882/FULMAJ — Friary Court, 65 Crutched
Friars, EC3N 2AE

e 21/00781/FULMAJ - 61-65 Holborn Viaduct, EC1A
2FD

e 23/00882/FULL — Middlesex Street Estate, Gravel
Lane, E1 7AF

e 14/00178/FULEIA & 23/01379/NMA — 10 King
William Street (Bank Station Over Site
Development)

e 18/00144/FULMAJ — 122 Minories & 14 Crosswall,
EC3N INT

5. Brief description
of project

5.1 Each project involves changes to the public highway in
the vicinity of each site. All are fully funded via Section
278 agreements, as stipulated in the relevant Section
106 agreements.

5.2 Descriptions of each individual project are contained in
the Project Briefs appended to this report.

6. Consequences if
project not
approved

6.1 The applicants would be in breach of their obligations
under the Section 106 agreements (or equivalents)
should approval not be granted to progress these
projects.

7. SMART project
objectives

Objectives for each project are set out in the Project Briefings
at Appendix 1.

8. Key benefits

The anticipated benefits arising from each project are set out in
the Project Briefings at Appendix 1.

Page 208




9. Project category

7a. Asset enhancement/improvement (capital)

10. Project priority A. Essential
11. Notable None.
exclusions

Options Appraisal

12. Overview of
options

12.1 The scope of each project is broadly outlined in the
relevant Section 106 agreement and is summarised in
the individual Project Briefings appended to this report.
Further detail on options development will be reported
through separate Gateway reports for each project.

Project Planning

13. Delivery period
and key dates

Overall: The overall project durations vary and are largely
dependent on the respective development programmes.

Key dates: Refer to Project Briefings.

Other works dates to coordinate: Coordination with other
works will be assessed and reported in at future Gateways for
each individual project.

14. Risk implications

Overall project risk: Low

14.1 The scope of each project is set out in the related Section
106 agreement; these agreements also obligate the
developers to pay the full reasonable costs of the Section
278 works.

14.2 The City Operations division has delivered many Section
278 projects and is experienced in managing the risks
involved with such works.

14.3 Individual risk registers will be produced and reported at
future Gateways. Early-stage risks identified are as follows:

e Developments are delayed impacting on project
programme and budget.

¢ Inaccurate or incomplete budget estimates, including
inflationary issues, lead to budget increases.

e Utility and utility survey issues lead to increased
costs and / or scope of work.

e |[ssues with external engagement and buy-in lead to
project delays and / or increased costs.

e Third party delays may impact negatively on project
delivery (programme and / or budget).

Page 209




15. Stakeholders and
consultees

Developers

Local businesses, including BIDS where relevant
Local residents

City of London Police (Middlesex Street Estate)

City divisions and departments, including Planning &
Development, Natural Environment, Chamberlains and
Comptroller & City Solicitors.

Resource Implications

16. Total estimated
cost

Likely cost range (excluding risk): £1,950,000 - £5,750,000
Likely cost range (including risk): £1,950,000 - £5,750,000

Note that this is the total cost range across the five projects.
Cost ranges for each individual project are contained in the
Project Briefings.

17. Funding strategy

Choose 1: Choose 1:

All funding fully guaranteed External - Funded wholly by
contributions from external
third parties

All of the projects will be fully funded through Section 278
agreements, as required as part of the Section 106 agreements
for each development.

Consideration will be given to expanding the scope of some
projects where appropriate (such as on streets where there are
several developments and there may be a benefit in widening
the remit to cover a wider area). In these cases, funding bids will
be submitted as part of the capital bidding process for On Street
Parking Reserve or Community Infrastructure Levy funding to
cover the sections of highway not impacted by the
developments. Approval would be sought through the Gateway
procedure to expand the scope of the project(s). If funding bids
were unsuccessful then the scope would not be expanded and
the opportunity to combine works would be lost.

Indicative cost ranges are shown in the Project Briefings at
Appendix 1.

18. Investment
appraisal

Not applicable.

19. Procurement
strategy/route to
market

It is anticipated that all works including design and construction
will be undertaken in-house. Should specialist input be required
this will be sourced through the Transport & Public Realm
Framework or a competitive tender process in line with City
Procurement regulations.

Page 210




20. Legal
implications

Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 allows the City
Corporation (as highway authority) to enter into an agreement
with any person for the execution of any works which the
authority are authorised to execute, on the terms that that person
pays the whole or such part of the cost of the works as may be
specified in the agreement, if they are satisfied it will be of benefit
to the public.

All of the Section 106 agreements linked to these developments
require the developers to enter into Section 278 agreements
with the City Corporation to deliver the highway works which are
considered necessary to make the relevant development
acceptable in planning terms.

For Middlesex Street Estate, the City has entered into a
Unilateral Undertaking, ensuring that the highway authority can
enter a further agreement with the City Corporation as developer
to deliver the required changes to the highway to accommodate
the development.

21. Corporate None.
property
implications

22. Traffic Implications for traffic are expected to be minimal across all of
implications the projects. However, where there are changes required to

highway functions affecting traffic, these will be reported through
the appropriate Gateway for the relevant project.

23. Sustainability
and energy
implications

There are relevant sustainability impacts associated with these
projects which will be considered during the design process.

It is anticipated that all materials will be sustainably sourced
where possible and be suitably durable for the design life of the
asset.

Any greening and planting in the public space will help to
improve the scheme’s climate resilience. Further information
will be provided at future Gateways.

23 IS implications

None.

24 Equality Impact
Assessment

A Test of Relevance will be undertaken for each project and
where indicated, an equality impact assessment will be
undertaken. The City of London Street Accessibility Tool
(CoLSAT), Equalities Analysis and the Healthy Streets Design
Check processes will form a key part of the design of each
project to ensure the deliverables maximise accessibility and
inclusivity opportunities and improvements for as many users
as possible.

Page 211




25 Data Protection
Impact
Assessment

The risk to personal data is less than high or non-applicable
and a data protection impact assessment will not be
undertaken.

Page 212




Appendices

| Appendix 1 | Project Briefings

Contact
Report Author Tom Noble
Email Address tom.noble@cityoflondon.gov.uk
Telephone Number 020 7332 1057

Page 213



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 214



ProjectBriefing

Project identifier

[1a] Unique Project TBC [1b] Departmental N/A
Identifier Reference Number
[2] Core Project Name Friary Court Section 278

[3] Programme Affiliation | N/A
(if applicable)

Ownership

[4] Chief Officer has signed | Yes
off on this document

[5] Senior Responsible Bruce McVean, Assistant Director, Policy & Projects
Officer
[6] Project Manager TBC (Transport & Public Realm Projects team, City Operations)

Description and purpose

[7] Project Description

The project will deliver changes to the public highway in the vicinity of the development at 65 Crutched
Friars, also known as Friary Court, through a Section 278 agreement that is fully funded by the
developer. The scope of the project is defined in the associated Section 106 agreement and is likely to
include, but not be limited to:
¢ Repaving around the site to improve conditions for people walking and wheeling;
e A new crossover to accommodate new servicing arrangements for the development, including
the removal of two Pay & Display parking bays;
e Planting of up to three new street trees in Crutched Friars;
¢ Improvements to the public realm in Rangoon Street and, subject to progress with the adjacent
development at Boundary House, payment of a contribution towards a new public space in
Rangoon Street.

The next steps to reach the next Gateway include:

e Undertake preparatory survey work and liaise with the required statutory undertakers and
stakeholders to develop highways and public realm improvement options with the Developer;
¢ Negotiate and enter into a Section 278 agreement.

[8] Definition of Need: What is the problem we are trying to solve or opportunity we are trying to
realise (i.e. the reasons why we should make a change)?

The developer is obligated by the Section 106 agreement to fund works to the public highway which
are considered necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms through entry into a
Section 278 agreement.

[9] What is the link to the City of London Corporate plan outcomes?

e Vibrant Thriving Destination — provide more space for walking and making the City’s streets
more accessible.

e Flourishing Public Spaces — ensure our open spaces and historic sites are thriving, accessible
and enrich people’s lives.

[10] What is the link to the departmental business plan objectives?

e Prioritise and provide more space for people walking and making the City’s street more

accessible.
e Improve the quality of streets and public spaces to create a more attractive and welcoming
public realm.
[11] Note all which apply:
Officer: N | Member: N | Corporate: N

v.10 April 2019 Page 215



Project developed from
Officer initiation

Project developed from
Member initiation

Project developed as a
large scale Corporate
initiative

Mandatory:
Compliance with
legislation, policy and

Sustainability:
Essential for business
continuity

Improvement:
New opportunity/ idea
that leads to

audit improvement

Project Benchmarking:

[12] What are the top 3 measures of success which will indicate that the project has achieved
its aims?

1) Improved footways around the development site, increasing the Healthy Streets and CoLSAT
scores where possible

2) Planting of up to three new trees in Crutched Friars

3) Creation of a new public space in Rangoon Street, subject to progress with the neighbouring
development site

[13] Will this project have any measurable legacy benefits/outcome that we will need to track
after the end of the ‘delivery’ phase? If so, what are they and how will you track them? (E.g.
cost savings, quality etc.)

None.

[14] What is the expected delivery cost of this project (range values)[£]?

Lower Range estimate: £300,000
Upper Range estimate: £2m

The broad cost range reflects the options for the redesign of Rangoon Street and will be refined at
future Gateways.

[15] Total anticipated on-going revenue commitment post-delivery (lifecycle costs)[£]:

Commuted sums to maintain upgraded sections of the highway will be presented at a future Gateway
but will be covered for a period of 20 years as is standard for Section 278 projects.

[16] What are the expected sources of funding for this project?

The project will be fully funded from a Section 278 agreement.

[17] What is the expected delivery timeframe for this project (range values)?
Are there any deadlines which must be met (e.g. statutory obligations)?

Lower Range estimate: TBC, in alignment with the developer’s programme
Upper Range estimate: TBC, in alignment with the developer’s programme

Project Impact:

[18] Will this project generate public or media impact and response which the City of London
will need to manage? Will this be a high-profile activity with public and media momentum?

No.

[19] Who has been actively consulted to develop this project to this stage?

Chamberlains: Officer Name: Olu Obisesan

Finance

Chamberlains: Officer Name: N/A
Procurement

IT Officer Name: N/A
HR Officer Name: N/A

Communications

Officer Name: N/A

Corporate Property

Officer Name: N/A

External

None.

Comptrollers:

Officer: TBC

v.10 April 2019

Page 216




ProjectBriefing

Project identifier

[1a] Unique Project TBC [1b] Departmental N/A
Identifier Reference Number
[2] Core Project Name 61-65 Holborn Viaduct Section 278

[3] Programme Affiliation | N/A
(if applicable)

Ownership

[4] Chief Officer has signed | Yes
off on this document

[5] Senior Responsible Bruce McVean, Assistant Director, Policy & Projects
Officer
[6] Project Manager TBC (Transport & Public Realm Projects team, City Operations)

Description and purpose

[7] Project Description

The project will deliver changes to the public highway in the vicinity of the development at 61-65
Holborn Viaduct, through a Section 278 agreement that is fully funded by the developer. The scope of
the project is defined in the associated Section 106 agreement and is likely to include, but not be
limited to:

e A new pedestrian crossing on Snow Hill;

e Changes to parking, waiting and loading arrangements on Snow Hill;

¢ Adjustments to the contraflow cycle facility at Snow Hill / Smithfield Street to accommodate the

new loading entrance to the building and introduce a raised table;
e Repaving of the footways around the site.

The next steps to reach the next Gateway include:

e Undertake preparatory survey work and liaise with the required statutory undertakers and
stakeholders to develop highways and public realm improvement options with the Developer;
¢ Negotiate and enter into a Section 278 agreement.

[8] Definition of Need: What is the problem we are trying to solve or opportunity we are trying to
realise (i.e. the reasons why we should make a change)?

The developer is obligated by the Section 106 agreement to fund works to the public highway which
are considered necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms through entry into a
Section 278 agreement.

[9] What is the link to the City of London Corporate plan outcomes?

e Vibrant Thriving Destination — provide more space for walking and making the City’s streets
more accessible.

e Flourishing Public Spaces — ensure our open spaces and historic sites are thriving, accessible
and enrich people’s lives.

[10] What is the link to the departmental business plan objectives?

e Prioritise and provide more space for people walking and making the City’s street more

accessible.
e Improve the quality of streets and public spaces to create a more attractive and welcoming

public realm.
[11] Note all which apply:
Officer: N Member: N Corporate: N
Project developed from Project developed from Project developed as a
Officer initiation Member initiation large scale Corporate

initiative

v.10 April 2019 Page 217



Mandatory: Y Sustainability: N Improvement: N
Compliance with Essential for business New opportunity/ idea
legislation, policy and continuity that leads to

audit improvement

Project Benchmarking:

[12] What are the top 3 measures of success which will indicate that the project has achieved
its aims?

1) Improved walking and wheeling conditions in the vicinity of the development.

2) New loading arrangements for the building accommodated.

3) Integration of the new pedestrian route through the development with the surrounding street
network.

[13] Will this project have any measurable legacy benefits/outcome that we will need to track
after the end of the ‘delivery’ phase? If so, what are they and how will you track them? (E.g.
cost savings, quality etc.)

None.

[14] What is the expected delivery cost of this project (range values)[£]?

Lower Range estimate: £250,000
Upper Range estimate: £400,000

[15] Total anticipated on-going revenue commitment post-delivery (lifecycle costs)[£]:

Commuted sums to maintain upgraded sections of the highway will be presented at a future Gateway
but will be covered for a period of 20 years as is standard for Section 278 projects.

[16] What are the expected sources of funding for this project?

The project will be fully funded from a Section 278 agreement.

[17] What is the expected delivery timeframe for this project (range values)?
Are there any deadlines which must be met (e.g. statutory obligations)?

Lower Range estimate: TBC, in alignment with the developer’s programme
Upper Range estimate: TBC, in alignment with the developer’s programme

Project Impact:

[18] Will this project generate public or media impact and response which the City of London
will need to manage? Will this be a high-profile activity with public and media momentum?

No.

[19] Who has been actively consulted to develop this project to this stage?

Chamberlains: Officer Name: Olu Obisesan
Finance

Chamberlains: Officer Name: N/A
Procurement

IT Officer Name: N/A

HR Officer Name: N/A

Communications

Officer Name: N/A

Corporate Property

Officer Name: N/A

External

None.

Comptrollers:

Officer: TBC

v.10 April 2019

Page 218




ProjectBriefing

Project identifier

[1a] Unique Project TBC [1b] Departmental N/A
Identifier Reference Number
[2] Core Project Name Middlesex Street Estate Eastern Base Highway Works

[3] Programme Affiliation | N/A
(if applicable)

Ownership

[4] Chief Officer has signed | Yes
off on this document

[5] Senior Responsible Bruce McVean, Assistant Director, Policy & Projects
Officer
[6] Project Manager TBC (Transport & Public Realm Projects team, City Operations)

Description and purpose

[7] Project Description

The project will deliver changes to the public highway in the vicinity of the development at the
Middlesex Street Estate as part of the City of London Police’s Eastern Base development. The works
will be delivered through a ‘Scheme of Highway Works’ that is fully funded via the development. The
scope of the project is defined in the associated Unilateral Undertaking and is likely to include, but not
be limited to:

e Changes to parking arrangements in Gravel Lane;

e Repaving of the western footway and associated changes to the highway on Gravel Lane,

including the relocation of cycle parking where necessary;
e Introduction of security infrastructure where necessary.

The next steps to reach the next Gateway include:

e Undertake preparatory survey work and liaise with the required statutory undertakers and
stakeholders to develop highways and public realm improvement options;
¢ Negotiate and enter into the Scheme of Highways Works agreement.

Whilst the project will be reported through the normal Gateway process, specific elements relating to
security may need to be reported as non-public.

[8] Definition of Need: What is the problem we are trying to solve or opportunity we are trying to
realise (i.e. the reasons why we should make a change)?

The developer is obligated by the Unilateral Undertaking to fund works to the public highway which are
considered necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms through a Scheme of
Highways Works agreement.

[9] What is the link to the City of London Corporate plan outcomes?

e Diverse Engaged Communities — ensuring people feel safe in the Square Mile.

e Vibrant Thriving Destination — provide more space for walking and making the City’s streets
more accessible.

e Flourishing Public Spaces — ensure our open spaces and historic sites are thriving, accessible
and enrich people’s lives.

[10] What is the link to the departmental business plan objectives?

e Prioritise and provide more space for people walking and making the City’s street more
accessible.

e Improve the quality of streets and public spaces to create a more attractive and welcoming
public realm.

v.10 April 2019 Page 219



[11] Note all which apply:

Officer: N
Project developed from
Officer initiation

Member: N
Project developed from
Member initiation

Corporate: N
Project developed as a
large scale Corporate

initiative
Mandatory: Y Sustainability: N Improvement: N
Compliance with Essential for business New opportunity/ idea
legislation, policy and continuity that leads to
audit improvement

Project Benchmarking:

[12] What are the top 3 measures of success which will indicate that the project has achieved
its aims?

1) Ensuring that Gravel Lane continues to function safely and effectively for all users.

2) Incorporating any required security infrastructure into the public realm.

3) Improve the quality of green infrastructure in Gravel Lane.

[13] Will this project have any measurable legacy benefits/outcome that we will need to track
after the end of the ‘delivery’ phase? If so, what are they and how will you track them? (E.g.
cost savings, quality etc.)

None.

[14] What is the expected delivery cost of this project (range values)[£]?

Lower Range estimate: £600,000
Upper Range estimate: £1.5m

The broad cost range reflects the unknown extent of security infrastructure required; this will be refined
at future Gateways.

[15] Total anticipated on-going revenue commitment post-delivery (lifecycle costs)[£]:

Commuted sums to maintain upgraded sections of the highway and any security infrastructure on the
public highway will be presented at a future Gateway but are likely to be covered for a period of 20
years as is standard for such projects.

[16] What are the expected sources of funding for this project?

The project will be fully funded via the Unilateral Undertaking for the development.

[17] What is the expected delivery timeframe for this project (range values)?
Are there any deadlines which must be met (e.g. statutory obligations)?

Lower Range estimate: Autumn 2025 (subject to development programme)
Upper Range estimate: Spring 2026 (subject to development programme)

Project Impact:

[18] Will this project generate public or media impact and response which the City of London
will need to manage? Will this be a high-profile activity with public and media momentum?

No.

[19] Who has been actively consulted to develop this project to this stage?

Chamberlains: Officer Name: Olu Obisesan

Finance

Chamberlains: Officer Name: N/A
Procurement

IT Officer Name: N/A
HR Officer Name: N/A

Communications

Officer Name: N/A

Corporate Property

Officer Name: TBC

External

City of London Police

Comptrollers:

Officer: TBC

v.10 April 2019

Page 220




ProjectBriefing

Project identifier

[1a] Unique Project TBC [1b] Departmental N/A
Identifier Reference Number
[2] Core Project Name 10 King William Street s278

[3] Programme Affiliation | N/A
(if applicable)

Ownership

[4] Chief Officer has signed | Yes
off on this document

[5] Senior Responsible Bruce McVean, Assistant Director, Policy & Projects
Officer
[6] Project Manager TBC (Transport & Public Realm Projects team, City Operations)

Description and purpose

[7] Project Description

Improved public realm surrounding the development at 10 King William Street, which is part of the
oversite development of the new entrance to Bank Underground station. The changes will be fully
funded through a Section 278 agreement. The scope of the project is defined in the Section 106
agreement and is likely to include, but not be limited to:

e Pedestrian priority improvements in Abchurch Lane, including a raised carriageway along the
full length of the street;

e Raised entry treatments at both ends of Abchurch Lane;

e Repaving of both footways on Abchurch Lane;

e Any associated changes to the highway.

The project area is adjacent to the King William Street Pedestrian Priority project which is currently
being implemented. It has been necessary to defer a section of the Pedestrian Priority project to
accommodate works to facilitate the 10 King William Street development; all costs associated with this
deferral are to be funded by the developer and will therefore be captured under the Section 278
agreement.

The next steps to reach the next Gateway include:

e Undertake preparatory survey work and liaise with the required statutory undertakers and
stakeholders to develop highways and public realm improvement options with the Developer;
e Negotiate and enter into a Section 278 agreement.

[8] Definition of Need: What is the problem we are trying to solve or opportunity we are trying to
realise (i.e. the reasons why we should make a change)?

The developer is obligated by the Section 106 agreement to fund works to the public highway which
are considered necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms through entry into a
Section 278 agreement.

[9] What is the link to the City of London Corporate plan outcomes?

e Vibrant Thriving Destination — provide more space for walking and making the City’s streets
more accessible.

e Flourishing Public Spaces — ensure our open spaces and historic sites are thriving, accessible
and enrich people’s lives.

[10] What is the link to the departmental business plan objectives?

e Prioritise and provide more space for people walking and making the City’s street more
accessible.

v.10 April 2019 Page 221



e Improve the quality of streets and public spaces to create a more attractive and welcoming

public realm.
[11] Note all which apply:
Officer: Y Member: N Corporate: N
Project developed from Project developed from Project developed as a
Officer initiation Member initiation large scale Corporate

initiative

Mandatory: Y Sustainability: N Improvement: N
Compliance with Essential for business New opportunity/ idea
legislation, policy and continuity that leads to
audit improvement

Project Benchmarking:

[12] What are the top 3 measures of success which will indicate that the project has achieved
its aims?

1) Improved public realm surrounding the development.

2) Increased proportion of pedestrian priority streets in the area.

3) Improved accessibility for all users in the area.

[13] Will this project have any measurable legacy benefits/outcome that we will need to track
after the end of the ‘delivery’ phase? If so, what are they and how will you track them? (E.g.
cost savings, quality etc.)

None.

[14] What is the expected delivery cost of this project (range values)[£]?

Lower Range estimate: £750,000
Upper Range estimate: £1.75m

Both figures encompass an estimated figure for deferral costs relating to the current Pedestrian Priority
Programme works in King William Street.

[15] Total anticipated on-going revenue commitment post-delivery (lifecycle costs)[£]:

Commuted sums to maintain upgraded sections of the highway will be presented at a future Gateway
but will be covered for a period of 20 years as is standard for Section 278 projects.

[16] What are the expected sources of funding for this project?

The project will be fully funded from a Section 278 agreement.

[17] What is the expected delivery timeframe for this project (range values)?
Are there any deadlines which must be met (e.g. statutory obligations)?

Estimate: Q4 2026/2027 to Q3 2027/2028, dependant on the Developer’s construction progress.

Project Impact:

[18] Will this project generate public or media impact and response which the City of London
will need to manage? Will this be a high-profile activity with public and media momentum?

No.

[19] Who has been actively consulted to develop this project to this stage?
<(Add additional internal or external stakeholders where required) >

Chamberlains: Officer Name: Olu Obisesan
Finance

Chamberlains: Officer Name: N/A
Procurement

IT Officer Name: N/A

HR Officer Name: N/A

v.10 April 2019 Page 222



Communications

Officer Name: N/A

Corporate Property

Officer Name: N/A

External

Transport for London and Helical (Joint venture developers)

v.10 April 2019

Page 223




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 224



ProjectBriefing

Project identifier

[1a] Unique Project TBC [1b] Departmental N/A
Identifier Reference Number
[2] Core Project Name 122 Minories s278

[3] Programme Affiliation | N/A
(if applicable)

Ownership

[4] Chief Officer has signed | Yes
off on this document

[5] Senior Responsible Bruce McVean, Assistant Director, Policy & Projects
Officer
[6] Project Manager TBC (Transport & Public Realm Projects team, City Operations)

Description and purpose

[7] Project Description

Improved public realm surrounding the development at 122 Minories and 14 Crosswall. The changes
will be fully funded through a Section 278 agreement. The scope of the project is defined in the Section
106 agreement and is likely to include, but not be limited to:

o Arraised table at the junction of Vine Street and Crosswall;
e Widened footways adjacent to the junction;
e Tree planting (subject to receipt of additional funds).

The next steps to reach the next Gateway include:

e Undertake preparatory survey work and liaise with the required statutory undertakers and
stakeholders to develop highways and public realm improvement options with the Developer;
¢ Negotiate and enter into a Section 278 agreement.

[8] Definition of Need: What is the problem we are trying to solve or opportunity we are trying to
realise (i.e. the reasons why we should make a change)?

The developer is obligated by the Section 106 agreement to fund works to the public highway which
are considered necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms through entry into a
Section 278 agreement.

[9] What is the link to the City of London Corporate plan outcomes?

e Vibrant Thriving Destination — provide more space for walking and making the City’s streets
more accessible.

e Flourishing Public Spaces — ensure our open spaces and historic sites are thriving, accessible
and enrich people’s lives.

[10] What is the link to the departmental business plan objectives?

e Prioritise and provide more space for people walking and making the City’s street more

accessible.
e Improve the quality of streets and public spaces to create a more attractive and welcoming

public realm.
[11] Note all which apply:
Officer: Y Member: N Corporate: N
Project developed from Project developed from Project developed as a
Officer initiation Member initiation large scale Corporate

initiative

Mandatory: Y Sustainability: N Improvement: N

v.10 April 2019 Page 225



Compliance with Essential for business New opportunity/ idea
legislation, policy and continuity that leads to
audit improvement

Project Benchmarking:

[12] What are the top 3 measures of success which will indicate that the project has achieved
its aims?

1) Improved public realm surrounding the development.

2) Increased proportion of pedestrian priority streets in the area.

3) Improved accessibility for all users in the area.

[13] Will this project have any measurable legacy benefits/outcome that we will need to track
after the end of the ‘delivery’ phase? If so, what are they and how will you track them? (E.g.
cost savings, quality etc.)

None.

[14] What is the expected delivery cost of this project (range values)[£]?

Lower Range estimate: £50,000
Upper Range estimate: £100,000

[15] Total anticipated on-going revenue commitment post-delivery (lifecycle costs)[£]:

Commuted sums to maintain upgraded sections of the highway will be presented at a future Gateway
but will be covered for a period of 20 years as is standard for Section 278 projects.

[16] What are the expected sources of funding for this project?

The project will be fully funded from a Section 278 agreement.

[17] What is the expected delivery timeframe for this project (range values)?
Are there any deadlines which must be met (e.g. statutory obligations)?

Estimate: Q4 2026/2027 to Q3 2027/2028, dependant on the Developer’s construction progress.

Project Impact:

[18] Will this project generate public or media impact and response which the City of London
will need to manage? Will this be a high-profile activity with public and media momentum?

No.

[19] Who has been actively consulted to develop this project to this stage?
<(Add additional internal or external stakeholders where required) >

Chamberlains: Officer Name: Olu Obisesan
Finance

Chamberlains: Officer Name: N/A
Procurement

IT Officer Name: N/A

HR Officer Name: N/A

Communications

Officer Name: N/A

Corporate Property

Officer Name: N/A

External

N/A

v.10 April 2019

Page 226




Agenda Item 10

Committee(s): Dated:
Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee 01/10/2024
Subject: Traffic Order Review — Outcome of detailed Public

reviews and update
Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate | Vibrant Thriving Destination
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? Leading Sustainable
Environment

Flourishing Public Spaces
Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N

capital spending?

If so, how much?

What is the source of Funding?

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the
Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: Katie Stewart, Executive Director of For Decision
Environment

Report author: Clive Whittle, Environment Department

Summary

In April 2022 the Court of Common Council passed a motion requiring a review of all
traffic orders currently in effect on the City’s streets.

The outcome of the review indicated that the majority of the 1299 traffic orders are
operating as intended and are in alignment with the relevant Transport Strategy
outcomes. However, Members agreed for officers to assess 67 traffic orders in detail
to determine whether modifications to them would be beneficial.

In January 2024, the Streets & Walkways Sub Committee agreed a programme,
which grouped the 67 traffic orders into four categories to facilitate the detailed
assessment.

This report requests Members’ approval to proceed with the recommended changes
to six pedestrian zones. It also provides an update on progress with reviewing the
remainder of the traffic orders in the programme. Apart from those that are being
considered as part of projects, it is envisaged that any changes required to the
remaining orders will be progressed under delegated authority (due their minor
nature).

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to:

¢ Note the detailed study of six timed road closure restrictions (pedestrian
zones) and agree in principle to the recommended changes to the associated

Page 227



traffic orders to amend their hours of operation, as shown in paragraph 6,
subject to the completion of the statutory consultation process.

e Agree that the resolution of any objections received will be considered by the

Director of City Operations, but if appropriate, a separate report be prepared
for the Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee, to make the necessary traffic
Orders.

¢ Note the any proposed changes to the remaining traffic orders (not covered by

existing projects) will be progressed under delegated authority.

e Note there is £287,000 remaining in the approved budget, which should be

sufficient to cover the cost of the proposed changes required so far to the
traffic orders.

Main Report

Background

In May 2022, following a motion passed by the Court of Common Council in
April, officers were tasked by the Planning & Transportation Committee with
reviewing all of the 1299 Traffic Management Orders (Traffic Orders) in the City.
This review was completed in February 2023 with a total of 67 traffic orders
identified that might require modification.

In January 2024, the Streets & Walkways Sub Committee agreed a programme,
which grouped the 67 traffic orders into four groups to facilitate the detailed
assessment and to implement any required changes.
I. Pedestrian Zones (6 traffic orders)
il. Signage and road marking issues (10 traffic orders)
iii. To be included in other projects or programmes (29 traffic orders)
iv. Other changes which may be beneficial (22 traffic orders)

Details of the review methodology and outcomes can be found in earlier reports
which are listed under Background Papers.

Current Position

4.

For category (i) - traffic orders relating to pedestrian zones. These were
identified as potentially requiring changes to extend the hours of operation for
the current restrictions. This is due to these streets often being very busy or
crowded with people walking through or gathering for social reasons into the
evening, particularly during the summer months when the weather is good. The
restrictions could also better align with the timings of other restrictions in the City,
such as those at Bank junction.

Page 228



A consultant was commissioned in September 2023 to undertake the review of
operational hours. A detailed investigation has made recommendations for
changes to their operational hours. This investigation looked at current vehicular
and pedestrian data including kerbside activity. They also engaged with local
businesses and occupiers to try to understand access and servicing needs, in
order to understand what changes could potentially be accommodated.

A summary of the recommended changes is shown in the table below, and the

full report can be seen in Appendix 1.

Table of changes for category (i) — Pedestrian Zones

Pedestrian
Zone/Street

Current ‘No Motor
Vehicles’ - Restriction
Operational Hours

Proposed ‘No Motor
Vehicles’ - Restriction
Operational Hours

Carter Lane,
Creed Lane to
Ludgate
Broadway

8am-6.00pm Mon - Fri

7am to 9pm Mon — Fri

Watling Street,
Queen Street to
Watling Court

8am-6.00pm Mon - Fri

7am to 9pm Mon — Fri

Bow Lane,
Cannon Street to
Cheapside

8am-6.00pm Mon - Fri

7am to 9pm Mon — Fri

Austin Friars, Old
Broad Street to
Pinner’s Passage

11am-4.00pm Mon - Fri

7am to 9pm Mon — Fri

Lime Street, 35m
south of
Leadenhall Street
to Leadenhall
Place

8am-6.00pm Mon - Fri

7am to 9pm Mon — Fri

Devonshire Row,
Bishopsgate to
Devonshire
Square

8am-6.00pm Mon - Fri

7am to 9pm Mon — Fri

Page 229




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The proposed changes will improve the amenity of these pedestrian areas by
keeping them free of motor vehicles for longer periods of the day. This will
provide a safer and more pleasant environment for people using the spaces,
particularly later in the evenings in the summer months when the weather is
good.

The consultant looked into the impact on access and servicing for local
occupiers, and this has been taken into consideration with the recommendations.
All local occupiers will also be notified of the statutory consultation, to ensure
they are fully aware of the proposed changes and have the opportunity to
discuss any issues or make representations. Ward members will also be briefed
ahead of the start of the statutory process.

For Austin Friars, the consultant’s report recommended changing the timing of
the pedestrian Zone from the current times of 11am to 4pm Monday to Friday, to
11lam to 7pm, Monday to Friday. This is largely because there could be several
businesses in Austin Friars which do not open late into the evening, and they
may require access for servicing and deliveries in the morning or evening.

The level of pedestrian activity recorded in the morning from 7am was fairly high
on Austin Friars, and this continued until 9pm in the evening on some days.
Taking this into consideration, it is recommended that the proposal should be to
change the operational hours of this pedestrian zone to 7am to 9pm, Monday to
Friday, which is also consistent with the proposed timings for the other zones
that are being changed.

However, it is recognised that these timings may need to be amended
depending on comments that may be received following engagement for the
statutory processes.

Changing the traffic orders and the signage for the new operational hours of the
pedestrian zones is estimated to cost in the region of £8,000 per zone.

For category (ii) — signage & road marking issues, changes to these traffic orders
are almost complete. Any necessary changes are all expected to be delivered by
the end of March 2025.

The recommended changes for this category are very minor and impacts have
been assessed as low. The estimated costs of the changes are in the region of
£5,000 to £7,000 per traffic order, and changes will be combined where possible
to reduce costs.

Further details of the possible changes to these traffic orders are summarised in
Appendix 2, Table 1.

The 29 Traffic Orders in category (iii) fall within existing or emerging projects or
programmes. Any changes to traffic orders in this category will therefore
progress separately, in line with those project timescales and where possible,
the changes will be funded from those budgets. The details of these traffic orders
and potential changes are shown in Appendix 2, Table 2.

Page 230



17.

Investigations into the 22 traffic orders in category (iv) — other changes, are
underway, and the potential changes range from very minor (e.g. additional
signage) to moderate impact (e.g. increased/more stringent restrictions). It is
anticipated that investigation and implementation of the changes in this category
will be completed by mid-2025.

Next Steps

18.

19.

20.

Statutory consultation will be carried out to implement the traffic order changes
for the six pedestrian zones in category 1, and local occupiers will be informed of
the statutory public consultation to effect the traffic orders. Local ward members
will be briefed in advance. It is anticipated that implementation will be complete
by early 2025, subject to any objections being received that may take time to
resolve.

The detailed investigations and changes for the remaining traffic orders in
category (ii) - signs and road markings, are largely complete. For the remaining
traffic orders in category (iv) — other orders, many of the detailed investigations
and changes are complete and others are in progress. Any changes
recommended will be progressed under delegated authority and it is anticipated
that implementation will be delivered by mid-2025.

Changes to traffic orders in category (iii) will be progressed as part of relevant
projects or programmes, and the timescales for implementation of each change
will vary depending on the timings of those projects and programmes.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

Strategic implications

21.

Changes to traffic orders will take account of the Corporate Plan, Transport Strategy
and Climate Action Strategy as well as other relevant strategies and initiatives including
Destination City.

Financial implications

22.

23.

24.

A budget of up to £500,000 (from the On-Street Parking Reserve) was allocated for the
traffic order review to cover the costs of data collection and analysis, engagement and
consultancy support. £213,000 has been spent on the review so far and the remaining
funds will be used for delivery of any remaining changes to traffic orders and associated
on-street works.

This remaining £287,000 funding is sufficient to implement the recommendations in this
report. The changes to the traffic orders in categories (i) — pedestrian zones and (ii) -
signs and road markings are expected to cost a maximum of £8000 each (including on
street works). Processes will be combined where possible to reduce costs.

The changes to the 22 traffic orders in category (iv) — other orders, will in most cases
can be funded from the remaining budget available for the traffic order review, however,
if it becomes apparent that additional funding is required to deliver any changes to the

Page 231



traffic orders still to be investigated, a bid for additional funding will be submitted and/or
to prioritise implementation of some of those changes accordingly.

25. The cost to implement changes to the traffic orders in category (iii) will be covered by
other projects and programmes, so no additional resources will be required.

Resource implications

26. Resources for delivering the recommended changes in this report will be met from within
the Street Space Planning team, and changes that can be incorporated into exiting or
planned projects or programmes will be accommodated within the Transport and Public
Realm Projects team.

Legal implications

27. Any changes proposed will be subject to the usual statutory due process for authorising,
making and consulting on traffic orders and considering any objections. Decisions
relating to traffic orders are largely delegated but if there were significant objections to
a particular order that couldn’t be resolved, then a report would be brought to this
committee for further consideration.

28. In exercising functions as traffic authority, the City Corporation are required to comply
with the duty in Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 which requires the
traffic authority in exercising its functions, to secure the expeditious, convenient, and
safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians), so far as
practicable having regard to:

(a) the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises
(b) the effect of amenities of any locality
(c) national air quality strategy
(d) public service vehicles
(e) any other relevant matters.
29. The City Corporation also have a network management duty as the local traffic authority
to secure the expeditious movement of traffic and in preforming that duty may take any
action which the City Corporation consider will contribute to securing the more efficient

use of the road network or the avoidance, elimination or reduction of road congestion or
other disruption to the movement of traffic (S.16 Traffic Management Act 2004).

Risk implications

30. The process of making a traffic order is open to legal challenge, including via judicial
review. There are risks of legal challenge when recommending the changes to traffic
orders, particularly to the changes to the hours of operation of the pedestrian zones. In
this case, local occupiers will be informed of the statutory order consultation so that any
issues that may arise can be resolved as early as possible.

Equalities implications

31. Equalities implications will be considered in detail as part of the traffic order making
process and considerations. However, no significant implications anticipated.

Climate implications
32. There are no relevant climate implications associated with the proposals in this report.

Page 232



Security implications
33. There are no relevant security implications associated with the proposals in this report.

Conclusion

34 The programme of investigation of traffic orders continues and it is anticipated
that the detailed investigations and implementation will all be complete by mid-
2025. A total of 29 traffic orders will not be investigated further as part of this
review as they will be incorporated into other projects and programmes. This will
bring the traffic order review programme to a close, provided there are no
unforeseen issues.

Appendices

. Appendix 1 — Review of Pedestrian Spaces, Feasibility Study
. Appendix 2 — Details of remaining Traffic Orders being reviewed and changes
to be implemented

Background Papers

Report to the Streets & Walkways (Sub) Committee, 30/01/24 agenda item 16
Report to the Court of Common Council 27/04/2023, Agenda ltem 12

Report to the Streets & Walkways (Sub) Committee, 17/01/23. Agenda item 15
Report to the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee, 08/11/22, agenda item 12
Report to the Court of Common Council, 13/10/22 agenda item 10

Report to the Planning and Transportation Committee, 07/03/22 agenda item 8
Report to the Planning and Transportation Committee, 20/09/22 agenda item 5
Report to the Planning and Transportation Committee, 17/05/22, agenda ltem 6
Minute of Motion passed by the Court of Common Council 21/04/22 (page 20)

Clive Whittle
Senior Street Space Engineer, Environment Department

T: 020 7332 3970
E: clive.whittle@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 233


https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=147719
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=139533
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/b79086/Traffic%20order%20review%20-%20late%20paper%2017th-Jan-2023%2013.45%20Streets%20and%20Walkways%20Sub%20Planning%20and%20Trans.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=133280
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=132384
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=138001
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=131351
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=127025
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=126069
mailto:clive.whittle@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 234



Appendix 1

CONSTRUCTION CONSULTANTS

HIGHWAYS AND INFRASTRUCTURE

TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION
NORMAN ROURKE PRYME

REVIEW OF
PEDESTRIAN SPACES

FEASIBILITY STUDY

CITY OF LONDON

Page 235 |

06 SEPTEMBER 2024



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

FEASIBILITY STUDY

CITY OF LONDON

QA RECORD:
DOCUMENT REF 10440TRO1 Rev 4.0
DRAFTED BY Sean Good Date 12 December 2023
CHECKED BY Chris Attwood Date 13 March 2024
APPROVED BY Chris Attwood Date 09 September 2024

B:\Projects\10440 Review Of Pedestrian Zones In The
ELECTRONIC LOCATION  City\Deliverables\Reports\Review Of Pedestrian Spaces_Feasibility
Study_V4.Docx

This document has been produced by Norman Rourke Pryme for CITY OF LONDON for the
provision of the REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES. This document is for the purpose of the
intended recipient only. No liability will be accepted for unauthorised distribution to any third
party without written agreement in advance.

Page 236



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

CONTENTS

1 Introduction 1
1.1 Background 1
2 Baseline Analysis 2
2.1 Introduction 2
2.2 Surveys 2
2.3 Carter Lane 4
2.4 Watling Street 12
2.5 Bow Lane 20
2.6 Austin Friars 28
2.7 Lime Street 36
2.8 Devonshire Row 44
2.9 Additional analysis 52
2.10 Kerbside activity 52
2.11 Pedestrian activity 53
2.12 Issues and opportunities 55
3 Occupier Engagement 56
3.1 Methodology 56
32 Results 58
4 Conclusions and Recommendations 90
4.1 Conclusions 90
4.2 Summary and recommendations for each zone 90
Figure 1-1: Pedestrian spaces for feasibility study 1
Figure 2-1: Carter Lane at junction with Creed Lane (looking west) 5
Figure 2-2: Carter Lane at junction with Ludgate Broadway (looking east) 5
Figure 2-3: Carter Lane — casualty plot 2018-2022 6
Figure 2-4: Carter Lane — Motor vehicle flow profile 7
Figure 2-5: Carter Lane — Cycle flow profile 7
Figure 2-6: Carter Lane — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles) 8
Figure 2-7: Carter Lane — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles) 9

Page 237

NORMAN ROURKE PRYM

m



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-8: Carter Lane — Pedestrian activity summary

Figure 2-9: Carter Lane — Pedestrian activity hotspots

Figure 2-10:
Figure 2-11:
Figure 2-12:
Figure 2-13:
Figure 2-14:
Figure 2-15:
Figure 2-16:
Figure 2-17:
Figure 2-18:
Figure 2-19:
Figure 2-20:
Figure 2-21:
Figure 2-22:
Figure 2-23:
Figure 2-24:
Figure 2-25:
Figure 2-26:
Figure 2-27:
Figure 2-28:
Figure 2-29:
Figure 2-30:
Figure 2-31:
Figure 2-32:
Figure 2-33:
Figure 2-34:
Figure 2-35:
Figure 2-36:
Figure 2-37:
Figure 2-38:
Figure 2-39:

Figure 2-40:

Pedestrian flow profile for Carter Lane

Watling Street at junction with Queen Street (looking west)
Watling Street at junction with Watling Court (looking west)
Watling Street — casualty plot 2018-2022

Watling Street — Motor vehicle flow profile

Watling Street — Cycle flow profile

Watling Street — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)
Watling Street — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)
Watling Street — Pedestrian activity summary

Watling Street — Pedestrian activity hotspots

Pedestrian flow profile for Watling Street

Bow Lane at junction with Cannon Street (looking north)
Bow Lane at junction with Cheapside (looking north)

Bow Lane — casualty plot 2018-2022

Bow Lane — Motor vehicle flow profile

Bow Lane — Cycle flow profile

Bow Lane — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)
Bow Lane — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)

Bow Lane — Pedestrian activity summary

Bow Lane — Pedestrian activity hotspots

Pedestrian flow profile for Bow Lane

Austin Friars at junction with Old Broad Street (looking north)
Austin Friars turning area at Pinner’s Passage (looking east)
Austin Friars — casualty plot 2018-2022

Austin Friars — Motor vehicle flow profile

Austin Friars — Cycle flow profile

Austin Friars — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)
Austin Friars — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)

Austin Friars — Pedestrian activity summary

Austin Friars — Pedestrian activity hotspots

Pedestrian flow profile for Austin Friars

10

10

11

13

13

14

15

15

16

17

18

18

19

21

21

22

23

23

24

25

26

26

27

29

29

30

31

31

32

33

34

34

35

NORMAN ROURK

& v Page 238




REVIEW OF PED

Figure 2-41:
Figure 2-42:
Figure 2-43:
Figure 2-44.:
Figure 2-45:
Figure 2-46:
Figure 2-47:
Figure 2-48:
Figure 2-49:
Figure 2-50:
Figure 2-51:
Figure 2-52:
Figure 2-53:
Figure 2-54:
Figure 2-55:
Figure 2-56:
Figure 2-57:
Figure 2-58:
Figure 2-59:

Figure 2-60:

Figure 2-61
Figure 3-1:
Figure 3-2:
Figure 3-3:
Figure 3-4:
Figure 3-5:
Figure 3-6:
Figure 3-7:
Figure 3-8:
Figure 3-9:
Figure 3-10
Figure 3-11

Figure 3-12

ESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Lime Street south of Leadenhall Street (looking south)
Lime Street north of Fenchurch Street (looking north)
Lime Street — casualty plot 2018-2022

Lime Street — Motor vehicle flow profile

Lime Street — Cycle flow profile

Lime Street — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)
Lime Street — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)

Lime Street — Pedestrian activity summary

Lime Street — Pedestrian activity hotspots

Pedestrian flow profile for Lime Street

Devonshire Row at junction with Bishopsgate (looking east)
Devonshire Row at junction with Devonshire Square (looking east)
Devonshire Row — casualty plot 2018-2022

Devonshire Row — Motor vehicle flow profile

Devonshire Row — Cycle flow profile

Devonshire Row — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)
Devonshire Row — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)
Devonshire Row — Pedestrian activity summary
Devonshire Row — Pedestrian activity hotspots

Pedestrian flow profile for Devonshire Row

: Pedestrian activity summary

Summary — Question 2

Summary — Question 3

Summary — Question 4

Summary — Question 5

Summary — Question 6

Summary — Question 7

Summary — Question 8

Summary — Question 9

Summary — Question 10

: Summary — Question 11

: Summary — Question 12

: Summary — Question 13

37

37

38

39

39

40

41

42

42

43

45

45

46

47

47

48

49

50

50

51

54

59

60

62

63

65

66

67

68

70

71

73

74

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 239




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 3-13: Summary — Question 14 76
Figure 3-14: Summary — Question 15 77
Figure 3-15: Summary — Question 16.1 79
Figure 3-16: Summary — Question 16.2 81
Figure 3-17: Summary — Question 17.1 83
Figure 3-18: Summary — Question 17.2 85
Figure 3-19: Summary — Question 18 87
Figure 3-20: Summary — Question 19 88
Table 2.1: Carter Lane — Traffic flow summary 6

Table 2.2: Carter Lane — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles) 8

Table 2.3: Watling Street — Traffic flow summary 14
Table 2.4: Watling Street — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles) 16
Table 2.5: Bow Lane — Traffic flow summary 22
Table 2.6: Bow Lane — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles) 24
Table 2.7: Austin Friars — Traffic flow summary 30
Table 2.8: Austin Friars — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles) 32
Table 2.9: Lime Street — Traffic flow summary 38
Table 2.10: Lime Street — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles) 40
Table 2.11: Devonshire Row — Traffic flow summary 46
Table 2.12: Devonshire Row — Kerbside activity summary 48
Table 2.13: Kerbside activity summary — proportion by cycles (Thursday 28" September) 52
Table 2.14: Kerbside activity summary — proportion by cycles (Friday 29" September) 52
Table 2.15: Kerbside activity summary — proportion by cycles (Saturday 30" September) 53
Table 2.16: Issues and opportunities 55
Table 3.1: Survey questions 56
Table 3.2: Survey distribution method and response summary 58
Table 3.3: Summary — Question 2 59
Table 3.4: Summary — Question 3 60
Table 3.5: Zone detail — Question 3 61
Table 3.6: Summary — Question 4 61
Table 3.7: Zone detail — Question 4 62
Table 3.8: Summary — Question 5 63

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 240



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.9: Zone detail — Question 5 64
Table 3.10: Summary — Question 6 64
Table 3.11: Zone detail — Question 6 65
Table 3.12: Summary — Question 7 66
Table 3.13: Zone detail — Question 7 67
Table 3.14: Summary — Question 8 67
Table 3.15: Zone detail — Question 8 68
Table 3.16: Summary — Question 9 68
Table 3.17: Zone detail — Question 9 69
Table 3.18: Summary — Question 10 69
Table 3.19: Zone detail — Question 10 70
Table 3.20: Summary — Question 11 71
Table 3.21: Zone detail — Question 11 72
Table 3.22: Summary — Question 12 72
Table 3.23: Zone detail — Question 12 73
Table 3.24: Summary — Question 13 74
Table 3.25: Zone detail — Question 13 75
Table 3.26: Summary — Question 14 75
Table 3.27: Zone detail — Question 14 76
Table 3.28: Summary — Question 15 77
Table 3.29: Zone detail — Question 15 78
Table 3.30: Summary — Question 16.1 78
Table 3.31: Zone detail — Question 16.1 80
Table 3.32: Summary — Question 16.2 81
Table 3.33: Zone detail — Question 16.2 82
Table 3.34: Summary — Question 17.1 83
Table 3.35: Zone detail — Question 17.1 84
Table 3.36: Summary — Question 17.2 85
Table 3.37: Zone detail — Question 17.2 86
Table 3.38: Summary — Question 18 87
Table 3.39: Zone detail — Question 18 87
Table 3.40: Summary — Question 19 88
Table 3.41: Zone detail — Question 19 89

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 241



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 4.1: Proposed changes to Carter Lane — RAG assessment
Table 4.2: Proposed changes to Watling Street — RAG assessment
Table 4.3: Proposed changes to Bow Lane — RAG assessment

Table 4.4: Proposed changes to Austin Friars — RAG assessment
Table 4.5: Proposed changes to Lime Street — RAG assessment
Table 4.6: Proposed changes to Devonshire Row — RAG assessment

Table 4.7: Recommended proposals

Appendix A: Occupier engagement survey
Appendix B: survey distribution summary

Appendix C: Raw survey results data

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

Page 242

NORMAN ROURKE PRYM

m




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1  Background

Ty
LONDON

1.1.1 NRP has been commissioned by the City of London (Col) to review the operation of six pedestrian spaces
within the City of London. The aim of the study is to “assess whether their operational period should be

changed to better align with activities and/or policy.”

1.1.2 In addition to the assessment of operational hours, changes to other factors including signage, road
markings, enforcement, and vehicle class restrictions that could improve the existing situation have been

investigated.

1.1.3 The 6 pedestrian spaces within this study are listed below and shown in Figure 1-1.

e (Carter Lane

e  Watling Street
e Bow Lane

e  Austin Friars

e Lime Street

e Devonshire Row

Figure 1-1: Pedestrian spaces for feasibility study

a
Bg BB London Wall London Way s o ’ .
i e Devonshire Row
o B s ¢ ‘I\\NN\

B SS9
2g ., P “ondon s e Sss
£ < o Wormuooq «

e : s ; Austin Friars "y o
44 3 I: H " =,
@ o1/ GO
e e 1 4%
St Paul's©. I T & 4
A F |\ PR
5 3 5] et ;
ey, ® Bow Lane: g Ch
A ; =5 a 2
x 151 e
OS2 F R o Ayt 11 2
7 ~5 atmosrox O 1 1 contil @ Leadenhall St g Leade,
A= 7 a onee o » lenhay g,
S ~ 7y T '.~'l~ B a ; '
Ly W may L
Carter Lane : Can S SNld 7 F %
3 : S S ','~~..“‘W§’thng Street < TSR -~
. :f Mnon g, - memw\ 3 &ap > ,/ 13
. £ ashion House ®, o A
Queen Victoria 5; Y s X R
: Queen Victoria S'ﬂ Queen Victoria St o : \Vl Lime Street'
g / eNChyre, e St
] ; & g & 8 . A
: Upper Thames St 3 2 i A0 j
N Uoper Thames g, Mon %
1.1.4 This report includes the following sections:
e Chapter 2 — Baseline data collection, review and analysis (existing conditions).
e Chapter 3 — Liaison with local businesses and residents to understand their servicing requirements.
e Chapter 4 — Scheme proposals (optioneering).
e Chapter 5 — Conclusions and recommendations.
Page 1 of 97

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Pag e 243



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2 BASELINE ANALYSIS

2.1 Introduction

2.1.1 This chapter sets out the existing conditions at each of the 6 pedestrian spaces using the following
parameters:

e layout (including kerbside restrictions and traffic controls).
e Review of Traffic Management Order document.

e Collision data.

e  Traffic flows.

e Kerbside activity.

e  Pedestrian activity.

e |dentify issues and opportunities for enhancement and/ or mitigation.

2.2 Surveys

2.2.1 Surveys were undertaken over 3 days on Thursday 28", Friday 29" and Saturday 30" September 2023. The
following data was collected at each of the pedestrian spaces:

e  24-hour traffic counts.
e  24-hour kerbside activity.

e  Pedestrian counts and activity.

2.2.2 At the time of the surveys, it got dark at approximately 7pm. On Thursday 28" September it started raining at
around 9.30pm for about an hour. Other than that the weather was generally fine.

2.2.3 For pedestrian activity, values of low, medium and high were assigned to each hour of the day. This is based
on observed pedestrian volumes and behaviour and is relative to the space available at that particular
location.

2.2.4 The definition of low, medium and high are provided as follows, including an example from the survey video
footage. The value of ‘high’ is assigned if one area within the pedestrian space meets the criteria (i.e. the
whole pedestrian space does not need to be busy for a ‘high’ value to be observed).

i Page 244 Page 2 of 97

NORMAN ROURKE PRY



Ty
LONDON

REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

e Low =infrequent individuals or groups observed either moving through or static. Area classed as well
within capacity for pedestrians (no conflicts between pedestrians and/or cyclists and/or vehicles).

P

Medium = frequent individuals or groups observed either moving through or static, with little or no
crowding. Area classed as within capacity for pedestrians (some conflicts between pedestrians and/or

cyclists and/or vehicles but not causing significant issues for pedestrian movement).

e High = continuous movement of people observed, with static activity and crowding. Area classed as at or
over capacity for pedestrians (frequent conflicts between pedestrians and/or cyclists and/or vehicles

causing issues for pedestrian movement).

Page 3 of 97

Page 245

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2.3

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.3.3
234

2.3.5

2.3.6

Carter Lane

Layout

Carter Lane, between the junctions with Creed Lane to the east and Ludgate Broadway to the west, is a
Pedestrian Zone (motor vehicle restriction) from Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm. The current signage at the
junction with Creed Lane is shown in Figure 2-1 and at the junction with Ludgate Broadway in Figure 2-2.

This section of Carter Lane is a narrow one-way street (westbound), with carriageway and footway at the
same level. East of Friar Street there are bollards protecting the building frontages and these block the
footway meaning the people are forced to walk in the carriageway. West of Friar Street, the bollards are
infrequent and the footway is wider meaning that it can be used by pedestrians. However, street clutter (A-
frame advertising boards) was observed to be used along the length of the footway on both sides of the
street.

Cycling is permitted in both directions on this section of Creed Lane.

There are double yellow lines on both sides of the carriageway for the full length of this section of Carter
Lane. This means parking is prohibited at all times, with loading permitted for a maximum of 40 minutes.

There is an unmarked bay provided that is likely to be used for loading that would allow other vehicles to
pass.

Traffic Management Order (TMO)

The TMO for Carter Lane between the junctions with Creed Lane and Ludgate Broadway is in line with the
signage provided on-street. The TMO states that no motor vehicles can enter this section of Carter Lane
between 8am and 6pm on Mondays to Fridays, with the exception of:

e Ambulance, fire brigade or police vehicles in an emergency.

e Any vehicle being used in the service of a local authority in pursuance of statutory powers or duties.

NORMAN RO

URKE PRY

i Page 246 Page 4 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-1: Carter Lane at junction with Creed Lane (looking west)

Figure 2-2: Carter Lane at junction with Ludgate Broadway (looking east)

AT\ ¢y

1y

N2>

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 247 Page 5 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2:3.7

2.3.8
2:319

2.3.10

2.3.11

Collision data

Collision data has been analysed for 2018-2022 (inclusive). There were no collisions recorded by the police
during the period on Carter Lane between the junctions with Creed Lane and Ludgate Broadway. The
collision plot for 2018-2022 is shown in Figure 2-3.

The nearest casualty was a cyclist, which had a slight severity. This was located on Ludgate Broadway.

It should be noted that 2018 and 2019 are pre-Covid, 2020 and 2021 during Covid, and 2022 is post Covid.

Figure 2-3: Carter Lane — casualty plot 2018-2022

L.
\
i

&
.ag"o:d Bailey

| & St Paul's Chu
I rchyord

L
T
Creeq Lane»»
A

(")
o
J : : j %;! Carter Lane
/ - 3 Road Casualties (2018-2022)
J ' drter Lane £ Modeof Trovel
J > g‘ sl
> :
o
n é% Dhyedy Covm
’.l ; ?' '
‘, I - . Volimuml ©w
e e der Street .
= Kl‘“gh‘ | Cosuclty Severity
| ‘ . Izt
’ g S | @
b N o g—— 9

Traffic Flows

Table 2.1 provides a summary for each survey day for motor vehicles and cycles. The values in red bold and
brackets are the number of vehicles contravening the Pedestrian Zone TMO restrictions.

Table 2.1: Carter Lane — Traffic flow summary

24-hour Motor vehicles Cyclists Motor vehicles Cyclists
period eastbound eastbound westbound westbound
Thursday 1(0) 95 22 (4) 105
Friday 1(1) 108 18 (2) 129
Saturday 2 93 17 162

Figure 2-4 and Figure 2-5 show the motor vehicle and cycle flow profiles respectively for each of the survey
days. The motor vehicle flow is consistently low throughout each survey day. The cycle flows have peaks at

lunch time and during the PM peak hour.

Page 248

Page 6 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-4: Carter Lane — Motor vehicle flow profile

CARTER LANE - MOTOR VEHICLES

Thursday (westbound)
e Friday (westbound)

Saturday (westbound)

MOTOR VEHICLES PER HOUR

10

5 7\ _/'—\ P S & > -

P S O P P P PP P PP P PP SO SE®
PSP PP S PIPRSIEERRSRIPSIF PRSI RS S P P S
G NCHRN GRRN CHIRSERNOS S M E R C R w La

TIME OF DAY

Figure 2-5: Carter Lane — Cycle flow profile

CARTER LANE - CYCLES

Thursday (eastbound)
Thursday (westbound)

=== Friday (eastbound)

CYCLES PER HOUR

= Friday (westbound)
Saturday (eastbound)
Saturday (westbound)

A

=—d Vi&‘J \»A/y\_,

S ® ©® O & OO VoMo
ST P LS L L LSS SSS
FFIFIFFIEFNFE O

0 —=

© 9 S O O S O OSSOSO
PSSP S LSS S.S
NN N BN N SN N S R )
TIME OF DAY

Page 249 Page 7 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Kerbside activity

2.3.12 A summary of motor vehicle kerbside activity for each survey day in provided in Table 2.2.

Table 2.2: Carter Lane — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles)

24-hour Loading / Parcel Pickup/ Pick-Up /

o Unlasding Delivery Drop-Off Waiting Parked Servicing Grand Total
Thursday 6 10 4 4 1 1 26
Friday 3 9 3 2 3 0 20
Saturday 1 6 13 3 2 0 25

2.3.13  The profile by time of day for kerbside activity of motor vehicles on Carter Lane is shown in Figure 2-6 for
Thursday 28, Friday 29 and Saturday 30 September.

Figure 2-6: Carter Lane — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)

o’ Occupancy - 28/09/23 J, Occupancy - 30/09/23
PPPPPPEPPPP IS IPPP PP PP :;’-’J'«?"ffﬁ’f«&’a‘é’fffffff&’a’é’ffff
bomst Occupancy - 29/09/23

2

1

1

PIPFFL PP PP PPPPPPP S

2.3.14  The survey results show there are motor vehicles accessing the Pedestrian Zone in contravention of the
timed restrictions. It suggests there is not a strong demand for kerbside provision after 6pm on a weekday.

2.3.15 Figure 2-7 provides the profile by time of day for kerbside activity of cycles on Carter Lane for Thursday 28,
Friday 29 and Saturday 30% September.

IMAN URKE PRYME Page 250 Page 8 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-7: Carter Lane — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)

Occupancy - 28/09/23 e Occupancy - 30/09/23

— o

—arhes

| 11—

PPPPPPIPPPPIPLIPPEP L PP

PIFIF LI PIFIS SIS EES PSS SS

ziz

Occupancy - 29/09/23

—il

PEPPPPPIPPPPIPIEP PP S S

2.3.16

2:3.17

2.3.18

2:3.19
2:3.20

The data shows that some people are using cycles to access Carter Lane throughout the day, with the most
popular time being the afternoon and evening.

Pedestrian activity

The survey video footage has been reviewed. Based on observations, a graph of pedestrian activity by time of
day for each of the 3 survey days is shown in Figure 2-8.

Thursday was observed to be the busiest day, with high pedestrian activity between midday and 2pm and
then from 5pm to 8pm. There was crowding outside Patch St Paul’s and The Rising Sun in the evening.

Friday was generally less busy than Thursday, with shorter periods of crowding, that were also less extensive.

Saturday had generally low volumes of pedestrians, with occasional groups of people moving through.
However, there was a fairly consistent movement of people along Carter Lane after 8am.

ROURKE PRYME Page 251 Page 9 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-8: Carter Lane — Pedestrian activity summary

OBSERVED PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY ON CARTER LANE

PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY
N

[y

QO

O O
S S o
.

N N i

N
TIME OF DAY

Thursday 28th Sept 2023 == Friday 29th Sept 2023 =—=Saturday 30th Sept 2023

2.3.21 Figure 2-9 denotes the hotspots of pedestrian activity on Carter Lane. These correspond with pubs and bars
where people congregate.

Figure 2-9: Carter Lane — Pedestrian activity hotspots

¥, ion
S 5 ,
<
= \(3(6
o
= ““‘c
Lug o 5 C
Jate Hily — ?a\)\
() gicx
=)
o
(V]
bt
©
=)
o )
o g
= ©
z ) % =
® = ! o
= 7 = (] e
3 s : g g
o —
a F y <
Q %) 50
o [~ : > (S
o o o | = ] o
- o rOQ ‘ < O] Qw
= - w () ]
® ‘o\l (= a\: ()
Qr N [S) (%] O
@ = y 3
S = i &
= /
& i S
g <
@ Irelang' @ a
ANAd™Y g — a
Playhouse Yard 2
=3
t
- stree
Knightrider

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 252 Page 10 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY Pomid

2.3.22 The pedestrian flow profiles for each of the survey days for the junction of Carter Lane/ Creed Lane is shown
in Figure 2-10.

Figure 2-10: Pedestrian flow profile for Carter Lane

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 253 Page 11 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2.4

2.4.1

2.4.2

2.4.3

2.4.4

2.4.5

2.4.6

Watling Street

Layout

Watling Street, between the junctions with Queen Street to the east and Watling Court to the west, has a no
motor vehicles restriction from Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm. There is a fire gate at both extents of the
restriction. The current signage at the junction with Queen Street is shown in Figure 2-11 and at the junction
with Watling Court in Figure 2-12.

There is a Pedestrian Zone sign and Pedestrian Zone Ends sign located on Watling Street. This applies to
Watling Court and does not cover Watling Street.

This section of Watling Street is a one-way street (westbound), with carriageway grade separated from the
footway. The width of the footway varies, with no footway provided for short sections. Street clutter (A-
frame advertising boards) was observed to be used along the length of the footway on both sides of the
street.

Cycling is permitted in the westbound direction on this section of Watling Street. There were no signs
observed that permit eastbound cycling, so this is assumed to be prohibited.

The street has a restricted parking zone (RPZ) sign at the eastern entrance. The definition of an RPZ is where
waiting, parking and loading restrictions apply but there are no yellow lines on the road or kerb. However,
Watling Street does have double yellow lines on both sides of the carriageway for the full length of this
section. This means it is covered by the City of London’s Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) restrictions. That is,
parking is prohibited at all times, with loading permitted for a maximum of 40 minutes.

Traffic Management Order (TMO)

The TMO for Watling Street between the junctions with Queen Street and Watling Court is in line with the
signage provided on-street. The TMO states that no motor vehicles can enter this section of Watling Street
between 8am and 6pm on Mondays to Fridays, with the exception of:

e Ambulance, fire brigade or police vehicles in an emergency.
e Any vehicle being used in the service of a local authority in pursuance of statutory powers or duties.

e Inconnection with a wedding or funeral service at St Mary Aldemary on Bow Lane.

NORMAN RO

GREE O Page 254 Page 12 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-11: Watling Street at junction with Queen Street (looking west)

N2>

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 255 Page 13 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2.4.7

2.4.8
249

2.4.10

2.4.11

Collision data

Collision data has been analysed for 2018-2022 (inclusive). There were no collisions recorded by the police
during the period on Watling Street between the junctions with Queen Street and Watling Court. The

collision plot for 2018-2022 is shown in Figure 2-13.

The nearest casualties occurred on Cheapside, Queen street, Queen Victoria Street and Cannon Street.

It should be noted that 2018 and 2019 are pre-Covid, 2020 and 2021 during Covid, and 2022 is post Covid.

Figure 2-13: Watling Street — casualty plot 2018-2022

~ = / Trump St;eet . / &
—~— @ ‘ s
¥ ) e (' B0
b % o
o 4 3
£ * /5 y
3 /
-/
P
@ v Oultr,
o .
\ g —- |
= 1
ps -~ (
3 4
% ancras Lonel ”

Bow Lnne/Wulllng Street
Road Casualties (2018-2022)

Mode of Trovel

Skl

@b Sy D
L

Cosualty Severity

. =
@

sl &

Traffic Flows

Table 2.3 provides a summary for each survey day for motor vehicles and cycles. The values in red bold and
brackets are the number of vehicles contravening the TMO restrictions.

Table 2.3: Watling Street — Traffic flow summary

24-hour Motor vehicles Cyclists Motor vehicles Cyclists
period eastbound eastbound westbound westbound
Thursday 0(0) 89 121 (0) 125
Friday 0(0) 123 144 (2) 154
Saturday 4 88 123 66

Figure 2-14 and Figure 2-15 show the motor vehicle and cycle flow profiles respectively for each of the
survey days. The motor vehicle flow is around 10 vehicles per hour before and after the times of the TMO
restriction. The cycle flows are relatively consistent throughout the day, with a peak in the morning rush

hour.

Page 14 of 97

Page 256



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-14: Watling Street — Motor vehicle flow profile

WATLING STREET - MOTOR VEHICLES

Thursday (eastbound)
Thursday (westbound)
== Friday (eastbound)

e Friday (westbound)

MOTOR VEHICLES PER HOUR

Saturday (eastbound)

Saturday (westbound)

\ /

OF = =

©  © © © O O O O O O OO OO OO OO OO
S PTP P PP PP PSPPI LS LSS LELL LSS
TP P F I P @A DA GNP DA g

TIME OF DAY

Figure 2-15: Watling Street — Cycle flow profile

WATLING STREET - CYCLES

Thursday (eastbound)
Thursday (westbound)
=== Friday (eastbound)

e Friday (westbound)

MOTOR VEHICLES PER HOUR

Saturday (eastbound)

Saturday (westbound)

ppe

P O S O O O O L O P O P D P P O O PO S PSS
PP P PSP PRI REEERCIS NG BRSSP RS P P S
PP F P F P PP R RN MDD DT Y gV Y

TIME OF DAY
NO \

AR A— Page 257 Page 15 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Kerbside activity

2.4.12 A summary of motor vehicle kerbside activity for each survey day in provided in Table 2.4.

Table 2.4: Watling Street — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles)

24-hour Loading / Parcel Pickup/ Pick-Up /

erion tnlozding Ditivery Drop-Off Waiting Parked Servicing Grand Total
Thursday 37 12 11 15 9 0 84
Friday 30 6 16 15 19 0 86
Saturday 15 0 66 20 9 0 110

2.4.13  The profile by time of day for kerbside activity of motor vehicles on Watling Street is shown in Figure 2-16 for
Thursday 28, Friday 29 and Saturday 30 September.

Figure 2-16: Watling Street — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)

Vehide

o Occupancy - 28/09/23 ey Occupancy - 30/09/23

2 2 l

14 =

1L ﬁﬂl ‘l“ I [T TN

PEFPLPSIPS PP PSP IR PPPPFE S PIPPILIPP IS IFPII IS IS PS

N Occupancy - 29/09/23
?

"

] ||
| i

FLPPEPESEPPSIPP LSS LIPS

2.4.14  The survey results show there is reasonably consistent low level of kerbside activity through the day on
Watling Street. This is in contravention of the TMO restrictions. Although there is some kerbside activity after
6pm on a weekday, the data does not suggest there is a strong demand for this.

2.4.15 Figure 2-17 provides the profile by time of day for kerbside activity of cycles on Watling Street for Thursday
28, Friday 29*" and Saturday 30* September.

M AN URKE PRYME Page 258 Page 16 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-17: Watling Street — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)

e Occupancy - 28/09/23 e Occupancy - 30/09/23
20 20
18 k'3
16 6
14 14

- o -2

PISIPIIPL PSS ISP S PIFEPIIIF SIS SIS PSS IS S

sig

Occupancy - 29/09/23

-

—il

PIPEIEIIIIP PSS IS PSS S S

2.4.16 The data shows that people are using cycles to access Watling Street throughout the day.

Pedestrian activity

2.4.17 The survey video footage has been reviewed. Based on observations, a graph of pedestrian activity by time of
day for each of the 3 survey days is shown in Figure 2-18.

2.4.18 Thursday was observed to be the busiest day, with high pedestrian activity between midday and 2pm and
then from 5pm to 9pm. There was crowding outside the various pubs along the street in the evening.

2.4.19 Friday was generally less busy than Thursday, with shorter periods of crowding, that were also less extensive.

2.4.20 Saturday had generally low volumes of pedestrians, with occasional groups of people moving through. There
was a reasonable level of activity on Saturday evening due to the pubs and eateries.

RMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 259 Page 17 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-18: Watling Street — Pedestrian activity summary

OBSERVED PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY ON WATLING STREET

N

PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY

[

<

N
TIME OF DAY

Thursday 28th Sept 2023 — Friclay 29th Sept 2023 = Saturday 30th Sept 2023

2.4.21 Figure 2-19 denotes the hotspots of pedestrian activity on Watling Street. These correspond with pubs and

bars where people congregate.

Figure 2-19: Watling Street — Pedestrian activity hotspots

2
o
. =
he ¥ @
apsj, >
Ide ;O
(S)
4 p()u'l‘ry
)
o
-
v
6 [
{9} J
> )
" (4 oAl
wv
Pancras Lane %
-
.‘m ‘
=l
oo S\(ee
" 0(.\8
> o NS
- e
Qv

Page 18 of 97

Page 260



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2.4.22  The pedestrian flow profiles for each of the survey days for Watling Street is shown in Figure 2-20.

Figure 2-20: Pedestrian flow profile for Watling Street

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 261 Page 19 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2.5

2.5.1

2.5.2

2.5.3

2.5.4

2.5.5

2.5.6

Bow Lane

Layout

Bow Lane, between the junctions with Cannon Street to the south and Cheapside to the north, has a no
motor vehicles restriction from Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm. There is a Pedestrian Zone Ends sign located on
Cheapside at the junction with Bow Lane. The current signage at the junction with Cannon Street is shown in
Figure 2-21 and at the junction with Cheapside in Figure 2-22.

On the section of Bow Lane to the north of Watling Street, there are 2 yellow plates, located on buildings,
which state “Pedestrian Zone. No parking or loading at any time.”

Bow Lane is a narrow one-way street (northbound), with carriageway and footway at the same level. The
footways are generally narrow, with street clutter (A-frame advertising boards) observed to be used along
the length of the footway on both sides of the street.

Cycling is permitted in the northbound direction on Bow Lane. There were no signs observed that permit
southbound cycling, so this is assumed to be prohibited.

The street has a restricted parking zone (RPZ) sign at the southern entrance and there are no yellow lines or
marked bays for the length of Bow Lane. There is a yellow plate located on the section of Bow Lane to the
south of Watling Street that repeats the parking restrictions, which are Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm.

Traffic Management Order (TMO)

The TMO for Bow Lane states that no motor vehicles can enter Bow Lane between 8am and 6pm on
Mondays to Fridays, with the exception of:

e Ambulance, fire brigade or police vehicles in an emergency.
e Any vehicle being used in the service of a local authority in pursuance of statutory powers or duties.

e In connection with a wedding or funeral service at St Mary Aldemary. (This applies to the section of Bow
Lane between Cannon Street and Watling Steet.)

NORMAN RO

GREE O Page 262 Page 20 of 97



%:;E;ér%%
REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY el

Figure 2-21: Bow Lane at junction with Cannon Street (looking north)

!/f /

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 263 Page 21 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Collision data

Collision data has been analysed for 2018-2022 (inclusive). There were no collisions recorded by the police

2:5.7
during the period on Bow Lane between the junctions with Cannon Street and Cheapside. The collision plot
for 2018-2022 is shown in Figure 2-23.
2.5.8  The nearest casualty was a cyclist, which had a slight severity. This was located on Ludgate Broadway.
2.5.9 It should be noted that 2018 and 2019 are pre-Covid, 2020 and 2021 during Covid, and 2022 is post Covid.

Figure 2-23: Bow Lane — casualty plot 2018-2022

Trump St;eet ;

Bow Lnne/Wmllng Street
Road Casualties (2018-2022)

* Mode of Trovel
by
@ Sxslion
g
| (7)’ % Tk Tl
' B s
92 P——
_“K LS . 12tz
..a--ﬂn

Traffic Flows

2.5.10 Table 2.5 provides a summary for each survey day for motor vehicles and cycles. The values in red bold and

brackets are the number of vehicles contravening the TMO restrictions.

Table 2.5: Bow Lane — Traffic flow summary

24-hour Motor vehicles Cyclists Motor vehicles Cyclists
period northbound northbound southbound southbound
Thursday 44 (0) 109 3(0) 72
Friday 43 (2) 93 6(2) 70
Saturday 34 70 52

2.5.11

5am-8am. The cycle flows are broadly consistent throughout the day.

Figure 2-24 and Figure 2-25 show the motor vehicle and cycle flow profiles respectively for each of the
survey days. The motor vehicle flow is consistently low throughout each survey day, with a peak between

Page 264

Page 22 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-24: Bow Lane — Motor vehicle flow profile

BOW LANE - MOTOR VEHICLES

Thursday (northbound)
e Friday (northbound)
Saturday (northbound)

MOTOR VEHICLES PER HOUR

TIME OF DAY

Figure 2-25: Bow Lane — Cycle flow profile

BOW LANE - CYCLES

Thursday (northbound)
Thursday (southbound)

e Friday (northbound)

CYICLES PER HOUR

== Friday (southbound)
Saturday (northbound)

Saturday (southbound)

=X m//\\\f‘:"/'&f‘\\

O
kS
o

0 —S

P P P P P P PP PP SSS S S
PSP PP PSP PP LSS S
I PP FE @ PSR D AR PGS Y Y

N2>

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 265 Page 23 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Kerbside activity

2.5.12 A summary of motor vehicle kerbside activity for each survey day in provided in Table 2.6.

Table 2.6: Bow Lane — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles)

24-hour Loading / Parcel Pickup/ Pick-Up /

et o Unlasding Delivery Drop-Off Waiting Parked Servicing Grand Total
Thursday 7 16 0 3 5 0 31
Friday 19 5 0 6 7 0 37
Saturday 5 5 2 4 3 0 19

2.5.13  The profile by time of day for kerbside activity of motor vehicles on Bow Lane is shown in Figure 2-26 for
Thursday 28, Friday 29 and Saturday 30 September.

Figure 2-26: Bow Lane — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)

Vehide
Unit

Occupancy - 28/09/23 ey Occupancy - 30/09/23

l

I o | ’ L[] |

;”fo’ffff«’e"ffffffffe‘fff:fff

;’J’v"ffﬁ’f«&’«*‘«*‘ff}a;’fffa’fa’ffff

Occupancy - 29/09/23

1

2.5.14  The survey results show there is generally good compliance with the TMO restrictions. It also suggests there

is not a high demand for kerbside provision after 6pm on a weekday, although some activity at this time has
been recorded.

2.5.15 Figure 2-27 provides the profile by time of day for kerbside activity of cycles on Bow Lane for Thursday 28,

Friday 29 and Saturday 30* September.

RM AN URKE PRYME Page 266 Page 24 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-27: Bow Lane — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)

Occupancy - 28/09/23 e Occupancy - 30/09/23

6

4

2

* 1
FELF LS PSS PSSP SIS SIS ST

Ly L ol ] ol
FIILILIEL LIS SIS SIS S

The data shows that people are using cycles to access Bow Lane throughout the day, with the majority of this

The survey video footage has been reviewed. Based on observations, a graph of pedestrian activity by time of

Thursday was observed to be the busiest day, with high pedestrian activity between midday and 1pm and
then from 5pm to 7pm. There was crowding outside the various pubs along the street in the evening.

Friday was generally less busy than Thursday, with shorter periods of crowding, that were also less extensive.

— Occupancy - 29/09/23
u |
b e i
L LS LR ERELEEELELELLLL L
2.5.16
activity by delivery cycles.
Pedestrian activity
2:5 17
day for each of the 3 survey days is shown in Figure 2-28.
2.5.18
2.5.19
2.5.20

Saturday had generally low volumes of pedestrians, with occasional groups of people moving through. There
was a reasonable level of activity on Saturday evening due to the pubs and eateries.

R Page 267 Page 25 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-28: Bow Lane — Pedestrian activity summary

OBSERVED PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY ON BOW LANE

PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY
N

-

Thursday 28th Sept 2023 == Friday 29th Sept 2023 =—=Saturday 30th Sept 2023

2.5.21 Figure 2-29 denotes the hotspots of pedestrian activity on Bow Lane. These correspond with pubs and bars

where people congregate.

Figure 2-29: Bow Lane — Pedestrian activity hotspots

~
Y y o
C - f 7
h ]
eaﬂside ;
oS
©
oultry,
@
©
A
L |
& ;
. |
By ‘
(33 &
= 2
Pancras Lane ~
o
£l
- K¢ S(‘ea
e 0"\3
! >~ \‘.\C\
> Q\)ee“

Page 268 Page 26 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY Pomid

2.5.22  The pedestrian flow profiles for each of the survey days for Bow Lane is shown in Figure 2-30.

Figure 2-30: Pedestrian flow profile for Bow Lane

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 269 Page27of97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2.6 Austin Friars
Layout

2.6.1 Austin Friars has a no motor vehicles restriction from Monday to Friday, 11am-4pm, except disabled badge
holders. There is no through route for vehicles, meaning there are no other signs relating to the vehicle
restrictions. The current signage at the junction with Old Broad Street is shown in Figure 2-31, with the
turning area at the end of Austin Friars shown in Figure 2-32.

2.6.2 Because there is no through route for vehicles Austin Friars is a two-way street, with carriageway and
footway at the same level. There are bollards protecting the building frontages, which restrict the available
footway space.

2.6.3 Cycling is permitted in both directions on Austin Friars.

2.6.4 The street has a restricted parking zone (RPZ) sign at the entrance and there are no yellow lines or marked
loading bays within Austin Friars. The RPZ operates Monday to Friday 7am-7pm, and on Saturday 7am-11am.
There is a marked bay for disabled badge holders (maximum stay of 4 hours Mondays to Fridays inclusive)
located in the turning area by Pinner’s Passage.

2.6.5 There are height and width restrictions to enter Austin Friars due to the entrance being under and between
buildings.

Traffic Management Order (TMO)

2.6.6 The TMO for Ausitn Friars is in line with the signage provided on-street. The TMO states that no motor
vehicles can enter Austin Friars between 11am and 4pm on Mondays to Fridays, with the exception of:

e Ambulance, fire brigade or police vehicles in an emergency.
e Any vehicle being used in the service of a local authority in pursuance of statutory powers or duties.

e Any vehicle being used for the maintenance, improvement, reconstruction, cleansing or lighting; or the
laying, erection, alteration or repair of any sewer, main, pipe, or gas; or water or electronic supply; or
electronic communications.

e Any vehicle where the occupant is the holder of a blue badge to access or egress the disabled persons
parking space.

e Any vehicle accessing or egressing the car park located within the rear of no. 111 Old Broad Street.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 270 Page 28 of 97



%ééfégg
REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY e

Ty
LONDON

Figure 2-31: Austin Friars at junction with Old Broad Street (looking north)

'1 " ' qw Y |y

B i

i P A
- e o SRR

—
" | iy
i

Rostricted
varking

ZONE

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 271 Page 29 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Collision data

2467 Collision data has been analysed for 2018-2022 (inclusive). There were no collisions recorded by the police
during the period on Austin Friars. The collision plot for 2018-2022 is shown in Figure 2-33.

2.6.8 The nearest casualties were on Old Broad Street. There was one serious pedestrian casualty located at the
junction of Austin Friars, Old Broad Street and Throgmorton Street. This was a female casualty as a result of a
collision with a car at 23:22 on Friday 17t January 2020.

2.6.9 It should be noted that 2018 and 2019 are pre-Covid, 2020 and 2021 during Covid, and 2022 is post Covid.

Figure 2-33: Austin Friars — casualty plot 2018-2022
¥ J 5 i y
) B3 do
F T . - fL) o 40
] ! / s %°t
;ﬁ> ;‘/ g u,fnchest /
o £ ] s, y
O e
; Ef | f J $
I3 f~LJd__/ @b ,,
’ = «f B~ / f
i v, —
e')(_!e §
=" S
Ee] | = /
- 4
G v
> . { /"
v == T < 7 4
: 5 “ 5 . g‘éz
2 B 006 © Austin Friars
= e L Bs ~ Road Casualties (2018-2022)
; %, ton Stree( ﬁo\d / Mode of Trovel
——i L__,, /"'.‘N—o%‘“or > g = k ok ¥
Lothbury : 2 &o ~+
& W ¢ ...
"';’e Cosualty Severity
& g </n ed\e (344 = .1:x:|
P 2 ’b Th\'eod 2 Sarou
‘ S % ‘.a-pn
Traffic Flows
2.6.10 Table 2.7 provides a summary for each survey day for motor vehicles and cycles. The values in red bold and
brackets are the number of vehicles contravening the TMO restrictions (or requiring access to the disabled
parking bay).
Table 2.7: Austin Friars — Traffic flow summary
24-hour Motor vehicles Cyclists Motor vehicles Cyclists
period northbound northbound southbound southbound
Thursday 51 (11) 54 51(11) 43
Friday 54 (5) 27 47 (7) 30
Saturday 15 6 23 9
2.6.11 Figure 2-34 and Figure 2-35 show the motor vehicle and cycle flow profiles respectively for each of the

the morning, lunchtime and evening peak hour periods.

survey days. The motor vehicle flow is consistently low throughout each survey day. The cycle flows peak in

Page 272

Page 30 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-34: Austin Friars — Motor vehicle flow profile

AUSTIN FRIARS - MOTOR VEHICLES

Thursday (northbound)
Thursday (southbound)
e Friday (northbound)

e Friday (southbound)

MOTOR VEHICLES PER HOUR

Saturday (northbound)

Saturday (southbound)

S S S S S A O & S O D O O D O O O O P S OO S S ®
P PP PP PP PSR IS QA G IR R S
RSS2 IR IR SR R N S I SN S BN S SN, N R P Sty R 3

TIME OF DAY

Figure 2-35: Austin Friars — Cycle flow profile

AUSTIN FRIARS - CYCLES

Thursday (northbound)
Thursday (southbound)

=== Friday (northbound)

CYCLES PER HOUR

s riday (southbound)
Saturday (northbound)
Saturday (southbound)

p—

O ® ® ® & O &0 SN S P OSSO ®

O kS O QO QO QO QO QO QO O O kS QO kS QO QO O QO i) O O O O O

PP FS RGO R DA PN DTS DT D
TIME OF DAY

Page 273 Page 31 0f 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Kerbside activity

2.6.12 A summary of motor vehicle kerbside activity for each survey day in provided in Table 2.8.

Table 2.8: Austin Friars — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles)

24-hour Loading / Parcel Pickup/ Pick-Up /

et o Unlasding Delivery Drop-Off Waiting Parked Servicing Grand Total
Thursday 27 8 30 5 11 0 81
Friday 25 3 19 13 19 0 79
Saturday 7 1 19 9 6 0 42

2.6.13  The profile by time of day for kerbside activity of motor vehicles on Austin Friars is shown in Figure 2-6 for
Thursday 28, Friday 29 and Saturday 30 September.

Figure 2-36: Austin Friars — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)

o’ Occupancy - 28/09/23 eyt Occupancy - 30/09/23

2

1

1

«;’fv”ffff«’ffffffffffff:ffff PIPPPIP PP IS IS PP PP PSS
bhevoest Occupancy - 29/09/23

1
Lilﬂ' | Il

PEPIPI PSSP PP ELEL LSS
2

.6.14  The survey results show there is a reasonable level of kerbside activity between 11am-4pm. It also suggests
there is demand for kerbside provision after 4pm on a weekday.

2.6.15  Figure 2-7 provides the profile by time of day for kerbside activity of cycles on Austin Friars for Thursday 28",
Friday 29 and Saturday 30% September.

M AN URKE PRYME Page 274 Page 32 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-37: Austin Friars — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)

Occupancy - 28/09/23 o Occupancy - 30/09/23

»

2

PPPPPIEPIPPIPSIP PSP LE LSS

PIFEPIIIPIS IS PSS IS PSSP S

Occupancy - 29/09/23

Vehide

Urit
0
1=
%

u

2

0
s
&
4
2

PIPEPEIIIIP PSS ISP PSS S

2.6.16

2:6.17

2.6.18

2.6.19
2.6.20

The data shows that people are using cycles to access Austin Friars throughout the day.

Pedestrian activity

The survey video footage has been reviewed. Based on observations, a graph of pedestrian activity by time of
day for each of the 3 survey days is shown in Figure 2-38.

Thursday was observed to be the busiest day, with high pedestrian activity between 5pm to 8pm. There was
crowding outside The Phoenix in the evening. In the daytime, the northern section of Austin Friars (to/from
Pinners Passage) was the busiest section.

Friday was generally less busy than Thursday, with shorter periods of crowding, that were also less extensive.

Saturday had generally low volumes of pedestrians, with occasional groups of people moving through.

URKE PRYME Page 275 Page 33 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-38: Austin Friars — Pedestrian activity summary
OBSERVED PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY ON AUSTIN FRIARS

N

PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY

vy N
TIME OF DAY
=Thursday 28th Sept 2023 == Friday 29th Sept 2023 = S3turday 30th Sept 2023

Figure 2-39 denotes the hotspots of pedestrian activity on Austin Friars. These correspond with pubs and

2.6.21
bars where people congregate.

Figure 2-39: Austin Friars — Pedestrian activity hotspots

o
§c
3 regy
> Wi
=< NChgs
fic ley F )
;19 FGE{
)
A3
o
Fo
(o
gc
=
Copthall Avenue J
58 »
52
A
ey
>
xolb
g
O\b
<
S o
¢, “
Ueel P ’70«/. "Q
nS 27 <
morte G o
Thro9 Uy o
G A\ 4 &
m " o
Sout;

Page 34 of 97

Page 276



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY B

2.6.22  The pedestrian flow profiles for each of the survey days for Austin Friars is shown in Figure 2-40.

Figure 2-40: Pedestrian flow profile for Austin Friars

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 277 Page 35 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2.7 Lime Street
Layout

2.7.1 Lime Street has varying restrictions in place along its length. These are summarised as follows:

e Between a point 35m south of Leadenhall Street and the junction with Fenchurch Avenue there is a
motor vehicles restriction that applies at all times except for access. There are fire gates at both ends of
this section of Lime Street. This is shown in Figure 2-41.

e 32m north of Fenchurch Street there is a no motor vehicles restriction that applies Monday to Friday,
8am-6pm. This is shown in Figure 2-42.

2.7.2 The section of Lime Street 35m south of Leadenhall Street to the junction with Leadenhall Place is one-way
southbound. Cycling is permitted in both directions. The carriageway and footway at the same level and
there are double yellow lines, which apply the City of London’s parking controls.

2.7.3 The section of Lime Street 32m north of Fenchurch Street to the junction with Fenchurch Avenue is one-way
northbound. Cycling is permitted in both directions. The carriageway and footway at the same level for this
section of Lime Street. There are double yellow line double tick markings (no loading at any time), from the
start of the motor vehicle restriction to the junction with Lime Street Passage. The remaining part of this
section of Lime Street had double yellow lines only, allowing loading in line with the City of London’s parking
controls.

2.7.4 It was observed from the site visit that the No Entry (except cycles) sign that prohibits motor vehicles to
proceed southbound on Lime Street at the junction with Leadenhall Place was turned to face the wrong
direction meaning it could not be viewed by those vehicles traveling westbound then southbound on
Fenchurch Avenue then Lime Street.

Traffic Management Order (TMO)

2.7.5 The TMO for Lime Street between the junctions with Lime Street Passage and Leadenhall Place is in line with
the signage provided on-street. The TMO states that no motor vehicles can enter this section of Lime Street
between 8am and 6pm on Mondays to Fridays, with the exception of:

e Ambulance, fire brigade or police vehicles in an emergency.

e Any vehicle being used in the service of a local authority in pursuance of statutory powers or duties.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 278 Page 36 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-41: Lime Street south of Leadenhall Street (Iooklng south)

!
n@!z: i’ /yl
LU ‘,_. i
| Moy
Hmﬁl ‘

(=7
e’
o

=g

G
A B

=

EE

=EE
=k

L

=/

=5,

Mon - Fri
8am - 6pm

N2>

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 279 Page 37 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Collision data

2. 7.6 Collision data has been analysed for 2018-2022 (inclusive). There were no collisions recorded by the police
during the period on Lime Street between the junctions with Lime Street Passage and Fenchurch Avenue.
The collision plot for 2018-2022 is shown in Figure 2-43.
2.7.7  The nearest casualties were on Fenchurch Street to the south and Leadenhall Street to the north.
2.8

It should be noted that 2018 and 2019 are pre-Covid, 2020 and 2021 during Covid, and 2022 is post Covid.

Figure 2-43: Lime Street — casualty plot 2018-2022
o [ ol
T ) ﬁ

|
|

|
.

] % : g j‘
Leadenhall s%e‘fb

&

£. ! |
& M,

_

__Lal\.\l:‘.ah S

£/
e
Strg
et

122435

&b
O
&

Oc

<
O
X
J
<
9
@

&b
\ &b
Lime Street

Road Casualties (2018-2022)

‘Modeoiﬁwel
)
¥ “ # ¥ -
& : : -
. ‘6' a \ Cosualty Severity
! p i (l:) ‘| 12tz
|  —r. 5
{ g ..a-pn
Traffic Flows
2,19 Table 2.9 provides a summary for each survey day for motor vehicles and cycles. The values in red bold and
brackets are the number of vehicles contravening the TMO restrictions.
Table 2.9: Lime Street — Traffic flow summary
24-hour Motor vehicles Cyclists Motor vehicles Cyclists
period northbound northbound southbound southbound
Thursday 381 (41) 445 45 (24) 338
Friday 330 (40) 284 23(12) 212
Saturday 287 90 36 40
2.7.10  Figure 2-44 and Figure 2-45 show the motor vehicle and cycle flow profiles respectively for each of the

survey days. The motor vehicle flow is around 20 vehicles per hour before and after the times of the TMO

restriction. The cycle flows have large peaks at 8am and 6pm.

Page 280

Page 38 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-44: Lime Street — Motor vehicle flow profile

LIME STREET - MOTOR VEHICLES

Thursday (northbound)
Thursday (southbound)
e Friday (northbound)

== riday (southbound)

MOTOR VEHICLES PER HOUR

Saturday (northbound)

Saturday (southbound)

oI ‘_.13’_\4/\\)&, ——
O & & &
S S

O ® ® ® S ® oo UES ©  ® & S & O &
SO PP PP S PELPLEESLESSSSS
FFPF I FE E PR R DA PTG TP DT ST N A

TIME OF DAY

Figure 2-45: Lime Street — Cycle flow profile

LIME STREET - CYCLES

Thursday (northbound)
Thursday (southbound)

e Friday (northbound)

CYCLES PER HOUR

= Friday (southbound)
Saturday (northbound)
Saturday (southbound)

[ —— e - <

O O ® & ® & &8 & O & & O & & O &8 O O O O & & &
R R S I S S I

ST I P FIFE F P AR

N2>

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 281 Page 39 of 97

N




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Kerbside activity

2.7.11 A summary of motor vehicle kerbside activity for each survey day in provided in Table 2.10.

Table 2.10: Lime Street — Kerbside activity summary (motor vehicles)

24-hour Loading / Parcel Pickup/

period Unloading Delivery
Thursday 14 31
Friday 31 26
Saturday 7 2

2.7.12  The profile by time of day for kerbside activity of motor vehicles on Lime Street is shown in Figure 2-6 for
Thursday 28, Friday 29 and Saturday 30 September.

Figure 2-46: Lime Street — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)

Vehide

ey Occupancy - 28/0%9/23

. | | |

PPIPPPIPI PSS IS PSSP S

Occupancy - 30/09/23

PIPLPPPPPPFLLPPPPLS LIPS

by Occupancy - 29/09/23
7

: L1

1

1 |

PEPEPEEPEPPIPPILPEL LS PES

2.7.13  The survey results show kerbside activity throughout the day that contravene the TMO restrictions. It also
shows a reasonable level of kerbside activity after 6pm on a weekday.

2.7.14  Figure 2-7 provides the profile by time of day for kerbside activity of cycles on Lime Street for Thursday 28t",
Friday 29 and Saturday 30% September.

Page 282

Page 40 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-47: Lime Street — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)

Occupancy - 28/09/23 e Occupancy - 30/09/23

PPIEPIEPIPLIPSIP PSP L LSS

= |
L AR E R RREL L L L L L L Ll

sig

Occupancy - 29/09/23

PIPEFEIIIIP PSS IS PSS S

2.7-15

2716

2.7.17

2.7.18
2.7.19

The data shows that people are using cycles to access Lime Street throughout the day.

Pedestrian activity

The survey video footage has been reviewed. Based on observations, a graph of pedestrian activity by time of
day for each of the 3 survey days is shown in Figure 2-48.

Thursday was observed to be the busiest day, with high pedestrian activity between midday and 7pm and
then from 5pm to 9pm. There was crowding outside The Grapes in the evening.

Friday was generally less busy than Thursday, with shorter periods of crowding, that were also less extensive.

Saturday had generally low volumes of pedestrians, with occasional groups of people moving through.

E PRYME Page 283 Page 41 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY r"";giu\?{f;‘-
LONDON

Figure 2-48: Lime Street — Pedestrian activity summary

OBSERVED PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY ON LIME STREET

N

>
=
=2
<
=
=
o
[
2]
e
(]
7T}
o

[y

TIME OF DAY

Thursday 28th Sept 2023 s Friclay 29th Sept 2023 = Saturday 30th Sept 2023

Figure 2-49 denotes the hotspots of pedestrian activity on Lime Street. These correspond with pubs and bars

2.7.20
where people congregate.
Figure 2-49: Lime Street — Pedestrian activity hotspots
Leadenha‘" Street
Cornhill g,
o
o
>
<
c
2
2
o L
z =
= s
orp ad@nh j n
£t Coupy ekl Marke, i
g o
o
&
L Fenchirch Avenye
7
& L
& V&
& v
S E
5 e

Y

Qy “

(9] o
> 2,
© %

2
2 %
A ©
7 e
S
2

fenchurch strect

Page 42 of 97

Page 284



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY Pomid

2.7.21 The pedestrian flow profiles for each of the survey days for Lime Street is shown in Figure 2-50.

Figure 2-50: Pedestrian flow profile for Lime Street

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 285 Page430f97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2.8

2.8.1

2.8.2

2.8.3

2.8.4

2.8.5

Devonshire Row
Layout

Devonshire Row, between the junction with Bishopsgate to the west and Devonshire Square to the east, is a
Pedestrian Zone (motor vehicle restriction) from Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm. The current signage at the
junction with Bishopsgate is shown in Figure 2-51 and at the junction with Ludgate Broadway in Figure 2-52.

Devonshire Row is a narrow one-way street (eastbound), with carriageway and footway at the same level.
Street furniture (A-frame advertising boards and outdoor dining areas) was observed to be used along the
length of the footway on both sides of the street.

Cycling is permitted in the eastbound direction only.

There are double yellow lines on both sides of the carriageway for the full length of Devonshire Row. This
means parking is prohibited at all times, with loading permitted for a maximum of 40 minutes.

Traffic Management Order (TMO)

The TMO for Devonshire Row is in line with the signage provided on-street. The TMO states that no motor
vehicles can enter this section of Devonshire Row between 8am and 6pm on Mondays to Fridays, with the
exception of:

e Ambulance, fire brigade or police vehicles in an emergency.

e Any vehicle being used in the service of a local authority in pursuance of statutory powers or duties.

NORMAL

- Page 286 Page 44 of 97

ROURKE PRY



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY o

Figure 2-51: Devonshire Row at junction with Bishopsgate (looking east)

H

§ 37
5
Y:

W

Page 287 Page 45 of 97

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Collision data

2.8.6 Collision data has been analysed for 2018-2022 (inclusive). There were no collisions recorded by the police
during the period Devonshire Row. The collision plot for 2018-2022 is shown in Figure 2-53.

2.8.7  The nearest casualties were located on Bishopsgate.

2.8.8 It should be noted that 2018 and 2019 are pre-Covid, 2020 and 2021 during Covid, and 2022 is post Covid.

Figure 2-53: Devonshire Row — casualty plot 2018-2022
i ——t—
9( o
5&# B N
V. : %
' £

i

.u
3
£
.
2
o
o

o
°

Devonshire Row
Road Casualties (2018-2022)
Maode of Trovel

&b ~u e
@ weris

Cosualty Severity

@~

Traffic Flows

2.8.9 Table 2.11 provides a summary for each survey day for motor vehicles and cycles. The values in red bold and
brackets are the number of vehicles contravening the Pedestrian Zone TMO restrictions.

Table 2.11: Devonshire Row — Traffic flow summary

24-hour Motor vehicles Cyclists Motor vehicles Cyclists
period eastbound eastbound westbound westbound
Thursday 6(1) 242 1(0) 322
Friday 6(1) 264 1(1) 305
Saturday 7 235 2 256

2.8.10  Figure 2-54 and Figure 2-55 show the motor vehicle and cycle flow profiles respectively for each of the
survey days. The motor vehicle flows are consistently low throughout each survey day. The cycle flows peak
reflects the typical morning, lunchtime and evening peak hour periods, with highest volumes between 5pm-
7pm.

IMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 288 Page 46 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-54: Devonshire Row — Motor vehicle flow profile

DEVONSHIRE ROW - MOTOR VEHICLES

Thursday (eastbound)
=== Friday (eastbound)

Saturday (eastbound)

MOTOR VEHICLES PER HOUR

e e —— —
O —

P O & S S P P P B P P P PPN AN PP PP PSS S

SO0 OO O O O O OO S AR OSSO RO G SR SR O O O O

ST P 5> G A & O SN s \(,, ’\ﬁo \//\ IS ’»Q e ’O’ ,{2’
TIME OF DAY

Figure 2-55: Devonshire Row — Cycle flow profile

DEVONSHIRE ROW - CYCLES

Thursday (eastbound)
Thursday (westbound)

=== Friday (eastbound)

CYCLES PER HOUR

== Friday (westbound)
Saturday (eastbound)
Saturday (westbound)

/\:\// )C\\W/ :

5 — e S S
e ——r - B

'/‘fs X -

P P P P P P P S O O I I PO P PO
LSS PP PSPPSRI RESRERS POP PRSP P S S
I RN RN S (RS G i 0 (el G S s i i AR

TIME OF DAY
NO \

KE PRYME Page 289 Page 47 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Kerbside activity

2.8.11 A summary of kerbside activity for each survey day in provided in Table 2.12.

Table 2.12: Devonshire Row — Kerbside activity summary

24-hour Loading / Parcel Pickup/ Pick-Up /

et o Unlasding Delivery Drop-Off Waiting Parked Servicing Grand Total
Thursday 5 0 0 0 1 0 6
Friday 4 1 0 0 0 0 5
Saturday 6 1 0 2 2 0 11

2.8.12  The profile by time of day for kerbside activity of motor vehicles on Devonshire Row is shown in Figure 2-56
for Thursday 28™, Friday 29" and Saturday 30" September.

Figure 2-56: Devonshire Row — Kerbside occupancy profile (motor vehicles)

o’ Occupancy - 28/09/23 J, Occupancy - 30/09/23
PEPPPPEPPPPEFPPEPPPP PP PPFPIPP PP PP P PEP PP LS
bomst Occupancy - 29/09/23

2.8.13  The survey results show there is generally good compliance with the Pedestrian Zone restrictions. It also
suggests there is no demand for kerbside provision after 6pm on a weekday.

2.8.14  Figure 2-57 provides the profile by time of day for kerbside activity of cycles on Devonshire Row for Thursday
28, Friday 29" and Saturday 30* September.

IMAN URKE PRYME Page 290 Page 48 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-57: Devonshire Row — Kerbside occupancy profile (cycles)

ey’ Occupancy - 28/09/23 eyt Occupancy - 30/09/23

: | : [
&fffffffffffffffffffffff fffff?’fffffffffffffffff‘
o Occupancy - 29/09/23

, I

- |
AL S LR EEE L L LEELLLLLL L LS

2.8.15 The data shows that people are using cycles to access Devonshire Row throughout the day, but primarily in
the afternoon and evening. There is a high proportion of delivery cycles using Devonshire Row.

Pedestrian activity

2.8.16  The survey video footage has been reviewed. Based on observations, a graph of pedestrian activity by time of
day for each of the 3 survey days is shown in Figure 2-58.

2.8.17 Devonshire Road has a more consistent level of activity across each of the days, including Saturday. This is
different to the other pedestrian spaces, which tended to have much lower activity on Saturday compared to
Thursday and Friday. This is likely to be due to the proximity to Liverpool Street Station, and that Devonshire
Row provides a connection to two Travelodge hotels, an Ibis hotel, as well as other destinations.

2.8.18 There is some static activity outside The Bull and the Humble Grape.

IMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 291 Page 49 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 2-58: Devonshire Row — Pedestrian activity summary

OBSERVED PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY ON DEVONSHIRE ROW

N

PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY

TIME OF DAY

Thursday 28th Sept 2023 == Friday 29th Sept 2023 emmee Saturday 30th Sept 2023

2.8.19  Figure 2-59 denotes the hotspots of pedestrian activity on Devonshire Row. These correspond with pubs and
bars where people congregate.

Figure 2-59: Devonshire Row — Pedestrian activity hotspots

Ve Ro, o
S, A/ '’
[feer /e}, /;?
The Arcade = 6?
4, L =
(8 -~ o
o B &
0 <
’s S 2
W, : (75 <
A i Sop 3
)
/de,- 4 oUrt &
v
alk = =
@
%Q
<
%, 7 o
&
< 0‘730,_ e;lo
2 (>3 o @
O l/J bo) S
& € R
7]
arm ;—)Q ‘%/, Q'v-
W <
oOd Strept Q o es
OrMmwo e 9, /
od g a X Q
treet Omy, ‘(\‘) ‘e &
@ 3 G
< C, ¢ i ™ D
& Mo, St OV e 3
oY €S ot o
(s) ('/'e A gk
e fe
f:,? oo ‘Z:b
Q" (N

IMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 292 Page 50 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY Pomid

2.8.20 The pedestrian flow profiles for each of the survey days for Devonshire Row is shown in Figure 2-60.

Figure 2-60: Pedestrian flow profile for Devonshire Row

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 293 Pag6510f97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

2.9 Additional analysis

2:9.1 Further analysis of kerbside activity and pedestrian activity is provided as follows.

2.10 Kerbside activity

2.10.1 Table 2.13, Table 2.14 and Table 2.15 show the proportion of kerbside activity being undertaken by cycles for
each survey day.

Table 2.13: Kerbside activity summary — proportion by cycles (Thursday 28™ September)

Loading / Parcel Pickup/ Pick-Up /

Location Solaslio Debivery Drop-Off Waiting Parked Servicing

Austin Friars 0% 43% 0% 50% 70% 100% 32%
Bow Lane 13% 90% 0% 94% 90% 0% 88%
Carter Lane 0% 55% 0% 43% 80% 0% 42%
Devonshire Row 0% 100% 0% 100% 88% 0% 96%
Lime Street 0% 28% 0% 32% 62% 0% 38%
Watling Street 0% 57% 0% 25% 82% 0% 42%
Grand Total 1% 81% 0% 68% 75% 50% 63%

Table 2.14: Kerbside activity summary — proportion by cycles (Friday 29t September)

Loading / Parcel Pickup/ Pick-Up /

Waiting Parked Servicing  Grand Total

Location

Unloading Delivery Drop-Off
Austin Friars 0% 40% 0% 24% 61% 0% 31%
Bow Lane 14% 93% 0% 88% 95% 0% 87%
Carter Lane 0% 61% 0% 60% 63% 0% 52%
Devonshire Row 0% 99% 0% 100% 100% 0% 98%
Lime Street 0% 35% 0% 32% 71% 0% 35%
Watling Street 6% 67% 0% 35% 60% 0% 37%
Grand Total 4% 85% 0% 64% 78% 0% 64%

D R Sr Page 294 Page 52 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY g
LONDON
Table 2.15: Kerbside activity summary — proportion by cycles (Saturday 30t September)

Loading / Parcel Pickup/ Pick-Up /

Location Unloading Delivery Drop-Off Waiting Parked Servicing Grand Total
Austi

G 0% 0% 0% 25% 45% 0% 16%
Friars
S 0% 96% 0% 84% 50% 0% 88%
Lane
Carer 0% 40% 0% 0% 75% 0% 29%
Lane
Devonshi

0% 99% 0% 95% 60% 0% 94%

re Row
P 0% 0% 0% 11% 32% 0% 15%
Street
Watling 0% 100% 0% 31% 55% 0% 17%
Street
Grand

e 0% 95% 0% 60% 49% 0% 60%
Total

2.10.2 The survey data shows that the majority of kerbside activity in each of the study areas is undertaken by
cycles, except for loading, pick-up/drop-off and servicing.

2.11 Pedestrian activity

2.11.1 In addition to the pedestrian survey data provided for each street, Figure 2-61 shows the pedestrian flow
profile for each street for each survey day.

D R Sr Page 295 Page 53 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

(i

Ty
LONDON

Figure 2-61: Pedestrian activity summary

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 296 Pag6540f97



ey
%Lﬂ '
REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY -

2.12 Issues and opportunities

2.12.1 Issues and opportunities for each pedestrian space are summarised in Table 2.16.

Table 2.16: Issues and opportunities

Location Issue Opportunity

Carter Lane  Crowding outside The Rising Sun and Patch St Paul’s. Extend Pedestrian Zone time to 11pm.

(Pedestrian Low level, but fairly constant flow of pedestrian on activity on Basnd Pedistian o e nokdesil davs of tieweek:
Zone Saturday.

Monday to Carter Lane signed as Pedestrian Zone. The signage prohibits motor Pedestrian Zone sign to be changed to Pedestrian and
Friday, 8am-  vehicles only but may cause confusion as to whether cycling is Cycle Zone to clarify that cycles are permitted on Carter
6pm) permitted. Lane.

Crowding outside numerous venues with people using footway and

; Extend no motor vehicles restriction time to 11pm.
carriageway.

i Extend no motor vehicles restriction to include all days of
Watling Low level, but fairly constant flow of pedestrian activity on Saturday. ¥
Street the week.

: 2 : Change No Motor Vehicles sign to Pedestrian and Cycle
{no _motor Watling Street is signed as No Motor Vehicles. g. . g e r
vehicles Zone sign to provide clear legibility for all road users.
Monday to Watling Street signed as Restricted Parking Zone and double yellow Review to ascertain what signs and lines are required to
Friday, 8am- lines provided on street. restrict parking and loading activity.
6pm) Change TMO and signage to allow contra-flow cycling on
Contra-flow cycling not permitted on Watling Street. .g He RESE
Watling Street.
Grade separation between footway and carriageway. Raise carriageway to same height as footway.
Crowding outside Ye Old Watling, south of Watling Street with . S ——
; : Extend no motor vehicles restriction time to 11pm.
people using footway and carriageway
Extend no motor vehicles restriction to include all days of
e Low level, but fairly constant flow of pedestrian activity on Saturday. I ¥
(no motor the week.
vehicles R 8 Change No Motor Vehicles sign to Pedestrian and Cycle
Bow Lane is signed as No Motor Vehicles. . . .
Monday to Zone sign to provide clearly legibility for all road users.
Friday, 8am-  There is not a No Left-Turn sign denoting the prohibition of this

. ) B 6 P Add No Left-Turn sign from Watling Street to Bow Lane.

6pm) movement from Watling Street to Bow Lane.

Change TMO and signage to allow contra-flow cycling on

Contra-flow cycling not permitted on Bow Lane.
Y P Bow Lane.

Austin Fri Crowdi tside The Phoenix with I ing footw, d
MR EIRR P8 QSIS TS RIS WAL PO G B TOE Y, 20 Extend no motor vehicles restriction time to 11pm.

(no motor carriageway.

vehicles

Monday to AL e : Change No Motor Vehicles sign to Pedestrian and Cycle
A ¥ Austin Friars is signed as No Motor Vehicles. g‘ . . s .

Friday, Zone sign to provide clearly legibility for all road users.

1lam-4pm)

i Crowdi tside The G ith le using footw d
HimEAaRek IOE8 QUSIEE. e SEOPESIRIE) PORIC DRRE RO0ONGY. 20 Extend no motor vehicles restriction time to 11pm.

(no motor carriageway.

i Change No Motor Vehicles sign to Pedestrian and Cycle
SEhEES Lime Street is signed as No Motor Vehicles. g. . 6 R Y
Monday to Zone sign to provide clearly legibility for all road users.
Friday, 8am- ) ) i ) Ensure southbound No Entry sign faces the correct

¥ Southbound No Entry sign facing wrong direction. . g

6pm) direction.
o hi Crowding across footway and carriageway after 6pm. Extend Pedestrian Zone time to 11pm.

evonshire

Low level, but fairly constant flow of pedestrian on activity on ; :

Row Saitaireday y P .4 Extend Pedestrian Zone to include all days of the week.

Pedestrian - = = 5 — = - =
(Zone Devonshire Row signed as Pedestrian Zone. The signage prohibits Pedestrian Zone sign to be changed to Pedestrian and
Mondayits motor vehicles only but may cause confusion as to whether cyclingis  Cycle Zone to clarify that cycles are permitted on
Friday, Bati: permitted. Devonshire Row.

’ Change TMO and signage to allow contra-flow cycling on

6pm) Contra-flow cycling not permitted on Devonshire Row. - e PR

Devonshire Row.

RORMAN HOLHRLE PR Page 297 Page 55 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

3 OCCUPIER ENGAGEMENT

3.1 Methodology

31 A survey questionnaire was created with the aim of obtaining a detailed understanding of existing access
needs of building occupiers in each of the pedestrian spaces within this study. The survey questions are
shown in Table 3.1. The version of the survey completed by occupiers can be found at Appendix A.

Table 3.1: Survey questions

Question Multiple choice answer

Q1. What is the name of the organisation? N/A

Q2. What is the address of the organisation? N/A

Q3.1. Retail

Q3.2. Food and Beverage
Q3.3. Office

Q3.4. Hotel/Residential
Q3.5. Bank

Q3.6. School

Q3.7. Government

Q3.8. Other (please specify):
Q4. What are your operating hours? i.e. when are staff present to receive deliveries / servicing? N/A

Q5.1. Midnight - 7:00am
Q5.2. 7:00am - 8:00am
Q5.3. 8:00am - 6:00pm
Q5. How many delivery / servicing activities typically take place Monday - Friday? Q5.4. 6:00pm - 7:00pm
Q5.5. 7:00pm - 11:00pm
Q5.6. 11:00pm - Midnight
Q5.7. Comment:

Q6. Is there delivery / servicing activity on a Saturday? N/A

Q7.1. Midnight - 7:00am
Q7.2. 7:00am - 8:00am
Q7.3. 8:00am - 10:00am
Q7. How many delivery / servicing activities typically take place on Saturday? Q7.4.10:00am - 4:00pm
Q7.5. 4:00pm - 6:00pm
Q7.6. 6:00pm - Midnight
Q7.7. Comment:

Q8. Is there delivery / servicing activity on a Sunday? N/A

Q9.1. Midnight - 7:00am
Q9.2. 7:00am - 8:00am
Q9.3. 8:00am - 10:00am
Q9. How many delivery / servicing activities typically take place on Sunday? Q9.4. 10:00am - 4:00pm
Q9.5. 4:00pm - 6:00pm
Q9.6. 6:00pm - Midnight
Q9.7. Comment:

Q10.1. Walking

Q10.2. Cycling

Q10.3. Public Transport
Q10.4. Car / small van
Q10. What transport modes are used for deliveries / servicing? Q10.5. Large van

Q10.6. Small HGV (3.5t-7.5t box truck)
Q10.7. Large HGV (rigid or articulated above
7.5t)

Q10.8. Comment:

Q3. What type of organisation operates from the premises?

KE PRYME Page 298 Page 56 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Q11. What is the duration of delivery / servicing activities?

Q11.1. 0 - 20 minutes

Q11.2. 20 - 60 minutes

Q11.3. More than 1 hour

Q11.4. More than 4 hours

Q11.5. Comment:

Q12. Where does delivery / servicing activity take place? Please select all that apply

Q12.1. On-street directly outside the
property

Q12.2. On-street close to the property (within
50 meters)

Q12.3. On-street away from the property
(more than 50 meters away)

Q12.4. Off-street parking

Q12.5. Other (please specify):

Q13. Do you have any special delivery / servicing requirements that means activity must take
place directly outside the property? Please select all that apply

Q13.1. No

Q13.2. Yes, for security reasons (e.g. cash in
transit)

Q13.3. Yes, for health and safety reasons (e.g.
heavy loads, accessibility)

Q13.4. Other (please specify):

Q14. Do you allow staff to receive private deliveries?

N/A

Q15. How many non-business deliveries are received (e.g. Amazon deliveries to staff)?

Q15.1. About 1 - 2 per week

Q15.2. About 1 - 2 per day

Q15.3. More than 2 per day

Q15.4. Other (please specify):

Q16. Do the current hours of motor vehicle restrictions cause any issue for you? If so, how and
why would you like the hours to be changed?

N/A

Q17. Who collects your waste and at what time?

Q1l7.1. Who?

Q17.2. What time?

Q18. Do you have plans to modernise/consolidate your delivery strategy, to try and reduce the

amount of activity? If yes, please provide details N/A
Q19. Do you have any further motor vehicle access needs not covered in this survey? (e.g. taxi
required for staff member with mobility issues). If yes, please provide details N/A

3.1.2

The survey was either completed on site or at a later date via the online facility.

318 Table 3.2 summarises the type and number of methods of survey distribution, as well as the number of
responses received. Full details of this can be found at Appendix B.
3.14 The overall response rate was just under 50%, which is in line with other occupier engagement surveys

undertaken by NRP and therefore considered an acceptable and representative outcome.

I p OO . Page 299

Page 57 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY PR
LONDON

Table 3.2: Survey distribution method and response summary

Survey distribution method Number

Handout to target person 21
Handout with name/email of target person 11
Handout with no name of target person 13
Form to be emailed to target person 0
Interview undertaken on site 51
Refused 13
Cannot access building 6
TOTAL BUILDINGS ENGAGED WITH 115
RESPONSES 56
RESPONSE RATE 49%
3.2 Results

321 The section provides the survey results for all of the pedestrian zones combined, as well as for each of the
zones separately.

3.2.2  The survey results for each question are summarised as follows:
Q1. What is the name of the organisation?

3.2.3 Details of this can be found at Appendix C with the raw survey data results.
Q2. What is the address of the organisation?

3.24 The location of respondents is shown in Table 3.3 and Figure 3-1. The results show that each pedestrian area
is fairly equally represented, with the fewest respondents from Austin Friars.

IMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 300 Page 58 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.3: Summary — Question 2

Street Number Percentage
Austin Friars 4 7%
Bow Lane 9 16%
Carter Lane 11 20%
Devonshire Row 12 21%
Lime Street 10 18%
Watling Street 10 18%
TOTAL 56 100%

Figure 3-1: Summary — Question 2

Addresses

Watling Street

Bow Lane

Carter Lane

ORM A

‘N ROURKE PRYME

Page 301

Page 59 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

K25

Q3. What type of organisation operates from the premises?

The type of organisation of the respondents is shown in Table 3.4 and Figure 3-2. The results show that food

and beverage was the main building use, with office and retail being the next highest uses.

Table 3.4: Summary — Question 3

Type Number Percentage
Retail 21%
Food & Beverage 38%
Office 32%
Hotel/Residential 2%
Bank 0%
School 0%
Government 0%
Church 2%
Medical 5%
TOTAL 100%

Figure 3-2: Summary — Question 3

HoteI/Residential\ "

Organisation Types

Food & Beverage

Page 302

Page 60 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

326 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.5: Zone detail — Question 3

Overall ~ Austin Friars  Bow Lane  Carter Lane  Devonshire Row  Lime Street = Watling Street
Retail 21% 0% 33% 18% 17% 40% 10%
Food & Beverage 38% 25% 56% 18% 42% 0% 80%
Office 32% 50% 11% 45% 25% 60% 10%
Hotel/Residential 2% 0% 0% 9% 0% 0% 0%
Bank 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
School 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Government 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Church 2% 25% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Medical 5% 0% 0% 9% 17% 0% 0%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Q4. What are your operating hours? i.e. when are staff present to receive deliveries / servicing?

327 The operating hours of the respondents is shown in Table 3.6 and Figure 3-3. The results show that only 11%
have 24/7 operation. The other organisations mostly operate between 0800-1800, with some operating

earlier or later.

Table 3.6: Summary — Question 4

Categories Number Percentage
AM only 18%
0800 - 1800 29%
0700 - 1900 16%
0600 - 2000 7%
0600 - 2300 18%
24/7 11%
Variable 2%
TOTAL 100%

Page 303 Page 61 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY o

Figure 3-3: Summary — Question 4

Variable

Operating Hours

0800 - 1800

0700 - 1900

3.2.8 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.7: Zone detail — Question 4
Watling Street

Austin Friars Bow Lane Carter Lane Devonshire Row Lime Street

Overall

AM only 18% 0% 33% 0% 8% 10% 50%
0800 - 1800 29% 25% 33% 45% 17% 50% 0%
0700 - 1900 16% 0% 0% 18% 17% 30% 20%
0600 - 2000 7% 0% 0% 0% 25% 0% 10%
0600 - 2300 18% 75% 22% 0% 25% 0% 20%
24/7 11% 0% 0% 36% 8% 10% 0%
Variable 2% 0% 11% 0% 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Q5. How many delivery / servicing activities typically take place Monday - Friday?

3:2:9 The Monday to Friday delivery activities of the respondents is shown in Table 3.8 and Figure 3-4. 72% of
deliveries/ servicing take place between 0800-1800. 20% occur between midnight and 0700.

I\IL_ PRYME Page 304 Page 62 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.8: Summary — Question 5

Estimated Total Per Week Estimated Total Per Day Percentage
0000 - 0700 40 8 5%
0700 - 0800 116 23 14%
0800 - 1800 630 126 77%
1800 - 1900 27 5 3%
1900 - 2300 5 ik 1%
2300 - 0000 0 0 0%
TOTAL 817 163 100%
Figure 3-4: Summary — Question 5
1900 - 2300
2300 - 0000

Typical Weekday
Delivery/Servicing
Time Periods

1800 - 1900

0800 - 1800

0700 - 0800

Page 305

Page 63 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

3.2.11 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.9: Zone detail — Question 5

Overall  Austin Friars  Bow Lane  Carter Lane  Devonshire Row  Lime Street  Watling Street

0000 - 0700 6% 0% 0% 8% 4% 6% 7%
0700 - 0800 14% 0% 29% 11% 7% 3% 19%
0800 - 1800 72% 100% 67% 71% 77% 90% 75%
1800 - 1900 3% 0% 3% 11% 8% 1% 0%
1900 - 2300 3% 0% 1% 0% 4% 0% 0%
2300 - 0000 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

3.2.12  The majority of deliveries/ servicing take place during the times when motor vehicles are restricted in all of
the pedestrian streets.

Q6. Is there delivery / servicing activity on a Saturday?

3.2.13 Table 3.10 and Figure 3-5 show that the vast majority (89%) of deliveries/ servicing take place on a weekday.

Table 3.10: Summary — Question 6

Type Number Percentage
Yes 5 9%

No 50 89%
No answer 1 2%
TOTAL 56 100%

Page 306 Page 64 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 3-5: Summary — Question 6

LONDON

No answer

Saturday
Deliveries/Servicing

3.2.14  The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.11: Zone detail — Question 6

Overall Austin Friars Bow Lane Carter Lane

Devonshire Row  Lime Street = Watling Street
Yes 9% 0% 11% 9% 8% 0% 20%
No 89% 100% 89% 91% 92% 100% 70%
No answer 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 307 Page 65 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY o

LONDON

Q7. How many delivery / servicing activities typically take place on a Saturday?

3.2.15 The Saturday delivery activities of the respondents is shown in Table 3.12 and Figure 3-6.

Table 3.12: Summary — Question 7

Type Estimated Total on Saturday Percentage
0000 - 0700 7 48%
0700 - 0800 2 10%
0800 - 1800 3 21%
1800 - 1900 2 10%
1900 - 2300 2 10%
2300 - 0000 0 0%
TOTAL 15 100%

Figure 3-6: Summary — Question 7

Typical Saturday
Delivery/Servicing
Time Periods

0000 - 0700

0800 - 1800

0700 - 0800

3.2.16 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Page 308 Page 66 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.13: Zone detail — Question 7

e
rict.
Ty
LONDON

Overall Austin Friars Bow Lane Carter Lane Devonshire Row Lime Street ~ Watling Street
0000 - 0700 0% 0% 100% 100% 25% 0% 0%
0700 - 0800 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 50%
0800 - 1800 0% 0% 0% 0% 25% 0% 50%
1800 - 1900 0% 0% 0% 0% 25% 0% 0%
1900 - 2300 0% 0% 0% 0% 25% 0% 0%
2300 - 0000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL 0% 0% 100% 100% 100% 0% 100%
Q8. Is there delivery / servicing activity on a Sunday?
3.2.17 Table 3.14 and Figure 3-7 show that only 1 organisation has deliveries/ servicing take place on a Sunday.
Table 3.14: Summary — Question 8
Number Percentage
Yes 1 2%
No 55 98%
TOTAL 56 100%
Figure 3-7: Summary — Question 8
Sunday
Deliveries/Servicing
NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 309 Page 67 of 97



"l N
%Lﬂ ‘
REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY .

3.2.18 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.15: Zone detail — Question 8

Overall  Austin Friars  Bow Lane  Carter Lane  Devonshire Row  Lime Street  Watling Street
Yes 2% 0% 0% 9% 0% 0% 0%
No 98% 100% 100% 91% 100% 100% 100%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Q9. How many delivery / servicing activities typically take place on Sunday?

3.2.19 The Sunday delivery activities of the respondents is shown in Table 3.16 and Figure 3-8.

Table 3.16: Summary — Question 9

Type Estimated Total on Sunday Percentage
0000 - 0700 2 100%
0700 - 0800 0 0%
0800 - 1800 0 0%
1800 - 1900 0 0%
1900 - 2300 0 0%
2300 - 0000 0 0%
TOTAL 2 100%

Figure 3-8: Summary — Question 9

Typical Sunday
Delivery/Servicing
Time Periods

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 310 Page 68 of 97



REVIEW OF

3.2.20

PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.17: Zone detail — Question 9

Overall  Austin Friars  Bow Lane  Carter Lane  Devonshire Row  Lime Street  Watling Street
0000 - 0700 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0%
0700 - 0800 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
0800 - 1800 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
1800 - 1900 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
1900 - 2300 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
2300 - 0000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0%
Q10. What transport modes are used for deliveries / servicing?

3.2.21 The transport modes used for deliveries / servicing by the respondents is shown in Table 3.18 and Figure 3-9.
72% of deliveries/ servicing use a large van. Walking, cycling, car/small van and small HGV are used for a
small proportion of deliveries/ servicing. All ‘Walking’ deliveries are delivery drivers walking from having
parked nearby.

Table 3.18: Summary — Question 10

Type Never Occasionally Typical Always Total Percentage
Walking 51 1 4 0 5 7%
Cycling 51 3 2 0 5 7%
Public transport 56 0 0 0 0 0%
Car / small van 51 2 i) 2 5 7%
Large van 8 1 45 2 48 72%
Small HGV 52 2 2 0 4 6%
Large HGV 56 0 0 0 0 0%
TOTAL 325 9 54 4 67 100%

URKE PRYME Page 311 Page 69 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY C;IITY

Figure 3-9: Summary — Question 10

Delivery/Servicing
Transport Modes

3.2.22 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.19: Zone detail — Question 10

Overall  Austin Friars Bow Lane Carter Lane Devonshire Row Lime Street ~ Watling Street
Walking 7% 0% 20% 15% 7% 0% 0%
Cycling 7% 17% 10% 8% 0% 17% 0%
Public transport 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Car / small van 7% 17% 10% 8% 13% 0% 0%
Large van 72% 67% 60% 62% 67% 83% 91%
Small HGV 6% 0% 0% 8% 13% 0% 9%
Large HGV 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

ORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 312 Page 70 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

CITY
LONDON

Q11. What is the duration of delivery / servicing activities?

3.2.23 Table 3.20 and Figure 3-10 show that the vast majority (86%) of deliveries/ servicing last for less than 20
minutes.

Table 3.20: Summary — Question 11

Type Never Occasionally Typical Always Total Percentage
0 - 20 minutes 0 0 55 1 56 86%

20 - 60 minutes 49 4 3 0 7 11%
More than 1 hour 55 1 0 0 1 2%
More than 4 hours 55 1 0 0 1l 2%
TOTAL 159 6 58 1 65 100%

Figure 3-10: Summary — Question 11

Morethan1hour ~____More than 4 hours

Delivery/Servicing
Duration

(ORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 313 Page 71 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

3.2.24 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.21: Zone detail — Question 11

Devonshire Row  Lime Street  Watling Street

Overall Austin Friars Bow Lane Carter Lane
0 - 20 minutes 86% 80% 100% 100% 75% 83% 83%
20 - 60 minutes 11% 20% 0% 0% 13% 17% 17%
More than 1 hour 2% 0% 0% 0% 6% 0% 0%
RS 2% 0% 0% 0% 6% 0% 0%
hours
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Q12. Where does delivery/ servicing activity take place?

3.2.25 The location of delivery/ servicing activities of the respondents is shown in Table 3.22 and Figure 3-11. It can
be seen that 75% occurs either directly outside the property or within 50m of the property.

Table 3.22: Summary — Question 12

Type Number Percentage
On-street, directly outside the property 32 56%
On-street, close to the property (within 50m) i 19%
On-street, away from the property (more than 50m) 9 16%
Off-street parking 5 9%

57 100%

TOTAL

Page 314 Page 72 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 3-11: Summary — Question 12

Delivery/Servicing
Location

Off-street
parking

On-street, directly
outside the property

3.2.26  The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.23: Zone detail — Question 12

Overall

Austin Friars

Bow Lane Carter Lane Devonshire Row Lime Street

Watling Street

On-street, directly

outside the 56% 75% 38% 67% 33% 70% 64%

property

On-street, close to

the property 19% 0% 0% 17% 42% 20% 18%

(within 50m)

On-street, away

from the property 16% 25% 13% 17% 25% 10% 9%

(more than 50m)

Off-street parking 9% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 9%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
ORMAN ROURKE ‘' ME Page 315 Page 73 of 97



gag,? Sy
REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY g Tigv
LONDON

Q13. Do you have any special delivery / servicing requirements that means activity must take place directly
outside the property?

3.2.27 Table 3.24 and Figure 3-12 show that most deliveries/ servicing does not have any special requirements.
However, 20% do have requirements relating to heavy loads and/or accessibility.

Table 3.24: Summary — Question 13

Type Number Percentage
No 44 79%
Yes, for security reasons (e.g. cash in transit) 0 0%
Yes, for health and safety reasons (e.g. heavy loads, accessibility) 12 21%
TOTAL 56 100%

Figure 3-12: Summary — Question 13

Delivery/Servicing
Location

On-street, directly

outside the property

NORMAN RODURKE PRYME Page 316 Page 74 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

3.2.28 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.25: Zone detail — Question 13

Overall  Austin Friars  Bow Lane  Carter Lane  Devonshire Row  Lime Street  Watling Street

No 79% 25% 78% 100% 83% 80% 70%
Yes, for security

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
reasons
Yes, for health
and safety 21% 75% 22% 0% 17% 20% 30%
reasons
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Q14. Do you allow staff to receive private deliveries?

3.2.29 Table 3.26 and Figure 3-13 show that there is a fairly even split between those occupiers that permit private
deliveries.

Table 3.26: Summary — Question 14

Type Number Percentage
Yes 30 54%

No 26 46%
TOTAL 56 100%

RMAN RODURKE PRYME Page 317 Page 75 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Figure 3-13: Summary — Question 14

Staff Are Allowed to
Receive Private Deliveries

3.2.30

The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.27: Zone detail — Question 14

Overall  Austin Friars Bow Lane Carter Lane Devonshire Row Lime Street ~ Watling Street
Yes 54% 100% 22% 73% 42% 80% 30%
No 46% 0% 78% 27% 58% 20% 70%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 318 Page 76 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Q15. How many non-business deliveries are received (e.g. Amazon deliveries to staff)?

3.2.31  Of the 54% of occupiers that allow private deliveries, 31% receive more than 2 per day. Table 3.28 and Figure
3-14 show the estimated number of weekly private deliveries. One occupier alone estimates it receives 100
non-business deliveries a week.

Table 3.28: Summary — Question 15

Type Estimated Weekly Total Percentage
About 1 - 2 per week 21 8%
About 1 - 2 per day 30 12%
More than 2 per day 204 80%
TOTAL 255 100%

Figure 3-14: Summary — Question 15

Non-Business
Deliveries
Estimated Weekly Total

More than 2 per day,
204

3.2.32 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

IMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 319 Page 77 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.29: Zone detail — Question 15

Overall  Austin Friars  Bow Lane  Carter Lane  Devonshire Row  Lime Street =~ Watling Street

About 1 -2 per

7% 7% 0% 15% 38% 11% 1%
week
About 1 -2
da;’” ) 11% 70% 0% 0% 63% 13% 0%
213'9 LS 82% 23% 100% 85% 0% 76% 99%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Q16.1 How do the current hours of motor vehicle restrictions cause issues for you?

3.2.33 There were only 16 responses (29% of all respondents) who answered the question asking how the current
motor vehicle restrictions cause issues. The answers provided are presented in Table 3.30 and Figure 3-15.

Table 3.30: Summary — Question 16.1

Type Number Percentage
Causes several deliveries at different times 1 6%
Condenses deliveries to 0700 - 0800 causing congestion 1 6%
Cyclists often illegally access 2 13%
Deliverers add the access fines to the delivery charge 2 13%
Event equipment has to be set up during restricted hours 1 6%
Fines are issued (just) outside of the restricted hours 1 6%
Lifting the restrictions at 1800 is an issue for pedestrian patrons who remain outside 0 0%
Motorcycle deliveries can be dangerous 1 6%
Refuse vehicles arrive in the early evening causing noise disturbance 1 6%
Parking is too far away for heavy load deliveries and some servicing g 6%
Poor communication from wardens 1 6%
Servicing/building contractors need to access for more than 40 minutes 1 6%
Too many restricted hours 1 6%
Vans often illegally access 2 13%
TOTAL 16 100%

i NelERE T Page 320 Page 78 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

= sanict

Ty
LONDON

Figure 3-15: Summary — Question 16.1

Issues Caused by Current Motor Vehicle Restricted Hours

e et s e
more than 40 minutes
P e vamaservamg e
and some servicing
e e distormmee e
noise disturbance

Motorcycle deliveries can be dangerous

Lifting the restrictions at 1800 is an issue for
pedestrian patrons who remain outside

Fines areissued (just) outside of the restricted
hours

Event equipment has to be set up during restricted _
hours
D e e o e ey ==
charge
Cyelists often illegally access | ———
conenses e e e |
congestion
Causes several deliveries at different times _

3.2.34  The results for each zone are shown as follows.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 321 Page 79 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.31: Zone detail — Question 16.1

Overall  Austin Bow Carter Devonshire Lime  Watling
Friars Lane Lane Row Street Street

Causes several deliveries at different times 6% 0% 0% 0% 17% 0% 0%
Condenses deliveries to 0700 - 0800 causing congestion 6% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Cyclists often illegally access 13% 0% 0% 0% 33% 0% 0%
Deliverers add the access fines to the delivery charge 13% 33% 0% 0% 0% 25% 0%
Event equipment has to be set up during restricted hours 6% 33% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Fines are issued (just) outside of the restricted hours 6% 0% 0% 0% 0% 25% 0%
Lifting the restricti-ons at .1800 is an issue for pedestrian 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
patrons who remain outside
Motorcycle deliveries can be dangerous 6% 0% 0% 0% 17% 0% 0%
Rfefuse vehicles arrive in the early evening causing noise 6% 339% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
disturbance
Parking is Fo'o far away for heavy load deliveries and 6% 0% 0% 0% 0% 5% 0%
some servicing
Poor communication from wardens 6% 0% 0% 0% 0% 25% 0%
Servicing/t'xuilding contractors need to access for more 6% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0%
than 40 minutes
Too many restricted hours 6% 0% 0% 0% 17% 0% 0%
Vans often illegally access 13% 0% 0% 100% 17% 0% 0%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100%  100% 100% 100% 0%

Q16.2 Why would you like the current hours of motor vehicle restrictions to be changed?

3.2.35 There were only 13 responses (23% of all respondents) who answered the question asking why you would
like the current motor vehicle restrictions changed. The answers provided are presented in Table 3.32 and
Figure 3-16.

SHAN MOLHKE PR Page 322 Page 80 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

g“ \
f

|/

Bawict

cTy
LONDON
Table 3.32: Summary — Question 16.2
Type Number Percentage
Distaff Lane should remain unrestricted ik 8%
To 0800 - 2300 to restrict vehicle/pedestrian conflict in the evenings 1 8%
To 0900 - 1700 or 1200 - 1700 1 8%
To end at 1200 1 8%
To start at 1200 2 15%
To relax AM restrictions to reduce early congestion 1 8%
To allow heavy load deliveries to unload closer to the premises 1 8%
To avoid access fines being passed on by deliverers 2 15%
To avoid times when event equipment is being set up 1 8%
To be lifted for church goers during religious events/dates 1 8%
To increase the duration from 40 minutes to account for servicing/building contractor work ik 8%
TOTAL 13 100%

Figure 3-16: Summary — Question 16.2

Reasons Why the Current Motor Vehicle Restricted Hours Should Be Changed
o W e |
account for servicing/building contractor work
e
events/dates
Toavold times vhen evencauipment s being <<t
up

To avoid access fines being passed on by
deliverers
To allow heavy load deliveries to unload closer to
the premises
To relax AM restrictions to reduce early
congestion

To 0800 - 2300 to restrict vehicle/pedestrian
conflictin the evenings

Distaff Lane should remain unrestricred .

0 1

Page 323

Page 81 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.33: Zone detail — Question 16.2

Overall  Austin Bow Carter Devonshire Lime  Watling
Friars Lane Lane Row Street Street
Distaff Lane should remain unrestricted 8% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0%
Iﬁeof\i?.‘;niioo to restrict vehicle/pedestrian conflict in 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
To 0900 - 1700 or 1200 - 1700 8% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 33%
To end at 1200 8% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0%
To start at 1200 17% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 67%
To relax AM restrictions to reduce early congestion 8% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0%
;?e?:ic;\;vsheaw load deliveries to unload closer to the 3% 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 0%
To avoid access fines being passed on by deliverers 17% 33% 0% 0% 0% 50% 0%
To avoid times when event equipment is being set up 8% 33% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
l’\c/)ek:]etsll/f;jel;or church goers during religious 8% 339% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Toi the duration from 40 minutes t tf
o increase the duration from 40 minutes to account for 8% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0%
servicing/building contractor work
TOTAL 100% 100% 100%  100% 100% 100% 100%

Q17.1. Who collects your waste?

3.2.36 Table 3.34 and Figure 3-17 show that First Mile is used by 39% of respondents. Veolia is the next most
popular with 20% of respondents.

SHAN MOLHKE PR Page 324 Page 82 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.34: Summary — Question 17.1

Type Number Percentage
Biffa 3 5%
ECMS Services 1 2%
First Mile 22 39%
Recorra 1 2%
Spectrum Recycling 1 2%
SWR Newstar 1 2%
The City of London Corporation 5 9%
Veolia 11 20%
Waste Source 1 2%
Processed internally - sent to head office 1 2%
Not known 9 16%
TOTAL 56 100%
Figure 3-17: Summary — Question 17.1

__ ECMS Services

Waste Collectors

Processed internally -
sent to head office

Waste Source

SWR —_
Newstar Spectrum Recycling ~———Recorra

3.2.37 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

I p OO . Page 325

Page 83 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY ey -

Table 3.35: Zone detail — Question 17.1

Overall  Austin Friars  Bow Lane  Carter Lane  Devonshire Row  Lime Street =~ Watling Street
Biffa 5% 0% 0% 9% 17% 0% 0%
ECMS Services 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10%
First Mile 39% 50% 44% 36% 50% 50% 10%
Recorra 2% 0% 11% 0% 0% 0% 0%
s 2% 0% 0% 9% 0% 0% 0%
Recycling
SWR Newstar 2% 0% 0% 9% 0% 0% 0%
The City of
London 9% 0% 11% 0% 17% 20% 0%
Corporation
Veolia 20% 25% 0% 18% 17% 10% 50%
Waste Source 2% 25% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Processed
internally - sent to 2% 0% 11% 0% 0% 0% 0%
head office
Not known 16% 0% 22% 18% 0% 20% 30%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Q17.2. What time is your waste collected?

3.2.38 Table 3.36 and Figure 3-18 show that most waste collection is undertaken in the morning, most likely before
8am.

IMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 326 Page 84 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY CIT;Y
LONDON
Table 3.36: Summary — Question 17.2

What time Number Percentage

Early hours 6 11%

0600 - 0700 4 7%

Early morning 13 23%

Early morning & 1800 2 4%

Early morning & 2200 1 2%

Early morning & midnight 1 2%

0730-0930 1 2%

0800 - 0830 1 2%

0800 - 1000 1 2%

Evening 10 18%

Late evening 2200 - 0000 3 5%

Midnight 1 2%

Not known 12 21%

TOTAL 56 100%

Figure 3-18: Summary — Question 17.2
Waste Collection Times
Late evening 2200 -
0000 Early morning 0600 -
0700
~—__ Morning 0700 - 1000
3.2.39  he results for each zone are shown as follows.
ORM DURKE PRYME Page 327 Page 85 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.37: Zone detail — Question 17.2

Overall  Austin Friars  Bow Lane  Carter Lane  Devonshire Row  Lime Street =~ Watling Street
Early hours 11% 25% 0% 0% 8% 30% 10%
0600 - 0700 7% 0% 22% 0% 0% 10% 10%
Early morning 23% 25% 22% 36% 17% 10% 30%
igg‘é trigmingiS 4% 25% 11% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Early morning &
2200 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 10%
Early morning &
S~ 2% 0% 0% 0% 8% 0% 0%
0730-0930 2% 0% 0% 9% 0% 0% 0%
0800 - 0830 2% 0% 11% 0% 0% 0% 0%
0800 - 1000 2% 0% 0% 9% 0% 0% 0%
Evening 18% 25% 11% 27% 17% 30% 0%
Lat ing 2200
P 5% 0% 0% 0% 25% 0% 0%
Midnight 2% 0% 0% 0% 8% 0% 0%
Not known 21% 0% 22% 18% 17% 20% 40%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Q18. Do you have plans to modernise/consolidate your delivery strategy, to try and reduce the amount of
activity?

3.2.40 Asshown in Table 3.38 and Figure 3-19 only 2 respondents said they had plans to consolidate their
deliveries/ servicing.

SHAN MOLHKE PR Page 328 Page 86 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.38: Summary — Question 18

Type Number Percentage
Yes, reducing & consolidating deliveries 1 2%
Yes, consolidating deliveries 1 2%

No 54 96%
TOTAL 56 100%

Figure 3-19: Summary — Question 18

Yes, reducing &
consolidating o : Yes, consolidating
deliveries deliveries
Plans to
Modernise/Consolidate
Deliveries
No

3.2.41 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

Table 3.39: Zone detail — Question 18

Overall Austin Friars Bow Lane Carter Lane Devonshire Row Lime Street

Watling Street

Yes, reducing &

consolidating 2% 0% 0% 0% 8% 0% 10%
deliveries
Y lidati

SRS I 0% 0% 0% 17% 0% 10%
deliveries
No 96% 100% 100% 100% 75% 100% 80%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

AR

Page 329

Page 87 of 97



Bwict

CITY
LONDON

REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Q19. Do you have any further motor vehicle access needs not covered in this survey? (e.g. taxi required for
staff member with mobility issues)

3.2.42 Table 3.40 and Figure 3-20 show that the majority of access requirements relate to vulnerable users and/or
those with mobility needs.

Table 3.40: Summary — Question 19

Type Number Percentage
60 Cheapside office building has users with mobility issues including wheelchair users 1 14%
Dutch Church elderly visitors need to be dropped off within restricted hours 1 14%
Keith Burns Dental Practice clients with mobility issues have to be dropped at the door 1 14%
London Gynaecology post-op patients have to be picked up at the door 1 14%
London Health & Wellbeing clients have experienced difficulties 1 14%
Park Medical clients with mobility issues are potentially deterred 1 14%
Ye Olde Watling PH has experienced poor communication with wardens & parking difficulties for staff 1 14%
TOTAL 7 100%

Figure 3-20: Summary — Question 19

Further Motor Vehicle Access Needs

Ye Olde Watling PH has experienced poor communication with wardens &
parking difficulties for staff

Park Medical clients with mobility issues are potentially deterred

London Heaith & Welleing ciets have exerenced s [

London Gynaccology post-op patients have o b icked u a thecoor
Keith Burns Dental Practice clients with mobility issues have to be dropped at _

the door

Dutch Church elderly visitors need to be dropped off within restricted hours _
e T s

wheelchair users

3.2.43 The results for each zone are shown as follows.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 330 Page 88 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 3.41: Zone detail — Question 19

Overall  Austin Friars  Bow Lane  Carter Lane  Devonshire Row  Lime Street =~ Watling Street

60 Cheapside
office building has
users with
mobility issues
including
wheelchair users

14% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Dutch Church
elderly visitors
need to be
dropped off
within restricted
hours

14% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Keith Burns

Dental Practice

clients with

mobility issues 14% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0%
have to be

dropped at the

door

London

Gynaecology post-

op patients have 14% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
to be picked up at

the door

London Health &
Wellbeing clients
have experienced
difficulties

14% 0% 0% 0% 50% 0% 0%

Park Medical

clients with

mobility issues are 14% 0% 0% 0% 50% 0% 0%
potentially

deterred

Ye Olde Watling

PH has

experienced poor

communication 14% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
with wardens &

parking difficulties

for staff

TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 0% 100%

3.2.44

SHAN MOLHKE PR Page 331 Page 89 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

4.1
4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.2

42.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

424

4.2.5

4.2.6

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Conclusions

The 6 streets listed below have been analysed to ascertain levels of pedestrian, motor vehicle, cycle and
kerbside activity. In addition, an occupier engagement survey was undertaken to understand the access
needs of buildings within each area.

e  (Carter Lane.

e  Watling Street.
e Bow Lane.

e Austin Friars.

e Lime Street.

e Devonshire Row.

Overall, it was found that all of the streets had pedestrian activity after the end of the motor vehicle
restriction (6pm for all streets except for Austin Friars, which is 4pm). This was predominantly due to food
and beverage sites with people standing out in the street.

There was 50% response rate to the occupier engagement. From this it was determined that only 8% of
typical servicing/ deliveries occur after 6pm, with 2% on a Saturday and 0.2% on a Sunday.

This baseline data suggests that extending the hours of the motor vehicle restrictions would improve
pedestrian amenity by reducing the risk of conflict with motor vehicles. Extending the restricted hours would
not appear to significantly impact the operation of occupiers on these streets. However, there may be special
cases that need to be accommodated.

Summary and recommendations for each zone
Carter Lane (Pedestrian Zone Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm)

Carter Lane has very low motor vehicle flows throughout the day. The survey data showed that are less than
5 motor vehicles per hour on Carter Lane before 8am and after 6pm on a weekday.

Cycle flows peak at approximately 50 cyclists between 11am-2pm on weekdays and the weekend. There
were around 20 cyclists between 5pm-6pm. Outside of these times flows are less than 5 cyclists per hour.

The kerbside data shows vehicles stopping throughout the day, with 10am-midday most popular on
weekdays. 27% of activity was designated as servicing or loading, with 38% as parcel pick up/drop off.

The pedestrian count surveyed 263 people from 7am-8am. Between 6pm-7pm there were 1,002 people,
with 609 from 7pm-8pm and 385 people from 8pm-9pm. The observations of pedestrian activity showed a
static group of people outside the 3 main bars on the street in the evenings. These groups occupied the
whole of the carriageway and footway space. These groups dissipated at 9.30pm on the Thursday, which
coincided with the rainy weather.

The engagement survey found that 71% of Freight, Servicing and Deliveries (FSD) was stated to occur
between 8am-6pm, in contravention of the vehicle restrictions. 11% occurs from 7am-8am, with another
11% from 6pm-7pm. The kerbside survey found that 38% of FSD happened between 8am-6pm, with 4% 7am-
8am and 4% at 6pm-7pm. 45% of occupiers operate between 8am-6pm, meaning FSD outside of the times
could potentially not be dealt with.

Table 4.1 sets out the proposals for Carter Lane and a RAG assessment against key parameters.

NORMAN

- Page 332 Page 90 of 97

ROURKE PRY



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 4.1: Proposed changes to Carter Lane — RAG assessment

: ; . Cycle Motor vehicle Occupier
Location Proposal Pedestrian amenity . .
amenity access impact
Remove conflict between Motor vehicle
destri d mot hicles at icti
Extend Pedestrian Zone time from 7amto | Poo oo e and motorvenicies a Ir.nproved reaksicon 11% of typical
Carter Lane the start of the morning peak and at | signage for extended from
: 9pm. _ 4 , FSD stated to
(Pedestrian Zone evening peak time for bars and cyclists and 7am to 9pm. iy iy
Monday to Friday, pubs. reduced times However, flow i
: z i 7 11pm. 11% at
8am-6pm) Pedestrian Zone sign to be changed to b of conflict with very low between
; / No change from existing for 2 7am-8am.
Pedestrian and Cycle Zone to clarify that : motor vehicles. 7am-8am and
; pedestrians.
cycles are permitted on Carter Lane. 6pm-9pm.
4.2.7 Extending the motor vehicle restrictions from 7am-9pm is considered to be a significant benefit due to the

restricted space and high volume of pedestrians and static activity at the bars. There is low observed FSD
activity at 7am-8am and 6pm-9pm.

4.2.8 Extending the Pedestrian Zone to include all days of the week was not considered necessary due to the very
low motor vehicle flows at weekends combined with generally low pedestrian and cycle flows.

4.2.9 There were no casualties from collisions on Carter Lane between 2018-2022.

Watling Street (no motor vehicles Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm)

4.2.10 Watling Street has, on average, 10 motor vehicles per hour outside the restricted times. There is good
compliance with the restrictions, although some FSD does occur during this time. Due to the location of the
traffic count point, there is some discrepancy between the kerbside data and traffic count data. Some
vehicles can access Carter Lane and exit via Bow Lane (or reverse back on Watling Street), which would not
be counted by the traffic survey.

4.2.11 On average there are 15-20 cyclists per hour (two-way) on Watling Street between 8am-6pm. Cycle flows
peak at approximately 40 cyclists at 8am-9am on weekdays. Between 6pm and 11pm there are typically less
than 5 cyclists per hour, but on Friday this increased to nearly 20 per hour. Despite the existing restrictions,
there is a fairly constant eastbound flow of cyclists throughout the day.

4.2.12 The kerbside data shows vehicles stopping throughout the day, with 5am-6am the most popular on
weekdays. 45% of activity was designated as servicing or loading, with 14% as parcel pick up/drop off. 5-6
vehicles stopped between 7am-8am on a weekday (7%), with 1-3 vehicles between 6pm-7pm (1%).

4.2.13 The pedestrian count surveyed 631 people from 7am-8am. Between 6pm-7pm there were 1,466 people,
with 910 from 7pm-8pm and 728 people from 8pm-9pm. The observations of pedestrian activity showed a
static group of people outside the main bars on the street (and overspilling from Bow Lane) in the evenings.
These groups occupied the whole of the carriageway and footway space. These groups dissipated at 9.30pm
on the Thursday, which coincided with the rainy weather.

4.2.14 The engagement survey found that 75% of FSD was stated to occur between 8am-6pm, in contravention of
the vehicle restrictions. The surveyed value of this was 28%. 19% (surveyed 7%) occurred from 7am-8am,
with nothing after 6pm. 50% of occupiers operate in the morning only, meaning FSD outside of the times
could potentially not be dealt with.

4.2.15 Table 4.2 sets out the proposals for Watling Street and a RAG assessment against key parameters.

IMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 333 Page 91 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 4.2: Proposed changes to Watling Street — RAG assessment

: ; . Cycle Motor vehicle Occupier
Location Proposal Pedestrian amenity . .
amenity access impact
Remove conflict between Hatrove confiict
destri d mot hicles at
Extend no motor vehicles time from 7am e (_)r ke between
the start of the morning peak and at :
to 9pm. g % Improved pedestrians and
Svahing peak broe for bars and signage for motor vehicles at
. pubs. & 3 & 0% of typical
Watling Street = > cyclists and the start of the
- Change No Motor Vehicles sign to g : FSD stated to
(no motor vehicles ; 5 3 Sy S reduced times morning peak and
P ——— Pedestrian and Cycle Zone sign to provide No significant change from existing S corfictwith e e occur 6pm-
i Y clear legibility for all road users. ; & : 9pm. 19% at
8am-6pm) = e motor vehicles. match peak times
: No significant change from existing i 7am-8am.
Change TMO and signage to allow contra- g i o Permit contra- of bars and pubs.
flow cycling on Watling Street. :: co:nri: ENGEYCINE SIRRALY, flow cycling. No change from
- - - ppenng existing for
Raise carriageway to same height as . ¥, 5
e Improved pedestrian accessibility. pedestrians.

4.2.16 Extending the motor vehicle restrictions from 7am-9pm is considered to be a significant benefit due to the
high volume of pedestrians and static activity outside bars. However, with 19% occupiers (equating to 5-6
vehicles) stating the need for FSD from 7am-8am, further consultation is required to understand if this is
viable for local businesses.

4.2.17 Extending the Pedestrian Zone to include all days of the week is not considered necessary due to the very
low motor vehicle flows at weekends combined with generally low pedestrian and cycle flows. In addition,
there is a demarcated footway on Watling Street that provides space for pedestrians to stand if a vehicle is
moving through the area.

4.2.18 There were no casualties from collisions on Watling Street between 2018-2022.

Bow Lane (no motor vehicles Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm)

4.2.19 Bow Lane has, on average, less than 10 motor vehicles per hour outside the restricted times. The flow is
higher before 8am than it is after 6pm, which is in line with the observed kerbside activity. There is good
compliance with the restrictions, although some FSD does occur during this time.

4.2.20 On average there are 10-15 cyclists per hour (two-way) on Bow Lane between 8am-6pm. Cycle flows peak at
approximately 20 cyclists in the middle of the day and 6pm-8pm on weekdays. Despite the existing
restrictions, there is a fairly constant southbound flow of cyclists throughout the day.

4.2.21 The kerbside data shows vehicles stopping mostly before 8am, with some activity at 8pm-9pm. Activity was
primarily servicing or loading, or parcel pick up/drop off. 4-5 vehicles stopped between 7am-8am on a
weekday, with 1-2 vehicles between 6pm-7pm.

4.2.22 The pedestrian count surveyed 755 people from 7am-8am. Between 6pm-7pm there were 1,215 people,
with 623 from 7pm-8pm and 412 people from 8pm-9pm. The observations of pedestrian activity showed a
static group of people outside the bars on Bow Lane (and overspilling from Watling Street) in the evenings.
These groups occupied the whole of the carriageway and footway space. These groups dissipated at 9.30pm
on the Thursday, which coincided with the rainy weather.

4.2.23 The engagement survey found that 67% of FSD was stated to occur between 8am-6pm, in contravention of
the vehicle restrictions. 29% occurred from 7am-8am, with 4% after 6pm. The kerbside survey found that
10% of FSD happened between 8am-6pm, with 14% 7am-8am and 0% at 6pm-7pm. Two thirds of occupiers
operate in the morning only or between 8am-6pm, meaning FSD outside of the times could potentially not
be dealt with.

4.2.24  Table 4.3 sets out the proposals for Bow Lane and a RAG assessment against key parameters.

i NelERE T Page 334 Page 92 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Location

Table 4.3: Proposed changes to Bow Lane — RAG assessment

Proposal

Pedestrian amenity

Cycle
amenity

Motor vehicle
access

Occupier
impact

Extend no motor vehicles restriction time
from 7am to 9pm.

Remove conflict between
pedestrians and motor vehicles at
the start of the morning peak and at

evenings to match peak times of Improved
bars and pubs. signage for .
Bow Lane Change No Motor Vehicles sign to i cyclists and Motor vehicle ol bypee
2 : ; e No change from existing for : 7 FSD stated to
{no motor vehicles Pedestrian and Cycle Zone sign to provide ot reduced times restriction T
Monday to Friday, clearly legibility for all road users. B i of conflict with extended to 11pm 6 29% of
8am-6pm) : No significant change from existing motor vehicles. and at weekends. il °
Change TMO and signage to allow contra- ’ 2 FSD 7am-8am.
: as contraflow cycling already Permit contra-
flow cycling on Bow Lane. 3 :
happening. flow cycling.
Change TMO and signage to allow contra- No sepsficais cha{\ge Rniexiatie
5 2 as contraflow cycling already
flow cycling on Devonshire Row. h :
appening.
4.2.25 Extending the motor vehicle restrictions from 7am-9pm is considered to be a significant benefit due to the
high volume of pedestrians and static activity outside bars. However, with 19% occupiers (14% surveyed,
equating to 4 vehicles) stating the need for FSD from 7am-8am, further consultation is required to
understand if this is viable for local businesses.
4.2.26 Extending the Pedestrian Zone to include all days of the week is not considered necessary due to the very
low motor vehicle flows at weekends combined with generally low pedestrian and cycle flows.
4.2.27 The restrictions on Watling Street and Bow Lane are the same because that they are linked and motor
vehicles may have to use both streets for access/ egress.
4.2.28 There were no casualties from collisions on Bow Lane between 2018-2022.
Austin Friars (no motor vehicles Monday to Friday, 11am-4pm except disabled badge holders)
4.2.29  Austin Friars has, on average, less than 5 motor vehicles per hour outside the restricted times. The flow is
higher before 11am than it is after 4pm, which is in line with the observed kerbside activity. Motor vehicle
flow does not drop significantly during the timed restriction, although access to the disabled parking bay is
permitted.
4.2.30 On average there are less than 10 cyclists per hour (two-way) on Austin Friars between 8am-6pm. Cycle flows
peak at 15 cyclists at 8am-9pm on weekdays.
4.2.31 The kerbside data shows vehicles stopping mostly before 11am, but low levels of activity are observed
throughout the day. Activity was primarily servicing or loading, or pick up/drop off.
4.2.32 The pedestrian count surveyed 253 people from 7am-8am. Between 6pm-7pm there were 494 people, with
213 from 7pm-8pm and 111 people from 8pm-9pm. The observations of pedestrian activity showed a static
group of people outside The Phoenix bar in the evenings. This group did not typically occupy the whole of the
carriageway and footway space. The group dissipated at 9.30pm on the Thursday, which coincided with the
rainy weather.
4.2.33 The engagement survey found that 100% of FSD was stated to occur between 8am-6pm. The kerbside
activity showed 16% between 11am-4pm. 25% of occupiers operate between 8am-6pm, meaning FSD
outside of the times could potentially not be dealt with.
4.2.34  Table 4.4 sets out the proposals for Austin Friars and a RAG assessment against key parameters.

Page 335

Page 93 of 97




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 4.4: Proposed changes to Austin Friars — RAG assessment

: ; . Cycle Motor vehicle Occupier
Location Proposal Pedestrian amenity . ”
amenity access impact
: Y Remove conflict between Improved
S v Extend no motor vehicles restriction time 2 ’ :
Austin Friars pedestrians and motor vehicles to signage for s 9% FSD
) from 11am to 7pm. ) _ : Motor vehicle
(no motor vehicles cover peak times of The Phoenix. cyclists and e surveyed
£ v z 3 restriction
Monday to Friday, Change No Motor Vehicles sign to > reduced times between 4pm-
) : . No change from existing for LR extended to 7pm.
1lam-4pm) Pedestrian and Cycle Zone sign to provide & of conflict with 7pm.
o pedestrians. <
clearly legibility for all road users. motor vehicles.

4.2.35  Starting the motor vehicle restriction earlier than 11am is not considered to be a required due to the low
motor vehicle volumes. There is a small area of footway (protected by bollards) for pedestrians to stand if
there is a vehicle. Ending the motor vehicle restriction at 7pm would reduce conflict with pedestrians outside
the Phoenix Bar, with minimal impact on FSD activity by occupiers. The exemption for the disabled parking
bay would remain.

4.2.36 Extending the Pedestrian Zone to include all days of the week is not considered necessary due to the very
low motor vehicle flows at weekends combined with generally low pedestrian and cycle flows.

4.2.37 There were no casualties from collisions on Austin Friars between 2018-2022.

Lime Street (no motor vehicles Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm)

4.2.38 Lime Street has, on average, 20-30 motor vehicles per hour outside the restricted times. Around 5 motor
vehicles per hour use Lime Street during the restricted time. This is reflected in the kerbside survey, which
shows FSD activity throughout the day.

4.2.39  On average there are 50 cyclists per hour (two-way) on Lime Street between 8am-6pm. Cycle flows peak at
nearly 100 cyclists at 8am-9am on weekdays. Between 6pm and 9pm there are over 50 cyclists per hour.

4.2.40 The kerbside data shows vehicles stopping throughout the day, with 6am-7am the most popular on
weekdays.

4,241 The pedestrian count surveyed 781 people from 7am-8am. Between 6pm-7pm there were 1,699 people,
with 871 from 7pm-8pm and 597 people from 8pm-9pm. The observations of pedestrian activity showed a
static group of people outside the Bunch of Grapes bar in the evenings. This group occupied most of the
carriageway and footway space. These groups dissipated at 9.30pm on the Thursday, which coincided with
the rainy weather.

4.2.42 The engagement survey found that 90% of FSD was stated to occur between 8am-6pm, in contravention of
the vehicle restrictions. 3% occurred from 7am-8am, with nothing after 6pm. The kerbside survey found that
41% of FSD happened between 8am-6pm, with 5% 7am-8am and 3% at 6pm-7pm. 60% of occupiers operate
from 8am-6pm, meaning FSD outside of the times could potentially not be dealt with.

4.2.43 Table 4.5 sets out the proposals for Lime Street and a RAG assessment against key parameters.

IMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 336 Page 94 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 4.5: Proposed changes to Lime Street — RAG assessment

Cycle Motor vehicle Occupier
amenity access impact

Location Proposal Pedestrian amenity

Remove conflict between
. A edestrians and motor vehicles at
) Extend no motor vehicles restriction time S ) Ir.nproved 1% of typical
Lime Street the start of the morning peak and at | signage for )
: from 7am to 9pm. g 4 7 Motor vehicle FSD stated to
(no motor vehicles evening peak time for bars and cyclists and e
. ) restriction occur after
Monday to Friday, pubs. reduced times
- - ST extended to 9pm. | 6pm. 3% of FSD
8am-6pm) Change No Motor Vehicles sign to s of conflict with
: : e No change from existing for 4 7am-8am.
Pedestrian and Cycle Zone sign to provide : motor vehicles.
(e pedestrians.
clearly legibility for all road users.

4.2.44  Extending the motor vehicle restriction from 7am-9pm is considered to be a significant benefit due to the
high volume of pedestrians and cyclists, as well as the static activity at the bars. There is low stated and
observed FSD activity at 7am-8am and 6pm-9pm.

4.2.45 Extending the Pedestrian Zone to include all days of the week is not considered necessary due to the low
motor vehicle flows at weekends combined with generally low pedestrian and cycle flows. In addition, there
is a demarcated footway on Lime Street that provides space for pedestrians to stand if a vehicle is moving
through the area.

4.2.46 There were no casualties from collisions on Lime Street between 2018-2022.

Devonshire Row (no motor vehicles Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm)

4.2.47 Devonshire Row has, on average, less than 1 motor vehicles per hour outside the restricted times. There is
good compliance with the motor vehicle restrictions.

4.2.48 On average there are 30 cyclists per hour (two-way) on Devonshire Row between 8am-6pm. During the day,
cycle flows peak at just over 50 cyclists at 1pm-2pm on weekdays. Between 6pm and 9pm there are 50-60
cyclists per hour.

4.2.49 The survey shows a low level of kerbside activity, with vehicle typically stopping before 9am.

4.2.50 The pedestrian count survey shows 599 people from 7am-8am. Between 6pm-7pm there were 1,185 people,
with 643 from 7pm-8pm and 468 people from 8pm-9pm. The observations of pedestrian activity showed
static groups of people outside the bars in the evenings. These groups occupied all of the carriageway and
footway space. These groups dissipated at 9.30pm on the Thursday, which coincided with the rainy weather.

4.2.51 The engagement survey found that 77% of Freight, Servicing and Deliveries (FSD) occur between 8am-6pm,
in contravention of the vehicle restrictions. 7% occurred from 7am-8am, with 12% after 6pm. The kerbside
survey found that 17% of FSD happened between 8am-6pm, with 0% 7am-8am and 0% at 6pm-7pm. Only
25% of occupiers operate from in the morning only or from 8am-6pm.

4.2.52 Table 4.6 sets out the proposals for Devonshire Row and a RAG assessment against key parameters.

IMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 337 Page 95 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY o

LONDON
Table 4.6: Proposed changes to Devonshire Row — RAG assessment

Cycle Motor vehicle Occupier
amenity access impact

Location Proposal Pedestrian amenity

Remove conflict between
. : pedestrians and motor vehicles at
Extend Pedestrian Zone time from 7am to - Improved
the start of the morning peak and at | . :
9pm. : : signage for 12% of typical
2 evening peak time for bars and ;
Devonshire Row cyclists and A FSD stated to
) pubs. 2 Motor vehicle
(Pedestrian Zone c = reduced times a2 occur after
: Pedestrian Zone sign to be changed to s 2SS restriction E
Monday to Friday, ; Z No change from existing for of conflict with 6pm, with 7%
Pedestrian and Cycle Zone to clarify that : . extended to 9pm.
8am-6pm) 3 5 pedestrians. motor vehicles. between 7am-
cycles are permitted on Devonshire Row. 2
No significant change from existin RGITHE ConG: Bam;
Change TMO and signage to allow contra- e . g g flow cycling.
& ’ as contraflow cycling already
flow cycling on Devonshire Row. 3
happening.

4.2.53 Starting the motor vehicle restriction at 7am and ending at 9pm is considered to be a significant benefit due
to the high volume of pedestrians and constrained carriageway and footway space.

4.2.54  Pedestrian flows on a Saturday are around a third of the levels on a Thursday. This, together with the low
traffic levels, suggests that extending the restrictions the weekend does not appear to be necessary.

4.2.55 The proposed extensions to the motor vehicle restrictions are not considered to have a significant impact on
FSD on Devonshire Row given the low volume of observed activity from 7am-9pm.

4.2.56 Cycling is already occurring in both directions on Devonshire Row. Therefore, changing the TMO to officially
permit contra-flow cycling is a benefit to cyclists. Signage could be installed that helped inform pedestrians
that 2-way cycling is allowed (as has been done on Carter Lane).

4.2.57 There were no casualties from collisions on Devonshire Row between 2018-2022.

4.2.58 The recommended changes for all streets are summarised in Table 4.7. This would require TMO consultation
for each of the streets.

4.2.59  Further assessment regarding enforcement is required. Although the number of motor vehicles contravening
the times of restriction are generally low, the engagement survey found that the majority of servicing and
deliveries was stated to occur during the restricted times.

NORMAN ROURKE PRYME Page 338 Page 96 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

Table 4.7: Recommended proposals

Location

Carter Lane (Pedestrian Zone
Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm)

Proposal
Extend Pedestrian Zone time from 7am to 9pm.

Pedestrian Zone sign to be changed to Pedestrian and Cycle Zone to clarify that cycles are permitted on

Carter Lane.

Watling Street
(no motor vehicles Monday to
Friday, 8am-6pm)

Extend no motor vehicles restriction time from 7am to 9pm.

Change No Motor Vehicles sign to Pedestrian and Cycle Zone sign to provide clear legibility for all road users.

Change TMO and signage to allow contra-flow cycling on Watling Street.

Raise carriageway to same height as footway.

Bow Lane (no motor vehicles
Monday to Friday, 8am-6pm)

Extend no motor vehicles restriction time from 7am to 9pm.

Change No Motor Vehicles sign to Pedestrian and Cycle Zone sign to provide clearly legibility for all road

users.

Add No Left-Turn sign from Watling Street to Bow Lane.

Change TMO and signage to allow contra-flow cycling on Bow Lane.

Austin Friars
(no motor vehicles Monday to
Friday, 11am-4pm)

Extend no motor vehicles restriction time from 11am to 7pm.

Change No Motor Vehicles sign to Pedestrian and Cycle Zone sign to provide clearly legibility for all road

users.

Lime Street
(no motor vehicles Monday to
Friday, 8am-6pm)

Extend no motor vehicles restriction time from 7am to 9pm.

Change No Motor Vehicles sign to Pedestrian and Cycle Zone sign to provide clearly legibility for all road

users.

Ensure southbound No Entry sign faces the correct direction.

Devonshire Row
(Pedestrian Zone Monday to
Friday, 8am-6pm)

Extend Pedestrian Zone time from 7am to 9pm.

Pedestrian Zone sign to be changed to Pedestrian and Cycle Zone to clarify that cycles are permitted on

Devonshire Row.

Change TMO and signage to allow contra-flow cycling on Devonshire Row.

Page 339

Page 97 of 97



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

APPENDIX A: OCCUPIER ENGAGEMENT SURVEY

Page 340



/@
g

\?V\“E—'IRIG'\/
ClTY
LONDON

14995 City of London Business
Surveys

1. City of London Business Survey
TO THE OCCUPIER

The City of London Corporation are reviewing the operational hours of the restrictions to motor
vehicles on this street. This is part of a wider review of all permanent Traffic Management
Orders in operation on its streets to identify if there are opportunities to improve them for all
users and to better support the City’s transport and corporate policies.

This survey is being undertaken to understand your access requirements, which will be a key
aspect to inform the recommendations of this review.

Page 341



The survey is being carried out by a third party on behalf of the City. The City of London officer
contact is Clive Whittle (clive.whittle@cityoflondon.gov.uk).

2. About the organisation

1. What is the name of the organisation?

2. What is the address of the organisation?

3. What type of organisation operates from the premises?

Retail

Food and Beverage
Office
Hotel/Residential
Bank

School

Government
Other (please specify):

4. What are your operating hours? i.e. when are staff present to receive deliveries /
servicing?

3. Deliveries and Servicing

5. How many delivery / servicing activities typically take place Monday - Friday?

Page 342



None 1to2 3to5 6t010 11t020 21to30 Morgc;[han

Midnight - 7:00am
7:00am - 8:00am
8:00am - 6:00pm
6:00pm - 7:00pm
7:00pm - 11:00pm
11:00pm - Midnight

Comment:

6. Is there delivery / servicing activity on a Saturday?

Yes
No

4. Deliveries and Servicing

7. How many delivery / servicing activities typically take place on Saturday?

None  1to2 3to5 61010 11t020 21to30 Morgc}ha”

Midnight - 7:00am
7:00am - 8:00am
8:00am - 10:00am
10:00am - 4:00pm
4:00pm - 6:00pm
6:00pm - Midnight

Comment:

5. Deliveries and Servicing

8. Is there delivery / servicing activity on a Sunday?

Page 343



Yes
No

6. Deliveries and Servicing

9. How many delivery / servicing activities typically take place on Sunday?

None l1to2 3to5 6to 10

Midnight - 7:00am
7:00am - 8:00am
8:00am - 10:00am
10:00am - 4:00pm
4:00pm - 6:00pm
6:00pm - Midnight

Comment:

7. Deliveries and Servicing

10. What transport modes are used for deliveries / servicing?

Never Occasionally
Walking

Cycling
Public Transport
Car / small van

Large van

Small HGV (3.5t-7.5t
box truck)

Large HGV (rigid or
articulated above 7.5t)

Comment:

Page 344

More than

11t020 21to 30

Typical

30

Always



11. What is the duration of delivery / servicing activities?

Never Occasionally Typical Always
0 - 20 minutes
20 - 60 minutes
More than 1 hour

More than 4 hours

Comment:

12. Where does delivery / servicing activity take place? Please select all that apply

On-street directly outside the property
On-street close to the property (within 50 meters)
On-street away from the property (more than 50 meters away)

Off-street parking
Other (please specify):

13. Do you have any special delivery / servicing requirements that means activity must
take place directly outside the property? Please select all that apply

No
Yes, for security reasons (e.g. cash in transit)

Yes, for health and safety reasons (e.g. heavy loads, accessibility)
Other (please specify):

14. Do you allow staff to receive private deliveries?

Yes
No

8. Delivery and Servicing

15. How many non-business deliveries are received (e.g. Amazon deliveries to staff)?

About 1 - 2 per week

Page 345



About 1 - 2 per day

More than 2 per day
Other (please specify):

9. Comments

16. Do the current hours of motor vehicle restrictions cause any issue for you? If so, how
and why would you like the hours to be changed?

17. Who collects your waste and at what time?

Who?
What time?

18. Do you have plans to modernise/consolidate your delivery strategy, to try and reduce
the amount of activity? If yes, please provide details

19. Do you have any further motor vehicle access needs not covered in this survey? (e.g.
taxi required for staff member with mobility issues). If yes, please provide details

Page 346



REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

APPENDIX B: SURVEY DISTRIBUTION SUMMARY

Page 347



CARTER LANE

ADDRESS LIST

KEY SUMMARY

Handout to target person 1 Handout to target person 21

Handout with name/email of target person 2 Handout with name/email of target person 11
Handout with no name of target person 3 Handout with no name of target person 13
Form to be emailed to target person 4 Form to be emailed to target person 0
Interview undertaken on site 5 Interview undertaken on site 51

Refused 6 Refused 13
Cannot access building 7 Cannot access building 6

TOTAL 115

RESPONSES 56

RESPONSE RATE| 49%

Page 348




REVIEW OF PEDESTRIAN SPACES / FEASIBILITY STUDY

APPENDIX C: RAW SURVEY RESULTS DATA

Page 349



Q3. What type of organisation operates from the premises?

Q3.1. Retail

Q2. What is the address of the organisation?

Q1. What is the name of the organisation?

Tracking Link

Ended

Unique ID Started

UserNo Name Email IP Address

UserlD

Q3.5. Bank Q3.6. School Q3.7. Government

Q3.3. Office Q3.4. Hotel/Residential

Q3.2. Food and Beverage

Page 350



London Exeter
57 Webber Street ford Barton
London, SE1 ORF Business Park

Exeter, EX6 7BT
53 london@nrpltd.com B3 exeter@nrpltd.com
Q, +44 (0)207 654 7280 Q +44 (0)1392 266880

CS. Norman Rourke Pryme Limited. Re

>d in England

7 Webber Street, London, SE1 ORF

Bristol

The Picture House
4 Colston Avenue
Bristol, BS1 4ST

& bristol@nrpltd.com
Q +44 (0)117 387 8910

Truro
Penstraze Business Centre,
Truro, TR4 8PN

R, +44 (0)1872 562054

14001 : 2015

PR 77 CIHT (13 rics

5 1 REGISTERED Partnerships Network
Knowledge Partners Regulated by RICS




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 352



Appendix 2

Table 1: Traffic Orders in Category ii -- Those with signage or road marking

issues

signage

Restriction / Street Planned change Status
Name
Apothecary Street Install missing No Waiting | Resolved - installation
signage of missing CPZ sign
on Blackfriars Bridge
arranged
Bear Alley Install missing No Waiting | Resolved - installation

of missing CPZ sign
on Blackfriars Bridge
arranged

Blackfriars Court

Install missing No Waiting
signage

Resolved - installation
of missing CPZ sign
on Blackfriars Bridge
arranged

Great Tower Street

Revoke unnecessary
‘One way eastbound
except buses and cycles’
‘Restriction

Revocation Order in
progress

Hayne Street

Revoke unnecessary ‘No
Motor Vehicles’ restriction

Revocation Order in
progress

southern section to
reduce congestion

Little Britain Convert expired Doctor's | Traffic Order in
bay to cycle hire and e- progress
scooter bay

Old Bailey Introduce loading ban on | Resolved - not

considered required as
Old Bailey is wide
enough to
accommodate the
current loading
activities without
unduly impacting
traffic flows

Page 353




Silk Street

Revoke redundant order
for bus stop clearway

Resolved - bus stop
clearways no longer
require TMOs, there
no revocation is
necessary

Turnagain Lane

Missing signs for yellow
line restrictions as TLRN
means they are isolated
from CPZ, or upgrade to
‘at any time’

Resolved - installation
of missing CPZ sign
on Blackfriars Bridge
arranged

Worship Street

Revoke redundant order

Resolved - bus stop

for bus stop clearway

clearways no longer
require TMOs, there
no revocation is
necessary

Table 2: Traffic Orders in Category iii - Those that can be reviewed / actioned
as part of other projects

Street Name

Potential TMO Issue

Project/Programme

Aldersgate Street

Review loading south of Beech

Street and add at any time
restrictions if necessary

Barbican, Bunhill and
Golden Lane Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan

Beech Street

Review whether at any time
loading restrictions needed

Barbican, Bunhill and
Golden Lane Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan

Fann Street

Extend length of closure

Barbican, Bunhill and
Golden Lane Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan

Moorgate (Southern
section)

Change loading hours 7am-
1pm or 1pm-7pm to peak
periods

Bank and Guildhall
Healthy Streets Plan.

Leadenhall Street

Review loading at junction as
potential to cause obstruction

City Cluster Programme

Monument Street

Extend length of closure

Fenchurch Street Healthy
Streets Plan

waiting and loading restrictions

needed

St Mary At Hill Extend length of closure Fenchurch Street Healthy
Streets Plan

Harp Lane Extend length of closure Fenchurch Street Healthy
Streets Plan

Bear Alley Review whether at any time Fleet Street Area Healthy

Streets Plan

Page 354




Blackfriars Court

Review whether at any time
loading restrictions needed

Fleet Street Area Healthy
Streets Plan

Holborn Viaduct

Extend loading restrictions
where it would be unsafe to
stop

Fleet Street Area Healthy
Streets Plan

Ludgate Hill Police checkpoints create pinch | Fleet Street Area Healthy
point for cyclists. Consider Streets Plan
removing

Ludgate Hill Upgrade loading restrictions at | Fleet Street Area Healthy
junction with Creed Lane, to ‘at | Streets Plan
any time’ to reduce potential for
obstruction of sight lines and
cycle lane

Ludgate Hill Upgrade loading restrictions Fleet Street Area Healthy

throughout at junctions to ‘at
any time’ to reduce potential for
obstruction

Streets Plan

New Fetter Lane

Upgrade loading restrictions at
throughout to ‘at any time’ to
reduce potential for dangerous
passing of loading HGVs,
particularly at slight ben

Fleet Street Area Healthy
Streets Plan

Pageantmaster Introduce loading ban at Healthy Streets Minor
Court junction. Install repeater signs | Schemes
for single yellow lines
Fleet Street Increase loading restrictions to | Fleet Street Area Healthy
‘at any time’ to reduce potential | Streets Plan
for obstruction
Fleet Street Consider right turn ban from Fleet Street Area Healthy

Whitefriars to reduce risk of
collisions with cyclists

Streets Plan

Temple Avenue

Consider ‘at any time’ no
waiting and no loading on east
side and at junction with Tudor
Street.

Fleet Street Area Healthy
Streets Plan

Queen Victoria
Street

Introduce loading ban at
junctions

Cycleways

Breams Buildings

Extend length of closure

Fleet Street Area Healthy
Streets Plan

Blackfriars Lane

Extend length of closure

Fleet Street Area Healthy
Streets Plan

St Andrew's Hill

Extend length of closure

Fleet Street Area Healthy
Streets Plan

Coleman Street

Extend length of closure

Bank & Guildhall Healthy
Streets Plan

Gresham Street

Upgrade loading restrictions at
junction with St Martin’s Le
Grand to ‘at any time’ to reduce
potential for obstruction

King Edward Square
project

Page 355




Moor Lane

Extend operational hours of
timed closure to reduce traffic.

Barbican, Bunhill and
Golden Lane Healthy
Neighbourhood Plan

Great Winchester
Street

Extend one way to cover whole
street

75 London Wall
Development (Winchester
House)

Grand Avenue

Amend no vehicles restriction
to allow cyclists outside of
market hours

West Smithfield public
realm and future market
redevelopment project

7.5T Weight limit,
Various Zones

Review zone boundaries to
ensure they are appropriate,
and camera enforceable if
required

Project underway to
review CCTV
enforcement

Table 3: Traffic Orders in Category iv - Other Traffic Orders that may be

beneficial
Street Name Recommendation / Status
Opportunities
High Holborn Extend bus lane from 7am-7pm In progress
Mon-Sat to AAT and consider
allowing non blue light emergency
service use
Holborn Viaduct Extend bus lane from 7am-7pm In progress
Mon-Sat to AAT and consider
allowing non blue light emergency
service use
St Paul's Extend bus lane from 7am-7pm In progress
Churchyard Mon-Sat to AAT and consider
allowing non blue light emergency
service use
Blackfriars Review whether at any time Resolved — no further
Passage loading restrictions needed action required as no

issues arising, and this is
a very minor street, used
for local access

Devonshire Row

Explore if one way requires CCTV
signage and enforcement

Resolved — no issues
identified as part of the
review of the pedestrian
zone

Devonshire Row

Review whether at any time
loading restrictions needed

Resolved — no further
action required as data
from the review of
pedestrian zones
indicates a high level of

compliance

Page 356




Middlesex Street

Extend length of closure

Resolved — no further
action. Only the eastern
footway is within the City
and the current TMO
relates to the Aldgate
project, and with the
agreement of Tower
Hamlets

Warwick Lane

Install inset loading bays, or
upgrade loading to ‘at any time’.

Resolved — no further
action. Most of the street
is covered by ‘at any
time’ no loading, and the
remainder is wide
enough to accommodate
loading activities without
impacting on traffic flow

Long Lane

Consider extending loading
restrictions to ‘at any time’ to
minimise danger to cyclists using
cycle lane.

Resolved — no further
action as there is
insufficient width to
accommodate a
mandatory cycle lane
throughout. Investigate
whether this can be
Incorporated into West
Smithfield project

Eastcheap

Scope for additional kerbside
parking (consider Dockless bays)

In progress. Potential e-
scooter/dockless parking
is being investigated,
and this will be within the
Fenchurch Street Area
Healthy Streets Plan

Eastcheap

No loading restrictions, so
potential for obstructive loading

In progress. This will be
investigated as part of
the Fenchurch Street
Area Healthy Streets
Plan

Fenchurch Street

Inconsistent loading restrictions
and unclear signage for restricted
sections, and worn-out blips

In progress. This will be
investigated as part of
the Fenchurch Street
Area Healthy Streets
Plan

Liverpool Street

Consider restricting loading at the
junction with Bishopsgate to
ensure vehicles and cycles can
manoeuvre safely.

In progress

Gresham Street

Change loading hours 7am-1pm or
1pm-7pm to peak periods

In progress

Lothbury

Change loading hours 7am-1pm or
1pm-7pm to peak periods

In progress

Page 357




Philpot Lane Install repeater signs with CPZ In progress. This will be
hours. Consider loading investigated as part of
restrictions on west side the Fenchurch Street

Area Healthy Streets
Plan
Ludgate Hill Upgrade loading restrictions at Resolved — to be

junction with TLRN to ‘at any time
to reduce potential for obstruction

considered as part of
Vision Zero

Godliman Street

Extend length of closure

Resolved — no further
action. This street has
limited active frontagers
and it is not well used by
people walking or
wanting to dwell

Martin Lane

Extend length of closure

Resolved — no further
action. This street has
one active frontage
which benefits from the
existing closure, and it is
also not well used by
people walking or
wanting to dwell

Brushfield Street

Extend length of closure

Resolved — no further
action. Extending the
closure would require
removal of the
motorcycle bay, which
would be difficult to find
alternatives for. There is
also an area of
accessible space to the
north, therefore this is
low priority

Dowgate Hill Extend length of closure Resolved — no further
action
White Lion Hill Review whether at any time Resolved — no action

loading restrictions needed

required as there are no
accesses or reasons for
drivers to stop, and there
are no known issues

Page 358




Agenda ltem 11

Committees: Dates:
Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee [for decision] 01 October 2024
. . : _ 21 October 2024
Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee [for information]
Subject: Gateway 6:
Beech Street Transformation and Public Realm Project Outcome Report
Complex

Unique Project Identifier: 10847

Report of: For Decision
Executive Director of Environment

Report Author:
Kristian Turner

PUBLIC

Summary

1. Status Project Description:

update For many years levels of nitrogen dioxide measured in Beech Street

had been exceeding national limits. A zero emissions scheme was
conceived as an interim traffic management measure to improve air
quality by reducing the volume of polluting traffic using Beech Street. At
the time it was envisaged that this would be the first stage of a phased
approach for the transformation of Beech Street.

The Beech Street Zero Emissions scheme was introduced as an
Experimental Traffic Order (ETO) in March 2020 and ran for 18 months
through to September 2021.

RAG Status: GREEN
Risk Status: Low

Total Estimated Cost of Project (excluding risk): ~ Final account =
£2.3M (of a total approved budget of £2,567,213)

2. Next steps Requested Decisions:

and Member’s of the Streets and Walkways Sub Committee are asked to:
requested
decisions e Approve the contents of this report.
e Agree to close the Beech Street Transportation and Public
Realm project
e Note the lessons learned
e Agree to return unused funds to the central CIL fund
3. Key Scheme summary

conclusions | geach Street is a unique street in the City due it's “tunnel” like

infrastructure as a “covered roadway”. The pollution emitted by vehicles

Page 359



is less able to disperse into the atmosphere due to the enclosed space
and lack of ventilation points. As a result, pollutants such as nitrogen
dioxide become more concentrated on Beech Street, making it one of
the worst polluted streets in the City.

In 2019/20 traffic volumes on Beech Street were approximately 10k
vehicles per day but would record elevated levels of nitrogen dioxide
similar to levels recorded at Walbrook Wharf where up to 40k vehicles
would be on Upper Thames Street.

Beech Street is also a key route for people walking between the
Moorgate and Barbican areas, as an access route for residents to their
properties and is well used by cyclists. All of these road users, in
addition to drivers were exposed to the elevated levels of NO:zin Beech
Street, which in 2019 exceeded 60um? compared to the recommended
national limits of 40 um3,

As a result of these issues which many residents raised as a concern
with the City, in 2018/19 Members requested that Officers investigate
measures to urgently address the poor air quality in Beech Street.
Initial analysis work (including air quality modelling) showed that the
removal of some or the majority of traffic in Beech Street would lead to
a reduction in levels of NO2.

Options for reducing traffic included restricting westbound traffic,
reducing eastbound traffic or in both directions. The air quality benefits
of restricting traffic in both directions was estimated to be the most likely
to lead to a reduction in NO2 to acceptable levels (i.e. under 40 um?3).

In December 2019, Members approved a traffic experiment on Beech
Street. The experiment restricted “through” traffic using Beech Street to
vehicles that met Transport for London’s criteria for zero-emission
vehicles (meaning the 153 bus and electric vehicles were exempt) but
allowed access to the car parks and forecourts on Beech Street to any
vehicle type.

The experiment commenced on the 18 March 2020 and concluded on
18 September 2021 where it was decided to not retain the traffic order
and revert to its previous operation.

The duration of the experiment coincided with national restrictions due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, making the impacts of the experiment on
traffic and air quality difficult to quantify. At the conclusion of the
experiment, the scheme was reported as a qualified success in that air
quality on Beech Street was significantly improved, but that this could
not be wholly disaggregated from the overall improvement to air quality
across London due to the changes in behaviour over the pandemic. The
reduction in nitrogen dioxide levels was greater on Beech Street than
other locations in Central London, and this difference was estimated to
be due to the zero-emission scheme operation.

Public views during the experiment were polarised, with levels of
support and opposition to the scheme evenly split. The impacts of the
restriction resulted in some disbenefits to some residents and road
users, whereas others enjoyed the improved environment within Beech

Page 360




Street. Challenges regarding access for deliveries and visitors was a
consistent theme in the hundreds of enquiries received. Another
consistent topic of feedback was street signing for the scheme which
was not understood by a number of drivers but was legally compliant
and necessary to be able to enforce compliance with the restriction.

During the experiment, feedback on difficulties experienced by residents
with regards access for visitors, deliveries and taxis informed the City’s
decision making to amend the central reservations in Beech Street so
that the car parks and forecourts on the south side could be accessed
from the eastbound carriageway. This, along with changes made to
satnav basemaps appeared to help mitigate the problems.

Following the conclusion of the experiment, the public were consulted in
January 2023 on whether a permanent zero emission scheme should
be reintroduced. This would have been similar to the experiment but
amended to still allow traffic to use Golden Lane and turn left onto
Beech Street as it was not possible at the time to gain the support of
Islington to close the southern end of Golden Lane. Ward Members and
S&W’s Members were briefed that the public were evenly split on the
issue. It was agreed by Streets and Walkways in July 2023 that the
zero-emission scheme would not be reintroduced, and that the area
wide Healthy Streets approach would be progressed which would in all
likelihood seek to address the issues remaining on Beech Street.

When public engagement was undertaken on the Healthy Streets Plan
for the wider area, Beech Street was by far the most commented upon
street in the area, so whilst air quality on Beech Street is now within
national limits, it remains a street requiring improvement according to
the public feedback.

Key conclusions

Broadly, it can be concluded that traffic restrictions are a viable
mechanism for improving air quality in enclosed environments such as
Beech Street. However, there are a significant number of external
variables that contribute to background air quality that also need to be
considered and factored into monitoring. The focus of this project was
on a single issue to essentially improve something that people couldn’t
physically see. Combined with the benefits and disbenefits that people
experienced led the public to be divided on whether the restriction
should be made permanent at the end of the experiment.

Page 361




Main Report

Design & Delivery Review

4. Design into
delivery

The experimental traffic order and highway design for the Beech Street
Zero Emission scheme was delivered at pace and was the first scheme
of this type in the UK.

The design of the scheme focussed on reducing traffic whilst minimising
the overall impacts on local traffic as far as practical within the
constraints of the existing street network.

The experiment restricted “through” traffic using Beech Street to
vehicles that met Transport for London’s criteria for zero-emission
vehicles (meaning the 153 bus and electric vehicles were exempt) but
allowed access to the car parks and forecourts on Beech Street to any
vehicle type.

The junctions of Bridgewater Street and Golden Lane with Beech Street
were closed to through traffic except cycles. This led to a significant
traffic reduction in this area and complaints from the residential areas
north of Beech Street about resident/delivery access were negligible.

A strategic traffic modelling exercise was undertaken with Transport for
London using the TfL ONE Model to estimate the alternative routes that
traffic would take. The modelling work identified that traffic from Beech
Street would reassign to London Wall or Old Street, Moorgate and
Aldersgate Street.

We were able to negotiate with TfL that for the purposes of the traffic
experiment, a full traffic model following the TfL Model Audit Process
would not be required. TfL granted Traffic Management Act approval for
the experiment based on the strategic traffic modelling that was done.

As part of the modelling process, we identified that Golden Lane traffic
would reassign to Fortune Street and Whitecross Street. Both streets
are in Islington and are residential/commercial in nature. To mitigate
this reassignment, the City funded an ANPR camera for Islington to
restrict traffic for access only on Fortune Street.

To ensure compliance with the scheme, regulatory signing and
advanced warning signs were installed. In the design of the signing, we
were restricted to using prescribed signing as set out in the Traffic
Signs Regulations. As the first Zero emission street, there was no
specific signing already authorised by DfT that matched the
circumstances of Beech Street. Therefore, a sign for “no motorised
vehicles” combined with a supplementary plate “Except for zero
emission vehicles and for access to off-street premises” was used. This
was the best combination of signing that could be arrived at that
explained to motorists under what circumstances they could drive into
Beech Street. The signing combination required additional authorisation
from Department for Transport, which was granted.

The scheme also used an innovative form of enforcement using ANPR
cameras at each end of the tunnel with fixed timings to ascertain non-

Page 362




compliant vehicles using Beech Street as a through route vs those
accessing properties legally. Early in the experiment we re-calibrated
the timings between the entry and exit points to ensure no errors were
made in detecting compliant vehicle movements.

Overall, a good level of compliance with the restriction was observed,
albeit with much less traffic on the network due to the pandemic.
Successful challenges against Penalty Charge Notices were less than
comparable traffic management schemes, indicating that the design
approach was robust.

Six months of public consultation ran in parallel with the first six months
of the experiment via an online portal which ~120 people responded to.
Hundreds of enquiries from residents and the wider public were
received and responded to and regular liaison meetings held with the
Barbican Association. Through this engagement, minor modifications to
the design of the experiment were approved to ease access issues for
residents and deliveries. By the half-way point of the experiment, “gaps”
in the Beech Street central reservation were created to allow right hand
turns to be made from the eastbound carriageway into the Defoe House
| Shakespeare Tower car park and Lauderdale Place (forecourt). This
change was generally well received and was complimented with the
work we did with Google in accurately mapping the restriction.

Statutory challenge and Judicial Review

During the course of the experiment, the traffic order was subject to a
Statutory Challenge in the High Court. The judgement, which was
handed down in December 2020 found that on the majority of the
grounds, the City was found to have acted in accordance with the
correct statutory procedures and the ETO was found to be valid and
could continue. On two procedural grounds the Court ruled against the
City. These two issues were the documentation not being available to
view at Guildhall during the first period of lockdown, and the content of
the ‘statement of reasons’ attached to the traffic order not being
sufficient.

The Judicial Review challenging the February 2021 S&W'’s sub-
committee decision to continue with the ETO was heard in June 2021
and the final judgement in August 2021 found in the City Corporation’s
favour.

The implication of the court decision on the statutory challenge to the
traffic order was that the experiment could not automatically be made
into a permanent measure if the decision was to keep the restrictions.
Instead the regular process for making a permanent traffic order would
need to be followed. This would include further consultation.

5. Options

The zero-emission scheme was intended as an “interim” scheme with

Page 363




appraisal

the immediate objective of improving air quality. The objectives of the
experiment were set out to:

e improve air quality to acceptable limits

e modernise the public realm by creation of a safer, cleaner, more
comfortable and vibrant street that facilitates the delivery of
Culture Mile

e contribute to the successful outcomes of the exhibition halls
refurbishment project

In September 2018 three options were approved for further
development

Option 1 - An eastbound closure of Beech Street to vehicles;
Option 2 - A westbound closure of Beech Street to vehicles;

Option 3 - A total closure of Beech Street in both directions (i.e.
pedestrianisation except for vehicular access to the Barbican Car
Park, residential car parks and servicing).

In July 2019 Members decided to proceed with a zero-emission scheme
in both directions to reduce the volume of traffic in Beech Street. The
two-way restriction was estimated to be the option that would maximise
the air quality benefits. The preferred design iteration was a restriction
at each end of the “tunnel” over a point restriction in the middle of the
“tunnel”.

The experiment concluded in September 2021, the restrictions were
removed and the results of the experiment were reported for Member
consideration in December 2021. Following that, further work with
Islington Council regarding a permanent scheme for Beech Street was
undertaken. In November 2022, a report to Members on an option to
consult the public on a permanent design for Beech Street was
considered. This was a variation on the previous experiment with
Golden Lane remaining open to southbound traffic as Islington did not
support traffic restrictions on Fortune Street due to access issues into
the Bunhill area.

In July 2023, Ward Members and Members of Streets and Walkways
were briefed on the public consultation results and a summary of the
benefits and disbenefits of the proposed permanent scheme. With the
public evenly split, and City respondents marginally unsupportive, the
decision was taken to not proceed with the permanent scheme for
Beech Street but instead progress an area wide Healthy Streets Plan.

6. Procurement
route

e The construction package was prepared inhouse by the Highway
Engineer and work on site undertaken by the City’s term
contractor.

e Specialist traffic camera work was undertaken by the City’s term
contractor Siemens (latterly Yunex)

e A variety of other consultants undertook tasks relating to traffic

Page 364




modelling, road safety, equalities analysis, air quality analysis
and modelling, noise modelling and traffic surveys. These were
all procured using standard procurement methods.

7. Skills base

The pace of delivery requested to implement the experiment proved a
resource and technical challenge for Officers as no project of this type
had been delivered before in the City or across the country.

e Specialist consultants were commissioned to analyse and model
air quality

e The Transport and Air Quality teams in the City began to work
more closely together than ever before, which has been
beneficial and has continued.

e Other specialist consultants were brought in for bespoke tasks
where either technical knowledge or resource capacity was not
available.

e The Projects team working knowledge on Experimental traffic
orders had previously been limited to the Bank on Safety
scheme. This led to some errors around internal procedures for
reviewing traffic order document. Both the projects team and
legal services team are now more cognisant with the issues
surrounding the experimental traffic order making process.

e The impact of lock downs and remote working meant officers
were not able to easily monitor Beech Street and observe the
behaviour of the vehicles that were on the network, we had to
rely on roving workers and working on-line.

8. Stakeholders

Members and the community

The need to improve the air quality and street environment in Beech
Street was identified in a number of City Strategies including the Air
Quiality Strategy and the Barbican Area Enhancement Strategy. The
desire for corrective measures was a clear aspiration of residents and
Members and this gave the project momentum.

A clear shortcoming in the initial stages of the project was undertaking
the design work without sufficient engagement with resident
representatives. Experimental traffic orders do not require consultation
in advance of the experiment going live. Given the time pressure being
exerted to deliver change in this location, Members were asked to
authorise delivery of the experiment before any meaningful
engagement with residents had taken place. . Whilst strictly speaking
the first six months of an experiment is the Statutory consultation
period, and there is plenty of time for people to consider their
experience of the traffic change, there was disappointment from
Barbican residents to find out about the City’s decision to proceed with
the experiment in the media, rather than from the City themselves.

Officers have learned from this and recognise that earlier engagement
could have reduced some of the issues experienced and would have

Page 365




created a stronger and more collaborative approach with the local
residents.

Following this, a lot of hard work was undertaken by the project team
and local Members to better communicate the project objectives and
workings. Over time a collaborative working relationship developed
between Officers and Barbican Association representatives, working
through emerging issues from the operation of the experiment,
particularly around deliveries, signing and other scheme adjustments.

Traffic authorities

In advance of launching the experiment, close working with both
Islington and Transport for London was required. With TfL, existing
positive working relationships and the work undertaken on the strategic
traffic model plus a desktop traffic reassignment study meant City
officers were able to obtain TfL approval for the experiment without
having to follow the full Model Audit Process. TfL estimated the
volumes of traffic reassigned would not create problems on the
Strategic Road Network on Old Street and London Wall. This is
estimated to have saved 12-18 months of traffic modelling work.

As highlighted in the section above, the street network in the area is
guite complicated due to the nature of the infrastructure, the existing
traffic management measures and the functional purpose of the streets.
We worked closely with Islington as the neighbouring traffic authority as
changes to traffic patterns from Beech Street affected traffic across the
whole area.

Variation Review

9. Assessment e The implementation of the traffic experiment started on time as

of project per the Gateway 3-5 report of December 2019

against key e The experiment lasted for 18 months and was then closed

milestones e The interim scheme did not realise the other project objectives
such as improved public realm and enabling the Exhibition Halls.
As the experiment was discontinued there was no scope to make
meaningful public realm improvements and the Exhibition Hall
programme remains a work in progress as the Podium
waterproofing programme advances and the Barbican renewal
programme is developed.

10. Assessment The project’s scope remained broadly unchangepl, a number of sign_ing
of project and access adjustr_nents were made but these did not affect the main
against scope of the experiment
Scope

11. Risks and Several risks did materialise into issues during the experiment,

issues

including:
e Legal challenges in the form of a statutory challenge to the traffic

Page 366




order process, and an application for Judicial Review

e Some people did not understand the traffic restriction, and this
had an impact on deliveries, visitors and taxi journeys in some
instances

e Monitoring of some of the issues was not practical, i.e. it is not
possible to identify a driver who refuses to drop a passenger in
the tunnel, or use the car park to make a delivery, making it
difficult to discern if these instances were minor or more
significant issues.

e The impact of the pandemic and the national restrictions had a
significant impact on the experiment.

Value Review

12. Budget

Beech Street Transformation and Public Realm project
e Estimated Cost at G3 for full Transformation scheme: £12M-15M
e Estimated cost of Phase 1 Zero Emission scheme: £1.8M

The table below summarises the estimate at the Gateway 5 (Authority
to Start Work) to implement and undertake the experiment, and the final
outturn spend.

Fees £745,735 £638,696

Staff Costs £1,147,208 £1,090,237

Works (incl. £222,119 £203,331

utilities)

Purchases £70,000 £46,400

(ANPR) cameras

Risk allowance £100,000 £0
Total £2,285,062 £1,978,664

* The final accounts for this project are yet to be verified.

13. Assessment
of project
against
SMART
objectives

The experiment delivered on its primary objective of improving air
quality. Air quality in London is constantly improving and since the
experiment concluded air quality in Beech Street now sits just below the
national limits for nitrogen dioxide.

Although NO2 has recently increased in Beech Street whilst London
Wall has been closed, the annual average concentration for 2024 still
looks unlikely to breach the national limit of 40 um3.

14. Key benefits
realised

Ultimately the key benefits of the experiment were only realised for 18
months as the experiment was not continued and the previous traffic
operation resumed.

Page 367




Lessons Learned and Recommendations

15. Positive
reflections

Delivering the experiment at the pace requested by Members proved

challenging but was delivered on time:

e We were able to agree an abridged traffic modelling exercise
with TfL to attain Traffic Management Act consent in a
comparably short timeframe

e We engaged closely with the taxi trade who were broadly
supportive as the objective to improve air quality is
commensurate with the taxi trades own policy, electric taxis were
able to use Beech Street unfettered

e We successfully worked with Islington who consented to the
experiment, we funded an ANPR camera for Fortune Street to
enforce an access restriction so that traffic wouldn’t reassign
from Golden Lane to Whitecross Street

e We got dispensation from Department for Transport for the
statutory signing variation to use the Diag. 619 sign with
supplementary plate wording for zero-emission vehicles

e We successfully defended 6 of 8 grounds on the statutory
challenge to the traffic order making process in the High Court

e We successfully defended the Judicial Review of the decision to
continue with the experiment during the pandemic

e We successfully worked with local stakeholders to make
adjustments to the experiment to mitigate reported access issues

e We were able to innovate to come up with an ANPR camera
system of fixed timings to determine if polluting vehicles had
complied with the traffic order

e The enforcement of the restriction was robust, standing up to
appeals at a rate higher than comparable traffic schemes and
compliance with the restrictions was good

e Ultimately, air quality was improved in Beech Street over and
above the improvement attributable to the lockdowns

¢ Members and officers alike have gained a much greater
understanding of the complexities of traffic restriction schemes

16. Improvement
reflections

Key learning areas of learning for future projects

Lessons were learned across all aspects of the project which has
provided valuable knowledge for the transport team when working on
future complex traffic management projects.

Legal lesson - Traffic orders

The statutory challenge to the traffic order making process
highlighted some shortcomings in the processes followed, particularly
in the detail provided in the statement of reasons document. The
unusual circumstances of the pandemic meant that the Guildhall was
not accessible to the public to view the traffic order documents and
this led to the initial challenge.

Page 368




New processes have been embedded into the ways of working within
the Environment Department and Legal Services around the drafting,
checking and accessibility of statutory traffic order making
documents. This is a direct improvement from the lessons learned on
the Statutory challenge to the experiment in 2020.

Stakeholder engagement

One key area of learning was around engaging more proactively with
local residents and stakeholders if intending to do an experimental or
permanent traffic experiment, see Section 8 above. We now have a
better understanding of the need to engage more proactively with
stakeholders on traffic schemes in the area, over and above that
which is statutorily required.

Working with partners — Islington

The City’s timelines placed some pressure on Islington to undertake
a mitigation scheme on Fortune Street which became politically
challenging for them. This became an issue when considering if the
experiment should be made permanent and the result was Islington
did not agree to the permanent closure of the Golden Lane junction
which likely meant some people no longer supported the overall
scheme. Going forward with the area wide Healthy Neighbourhood
plan we are working iteratively on the future options for Beech
Street/Chiswell Street corridor.

Technical lesson — air quality

Air quality in London is constantly evolving due to a variety of
climatic, policy, societal and vehicle factors. London air quality is
constantly improving, but the variables are so many that measuring
the impacts of a traffic scheme in isolation is challenging. For
example, to cover a wide area we are reliant on a relatively
unsophisticated method of using diffusion tubes to measure monthly
Nitrogen Dioxide levels. The precise siting of these tubes is
dependent on the available street furniture. Results can be skewed if
the tube is in an area where vehicles accelerate. The conclusion is
that air quality should only be measured over long periods to
determine broad trends rather than at a detailed level and that whilst
the methods used help to show patterns over the longer term, it is not
possible to determine and proportion the impact a particular traffic
restriction has had on improving air quality.

Technical lesson — traffic journeys:

The restriction adversely affected some vehicle journeys whilst
others were unaffected, and this depended very much on the origin
and destination of each individual journey. The number of
permutations of routes meant that the impacts of the experiment

Page 369




were challenging to convey to stakeholders and the general public. In
future the intention is to embed better data and provide easier to
understand information to the public so they can better understand
the impact of proposals on their own journeys.

Technical lesson — public understanding of signing

A frequent area of feedback from residents and taxi drivers regarded
understanding of the street signing. Some people did not understand
the signing and as such could not or would not complete a journey,
i.e to drop off a passenger, visit a relative or make a delivery

Whilst the scheme used the most appropriate and legally compliant
signing, it can be difficult to get the signing right when there are
unique street network constraints. This may require more creative
thinking and lobbying of DfT to agree bespoke signing and an
acceptance that this may take longer.

17. Sharing best

Information has been disseminated through and between teams via
project staff briefings.

practice
Externally, lessons learned on the statutory traffic order making
process have been shared with other local authorities via a team
member presentation to Urban Design London Learning.
Appendices
| Appendix 1 | Project coversheet
Contact
Report Author Kristian Turner

Email Address

kristian.turner@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 370



mailto:kristian.turner@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Project Coversheet

[1] Ownership & Status

Unique Project Identifier: 10847

Core Project Name: Beech Street Transport and Public Realm Improvements
Programme Affiliation (if applicable): Beech Street Transformation

Project Manager: Kristian Turner

Definition of need: Public Health.

Key measures of success:

1) Reduction in through traffic along Beech Street
2) Air quality improvements (reduction in NO2)
3) Vast improvement to quality of the public realm

Expected timeframe for the project delivery:
Original timelines:

Gateway 5 — Authority to Start Work — December 2019
Completion — spring 2023

Decision to discontinue the project

Key Milestones:

G345 — December 2019
Experiment start — March 2020
Experiment end — Sept 2021
Public consultation — Oct 2022
Decision report — Jan 2023

Are we on track for completing the project against the expected timeframe for
project delivery? N — The project timelines have slipped and the decision has been
taken to consult with the public on the project. The decision report is now a Gateway
5 Report in July 2023.

Has this project generated public or media impact and response which the
City of London has needed to manage or is managing?
Y — the project has been in the media and has a profile for the Corporation.

[2] Finance and Costed Risk
Headline Financial, Scope and Design Changes:

Since G1/2 report:
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £120,525
e Costed Risk Against the Project: 0

Scope/Design Change and Impact: Additional scope, including extensive traffic
modelling

Since G3 issues report (S&Ws Approval 22/03/19):
o Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): £12M—-£15M

V14 July 2019

Page 371



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk)
Spend to date: £585, 217

Costed Risk Against the Project: 0

CRP Requested: £125,000

CRP Drawn Down: O

Scope/Design Change and Impact: Request to increase project scope to
investigate feasibility of a two-way closure.

‘Options Appraisal and Design and Authority to Start work’ G3-4-5report (as
approved by S&Ws 16/01/2020):

Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): Phase 1 budget £1,745,362

Overall project estimate £12-15m

Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk) £1,160,145

Spend to date: £585,217

Costed Risk Against the Project: £125,000

CRP Drawn Down: None

Estimated Programme Dates: March 2020 — end of 2022 (for Phase 1)

Scope/Design Change and Impact: Authority to proceed with ZES implemented
in March 2020

‘G5 issues report (as approved by S&Ws 21/10/2020):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): Phase 1: £2,345,062 (increase in
project budget of £515k)
Overall Project estimate £12-15m
Resources to reach next Gateway (excluding risk) N/A
Spend to date: £1,425,333
Costed Risk Against the Project: £260,000
CRP Drawn Down: None
Estimated Programme Dates: March 2020 — end of 2022 (for Phase 1)

Scope/Design Change and Impact: Approve increase in budget for staff costs and
an increased CRP provision, note impact of judicial review, approve minor
changes to design to construct gaps in central reservations

‘G5 issues report (as approved by S&Ws 18/02/2021):

Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): Phase 1: £2,345,062

Overall Project estimate £12-15m,

Spend to date: £1,494,855

Costed Risk Against the Project: £260,000

CRP Drawn Down: None

Estimated Programme Dates: March 2020 — end of 2022 (for Phase 1)

Scope/Design Change and Impact: Approve continuation of traffic experiment
(with consideration given to impact of the pandemic)

V14 July 2019

Page 372



This document can only be considered valid when viewed via the CoL Intranet website. If this is printed
into hard copy or saved to another location, you must check that the effective date on your copy matches
that of the one on-line.

G5 issues report (as approved by S&Ws 15/12/2021):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): Phase 1: £2.4M
Overall Project estimate £ 4.8M
Spend to date: £1,806,366
Costed Risk Against the Project: £260,000
CRP Drawn Down: £189k
Estimated Programme Dates: March 2020 — end of 2022 (for Phase 1)

Scope/Design Change and Impact: Approval to move towards public consultation
after conclusion of the experiment

G5 issues report (as approved by S&Ws 15/11/2022):
e Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): Phase 1: £2.4M
Overall Project estimate £ 4.8M
Spend to date: £1,907,951
Costed Risk Against the Project: £260,000
CRP Drawn Down: none since Dec 2021 (£189k)
Estimated Programme Dates: March 2020 — end of 2022 (for Phase 1)

Scope/Design Change and Impact: Approval to move towards public consultation
after conclusion of the experiment and negotiations with Islington

G5 Report (as approved by S&Ws 4/07/2023)

Total Estimated Cost (excluding risk): Phase 1: £2.4M
Overall Project estimate £ 4.8M

Spend to date: £1,951,951

Costed Risk Against the Project: £260,000

CRP Drawn Down: none since Dec 2021 (£189k)
Estimated Programme Dates: G6 in 2024

Scope/Design Change and Impact: SWs decision to close the zero-emission
scheme and instead progress with the wider area Healthy Streets Plan project

Total anticipated on-going commitment post-delivery [£]:0
Programme Affiliation [£]:N/A

V14 July 2019

Page 373



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 374



Agenda ltem

Committees: Dates:

Streets and Walkway Sub-Committee — For Decision 01 October 2024
Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee — For Information 21 October 2024
Subject: Gateway 6:
Queensbridge House Hotel Section 278 Public Realm Outcome Report
Enhancements and Highway Works Light

Unique Project Identifier:

12034

Report of: For Decision

Executive Director of Environment

Report Author:
Leila Ben-Hassel

PUBLIC

Summary

1. Status update

Project Description:

This project aimed to deliver highway changes and public
realm improvements in the vicinity of the new Queensbridge
House Hotel (now Westin) to accommodate and integrate the
hotel operations into the surrounding City of London highway
(Please see location map in appendix 2).

The project programme was coordinated with the hotel's
construction programme. Delays were incurred due to the
development programme slipping by at least a year. It was
further impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic as well as
extensive negotiations with the developer to agree the scope of
highway changes.

The scope of works was finalised and approved with the
developer as part of a S278 agreement in December 2021.
Works started on site in July 2022 and main works were
completed in February 2023. Construction delays are
summarised in section 9.

RAG Status: Green (Amber at last report to Committee)
Risk Status: Low (Low at last report to committee)
Costed Risk Provision Utilised: 0

Page 375




Final Outturn Cost: £504,691

Next steps and
requested
decisions

Requested Decisions:

Note the conclusions of the report

Approve the closure of the project upon completion of
outstanding signage changes and accounts verification.

Key conclusions

Works were completed within the approved project
budget. There is an acknowledgement that the project
programme slipped by over a year and contributing
reasons are summarised in Section 9: Assessment of
project against key milestones.

Once works started on site, the delivery was time
efficient with gangs in both areas on the north side and
south side of Upper Thames St.

Close coordination with the hotel in the phasing of the
works led to minimum disruptions to their operations as
the highway works finished after they opened the hotel.
As the Queensbridge House Hotel development
involved a change of use from office to hotel and
restaurant, the works have enhanced the approach to
both its main and secondary entrances and
accommodate well the increase in visitors and
pedestrian traffic.

Accessibility has been improved through the raising of
the carriageway on High Timber Street, the table on
Little Trinity Lane and the new step-free route from
Queen Victoria Street to the riverside through the hotel.

Design & Delivery Review

Main Report

4. Design into
delivery

The design was developed based on available information and site
constraints. The hotel hoarding layout was such that some areas
could not be surveyed until the entirety of the hoarding was taken
down. This delayed the finalisation of the construction package.

Private land drainage issues impacted the highway works causing
delays on site. The City’s Highways Construction Manager was
able to get works onsite to resume despite the matter not being
resolved between both parties. This issue sits outside of the scope

Page 376




of the S278 works and is still being dealt with by the Highways
Management Team.

The design included a series of bollards carefully placed to
minimise over running of the pavement, particularly along the
section of private land by Stew Lane.

5. Options
appraisal

Initial concept design options did include lighting and greening
enhancements. Due to financial constraints the developer did not
want to include these in the project scope as these were over and
above what was required to mitigate the impact of the
development.

The hotel lighting scheme was assessed by officers and deemed
sufficient alongside existing highways lighting to ensure the area
feels safe at night-time.

The option agreed with the developer was taken to delivery.

It involved levels adjustments, resurfacing both on the north side
and south side of Upper Thames Street and raising of the
carriageway by the main porte-cochere. Officers did not resurface
the entire raised carriageway section in granite in front of the porte-
cochere. With environmental and costs considerations in mind,
officers reused and repaired the existing York stone raised tables
to match the granite. Asphalt was used on the north side in line
with City Highway standard materials.

6. Procurement
route

e The concept design work was procured as a direct award
given the small scale of the project and the developer’s tight
deadlines.

e The technical design was done in-house by our Senior
Highways Project Engineer.

e The necessary surveys were commissioned through the
Highways Team Framework.

e The construction works were delivered by the City Highways
Contractor.

7. Skills base

The team had the relevant skills in house to take the project to
completion.

The project benefitted from having a senior construction manager
on the City’s Project Team with a lot of experience who was able to
manage the phasing of the works effectively, identify issues early
on and act swiftly.

When the private land / highway land drainage issue arose, he was
able to minimise the impact on the project delivery as best as
possible despite the issue not yet being resolved between both
parties. (This issue sits outside of the scope of the S278 works)

Page 377




8. Stakeholders

As this is a residential area, all residents were regularly updated on
the project progress as part of the programme updates (including
Globe View and Little Trinity Lane). Individual letters were
delivered to all flats in the direct vicinity which included detailed
information on the phasing of the works and works/noisy hours.

Variation Review

9. Assessment
of project
against key
milestones

At Gateway 5 the key milestones were as follows:

e Detailed design/Construction Package (Summer/Autumn 2021)
e Main works implementation (January to April 2022)

The detailed design/construction package took longer to finalise
due to lack of access behind the development hoarding to
undertake necessary surveys as well as drainage design issues on
the developer’s side. It was finalised early 2022. This impacted the
start of the works on site, which started in July 2022 and
completed in February 2023, 4 months after the completion of the
hotel works. Coordination with the hotel was undertaken to
minimise disruptions to the hotel activities whilst highways works
were completed on site.

10.Assessment
of project
against Scope

At Gateway 5, the project scope was approved to include the
following improvements subject to final agreement with the
developer:

e Huggin Hill/Huggin Court: wayfinding, lighting and
surfacing (adjusting levels/paving improvements) to enable
the promotion of the new step-free route from Queen
Victoria St to the riverside via the hotel.

e Little Trinity Lane: enhancing the feeling of safety around
‘back of house’ areas of the hotel and the pedestrian bridge,
highway road layout changes (kerb alignment and raising
carriageway) to accommodate safe servicing vehicular
movement, lighting improvements and introduction of
greening where possible.

e High Timber St: adjustments to road layout and levels to
accommodate vehicular movement together with surfacing,
public realm, lighting and greening enhancements to
highlight the new hotel’s porte-cochere. Any additional
greening would contribute to pollution mitigation along
Upper Thames St, one of the most polluted streets in the
City.

e Queenhithe: adjustment to the highway’s layout and levels
together with surfacing improvements to accommodate the
hotel’s operations and enhance a safe pedestrian
environment.

Page 378




¢ Riverside walkway / Stew Lane: adjustments to levels and
paving enhancements to best link up the hotel’'s new
riverside walkway to Globe View internal riverside walkway;
lighting and wayfinding improvements to support the
objective of a continuous Thames path.

Please refer to the location map included in appendix 2.

During negotiations with the developer, officers tried to negotiate
some additional greening enhancements in the area to further
enhance the amenity of the hotel, but these were unsuccessful.

With regards to lighting, it was agreed that the hotel lighting
scheme was sufficient to create a feeling of safety in the vicinity of
both the northern and southern entrance in addition to the existing
highway lighting. No further enhancement of lighting was
undertaken.

Due to changes to the hotel, a new external riverside walkway
including level changes and introducing both steps and a ramp to
Stew Lane was delivered. There was no longer any need for
further works in that area, and the hotel owner did not support
lighting and wayfinding enhancements to join up both sections of
the walkway as the new layout of their section of walkway lined up
with Globe View internal walkway entrance.

All the other highway and public realm enhancements were
delivered, including new paving of Huggin Court, new table at the
junction of Huggin Court and Little Trinity Lane, paving
adjustments on Huggin Hill by the hotel entrance, new surfacing
and kerb adjustments along Trinity Lane to enable safe servicing,
raising up of the carriageway and resurfacing in the City palette of
materials along High Timber Street. City bollards were also
introduced to enhance road safety and minimise overrun on
pedestrian footways.

These improvements assist guests and visitors arriving at the
hotel, and other people walking and wheeling in the area.

11.Risks and
issues

The following risks were identified in the Risk Register at Gateway
5 (see Appendix 4) and some of these risks materialised into
issues during the design finalisation and construction:

e R1-Delayto S278
This risk materialised. There were extensive negotiations with the
developer on the scope, the design as well as the budget. The
project team did its best to fit the cost of the works to meet the
developer’s budget without compromising the design.

Page 379




e R2 - Programme Delay
This risk materialised as an issue. The design development was
impacted due to lack of access behind hoarding for City of London
surveys for months.

e R3-CostIncrease as aresult of unknown utilities and
drainage

This risk materialised as an issue. Drainage surveys were
undertaken at the start of the design development, but this was not
possible behind the hoarding. The highways drainage design was
developed with the developer’s design team. However during
construction it became apparent that the new hotel drainage
system was not fit for purpose and connected to the highways
drainage without consent. This issue is still being resolved
between the City’s Environmental Health and Highways Teams
and the Hotel owner.

This led to works being paused several times and the increased
programme required a renewal of all permits (increased cost of
circ. £8,000). The additional cost was absorbed within the
approved budget underspent.

e R7-Impact of Covid Pandemic on developer’s
programme
This risk did materialise. The construction programme was already
delayed by nearly a year. The pandemic further impacted the hotel
construction programme but they quickly manage to resume works
on site nearly at full capacity and caught up some of the delay.

12.Transition to
BAU

Transition to Business as Usual was on one hand seamless as the
enhanced environment makes it easier for highways and cleansing
departments to maintain the area.

On the other hand, it is worth noting that there are still ongoing
coordination between the City and the hotel owner on drainage
matters that are yet to be resolved. This falls outside of the scope
of the S278 project.

Value Review

13.Budget

Estimated Estimated cost (including risk): N/A
Outturn Cost Estimated cost (excluding risk): £500k-
(G2) £800k

Page 380




At Authority to Final Outturn Cost
Start work (G5)

Fees £41,800 £31,570

Staff Costs £120,272 £143,749

Works £345,728 £329,372

Total £507,800 £504,691

Costed Risk £46,000 £0

Provision*

Project to be closed down upon completion of outstanding signage
changes by the end of the financial year (see details in section 20)
and verification of final accounts.

*The Costed Risk Provision was not paid as part of the main S278 payment —
explanation provided in section 18.

14.Investment

Not Applicable

15.Assessment
of project
against
SMART
objectives

The below SMART objectives were set at Gateway 2:

e Improved legibility to the riverside (measured through pre
and post-implementation pedestrian surveys)

e Improved accessibility (measured through pre and post-
implementation pedestrian surveys and engagement with
disability groups);

e Pollution mitigation (should additional greening be
introduced subiject to site constraints) to be monitored by the
City’s environmental health team pre-and-post
implementation;

e Programme and cost savings through effective coordination
with the developer’s contractors.

The project objectives were finalised at Gateway 5 following
negotiations with the developer. These became more focused
solely on the integration of the hotel development into the existing
highway.

There was no budget for monitoring approved through the S278
negotiation and no other source of funding was identified to carry
out pre and post monitoring.

Officers however regularly visited the site since the works were
completed and observed that footfall has visibly increased along
the new footway of Upper Thames Street, visitors seem to find the
northern entrance well and use the new table.

Servicing operations and movement in and out of the bay seem to
work well with minimum vehicular overrun.

Page 381




16.Key benefits
realised

The project realised the benefits set out at Gateway 2 as below:

Improved pedestrian movement from Mansion House
Station / Queen Victoria St/ Queen St to the riverside;
Improved pedestrian safety along Upper Thames St due
to a clearer designated pedestrian footway

Enhanced pedestrian environment in the vicinity of the
hotel north and south of Upper Thames St;

An increased feeling of safety when walking at night
along High Timber St, Stew Lane and Little Trinity Lane
due to improved lighting and use of high-quality
materials.

Lessons Learned and Recommendations

17.Positive
reflections

Coordination of the works with the hotel construction
manager went well;

Negotiations on the design and scope with developer
were lead well. Despite the developer setting a tight
works budget, officers secured a design that achieved
the most important City aspirations of integrating the
new development well into the existing highway and
creating a more welcoming environment for people
walking and wheeling.

18.Improvement
reflections

City Surveyor’s acting as freeholder were keen for the
S278 works to start on site as early as possible. The
developer did not want to pay for the Costed Risk
Provision up front as part of the main S278 payment,
as is standard. On this occasion, Officers accepted this
condition even though it was not standard, in order not
to further delay the completion of the agreement and
start on site in line with the City’s aspirations as
freeholder. In future, such a condition should not be
accepted. The Costed Risk is an integral part of
efficient and effective project management. Agreeing
to this condition put unnecessary pressure on the
project team and meant that we were not as agile as
we should have been to deal with issues as they
arose.

Both the project manager and construction manager
spent more time on the project than anticipated and
were unable to effectively cover this cost because the
flexibility of the costed risk provision was not
immediately available. It also meant that only the
minimum work on wayfinding could be achieved. In
future, officers will not agree to not receiving CRP as

Page 382




part of the upfront payment from the developer to
deliver the S278 works.

19.Sharing best Lessons learned from this project will be shared across the
practice Transport and Public Realm Projects Team and the Highways
Team through presentations at Team Meetings.
20.A0B Remaining funds will be used for updating existing Legible

London signs.

Further signage improvements to the riverside walkway will
be undertaken strategically through the development of the
Riverside Healthy Streets Plan.

Appendices
Appendix 1 Location Map
Appendix 2 Project Coversheet
Appendix 3 Finance Tables
Appendix 4 Risk Register
Appendix 5 Before and after pictures
Contact
Report Author Leila Ben-Hassel
Email Address Leila.ben-hassel@cityoflondon.gov.uk
Telephone Number 0207 332 1569

Page 383



mailto:Leila.ben-hassel@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Appendix 1 — Location Map

" Globe View walkway B

B

Page 384



Appendix 2 — Project Cover Sheet

Project identifier

[1a] Unique Project 12034 [1b] Departmental NA
Identifier Reference Number
[2] Core Project Name Queensbridge House Hotel S278 Works
[3] Programme Queenhithe and Vintry Public Realm Improvements
Affiliation
Ownership

Jon Averns

[4] Chief Officer has signed
off on this document

[5] Senior Responsible Melanie Charalambous
Officer
[6] Project Manager Leila Ben-Hassel

Description and purpose

[7] Project Mission statement / Elevator pitch

To deliver highway and public realm enhancements to the area affected by Queensbridge House
development. Impact of the development will be mitigated by highways adjustments, incl. levels,
kerb alignments, surface treatments, as well as accessibility, pedestrian safety, lighting and
wayfinding improvements.

[8] Definition of Need: What is the problem we are trying to solve or opportunity we are
trying to realise (i.e. the reasons why we should make a change)?

Queensbridge House Hotel is a large development currently under construction in the
Queenhithe and Vintry wards either side of Upper Thames St (see location plan in appendix 1).
This project offers the opportunity for the developer to contribute to mitigating the impact of the
development on the wider vicinity as well as accommodating safely its operational activities. In
the Queenhithe and Vitry programme area, there are two other live projects: Mansion House
Station Environs and Globe View Walkway. This project presents an opportunity to deliver an
improved urban realm in line with the City’s look and feel aspirations of for the wider area. Garlick
Hill, Huggin Hill, Huggin Court and Little Trinity Lane are key routes from the City to the riverside
and this project offers the opportunity to deliver comfortable walking routes (identified in the City’s
draft Transportation Strategy), incl. a step-free down Huggin Hill via the hotel over Upper Thames
St.

[9] What is the link to the City of London Corporate plan outcomes?

[2] People enjoy good health and wellbeing.
[11] Our spaces are digitally and physically well-connected and responsive.
[12] Our spaces are secure, resilient and well-maintained.

[10] What is the link to the departmental business plan objectives?

[1] Advancing a flexible infrastructure that adapts to increasing capacity and changing demands.
[5] Creating an accessible city which is stimulating, safe and easy to move around
in

[8] Improving quality of life for workers, residents and visitors.

[11] Note all which apply:

Officer: Y Member: N Corporate: Project N
Project developed from Project developed from developed as a large

Officer initiation Member initiation scale Corporate initiative
Mandatory: Y Sustainability: N Improvement: Y

Page 385



Compliance with Essential for business New opportunity/ idea
legislation, policy and continuity that leads to
audit improvement

Project Benchmarking:

[12] What are the top 3 measures of success which will indicate that the project has
achieved its aims?

1) A new step-free pedestrian link will be created, which is expected to enable improved
pedestrian movement in the City.

2) Improved lighting and high-quality materials are expected to increase public perception of
safety when using the new step free route.

3) The surrounding highways work is completed within 6 months upon occupation of the
development.

[13] Will this project have any measurable legacy benefits/outcome that we will need to track
after the end of the ‘delivery’ phase? If so, what are they and how will you track them? (E.g.
cost savings, quality etc.)

N/A

[14] What is the expected delivery cost of this project (range values)[£]?

£450,000

[15] Total anticipated on-going revenue commitment post-delivery (lifecycle costs)[£]:

Revenue regarding maintenance implications for highways have been assessed and are of
minimum impact as all areas will be replaced with new paving thereby reducing the maintenance
requirements.

A minor section of carriageway on the south side is to be changed to granite setts which will have
minimum impact on the maintenance budget.

This has been assessed in conjunction with the City’s Highways Manager.

[16] What are the expected sources of funding for this project?

The project will be fully funded by a S.278 agreement with the owner of Queensbridge House
Hotel, currently in its finalisation stage.

[17] What is the expected delivery timeframe for this project (range values)?
Are there any deadlines which must be met (e.g. statutory obligations)?

Overall project: Jan. 2019 to March 2022

Other works dates to coordinate: The implementation timescales are dependent on the
development’s programme. Close coordination with the development’s main contractor will enable
mitigating programme risks. A construction programme will be coordinated and agreed with
developer once the main contractor is formally appointed.

Project Impact:

[18] Will this project generate public or media impact and response which the City of
London will need to manage? Will this be a high-profile activity with public and media
momentum?

The project will not be a high-profile activity, it is not expected to generate public or media impact.
However it should be noted that ward members of Queenhithe are scrutinising works closely on
behalf of residents they represent as the delivery plans for the riverside walkway have been
delayed for years due to legal dispute over air rights as well as delays to the development. Close
communication, consultation and engagement of residents and ward members will be key areas of
the project process.

[19] Who has been actively consulted to develop this project to this stage?

Chamberlains: Officer Name: Olu Obisesan / Darshika Patel
Finance

Page 386




Chamberlains:

Officer Name: not applicable

Procurement

IT Officer Name: not applicable
HR Officer Name: not applicable
Legal Laura Goddard

Communications

Officer Name: Not applicable

Corporate Property

Officer Name: Not applicable

Highways

Christian O’Keefe and Paul Jones

External

Owner of Queensbridge House Hotel

Page 387




Appendix 3 - Finance Tables and Budget Adjustment

Table 1: Expenditure to Date

Description BA::;:;I((?) Expenditure (£) Balance (£)

16800407: Queensbridge House Hotel S278

Env Servs Staff Costs 14,217 14,216 1

P&T Staff Costs 27,500 27,500 -

P&T Fees 7,261 5,050 2,211
Total 16800407 48,978 46,766 2,212

16100407: Queensbridge House Hotel S278

Env Servs Staff Costs 63,583 63,583 -

P&T Staff Costs 38,450 38,450 -

P&T Fees 26,539 26,520 19

Env Servs Works 325,728 325,000 728

Utilities 4,522 4,372 151
Total 16100407 458,822 457,925 898
GRAND TOTAL 507,800 504,691 3,109*

*Underspend to be moved to works to fund updates to Legible London signs —
please see section 20 for further information.

Appendix 4 — Risk Register
Appended separately.

Page 388



Appendix 5 - before and after pictures

¥ Gl
R TRE |

Before (South Side)  After (South Side)

Page 389



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 390



City of London: Projects Procedure Corporate Risks Register

Project Name:

Unique project identifier:

General risk classification
Risk Gateway Category
D

Queensbridge House

Description of the Risk

Risk Impact Description

Likelihood

od  Impact Risk
Classificatio Classificatio score

PM's overall

risk rating:

Total estimated cost
(exc risk):

Costed impact pre-
£;

Low

Costed Risk

Confidence in the

CRP requested
this gateway
Total CRP used to|
date

Mitigation actions
Mitigating actions

Mitigation L
cost(£) I

ikelihood Impact
il

Average
unmitigated risk

Average mitigated
k score

Costed Post
Mitiy

t- CRPused Use of CRP

Ownership & Action

ate
raised

Named
Departmental

Open Risks

Closed Risks

Risk owner

Date

Comment(s)

T6E abed

mitigation (£) Provision requested  estimation assificat Classificat impact post- ga fo date (Named Closed
n pre- n pre- Y/N ion post- ion post-  mitigation (£) Risk Officer or OR/
mitigation  mitigation mitigation mitigation Manager/  External Realised &
Coordinator  Party) moved to
lecuac
extensive negotiations on Keepinreguiar contact
{4 Contractudl/part the scope of fhe 5278 ¥ - for costed impact with the owner's legal
Rl |s vt 5278 delay agreement willlead fo Possible Serious 6 800000 0o o |8~ Fairy Confident team and Col legal feam £000[Possible  [serious £8,00000( 6 £0.00] 10/09/21  [DBE Leila Ben-Hossel
increase stalf fime and 9 o minimise delay 10 5278
resourcing agreement
Site access is beyon officers]
Development access may control - close coordination
R |6 10) Physical Programme delay impact the abilly fo finalise o, gpie Serious 6 s1400000 Y-fercostedimpact g _eony configent [with Developmers moin 2000|Possible  [serious £1400000| 6 00| 10/09/21 |oBE Leila Ben-Hossel
the design of $278 highways post-mitigation contractorre site access
works and operations on private
land
Due to restricted site
access usual utiity surveys
culd not be caried out -
Costsincrease as aresult of - tor costedt mpact onre ;eoeg:;:nv;if’::, e
R |6 (2) Financiol Costincrerase rknown s on Possible Serious 6 £1600000 17 O o |8~ iy Conicent et £000[Possible  [serious £1600000( 6 £0.00] 10/09/21  [DBE Leila Ben-Hossel
o being received. Design
would be adjusted to
minimise possible utiity
related cost increase
site is known for pofential
archaeclogy finds - if his
occurs, officers would need drainage and levels design
Re |5 (9) Environmental 'D:‘U"ré‘hgg‘:‘g““ increase due |y ; opoint a consultant fo | Possible Serious 6 2800000 ' "’Q’;:":du‘:"’;“c’ A~ Very Confident 1o minimise needs to £0.00[Possible  |serious £8,00000[ 6 £0.00 10/09/21  |DBE Leila Ben-Hassel
o undertake awatching brief P o excavate at depth
and the works would beed
to be paused
Asignificant delay o the ol Term Contractor s
Rs |5 (10) Physical Delays fo the Procurement of |receipf of materials wil Possible Serious 6 £0.00) managing this isk closely £0.00) £0.00) £0.00) 09/02/21 DBE Leila Ben-Hassel
materials due 10 Brexit impact the programme for by ensuring sufficient stock
implementafion is sourced in advance,
All noisy works fimes will be
agreed with Environmental
ois Works couid generote Cemmonicored wih ol
/7|6 (5) H8S/Wellbeing  |Noisy Works m local Likely Minor 4 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00] 09/02/21 |DBE
piy occupiers. Flexibility is also
ouilt in fo allow for these
times 1o be allered
accordingly
The City have develpoed of
Covid-19 response. The
?:glgrﬁxdm';";: Highway Authority and
R8 |6 (5) HaS/Wellbeing  |Impact of Covid-19 on works [impacted by measures that | Possible Serious 6 £0.00) LS’V'E;T&CV": T;Vé £0.00| £0.00) £0.00) 09/02/21 DBE Leila Ben-Hassel
may reduce activity and epones tho s complont
exiend the programme that will enable works to go
ahead safely.
ol Term Contractor s
. 15 costs of
Ry |6 (2) Financial Brexit Brexit Possible Serious 6 £0.00) managing this isk closely £0.00| £0.00) £0.00) 09/02/21 DBE Leila Ben-Hassel
costs materiols by ensuring stock is sourced
at best price posiole.
Closely coordinate with
The City hos a legal Highways Management
o s (4) Contractual/Part | Col breach of 5278 requirement fo complete [, Serious a 000 and Main contractor fo £000) 2000) 2000)
nersnip 6 months of the ensure project is prorities
hotel opening within he confractor's work
RIT £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
RI12 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RI3 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
Ri4 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RIS £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
RI6 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RI7 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
RIS £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R19 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
20 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R21 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
22 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
23 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
R24 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
25 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
R26 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R27 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
28 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
29 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
30 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R31 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
32 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
33 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
R34 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
35 £0.00) 000} 000} 000}
R36 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]




Z6E abe

R37 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R38 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R39 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R40 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R4l £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R42 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R43 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R4 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R4S £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R46 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R47 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R48 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R49 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RS0 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RS £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RS2 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R53 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RS54 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RSS £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RS6 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RS7 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RS8 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RS9 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R60 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
Ré1 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R62 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R63 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R4 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
RS £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R66 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R67 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
Ré8 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R70 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R71 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R72 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R73 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R74 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R75 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R76 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R77 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R78 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R79 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R80 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R81 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
82 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
Re3 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R84 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R85 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R84 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
Re7 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R8s £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
Re9 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R90 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R91 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R92 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R93 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R94 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R95 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R96 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R97 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R98 £0.00) £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]
R99 £0.00| £0.00] £0.00] £0.00]

[r10 £000] £000[ £000[ £000[




Agenda Iltem 13

Committee(s): Dated:
Streets and Walkway’s Sub Committee 01/10/2024
Subject: Policy and Projects Delegated decisions April to | Public
August 2024

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate | N/A

Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N

capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A

What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A
Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: Executive Director Environment For Information
Report author: Gillian Howard, Policy and Projects, City

Operations

Summary

This report sets out a summary of the decisions that have been undertaken relating
to Transport and Public Realm projects between 1 April and 31 July 2024 under
either existing or agreed delegated powers by responsible Officers within the

Environment Department

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to:
e Note the report.

Main Report

Background

1. For your information, this report lists decisions that have been determined by the
Executive Director Environment and the Director of City Operations, or those so
authorised under their delegated powers, between 01 April and 31 July 2024.

Page 393



Project name

Project description

Gateway

Decision and
date of decision

City Cluster
Programme:
Fenchurch Street
Highway and
Public Realm
Feasibility Study

Fenchurch Street sits
within the City Cluster
Area programme. This
approval is for a
feasibility study to
establish the
requirements for this
street in terms of its
future function(s). This
will set out, amongst
other things, the
anticipated carriageway
and pavement widths
and alignments to
support movement, and
the increased number of
people expected to use
this area following the
completion of several
large developments.

G1/2/3/4/5
(light)

Approved
17/04/24

Little Trinity lane

Sought approval to
deliver public realm
enhancements and
climate resilience
measures (such as
SUDs and tree planting)
along Little Trinity Lane
to create a more
welcoming and
comfortable
environment for
workers, residents and
visitors.

G5 -
(regular)
approval to
start work

Approved
23/07/24

101 Moorgate
S278

Authority to implement
the S278 works and the
new pedestrian crossing
across Moorgate.
Includes wider footway,
waiting and loading
changes; a new loading
bay, relocation of two
disabled bays and
removal of pay and
display parking bay.

G5 (light)
Approval to
start work

Approved
07/08/24

Page 394




Gillian Howard
Head of Transport and Public Realm Projects, Environment Department

T: 020 7332 3139]
E: Gillian.howard@ Cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 395


mailto:Gillian.howard@Cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 396



Date Action Officer To be Notes/Progress to date
responsible completed/
progressed to
next stage
13 September Old Jewry Traffic Experiment Executive Experimental The experimental traffic order came into effect on
2024 Director, order will the 5 July 2024.
Environment | €Xpirein _ o
January 2026 Public consultation is open and has had over 100
responses to date. One formal objection to the
Decision as to traffic order has been received from the London
whether to Cycling Campaign.
keep the traffic
changes will The first monitoring count was undertaken in
need to be September, we are awaiting the results.

made before
then

/6S abed

13 September
2024

Monument/London Bridge

Executive
Director,
Environment

TfL to provide
timetable for
delivery of
parapet works.

Bus stop
relocation: TfL
to identify why
the guard
railing is in
place and
whether this
can be
replaced with
bollards.

Site visit with the Chairmen took place on 4
September 2024

Parapet works: Funding will be available next
financial year for delivery.

Bus stop relocation: There is not a quick fix
solution, but TfL will explore the feasibility of
making a change.

T Wal| epusaby



13 September
2024

Sporting Events on the Highway

Executive
Director,
Environment

Annual Special Events Report to be prepared for
January Streets & Walkways Sub Committee

13 September
2024

Executive
Director,
Environment

Progress
towards an
Experimental
traffic order to
allow taxi
access across
Bank Junction

Verbal update to be provided at the meeting

Next report is due at the November committee
which will detail the route options and outline the
likely success criteria and monitoring themes.

86¢ abed




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Bunhill, Barbican and Golden Lane Healthy Neighbourhoods Plan
	Appendix 1 Project Coversheet (1)
	Appendix 2 Funding Tables (1)
	Appendix 3 BBGL HNP (map) (1)
	Appendix 4 BBGL HNP (text) (1)
	Appendix 5 BBGL Equalities Test of Relevance (1)

	6 City Cycleways Programme
	Appendix 1_Aldgate to Blackfriars Project Coversheet
	Appendix 2 Finance Tables_Aldgate to Blackfriars
	Appendix 3_Risk Register Aldgate to Blackfriars
	Appendix 4_Cycleway Overview Plan
	Appendix 5_AB_Cycleway Option 1
	Sheets and Views
	AB Cycleway Option 1 WOTB-001
	AB Cycleway Option 1 WOTB-002
	AB Cycleway Option 1 WOTB-003
	AB Cycleway Option 1 WOTB-004
	AB Cycleway Option 1 WOTB-005
	AB Cycleway Option 1 WOTB-006
	AB Cycleway Option 1 WOTB-007
	AB Cycleway Option 1 WOTB-008


	Appendix 6_AB_Cycleway Option 2
	Sheets and Views
	AB Option 2-Opt2_1
	AB Option 2-Opt2_2


	Appendix 7_AB Cycleway Option 3
	Sheets and Views
	AB Option 3-Opt3_1
	AB Option 3-Opt3_2


	Appendix 8 Healthy Street Assessment
	Appendix 9 CoLSAT Summary
	Appendix 10_EQIA Aldgate to Blackfriars

	7 1 Broadgate S278 G5
	Appendix 1_1 Broadgate Coversheet (1)
	Appendix 2 - 1 Broadgate General Arrangment 001 (1)
	Sheets and Views
	001
	OLE1



	Appendix 2  1 Broadgate General Arrnagement 002 (1)
	Sheets and Views
	002
	OLE1



	Appendix 3  Land swap areas (1)
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Appendix 4 - 1 Broadgate s278 Risk Register (1)
	Appendix 5 Financial information 1 Broadgate S278 (1)
	Appendix 6 1 Broadgate Healthy Streets average scorecard (1)
	Appeneix 7 1 Broadgate s278 - Test of Relevance (1)

	8 Vision Zero Programme
	Appendix 1 - Project Briefing (1)
	Appendix 2 - Risk Register (1)
	Appendix 3 - project locations (1)
	Slide 1

	Appendix 4 - Programme (1)

	9 Combined Section 278 Project Initiation Report
	Project Briefing_Friary Court
	Project Briefing_61 65 Holborn Viaduct
	Project Briefing_Middlesex Street Estate
	Project Briefing_10 KWS
	Project Briefing_122 Minories

	10 Traffic Order Review - Outcome of detailed reviews and update
	Appendix 1 Review of Pedestrian Spaces_Feasibility Study_Report_Redacted (1)
	Appendix 2 (1)

	11 Beech Street Transformation and Public Realm Project
	Appendix 1 - Project Coversheet - Beech Street G6 Report

	12 Queensbridge House Hotel Section 278 Public Realm Enhancements and Highway Works
	QBH Appendix 3 -CRP-V1 (1)
	Risk Register


	13 Delegated reports: Overview April to September 2024
	14 Outstanding References



